
CITY OF KETCHUM, IDAHO REGULAR KETCHUM CITY COUNCIL 
Tuesday, February 18, 2020, 4:00 PM 
480 East Avenue, North, Ketchum, Idaho 

                                              Agenda 

●    CALL TO ORDER: By Mayor Neil Bradshaw 
●    ROLL CALL 
●    COMMUNICATIONS FROM MAYOR AND COUNCILORS 
●    COMMUNICATIONS FROM THE PUBLIC on matters not on the agenda (Comments will be kept to 3 minutes) 
●    CONSENT AGENDA:  Note: (ALL ACTION ITEMS) The Council is asked to approve the following listed items by 
       a single vote, except for any items that a Councilmember asks to be removed from the Consent Agenda and 
       considered separately 

1. Approval of Minutes: Regular Meeting February 3, 2020 
2. Authorization and approval of the payroll register 
3. Authorization and approval of the disbursement of funds from the City’s treasury for the payment of 

bills in the total sum of $574,693.53 as presented by the Treasurer. 
4. Monthly Financial State of the City - Director of Finance & Internal Services Grant Gager 
5. Recommendation to Extend Contract 20448 with S&C Associates for engineering services--City 

Administrator Suzanne Frick 
●    PUBLIC HEARINGS AND DISCUSSIONS (Public comment and input taken on the following items) 

6. ACTION ITEM: Recommendation to Hold a Public Hearing and Approve the Crossbuck Townhomes Lot 
3A and 4A Final Plat - Director of Planning & Building John Gaeddert 

7. ACTION ITEM: Recommendation to Hold a Public Hearing and Approve the Readjustment of Lot Lines 
Application for the West Ketchum Residences Project - Director of Planning & Building John Gaeddert 

8. ACTION ITEM: Consideration of Ordinance 1206 authorizing Sale of Bonds - Director of Finance & 
Internal Services Grant Gager 

●    STAFF AND COUNCIL COMMUNICATIONS (council deliberation, public comment not taken) 
●    EXECUTIVE SESSION 

9. Discussion Pursuant to 74-206 (1)(f) 
●    ADJOURNMENT 

 
If you need special accommodations, please contact the City of Ketchum in advance of the meeting. 

This agenda is subject to revisions and additions. Revised portions of the agenda are underlined in bold. 
Public information on agenda items is available in the Clerk’s Office located at 480 East Ave. N. in Ketchum or by calling 726-3841. 

Your participation and input is greatly appreciated. We would like to make this as easy as possible and familiarize you with the 
process.  If you plan to speak, please follow the protocol below. 

 
Please come to the podium to speak. 

Stand approximately 4-6 inches from the microphone for best results in recording your comments. 
Begin by stating your name. 

Please avoid answering questions from audience members. All questions should come from City officials. 
Public comments will be limited by a time determined by the Mayor. 

You may not give your time to another speaker. 
If you plan to show a slide presentation or video, please provide a copy to the City Clerk by 4:00 p.m. on the meeting date. 

 

 
Please note that all people may speak at public hearings. 

Public comment on other agenda items is at the discretion of the Mayor and City Council. 
Public comments may also be sent via email to participate@ketchumidaho.org 

Visit www.ketchumidaho.org and sign up for notifications on agendas, meeting packets, dates and more. 
Like us on Facebook and follow us on Twitter. 

Thank you for your participation. 
We look forward to hearing from you 
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CITY OF KETCHUM, IDAHO SPECIAL CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
Monday, February 03, 2020, 4:00 PM. 

   480 East Avenue, North, Ketchum, Idaho 
AGENDA 

●    CALL TO ORDER: By Mayor Neil Bradshaw 
 

Mayor Neil Bradshaw called the meeting to order at 4:00 p.m. 
 

●    ROLL CALL 
 
PRESENT 
Mayor Neil Bradshaw 
Council President Amanda Breen 
Councilor Michael David 
Councilor Courtney Hamilton 
Councilor Jim Slanetz 
 

●    COMMUNICATIONS FROM MAYOR AND COUNCILORS 
 
Councilor Courtney Hamilton spoke regarding sustainability and advised that the State Legislature is meeting 
tomorrow and will be discussing restrictions to municipal energy codes. Courtney Hamilton suggest the Mayor write 
a letter to the Legislature noting that Ketchum does not support the legislative change.  Councilor Michael David 
advised the State legislators will be here Friday at 5pm. Courtney Hamilton also suggested adding sustainability 
impact to staff reports going forward.   
 
Mayor Neil Bradshaw thanked everybody for their participation in the Boulder Mountain Tour.  
 
Mayor Neil Bradshaw thanked Emily Jones, reporter for the Mountain Express, for the time she has spent reporting 
on our meetings. However, she is moving on and this will be her last meeting.  
. 

●    COMMUNICATIONS FROM THE PUBLIC on matters not on the agenda (Comments will be kept to 3 minutes) 
Mayor opened the meeting for public comment. 
 
Sharon Grant advised that she will be presenting at the legislature tomorrow regarding the Energy Codes and 
changes before the legislators.  
 
Brad Walters talked about Insurance companies and read statements where insurance companies have refused to 
cover claims that are caused by 5G. 
  
Emily Walters talked about EMF Transmissions and being opposed to 5G. She stressed the importance of reducing 
your exposure to EMF's and the symptoms of overexposure and how doctors are treating them. Emily Walters went 
on to talk about scientific studies.  

 
●    CONSENT AGENDA:  Note: (ALL ACTION ITEMS) The Council is asked to approve the following listed items by 
       a single vote, except for any items that a Councilmember asks to be removed from the Consent Agenda and 
       considered separately 
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Mayor Neil Bradshaw clarified that the GMD contract is back on the agenda under consent is because it was not 
noticed as an Action Item on the February 3, 2020 agenda, therefore needed to be noticed as an action item and 
reapproved this evening.  He will sign the contract after tonight’s approval.  
 
Councilor Courtney Hamilton pulled the minutes and the bills. 
 

1. Approval of Minutes: Regular Meeting January 21, 2020 
  

Councilor Courtney Hamilton advised there was a typo on the word LEED under the PEG conversation.  
 
Motion to approve minutes with the typo correction on the word LEED. 

 
Motion made by Councilor Slanetz, Seconded by Councilor Hamilton. 
Voting Yea: Council President Breen, Councilor David, Councilor Hamilton, Councilor Slanetz 
 

2. Authorization and approval of the payroll register 
3. Authorization and approval of the disbursement of funds from the City’s treasury for the payment of bills in the 

total sum of $346,470.45 as presented by the Treasurer 
 
 Councilor Jim Slanetz questioned the Wood River Rural Fire charge. Director of Finance and Internal Services, 

Grant Gager explained the transitioning period and the operational purchases that were previously made that 
we are now dividing up.  
 
Councilor Courtney Hamilton questioned the Spruce tree purchase. City Administrator Suzanne Frick explained 
that this was a purchase for private property that was affected during the Warm Springs Sidewalk project.  
 
Motion to approve the bills. 

 
Motion made by Councilor Hamilton, Seconded by Councilor Slanetz. 
Voting Yea: Council President Breen, Councilor David, Councilor Hamilton, Councilor Slanetz 
 
 

4. Recommendation to reaffirm extension to Contract #20370 with GMD Development, extend lease option 20373 
with KCDC for the City Hall site, and authorize reimbursement to KCDC for tax credit application expenses – 
Mayor Neil Bradshaw. 

5. Recommendation to approve Contract #20445 with Will Caldwell for the Summer Concert Series (Ketch’em Alive 
and Jazz in the Park – Assistant City Administrator Lisa Enourato 

6. Recommendation to approve road closures for special events – Special Event Manager Julian Tyo 
7. Recommendation to Approve Resolution 20-008 Declaring Certain Assets as Surplus - Director of Finance & 

Internal Services Grant Gager 
 

 
Motion to approve consent items 2,4,5 6, 7. 
 

Motion made by Council President Breen, Seconded by Councilor Hamilton. 
Voting Yea: Council President Breen, Councilor David, Councilor Hamilton, Councilor Slanetz 

 
●    PUBLIC HEARINGS AND DISCUSSIONS (Public comment and input taken on the following items) 

8. ACTION ITEM: Recommendation to review and approve the Preliminary Plat and Planned Unit Development CUP 
Findings of Fact, Conclusions of Law, Order of Decision, for PEG Ketchum Hotel LLC, and recommendation to 
continue the development agreement portion of the public hearing until the Council's Regular Hearing of March 
16, 2020--Planning and Building Director John Gaeddert 
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 Mayor Neil Bradshaw introduced the PEG topic and talked about adopting the Findings of Fact. He referenced 
public comments made and talked about the letter in the record from Robertson & Slette. Mayor Bradshaw 
asked Attorney Bill Gigray to address the questions that have been raised. 

 
City Attorney Bill Gigray talked about Gary Slette's questions from the January 22, 2020 Council meeting and 
distributed copies of our Ordinance to help clarify the question before council. He talked about the minimum lot 
size and the requested waiver of the 3-acre minimum. He talked about statutory construction and questioned 
what the intent of council was when the ordinance was passed. He went into specifics about what the Council 
needs to decide on. Mayor Neil Bradshaw summarized that to get a waiver we need to satisfy 1, 2 and 3 or 4. 
Not all four.   
 
Attorney Bill Gigray addressed the second point of Mr. Slette's letter and directed council to Municipal code 
17.124.050 and what that means. He talked about a 4-story limitation and standard and told council they need 
to decide on the intent of the ordinance and its intended use. Mayor Neil Bradshaw clarified the need to decide 
on purpose and talked about parking spaces and employee housing as well as FAR and height and floor story 
requirements. 
 
Mayor Neil Bradshaw opened the meeting for public comment.  
 
Jim Hunglemann referenced the meeting at the Limelight hotel and advised that there is no need for additional 
hotel space. He objects to the hotel saying, this is completely incompatible with the space around it.  He said to 
“Let the economy come but play by the rules”. 
 
Ben Worst spoke for his client at 220 River Street.  He expressed his gratitude for the 16' setback. He wants to 
be sure that they get the full 16’.  He referenced the Order Of Decision on page 102.  Condition #1 referencing 
the setbacks. He requested that this be reflected in the motion. Mayor Bradshaw advised that this will be 
clarified.    
 
Ananda Kriya told Council that we are going to fast in the wrong direction. He said to really examine what we 
want to have here in Ketchum.  He understands that hotels are not overcrowded and does not see the need for 
another hotel. He referenced Rahu and the ecliptic node of the lunar cycle. 
 
Mayor Neil Bradshaw asked the public to be considerate to all speakers and that this is a safe place to speak.  
Mayor Bradshaw advised the public that 13 years ago a Gateway study was done, and 4 hotels were proposed in 
that area. He and Council are working at making the best decisions they can. 
 
Pamela Zabel advised that she was gone for a month and now feeling the need to speak. She said the parking lot 
was good but nothing else is. She talked about the proposed Marriott site and questioned how that will work 
with the construction and the streets. She does not think hotels are overcrowded.  She did not realize a study 
was done 13 years ago and advised that she has lived here for 28 years. She referenced build it and they will 
come; however, nobody is in downtown on Sunday afternoon and she does not see the need for a hotel. 
 
Ben Worst asked for clarification on where we are in the process. Mayor Neil Bradshaw will address this later in 
the evening.  
 
Public comment closed. 
 
Attorney Bill Gigray explained the process saying after the proposed findings of facts are approved the project 
will need to go to Design Review. The final draft of the permit still needs to come before council.  Director of 
Planning & Building John Gaeddert will make the change to reflect the full 16'. Until Master plan is approved 
thru Design Review this is not a final order. Tonight’s decision is not a final action. The Development Agreement 
will be continued.  Tonight, we will get an action item on the Preliminary Plat and the CUP.   
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Mayor Neil Bradshaw asked Council if they need any further clarifications. Mayor Bradshaw questioned if we 
could grant a PUD for something that is less than an acre and a half and council’s interpretation of that.  He said 
that the second point is about the number of floors and Council’s interpretation of that as well. Council 
President Amanda Breen thanked Attorney Bill Gigray for his explanation and clarified that the intent was #4 - to 
be stand alone. Councilor Courtney Hamilton stated that it makes sense since hotels are stand alone. Mayor Neil 
Bradshaw advised that it then meets the definition. Councilors David and Slanetz both agree.  
 
Mayor Neil Bradshaw asked Council about stories versus height. Attorney Bill Gigray asked Council what the 
intent and purpose with this ordinance was when it was written. Is a waiver needed? Council and Mayor 
deliberated. Attorney Bill Gigray advised that if a waiver is not required then we go back to the PUD Standards. 
Councilor Jim Slanetz questioned if they would be setting a precedent for future development not having to get 
a waiver. Bill Gigray advised that this application is for hotel use only, it is singularly a hotel, so it follows the PUD 
Standards. Michael David believes it falls under the hotel definition. He agrees with all that has been said among 
the Council and feels the council has done what they need to do to move forward. 
 
Attorney Bill Gigray asked the intent and purpose of the ordinances from Council be included in the Findings. He 
has language to add to the Conclusions of Law for clarification. He handed the Council proposed draft language 
that will be added at page 25 before 16.08.08. Bill Gigray read aloud that it is the intent of the City Council that 
paragraph 4 subsection A of KMC Section 16.08.080 exclusively and directly applies to Hotel planned use 
developments waivers. 
  
That paragraph 4 of subsection A of KMC Section 16.08.80 requires that developments that meet the definition 
of a Hotel in KMC section 17.08.020 and conform to the requirements of KMC section 17.18.100 to be granted 
waivers of the three (3) acre minimum lot size for their PUD Development. 
 
That KMC Section 17.18.100 A is a statement of purpose of the City’s Tourist District and as such states the 
purpose of the district to provide the opportunity for high density residential and tourist use and development  
which can be justified as a primary use within the district. There is a general but not specific reference to the 
specific dimensional requirements of the Zoning ordinances in KMC Section 17.18.100. The zoning ordinance 
requirement of KMC section 17.124.040, which refers to KMC section 17.124.050, are not mandated by KMC 
Section 17.18.100 unless a waiver of 17.18.100 is required. In this instance the subject PUD application is a hotel 
use only, a waiver of 17.18.100 is not required, and the PEG application is a hotel use only, a waiver of 17.18.100 
is not required, and the PEG Ketchum Hotel complies with the intent, purpose, and use requirements of the 
Tourist Zone set forth in MC Section 17.18.100. 
 
 
Director of Planning & Building John Gaeddert clarified we would have a motion to adopt the preliminary plat 
and then the motion to adopt the PUD with Bill’s language inserted on page 25 also in the motion we would 
note the deletion of the note of 4 story on page 29, 39 and 40, we would recognize the clarification on the 
parking stalls 18 not 14 for employee housing on page 46and based on Mr. Worst’s comments on page 41 we 
would modify condition #1 to be 4’4” for a total of a 16’ setback.  
 
Councilor Courtney Hamilton questioned if the LEED Certification needs to be captured. Director of Planning & 
Building John Gaeddert explained page 44 condition 6.2 has LEED and cites back to the Ordinance. Courtney 
Hamilton also questioned the traffic patterns and crosswalk on River St. and voiced concern about safety for 
pedestrians. John Gaeddert advised that this will be flagged for the City Engineer and the Designers. He talked 
about what is in the plans at this time. 
 
Move to approve the PEG Preliminary Plat and authorize the Mayor to sign the Attachment E.2.A Findings 
dated 2/3/2020. 
 
Motion made by Council President Breen, Seconded by Councilor Hamilton. 
Voting Yea: Council President Breen, Councilor David, Councilor Hamilton, Councilor Slanetz 5



 
Move to Approve the PEG Planned Unit Development CUP and authorize the Mayor to sign the Attachment 
E.4.A Findings dated 2/3/2020 with the following revisions: addition of the language read into record by City 
Attorney on page 25 before 16.08.08b as well as the revisions read into the record by Director of Planning & 
Building John Gaeddert read into the motion prior to this motion. 
 
Motion made by Council President Breen, Seconded by Councilor Hamilton. 
Voting Yea: Council President Breen, Councilor David, Councilor Hamilton, Councilor Slanetz 
 
Move to continue the public hearing portion of the Development Agreement for the PG Ketchum Hotel until 
March 16, 2020. 
 
Motion made by Council President Breen, Seconded by Councilor Hamilton. 
Voting Yea: Council President Breen, Councilor David, Councilor Hamilton, Councilor Slanetz 
 

9. ACTION ITEM: Recommendation to Hold a Public Hearing and Approve the Crossbuck Townhomes Lot 3B Final 
Plat – Director of Planning & Building John Gaeddert 

  
Mayor Neil Bradshaw opened the meeting for public comment. 
 
Attorney Ben Worst complimented the developer on this project. 
 
Councilor Courtney Hamilton questioned why this project is being approved by unit.  Mayor Neil Bradshaw 
explained they are separate defined lots. Councilor Jim Slanetz talked about the 8 separate lots and the curb 
cuts. He would like to see one entrance. He talked about the parking that will be eliminated. Director of Planning 
& Building John Gaeddert advised what the future proposal looks like.  
 
Motion to approve the Crossbuck Townhomes Lot 3B Final Plat subject to City issuance of a Certificate of 
Occupancy for the Lot 3B unit. 
 
Motion made by Councilor Hamilton, Seconded by Councilor David. 
Voting Yea: Council President Breen, Councilor David, Councilor Hamilton, Councilor Slanetz 
 

10. ACTION ITEM: Recommendation to approve Onyx at Leadville Phase 2 Final Plat – Director of Planning & Building 
John Gaeddert 

 
 Mayor Neil Bradshaw advised 3 units are being added and talked about safety being the most important.  

 
Senior Planner Brittany Skelton explained the project. These 3 units are expected to be open to public.  
 
Mayor Neil Bradshaw asked for public comment.  There was none.  
 
Motion to approve the Onyx at Leadville Residence: Phase 2 Final Plat subject to the issuance of Certificates of 
Occupancy for unite 101, 201 and 301 and to authorize the Mayor to sign the Findings of Fact, Conclusions of 
Law, and Decision. 
 
Motion made by Councilor Hamilton, Seconded by Council President Breen. 
Voting Yea: Council President Breen, Councilor David, Councilor Hamilton, Councilor Slanetz 
 

11. ACTION ITEM: Discussion and considerations of the options available to Ketchum on 5G – Mayor Neil Bradshaw 
 Mayor Neil Bradshaw introduced this topic.  
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Mayor Neil Bradshaw distributed Matt Johnson’s legal opinion to the public. Mayor Bradshaw advised that the 
attorney is very cautious, and our hands are tied except for design regulations.  
 
Mayor Neil Bradshaw opened the meeting for public comment.  
 
Ananda Kriya spoke saying we should be obligated to do something about it and to not cave into the federal 
government. He recommended the moratorium and asked the council to see what can be done in schools. He 
talked about the problems with 5 G and Wi-fi for the younger children in school.  He talked about the cell tower 
saying it was founded upon a lie and about who started 911. He questioned if any readers have been placed on 
Dollar and Baldy Mountains claiming they are very high in radiation and recommended standing up for the 
children. 
 
Michelle Pavarchis, 104 Timber way, talked about miners taking a canary into the goldmine. She said she is a 
canary. She can feel it. She talked about RF Radiation, Radio Frequency radiation and showed a piece of 
equipment that showed how much radiation is in the room.  She had another piece of equipment that shows 
how much radiation is on you when you hold the meter. Michelle Pavarchis talked current levels of radiation 
and referenced studies that have been done. She talked about the eco system and environment and advised the 
council that she cannot trust technology but hopes she can trust them. 
 
Marcia Hart questioned what 5 G means. She talked about the positives of 5G as well as the negatives and all 
the dangers it is bringing to us stating there is no place to go that is safe.  
 
Dick English has a PHD in Physical Chemistry. Mr. English stated that 5g is being blown up to a level that does not 
make physical sense.  He said the levels at which the micro watts are being measured will make a sound.  The 
sounds it makes does not mean it will injure us.  He talked about studies that have been done that do not prove 
anything and everybody should take a deep breath. 
 
Iny Day, Hailey resident, talked about enjoying our valley. What we cannot have is steel structures that blocks 
our views. She talked about a cell tower forest and questioned how the State of Idaho can think we want more 
power lines.  Every tower would be harmful to life.  Burying fiber optic cable is much better.  
 
Cooper Evans, a concerned 7th grader, talked about health effects on our area.  He talked about healthy plant 
life and the water that falls on these plants and how they will be affected. He talked about what happened years 
ago with transmission wires and the health studies that resulted from that.  
 
Curtis Maze, resident of 12 years, talked about the effects on human bodies, pets, how it will affect your dna as 
well as how it causes infertility in males. He talked about bee colony's and the food supply as well as the 
scheduled launching of 15,000 satellites. He referenced appliances being marketed with these 
telecommunications. This new level is not safe and must be stopped here and now. He suggested a moratorium. 
 
Bridget Bagley thanked Mayor and Council for the time to speak. She has researched this for years and 
suggested looking at the global action. She talked about a smart meter and said that 5g is creating scar tissue in 
the body. Bridget Bagley explained that State Power is being mandated over Federal, and that we can do 
something about this.  She advised that fiber optic option is stronger and safer.  
 
Karen McCall, Ketchum resident, talked in detail about literature that is out there and the health damage that 5g 
can cause. She stated that 5g technology may be more dangerous than previous cell technology. She talked 
about the cell towers that will need to be placed all over and in very close proximity to each other. She talked 
about being insulted by an invisible intruder.  
 
Maria Muir advised that there are a lot of studies on EMF and the health effects. She advised that there are 
tools that we can use to neutralize the effects of 5G and referenced the letter from the City Attorney and said 
there are things we can do. 7



 
Sandra Willingham advised that she has a vested interest in our environment. She talked about studies and the 
disappearance of different species such as bees and birds that are contributed to EMF. She asked council to stop 
this in our community. 
 
Bill Lair from Elkhorn told a story about a friend of his and the effects the wi-fi has on her. He talked about how 
this is being handled throughout the country and in other countries stating they are delaying it until more 
research could be done. He encouraged council to look at the research. 
 
Michelle Sandoz advised that 22 cities have banded together to stop 5g.  She presented a petition stating 255 
people have signed it. She talked about the movie called Zapped and the closeness of a cell phone to your 
proximity. She will be forwarding the rest of her comments in writing.  
 
Jim Hunglemann asked who really wants this?  He doesn't have a problem getting a signal.  Citizens have a right 
to defend their children and their home.  The local government has the duty to protect.   
 
Isabella Cazamera said this is scary and important and is true. You must look at this seriously. She talked about 
100 scientists worldwide who have talked about the negative effects of 5G. She referenced Dr. Martin Paul and 
the study he has done. She stated, as a health care practitioner in the area, her intention is to help people 
heal.  People will get sicker with this frequency.   
 
Carol Hymas advised that she has a profound interest in this area. 5g is not cheaper, faster or better than what 
we have now. Comcast said they are not in the race; they are looking at improving 4g. She said you cannot say 
we are not legally able to do anything. Fiber Optic is much more reliable. She talked about protective covers for 
cell phones that can be found on less emf.com.  
 
Wendy Collins stated that a group of individuals have power and talked about the difference people can 
make.  It needs to be proven safe for all of us prior to moving forward. She thanked the Mayor and Council for 
allowing them to speak but we all need to contact our local representatives.  
 
Amy Christiansen talked about chemical use to plants and encouraged Mayor & Council to look at what other 
cities are doing until it is proven safe.  
 
Public comment closed. at 6:32p.m. 
 
Mayor Neil Bradshaw advised that we are dealing with shades of gray. He asked Council for their input. 
 
Councilor Jim Slanetz agrees with most people that have spoken tonight. There has been a lot of information 
and studies.  From a public safety standpoint, he would like to stand up and fight. He's unsure about the best 
angle but willing to take the fight.  
 
Mayor Neil Bradshaw talked about Ordinances that can be implemented aesthetically.  
 
Councilor Michael David questioned the placement of towers and about the legalities of a moratorium at this 
time.  
 
Attorney Bill Gigray talked about passing a moratorium ordinance stating that the City will have to be prepared 
to defend itself in Federal Court and it would be very costly. He talked about the FCC and what those regulations 
are. Councilor Michael David referenced the comment made that, “you have to prove it's not healthy, but they 
do not have to prove that it is healthy”. There was talk about cities banning together and going before the 
legislature. Assault laws were discussed.   
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Councilor Courtney Hamilton talked about the political risk of a moratorium. Council President Amanda Breen is 
hesitant to pass a moratorium based on Attorney input and talked about different sides to every story.  We will 
need a full study. Councilor Michael David said he has concerns about this coming to staff without the tools they 
need to make a decision. He suggested some type of moratorium until we can review our policy's.  
 
Senior Planner Brittany Skelton advised the council that wireless permits have all been in commercial zones at 
this time. If a wireless carrier comes to Ketchum, they need to go thru p & Z and a Master Plan. There are 
currently restrictions in place, however they haven't been reviewed in the recent past.  
 
Councilor Michael David asked if we could put a hold on anything until we review our ordinance. Attorney Bill 
Gigray said to consider a motion to have the staff review and come back and report to council with 
recommendations. He referenced it as a stay.  
 
Mayor Neil Bradshaw questioned the council as to if they want to direct staff to do the research and bring this 
back to council at a later date or if they would like to discontinue the conversation here? Councilor  
Jim Slanetz believes time is of the essence and would like to move forward. He would like to see what Los Altos 
has done.  Councilor Michael David agrees with Jim Slanetz stating this is a concern of our community. He 
questioned what other cities in Blaine County are doing? Councilor Courtney Hamilton agrees that we need to 
review any policies we have in place and would also like to look at what other communities are doing. She does 
believe there is somewhat of a health concern. Michael David is concerned about staff time but feels this is 
important. Mayor Bradshaw would like to see a county wide approach to this and suggested the public continue 
to communicate with the commissioners as well as state legislators. 
 
Mayor Neil Bradshaw would like to task staff to work on this and bring this back in the future.  
 
Mayor Neil Bradshaw called for a 5-minute break and resumed the meeting at 7:11p.m. 
 

12. ACTION ITEM: Recommendation to Approve 2020 City of Ketchum Sustainability Plan--Mayor Neil Bradshaw 
 

 Mayor Neil Bradshaw introduced the 2020 City of Ketchum Sustainability Plan.  He then asked for public 
comment.  
 
Sharon Grant, representing KSAC, talked about the budget and what they have been able to do and talked about 
the plan in front of council.  KSAC is looking at meeting with other jurisdictions and are applying for grants. 
 
Amy Christiansen stated that overall, she is pleased that Ketchum adopted a Sustainability Plan and is prioritizing 
sustainability.  She has concerns about the lack of budget. She stated that sustainability creates income. She 
talked about local farmers and voiced concerns about energy goals and KSAC going backwards. Amy Christiansen 
talked about past goals and KSAC is now and where they will be in 2030.  
 
Michelle Sandos stated that 5g is an energy by vampire. She said that a lot of things that are moving forward and 
suggested council be careful to know how they are working together for the end goal.  
 
Mayor Neil Bradshaw asked Amy Christensen to clarify her comments. Amy Christiansen went into detail about 
reaching goals, she addressed vehicles, water goals, talked about drought tolerant species and addressed waste 
goals. Sharon Grant advised that the waste goals were addressed last year.  
 
Councilor Courtney Hamilton advised Council that the Sustainability Committee has worked hard on these goals, 
but we are not going to reach our goals by 2030 and suggested having a 2030 plan. Mayor Neil Bradshaw 
appreciates the action plan and is interested in seeing if this could be done on a county wide scale. Council 
President Amanda Breen is in support of replacing plants with drought tolerant plants. Councilor Jim Slanetz is in 
support of low flow toilet fixtures. Mayor Neil Bradshaw suggested putting this in the next round of 
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budgeting.  He then talked about reopening this year’s budget in June or July to possibly put more money 
toward these goals.  
 
The term feasible was discussed as length. Councilor Michael David talked about the Sun Valley Company stating 
that he hopes they will be part of these conversations going forward. Councilor Courtney Hamilton advised that 
the goals are city centered. She said we need to figure out how to roll this out to the community.  Currently we 
can only lead by example. She would like to continue to have these conversations. 
 
Motion to approve the 2020 Ketchum Sustainability Action Plan with changes of moving feasibility and 
moving up drought vegetation.  
 
Motion made by Councilor Slanetz, Seconded by Councilor Hamilton. 
Voting Yea: Council President Breen, Councilor David, Councilor Hamilton, Councilor Slanetz 
 

●    STAFF AND COUNCIL COMMUNICATIONS (council deliberation, public comment not taken) 
13. ACTION ITEM: Recommendation to Amend Contract 20440 with DPPM to include sustainability services--Mayor 

Neil Bradshaw 
  

Mayor Neil Bradshaw introduced Dennis Potts and explained the contract before the council and talked about 
the sustainability choices. 

  
Motion to approve Change Order #1, in an amount not to exceed $122,820 to Contract 20440 with DPPM, LLC 
and authorize the Mayor to sign the Change Order.  
 
Motion made by Councilor David, Seconded by Councilor Hamilton. 
Voting Yea: Council President Breen, Councilor David, Councilor Hamilton, Councilor Slanetz 
 

14. ACTION ITEM: Recommendation to approve Contract #20444 and appropriation of funds from the Parks and  
Recreation Trust Fund – Assistant City Administrator Lisa Enourato. 

  
Mayor Neil Bradshaw advised that Assistant City Administrator Lisa Enourato is here to answer questions.  Lisa 
Enourato explained the project and asked Grant Gager, Director of Finance & Internal Services to explain the 
Funding.  Grant Gager advised that historically the arts commission was funded out of the parks and recs fund. 
The $51,000 is out of the general fund. The art categories were discussed.  
 
Motion to approve Contract #20444 and the appropriation of $29,000 from the Parks and Recreation Trust 
Fund to commission a sculpture for the city’s art collection. 
 
Motion made by Council President Breen, Seconded by Councilor Hamilton. 
Voting Yea: Council President Breen, Councilor David, Councilor Hamilton, Councilor Slanetz 
 
Attorney Bill Gigray advised Council that he would identify footnotes to be added to the Findings of Fact on page 
17 on the PEG project.  
 

●    EXECUTIVE SESSION 
15. Discussion pursuant to 74-206 1(c) 

 
Motion to go into executive session at 7:52p.m. 
 
Motion made by Councilor Hamilton, Seconded by Council President Breen. 
Voting Yea: Council President Breen, Councilor David, Councilor Hamilton, Councilor Slanetz 
 
Came out of Executive Session at 8:09 p.m. 10



 

●    ADJOURNMENT 
 
Motion to adjourn at 8:10 p.m.  
 
Motion made by Councilor Slanetz, Seconded by Councilor Hamilton Voting Yea: Council President Breen, 
Councilor Hamilton Councilor Slanetz  
Voting Nay: Councilor David 
 
 

______________________________________  
Neil Bradshaw, Mayor  

 
 
 
 
___________________________________  
Robin Crotty, City Clerk 
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City of Ketchum Payment Approval Report - by GL Council Page:     1

Report dates: 1/30/2020-2/13/2020 Feb 13, 2020  09:41AM

Report Criteria:

Invoices with totals above $0 included.

Paid and unpaid invoices included.

[Report].GL Account Number = "0110000000"-"9648008200","9910000000"-"9911810000"

Invoice Detail.Voided = No,Yes

Vendor Name Invoice Number Description Net Invoice Amount

GENERAL FUND

01-2175-8000  P/R DEDUC PBL--EMP CAF FSA-MD

NBS-NATIONAL BENEFIT SERVI CP243303 FSA 2,000.62

NBS-NATIONAL BENEFIT SERVI CP243303 FSAROLL 719.48

NBS-NATIONAL BENEFIT SERVI CP243303 FSA 3,251.06

01-2175-9000  P/R DEDUC PBL--EMP CAF FSA-DC

NBS-NATIONAL BENEFIT SERVI CP243303 DCA 501.12

01-3700-3600  REFUNDS & REIMBURSEMENTS

WIGDALE, JOHN 020320 Park Deposit Refund 150.00

          Total : 6,622.28

LEGISLATIVE & EXECUTIVE

01-4110-2515  VISION REIMBURSEMENT ACCT(HRA)

NBS-NATIONAL BENEFIT SERVI 734689 FSA/HRA January 2020 22.95

NBS-NATIONAL BENEFIT SERVI CP243303 HRA Vision 273.37

NBS-NATIONAL BENEFIT SERVI CP243303 HRA 109.04

01-4110-4200  PROFESSIONAL SERVICES

COPY CENTER LLC 1329 Ketchum Mailer 4,644.70

01-4110-4910  MYR/CNCL-TRAINING/TRAVEL/MTG

BRADSHAW, NEIL 021220 Travel Reimbursement for Bond Rating 448.80

          Total LEGISLATIVE & EXECUTIVE: 5,498.86

ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES

01-4150-2515  VISION REIMBURSEMENT ACCT(HRA)

NBS-NATIONAL BENEFIT SERVI 734689 FSA/HRA January 2020 48.75

NBS-NATIONAL BENEFIT SERVI CP243303 HRA 216.46

NBS-NATIONAL BENEFIT SERVI CP243303 HRA Vision 171.99

01-4150-3100  OFFICE SUPPLIES & POSTAGE

ATKINSONS' MARKET 02833007 Supplies 23.80

COPY & PRINT, L.L.C. OUT-822 11x17 Paper 75.99

COPY & PRINT, L.L.C. OUT-840 Stapler 39.99

TREASURE VALLEY COFFEE INC 2160 06566413 Spring Water 31.80

UNITED STATES POSTMASTER 3801 021120 Air Service Board Box - Will be reimb. to City 80.00

US BANK 6235 012720 6235 - Moo Communications Credit 17.78-

US BANK 6243 012720 6243 - Folgers Classic 23.10

01-4150-4200  PROFESSIONAL SERVICES

CASELLE, INC. 100238 Caselle Support & Maintenance 2,204.00

BROWN, LINDA DIANE 2002 Delivery for February 2020 100.00

01-4150-4400  ADVERTISING & LEGAL PUBLICATIO

EXPRESS PUBLISHING, INC. 10002196 0131 10002196 013120 1,270.64
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City of Ketchum Payment Approval Report - by GL Council Page:     2

Report dates: 1/30/2020-2/13/2020 Feb 13, 2020  09:41AM

Vendor Name Invoice Number Description Net Invoice Amount

01-4150-4900  PERSONNEL TRAINING/TRAVEL/MTG

US BANK 6243 012720 6243 - Moody's Flight - Gager 518.80

01-4150-5100  TELEPHONE & COMMUNICATIONS

CENTURY LINK 2087267801 01 2087267801 012320 1.88

US BANK 6243 012720 6243 - Cox Bills w/o fees 267.00

01-4150-5110  COMPUTER NETWORK

CDW GOVERNMENT, INC. WQV5132 Computer Parts 825.00

KETCHUM COMPUTERS, INC. 16749 Computer Support 6,206.70

US BANK 0568 012720 0568 - Dropbox 2,250.00

US BANK 6243 012720 6243 - 8x8 2,455.72

01-4150-5150  COMMUNICATIONS

US BANK 6235 012720 6235 - Constant Contact Communications 9.50

US BANK 6235 012720 6235 - Facebook Communications 94.99

US BANK 6235 012720 6235 - Shutterstock Communications 30.74

US BANK 6235 012720 6235 - Mailchimp Communications 84.99

US BANK 6235 012720 6235 - UPrinting Banners 57.15

SNEE, MOLLY 2001 January Retainer Fee 4,500.00

ALTITUDE MEDIA LLC 129 October 19 - February 2020 Media 1,375.00

GRANICUS 113355 Civic Streaming - June 2019 523.69

GRANICUS 114601 Civic Streaming - July 2019 523.69

GRANICUS 117189 Civic Streaming - September 2019 523.66

GRANICUS 117450 Civic Streaming - October 2019 523.69

GRANICUS 118690 Civic Streaming - November 2019 523.69

GRANICUS 119849 Civic Streaming - December 2019 523.69

GRANICUS 120808 Civic Streaming - January 2020 523.69

GRANICUS 121762 Civic Streaming - February 2020 523.69

GRANICUS 123081 Civic Streaming - March 2020 523.69

01-4150-5200  UTILITIES

CITY OF KETCHUM 020520 9994 - January 188.96

CITY OF KETCHUM 020520 9997 - January 318.12

CITY OF KETCHUM 020520 772 - January 58.30

CITY OF KETCHUM 020520 360 - January 48.76

CLEAR CREEK DISPOSAL 0001275311 951449 012720 60.00

CLEAR CREEK DISPOSAL 0001294242 960 012720 34.20

INTERMOUNTAIN GAS 32649330001 0 32649330001 012720 1,099.12

INTERMOUNTAIN GAS 44919030005 0 44919030005 012720 40.89

OWM SOLAR, LLC 20190131-1 2018 OWM PV Lease Pmt. 2,499.94

OWM SOLAR, LLC 20200131-1 2019 OWM PV Lease Pmt. 2,366.11

01-4150-5900  REPAIR & MAINTENANCE-BUILDINGS

SOUNDWAVE, INC. 7797 Lobby Speaker Work 75.00

US BANK 6235 012720 6235 - Window Blinds 32.19

01-4150-6500  CONTRACTS FOR SERVICES

S & C ASSOCIATES LLC 1537 - 1554 19-1041 55.00

S & C ASSOCIATES LLC 1537 - 1554 19-1037 495.00

S & C ASSOCIATES LLC 1537 - 1554 18-1008 110.00

01-4150-7400  OFFICE FURNITURE & EQUIPMENT

US BANK 6243 012720 6243 - Kathleen's Scanner 799.00

          Total ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES: 35,939.98
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City of Ketchum Payment Approval Report - by GL Council Page:     3

Report dates: 1/30/2020-2/13/2020 Feb 13, 2020  09:41AM

Vendor Name Invoice Number Description Net Invoice Amount

LEGAL

01-4160-4200  PROFESSIONAL SERVICES

WHITE PETERSON 24892R 013120 24892R 013120 15,500.00

          Total LEGAL: 15,500.00

PLANNING & BUILDING

01-4170-2505  HEALTH REIMBURSEMENT ACCT(HRA)

NBS-NATIONAL BENEFIT SERVI CP243303 HRA 145.44

01-4170-2515  VISION REIMBURSEMENT ACCT(HRA)

NBS-NATIONAL BENEFIT SERVI 734689 FSA/HRA January 2020 22.70

NBS-NATIONAL BENEFIT SERVI CP243303 HRA Vision 679.00

01-4170-4200  PROFESSIONAL SERVICES

S & C ASSOCIATES LLC 1537 - 1554 19-1073 165.00

S & C ASSOCIATES LLC 1537 - 1554 19-1074 110.00

S & C ASSOCIATES LLC 1537 - 1554 19-1075 275.00

S & C ASSOCIATES LLC 1537 - 1554 19-1076 220.00

S & C ASSOCIATES LLC 1537 - 1554 19-1042 1,320.00

S & C ASSOCIATES LLC 1537 - 1554 19-1059 660.00

S & C ASSOCIATES LLC 1537 - 1554 19-1070 55.00

S & C ASSOCIATES LLC 1537 - 1554 18-1026 220.00

S & C ASSOCIATES LLC 1537 - 1554 18-1050 165.00

S & C ASSOCIATES LLC 1537 - 1554 19-1004 55.00

S & C ASSOCIATES LLC 1537 - 1554 19-1008 165.00

CENTER FOR CONTINUING EDU 5203 - REV AD Consultation and Services 277.00

KVH STRATEGIES 58 Planning Department Planning Training 437.50

01-4170-4210  PROFESSIONAL SERVICES - IDBS

DIVISION OF BUILDING SAFETY 020220 January 2020 Building Permit Fees 4,163.00

01-4170-4900  PERSONNEL TRAINING/TRAVEL/MTG

US BANK 4221 012720 4221 - Walkable City Rules 101 20.49

          Total PLANNING & BUILDING: 9,155.13

NON-DEPARTMENTAL

01-4193-4500  1ST/WASHINGTON RENT

URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY 3881 Parking Lot Rent 3,000.00

01-4193-6500  CONTRACT FOR SERVICE

ECO EDGE 70004 Eco Edge Contract 4/12 1,250.00

KIC 013020 December 2019 and January 2020 Services 13,431.00

01-4193-6601  MASTER TRANSPORTATION PLAN

HDR ENGINEERING, INC. 1200240852 Master Transportation Plan 7,876.40

S & C ASSOCIATES LLC 1537 - 1554 17-1009 165.00

          Total NON-DEPARTMENTAL: 25,722.40

FACILITY MAINTENANCE

01-4194-2505  HEALTH REIMBURSEMENT ACCT(HRA)

NBS-NATIONAL BENEFIT SERVI CP243303 HRA 391.10
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City of Ketchum Payment Approval Report - by GL Council Page:     4

Report dates: 1/30/2020-2/13/2020 Feb 13, 2020  09:41AM

Vendor Name Invoice Number Description Net Invoice Amount

NBS-NATIONAL BENEFIT SERVI CP243303 HRA Vision 486.80

01-4194-2515  VISION REIMBURSEMENT ACCT(HRA)

NBS-NATIONAL BENEFIT SERVI 734689 FSA/HRA January 2020 22.70

01-4194-3500  MOTOR FUELS & LUBRICANTS

UNITED OIL 931623 38950 013120 447.55

01-4194-5200  UTILITIES

CITY OF KETCHUM 020520 9995 - January 39.66

CITY OF KETCHUM 020520 9996 - January 48.77

CITY OF KETCHUM 020520 536 - January 118.98

CITY OF KETCHUM 020520 560 - January 13.22

CITY OF KETCHUM 020520 1127 - January 13.21

CITY OF KETCHUM 020520 1245 - January 35.55

CITY OF KETCHUM 020520 9991 - January 49.82

CITY OF KETCHUM 020520 456 - January 13.22

CITY OF KETCHUM 020520 532 - January 50.87

CLEAR CREEK DISPOSAL 0001274241 960 012720 30.00

INTERMOUNTAIN GAS 32649330001 0 32649330001 012720 13.48

INTERMOUNTAIN GAS 65669030002 0 65669030002 012720 10.31

01-4194-6000  REPAIR & MAINT-AUTOMOTIVE EQUI

RIVER RUN AUTO PARTS 6538-150523 Dual Temp Heat Gun 69.93

RIVER RUN AUTO PARTS 6538-150557 Tail Light 59.57

01-4194-6950  MAINTENANCE

A.C. HOUSTON LUMBER CO. 2001-599017 Utility Heater 64.78

A.C. HOUSTON LUMBER CO. 2001-599186 Toilet Fill Valve 16.79

A.C. HOUSTON LUMBER CO. 2001-599246 Pipe Valve 12.99

A.C. HOUSTON LUMBER CO. 2001-599277 Credit 12.99-

A.C. HOUSTON LUMBER CO. 2001-599923 Toilet Supply Tube 7.49

A.C. HOUSTON LUMBER CO. 2002-601575 Screwdriver Set 24.59

CHATEAU DRUG CENTER 2184304 Pliers 9.49

L.L. GREEN'S HARDWARE A572444 Comp and Turn Angles 18.98

          Total FACILITY MAINTENANCE: 2,056.86

POLICE

01-4210-2515  VISION REIMBURSEMENT ACCT(HRA)

NBS-NATIONAL BENEFIT SERVI 734689 FSA/HRA January 2020 6.45

NBS-NATIONAL BENEFIT SERVI CP243303 HRA Vision 810.00

NBS-NATIONAL BENEFIT SERVI CP243303 HRA 282.29

01-4210-3620  PARKING OPS EQUIPMENT FEES

CALE AMERICA, INC. 158137 January Active Meters 165.00

OMNI PARK 121122 Omni Park Subscription 343.00

01-4210-4200  PROFESSIONAL SERVICES

KETCHUM COMPUTERS, INC. 16750 Computer Support - BCSO 870.75

DICK YORK'S AUTO SERVICE 84468 Professional Services 225.00

          Total POLICE: 2,702.49

FIRE & RESCUE
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City of Ketchum Payment Approval Report - by GL Council Page:     5

Report dates: 1/30/2020-2/13/2020 Feb 13, 2020  09:41AM

Vendor Name Invoice Number Description Net Invoice Amount

01-4230-2505  HEALTH REIMBURSEMENT ACCT(HRA)

NBS-NATIONAL BENEFIT SERVI CP243303 HRA 1,866.19

01-4230-2515  VISION REIMBURSEMENT ACCT(HRA)

NBS-NATIONAL BENEFIT SERVI 734689 FSA/HRA January 2020 81.25

NBS-NATIONAL BENEFIT SERVI CP243303 HRA 125.18

01-4230-3200  OPERATING SUPPLIES FIRE

A.C. HOUSTON LUMBER CO. 2002-603933 Ice Melt and Shovel 27.09

ATKINSONS' MARKET 05271010 Quarter Supplies 11.43

US BANK 4977 012720 4977 - Boot Repair 104.90

01-4230-3210  OPERATING SUPPLIES EMS

A.C. HOUSTON LUMBER CO. 2002-603933 Ice Melt and Shovel 27.10

ATKINSONS' MARKET 05271010 Quarter Supplies 11.43

BOUNDTREE MEDICAL 83482894 Medical Supplies 382.06

BOUNDTREE MEDICAL 83490425 Medical Supplies 271.96

NORCO 28333976 54794 011520 91.93

NORCO 28460820 52355 013120 33.54

NORCO 28461862 54794 013120 199.58

01-4230-3500  MOTOR FUELS & LUBRICANTS FIRE

UNITED OIL 931465 37267 013120 258.54

01-4230-3510  MOTOR FUELS & LUBRICANTS EMS

UNITED OIL 931465 37267 013120 199.30

01-4230-4910  TRAINING EMS

US BANK 4977 012720 4977 - 30 Avy Class Books 450.00

US BANK 4977 012720 4977 - Avy Class Manuals and Handbooks 396.01

BERNARD, DOUGLAS 021120 Avy Instructor 750.00

FARMER, MATTHEW 013120 Avy Instructor 1,300.00

01-4230-4920  TRAINING-FACILITY

IDAHO POWER 2224210258 02 2224210258 020620 37.54

01-4230-5100  TELEPHONE & COMMUNICATION FIRE

MTE COMMUNICATIONS 056983 020120 056983 020120 15.12

VERIZON WIRELESS 842054354 012 842054354 012320 20.02

01-4230-5110  TELEPHONE & COMMUNICATION EMS

MTE COMMUNICATIONS 056983 020120 056983 020120 15.13

VERIZON WIRELESS 842054354 012 842054354 012320 20.01

01-4230-6000  REPAIR & MAINT-AUTO EQUIP FIRE

ALSCO - AMERICAN LINEN DIVI LBOI1776329 5109 020320 29.75

HUGHES FIRE EQUIPMENT, INC. 547129 Engine Part 146.95

RIVER RUN AUTO PARTS 6538-150408 Wiper Blade 29.90

SILVER CREEK FORD 46019696-1 Expedition Work 123.20

01-4230-6010  REPAIR & MAINT-AUTO EQUIP EMS

BROOKS WELDING 13527 SKI RACK REPAIR 90.00

RIVER RUN AUTO PARTS 6538-150601 Filters 157.61

01-4230-6900  OTHER PURCHASED SERVICES FIRE

BARRY PETERSON JEWELERS S174763 Plaque Engraving 178.20

DEPT. OF HEALTH & WELFARE 8309807 Background Checks 325.00
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City of Ketchum Payment Approval Report - by GL Council Page:     6

Report dates: 1/30/2020-2/13/2020 Feb 13, 2020  09:41AM

Vendor Name Invoice Number Description Net Invoice Amount

01-4230-6910  OTHER PURCHASED SERVICES EMS

DEPT. OF HEALTH & WELFARE 8309807 Background Checks 65.00

          Total FIRE & RESCUE: 7,840.92

STREET

01-4310-2505  HEALTH REIMBURSEMENT ACCT(HRA)

NBS-NATIONAL BENEFIT SERVI CP243303 HRA 181.77

01-4310-2515  VISION REIMBURSEMENT ACCT(HRA)

NBS-NATIONAL BENEFIT SERVI 734689 FSA/HRA January 2020 45.90

01-4310-3200  OPERATING SUPPLIES

A.C. HOUSTON LUMBER CO. 2002-602515 Spray Nozzle 6.49

A.C. HOUSTON LUMBER CO. 2002-603420 Shop Supplies 38.08

CHATEAU DRUG CENTER 2185165 Floor Cleaner 8.54

DAVIS EMBROIDERY INC. 35123 Embroider Services 72.00

FASTENAL COMPANY IDJER88471 Batteries 28.15

NAPA AUTO PARTS 002909 Shop Towels 99.96

NAPA AUTO PARTS 003049 Grader Parts 4.53

US BANK 2022 012720 2022 - Stamp Ink Refill 5.42

01-4310-3400  MINOR EQUIPMENT

US BANK 2022 012720 2022 - Breaker Hammer Power Pack 1,694.00

US BANK 2022 012720 2022 - Brick Saw 1,372.40

01-4310-3500  MOTOR FUELS & LUBRICANTS

WEX BANK 63625935 Fuel Purchases 1,354.92

UNITED OIL 931467 37269 013120 3,501.32

01-4310-4200  PROFESSIONAL SERVICES

S. ERWIN EXCAVATION INC 20-024 Hauling Snow 7,960.00

HIATT TRUCKING, INC. 2583 SNOW HAULING 7,720.00

JOE'S BACKHOE SERVICES, INC. 236863 Dumptruck Snow Removal 900.00

RICK'S EXCAVATION, INC. 559 Snow Removal 440.00

WESTERN STATES CAT IN001196525 Dozer Rental 5,734.75

CANYON EXCAVATION. LLC 1826 Snow Hauling 2,720.00

01-4310-5200  UTILITIES

CITY OF KETCHUM 020520 9993 - January 88.49

CITY OF KETCHUM 020520 9999 - January 49.82

INTERMOUNTAIN GAS 32649330001 0 32649330001 012720 1,018.46

INTERMOUNTAIN GAS 32649330001 0 32649330001 012720 254.85

INTERMOUNTAIN GAS 49439330009 0 49439330009 012720 215.49

01-4310-6000  REPAIR & MAINT--AUTOMOTIVE EQU

NAPA AUTO PARTS 002520 Fuel Pump 223.49

RIVER RUN AUTO PARTS 6538-150319 Expedition Seat Covers 237.95

US BANK 2022 012720 2022 - Streets License Plates 23.69

US BANK 2022 012720 2022 - Expedition Center Console 259.50

DICK YORK'S AUTO SERVICE 83826 Durango Transmission Install 1,457.59

DICK YORK'S AUTO SERVICE 84673 Durango Towing 125.00

01-4310-6100  REPAIR & MAINT--MACHINERY & EQ

CLEARWATER POWER EQUIPME 012922013 Air Filter 37.68

CLEARWATER POWER EQUIPME 02042021 Prefilter 5.88
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City of Ketchum Payment Approval Report - by GL Council Page:     7

Report dates: 1/30/2020-2/13/2020 Feb 13, 2020  09:41AM

Vendor Name Invoice Number Description Net Invoice Amount

FASTENAL COMPANY IDJER88377 Plow Bolts 78.31

GO-FER-IT 91921 292-013120 19.00

NAPA AUTO PARTS 002840 Hotpatcher Parts 54.51

NAPA AUTO PARTS 003428 Straps 14.92

RIVER RUN AUTO PARTS 6538-150320 Wiring Clip Base 5.30

RIVER RUN AUTO PARTS 6538-150495 Emergency Lights 12.59

SNAKE RIVER HYDRAULICS 350014 Blower Part 520.88

US BANK 2022 012720 2022 - Equipment Radios 1,010.00

UTILITY TRAILER SALES OF BOI 49584PB Plow Truck Part 138.06

WESTERN STATES CAT IN001196730 966A Lamp 35.24

WESTERN STATES CAT IN001199282 Grader Parts 476.88

WESTERN STATES CAT IN001199301 Grader Parts 125.75

WESTERN STATES CAT IN001200512 Grader Part 183.04

WESTERN STATES CAT IN001200514 Blower Parts 316.93

WESTERN STATES CAT IN001200522 Blower O Ring 12.78

WESTERN STATES CAT IN001212983 Mirror 179.24

WESTERN STATES CAT IN001214353 Cutting Edge 3,047.30

WESTERN STATES CAT IN001214394 Seal 79.82

WHITE CLOUD COMMUNICATIO 1044 Radio Harness 54.00

WOOD RIVER WELDING, INC. 175312 Welding Tube 154.69

01-4310-6910  OTHER PURCHASED SERVICES

ALSCO - AMERICAN LINEN DIVI LBOI1775921 5831 013120 48.11

ALSCO - AMERICAN LINEN DIVI LBOI1777854 5831 020720 48.11

FASTENAL COMPANY IDJER88093 Welding Cutting Wheels 17.70

NORCO 28460899 53271 013120 215.61

TREASURE VALLEY COFFEE INC 2160 06564934 Tea and Cream 24.04

CINTAS FIRST AID & SAFETY 5015909664 First Aid Supplies 116.10

01-4310-6950  MAINTENANCE & IMPROVEMENTS

COLOR HAUS, INC. 230097 Sign Shed Garage Door 154.24

LUTZ RENTALS 104045-1 Equipment Rentals 72.41

SALTWORX INC 2520 Ice Bite Salt 416.50

          Total STREET: 45,518.18

RECREATION

01-4510-2515  VISION REIMBURSEMENT ACCT(HRA)

NBS-NATIONAL BENEFIT SERVI 734689 FSA/HRA January 2020 19.60

01-4510-3100  OFFICE SUPPLIES & POSTAGE

US BANK 7926 012720 7926 - Gloves 34.40

01-4510-3200  OPERATING SUPPLIES

CHATEAU DRUG CENTER 2177773 Supplies 8.53

01-4510-3250  RECREATION SUPPLIES

KETCHUM KITCHENS 220000114876 Strainer 5.39

KETCHUM KITCHENS 220000115072 Supplies 59.38

US BANK 7926 012720 7926 - Board Games 157.58

01-4510-3300  RESALE ITEMS-CONCESSION SUPPLY

ATKINSONS' MARKET 02828909 Concessions 1.61

ATKINSONS' MARKET 08047235 Concessions 9.56

US BANK 7926 012720 7926 - Apple Slicer 14.99

MACE, JULIA 020320 Food Supplies Reimbursement 142.96
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City of Ketchum Payment Approval Report - by GL Council Page:     8

Report dates: 1/30/2020-2/13/2020 Feb 13, 2020  09:41AM

Vendor Name Invoice Number Description Net Invoice Amount

01-4510-3500  MOTOR FUELS & LUBRICANTS

LUTZ RENTALS 103900-1 Propane 25.25

UNITED OIL 931466 37268 013120 72.79

01-4510-4200  PROFESSIONAL SERVICE

OHIO GULCH TRANSFER STATIO 139147 Clean Wood Waste 1.00

01-4510-5200  UTILITIES

INTERMOUNTAIN GAS 31904030009 0 31904030009 012720 233.15

          Total RECREATION: 786.19

          Total GENERAL FUND: 157,343.29

WAGON DAYS FUND

WAGON DAYS EXPENDITURES

02-4530-2900  AWARDS

HOOK, DEBBIE 021120 Award Money for Wagon Days 300.00

          Total WAGON DAYS EXPENDITURES: 300.00

          Total WAGON DAYS FUND: 300.00

GENERAL CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT FD

GENERAL CIP EXPENDITURES

03-4193-7190  SIDEWALK/LIGHTING

S & C ASSOCIATES LLC 1537 - 1554 19-1043 1,210.00

03-4193-7400  COMPUTER/COPIER LEASING

GREAT AMERICA FINANCIAL SE 26358711 Copier Lease 1,723.43

DELL FINANCIAL SERVICES 80302534 Management Fee 11.30

          Total GENERAL CIP EXPENDITURES: 2,944.73

          Total GENERAL CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT FD: 2,944.73

FIRE & RESCUE CAPITAL IMPR.FND

FIRE/RESC CAPITAL EXPENDITURES

11-4230-7600  OTHER MACH & EQUIP

CURTIS TOOLS FOR HEROES INV357321 Jacket and Pants 2,604.42

          Total FIRE/RESC CAPITAL EXPENDITURES: 2,604.42

          Total FIRE & RESCUE CAPITAL IMPR.FND: 2,604.42

ORIGINAL LOT FUND

ORIGINAL LOT TAX

22-4910-6060  EVENTS/PROMOTIONS

CHATEAU DRUG CENTER 2183881 Fatwood 6.64

LUTZ RENTALS 102045-1 Winter Solstice Rentals 223.68

US BANK 6235 012720 6235 - Coffee and Hot Chocolate 68.62

STICKS & STONES 109586 1/3 Cord Wood 100.00
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City of Ketchum Payment Approval Report - by GL Council Page:     9

Report dates: 1/30/2020-2/13/2020 Feb 13, 2020  09:41AM

Vendor Name Invoice Number Description Net Invoice Amount

22-4910-6080  MOUNTAIN RIDES

MOUNTAIN RIDES 11228 Monthly Installment 5/12 52,058.34

          Total ORIGINAL LOT TAX: 52,457.28

          Total ORIGINAL LOT FUND: 52,457.28

ADDITIONAL1%-LOT FUND

ADDITIONAL 1%-LOT

25-4910-4220  SUN VALLEY AIR SERVICE BOARD

SUN VALLEY AIR SERVICE BOA 020320 December 2019 Additional 1% 305,354.66

SUN VALLEY AIR SERVICE BOA 020320 Direct Cost's 5,522.66-

          Total ADDITIONAL 1%-LOT: 299,832.00

          Total ADDITIONAL1%-LOT FUND: 299,832.00

WATER FUND

WATER EXPENDITURES

63-4340-2505  HEALTH REIMBURSEMENT ACCT(HRA)

NBS-NATIONAL BENEFIT SERVI CP243303 HRA 172.27

63-4340-2515  VISION REIMBURSEMENT ACCT(HRA)

NBS-NATIONAL BENEFIT SERVI 734689 FSA/HRA January 2020 19.60

63-4340-3200  OPERATING SUPPLIES

A.C. HOUSTON LUMBER CO. 2001-600112 Trash Bags 14.19

ALSCO - AMERICAN LINEN DIVI LBOI1775910 5192 013120 24.49

ALSCO - AMERICAN LINEN DIVI LBOI1775912 5493 013120 59.79

GEM STATE PAPER & SUPPLY 1018467 Paper Supplies 31.72

63-4340-3250  LABORATORY/ANALYSIS

GO-FER-IT 91921 292-013120 17.00

MAGIC VALLEY LABS, INC. 15255 Drinking water testing 92.00

63-4340-3400  MINOR EQUIPMENT

US BANK 6243 012720 6243 - Angela's Scanner 399.50

CHAMPION CHISEL WORKS 1014397 Chisel 131.24

63-4340-3500  MOTOR FUELS & LUBRICANTS

UNITED OIL 931469 37271 013120 521.19

63-4340-3800  CHEMICALS

GEM STATE WELDERS SUPPLY,I 819320 55 gal T-Chlor 252.24

63-4340-4200  PROFESSIONAL SERVICES

DIG LINE 0063004-IN 0000167 013120 71.80

FIRE SERVICES OF IDAHO 53145P Services to Fire Extinguishers 315.00

63-4340-4900  PERSONNEL TRAINING/TRAVEL/MTG

US BANK 3059 012720 3059 - Backflow Testing - Chatterton 208.00

63-4340-5200  UTILITIES

IDAHO POWER 2203658592 01 2203658592 012720 5,210.54

INTERMOUNTAIN GAS 32649330001 0 32649330001 012720 227.10
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City of Ketchum Payment Approval Report - by GL Council Page:     10

Report dates: 1/30/2020-2/13/2020 Feb 13, 2020  09:41AM

Vendor Name Invoice Number Description Net Invoice Amount

INTERMOUNTAIN GAS 32649330001 0 32649330001 012720 47.73

63-4340-6000  REPAIR & MAINT-AUTO EQUIP

RIVER RUN AUTO PARTS 6538-150589 Antifreeze 98.85

RIVER RUN AUTO PARTS 6538-150618 Hydraulic 92.13

RIVER RUN AUTO PARTS 6538-150624 Grease 53.30

63-4340-6100  REPAIR & MAINT-MACH & EQUIP

COLUMBIA ELECTRIC SUPPLY 8819-573254 NW Well VFD Fan 797.79

SENTINEL FIRE & SECURITY, IN 50617 1177 - 110 River Ranch Rd. 138.98

THORNTON HEATING 42296 Infrared Camera Used for Leak 121.00

D & S SHEETMETAL AND HEATI 4570 Sheetmetal Fab 158.70

          Total WATER EXPENDITURES: 9,276.15

WATER DEBT SERVICE EXPENDITRES

63-4800-8700  DEBT SRVC ACCT INTEREST-2016

CHASE 0000002516 Interest Due this period 10,900.28

          Total WATER DEBT SERVICE EXPENDITRES: 10,900.28

          Total WATER FUND: 20,176.43

WATER CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT FUND

WATER CIP EXPENDITURES

64-4340-7802  KETCHUM SPRING WA CONVERSION

GALENA ENGINEERING, INC. 20430 020120 20430 020120 8,172.50

S & C ASSOCIATES LLC 1537 - 1554 19-1072 495.00

          Total WATER CIP EXPENDITURES: 8,667.50

          Total WATER CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT FUND: 8,667.50

WASTEWATER FUND

WASTEWATER EXPENDITURES

65-4350-2505  HEALTH REIMBURSEMENT ACCT(HRA)

NBS-NATIONAL BENEFIT SERVI CP243303 HRA 145.18

65-4350-2515  VISION REIMBURSEMENT ACCT(HRA)

NBS-NATIONAL BENEFIT SERVI 734689 FSA/HRA January 2020 42.05

NBS-NATIONAL BENEFIT SERVI CP243303 HRA Vision 518.79

NBS-NATIONAL BENEFIT SERVI CP243303 HRA 204.96

65-4350-3200  OPERATING SUPPLIES

ALSCO - AMERICAN LINEN DIVI LBOI1775910 5192 013120 24.49

ALSCO - AMERICAN LINEN DIVI LBOI1775911 5292 013120 115.01

CHATEAU DRUG CENTER 2186108 Supplies 19.66

UPS STORE #2444 7037 7037 15.82

UPS STORE #2444 7094 7094 12.29

UPS STORE #2444 7134 7134 12.29

UPS STORE #2444 7181 7181 12.29

UPS STORE #2444 7236 7236 12.06

65-4350-3400  MINOR EQUIPMENT

McMASTER-CARR SUPPLY CO. 30972680 Various Sockets 272.33
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City of Ketchum Payment Approval Report - by GL Council Page:     11

Report dates: 1/30/2020-2/13/2020 Feb 13, 2020  09:41AM

Vendor Name Invoice Number Description Net Invoice Amount

US BANK 6243 012720 6243 - Angela's Scanner 399.50

65-4350-3500  MOTOR FUELS & LUBRICANTS

UNITED OIL 931468 37270 013120 100.93

CONRAD & BISCHOFF 0731641 Plate Screen 307.00

65-4350-3800  CHEMICALS

CHEMTRADE CHEMICALS US LL 92820836 Hyper+Ion 1,960.00

HACH 11807505 CHEMICALS 248.69

HACH 11812660 CHEMICALS 61.09

NORTH CENTRAL LABORATORI 434727 Chemicals 283.94

65-4350-4200  PROFESSIONAL SERVICES

ANALYTICAL LABORATORIES, I 69504 chemicals 293.44

FIRE SERVICES OF IDAHO 53144P Annual Service of Fire Ext. 221.00

BACKGROUND INVESTATION B CIT025020120- Background Checks 23.95

65-4350-4900  PERSONNEL TRAINING/TRAVEL/MTG

IDAHO BUREAU OF OCCUPATIO 021020 License Test - Zach Hoefer 100.00

LYNCH, BRANDON 013020 CDL Renewal 42.00

US BANK 9642 012720 9642 - Basic Wastewater Treatment - Hoefer 75.00

HOEFER, ZACH 020520 Travel Reimbursement 216.45

LA QUINTA (MERIDIAN) 728-779225 Room for Hoefer 218.00

65-4350-5200  UTILITIES

INTERMOUNTAIN GAS 32649330001 0 32649330001 012720 356.81

INTERMOUNTAIN GAS 32649330001 0 32649330001 012720 502.67

INTERMOUNTAIN GAS 32649330001 0 32649330001 012720 196.32

INTERMOUNTAIN GAS 32649330001 0 32649330001 012720 47.73

INTERMOUNTAIN GAS 58208688554 0 58208688554 012720 9.79

65-4350-6000  REPAIR & MAINT-AUTO EQUIP

LES SCHWAB 11700606103 Tanker Truck Tire Work 758.58

LES SCHWAB 11700610061 Ford Explorer Tire Checking 87.52

US BANK 9642 012720 9642 - Headlights and Housings 221.96

65-4350-6100  REPAIR & MAINT-MACH & EQUIP

A.C. HOUSTON LUMBER CO. 2002-601137 1/8 Cable 4.64

COLUMBIA ELECTRIC SUPPLY 8819-573224 RTD Sensor 99.64

PIPECO, INC. S3616291.001 Galv Head Plugs 20.53

US BANK 9642 012720 9642 - Battery Backup and Surge Protector 154.99

US BANK 9642 012720 9642 - Ershigs Plastic Fabrication 364.44

US BANK 9642 012720 9642 - Emergency Light Battery 13.69

US BANK 9642 012720 9642 - Traction Tape 45.98

US BANK 9642 012720 9642 - Pressure Switch 74.08

US BANK 9642 012720 9642 - Pressure 4 Port 49.00

65-4350-6900  COLLECTION SYSTEM SERVICES/CHA

SWEET'S SEPTIC TANK AND WO-0113847 Sewer Camera 234.00

          Total WASTEWATER EXPENDITURES: 9,200.58

          Total WASTEWATER FUND: 9,200.58

WASTEWATER CAPITAL IMPROVE FND

WASTEWATER CIP EXPENDITURES
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City of Ketchum Payment Approval Report - by GL Council Page:     12

Report dates: 1/30/2020-2/13/2020 Feb 13, 2020  09:41AM

Vendor Name Invoice Number Description Net Invoice Amount

67-4350-7809  ENERGY EFFICIENCY PROJECTS

ROBERTS ELECTRIC 2690 Install New Pump and Testing 320.00

          Total WASTEWATER CIP EXPENDITURES: 320.00

          Total WASTEWATER CAPITAL IMPROVE FND: 320.00

PARKS/REC DEV TRUST FUND

PARKS/REC TRUST EXPENDITURES

93-4900-6500  ICE RINK-PRIVATE

E-Z SHARP, INC. 160454 Glide Pad 104.43

US BANK 7926 012720 7926 - Insoles and Athletic Tape 85.72

          Total PARKS/REC TRUST EXPENDITURES: 190.15

          Total PARKS/REC DEV TRUST FUND: 190.15

DEVELOPMENT TRUST FUND

DEVELOPMENT TRUST EXPENDITURES

94-4900-8000  PEG GATEWAY MARRIOT AUTOGRAPH

WHITE PETERSON 24892R 013120 24892R 013120 8,510.90

S & C ASSOCIATES LLC 1537 - 1554 19-1035 770.00

          Total DEVELOPMENT TRUST EXPENDITURES: 9,280.90

          Total DEVELOPMENT TRUST FUND: 9,280.90

COMBINED CASH FUND

99-1174-0000  CASH CLEARING-ACCTS.RECEIVABLE

WARFIELD BREWERY LLC 020420 Refund Overpayment INV 3927 11,376.25

          Total : 11,376.25

          Total COMBINED CASH FUND: 11,376.25

          Grand Totals:  574,693.53

Report Criteria:

Invoices with totals above $0 included.

Paid and unpaid invoices included.

[Report].GL Account Number = "0110000000"-"9648008200","9910000000"-"9911810000"

Invoice Detail.Voided = No,Yes
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February 18, 2020 
 
Mayor Bradshaw and City Councilors 
City of Ketchum 
Ketchum, Idaho 
 
Mayor Bradshaw and City Councilors: 
 

Recommendation to Receive and File 
Treasurer’s Monthly Financial Report 

 
Recommendation and Summary  
Staff is recommending the council receive and file the Treasurer’s monthly report in accordance with statutory 
requirements and adopt the following motion: 
 
“I move to receive and file the Treasurer’s financial report.” 
 
The reasons for the recommendation are as follows: 

 State statute establishes requirements for monthly financial reports from the City Treasurer. 
 
Introduction and History 
Idaho State Statute 50‐208 establishes requirements for monthly financial reports from the City Treasurer to 
the Council. The Statute provides that the Treasurer “render an accounting to the city council showing the 
financial condition of the treasury at the date of such accounting.” 
 
Analysis 
Pursuant to the above statutory requirements, enclosed for Council review is a monthly financial report showing 
the financial condition of the City in the current fiscal year. This report, along with complete financial statements, 
is available on the City’s website. 
 
Financial Impact 
There is no financial impact to this reporting. 
 
Attachments 

 Attachment A: Monthly Financial Report Charts 
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Monthly Financial Reports

As of January 31, 2020

This packet is divided into three sections: (1) General Fund charts (pages 2‐13): (2) Original 
LOT charts (pages 14‐18); (3) Enterprise Fund charts (pages 19‐23); and Off‐Street Parking 
Lot charts (pages 24‐28).

Each chart includes information on current progress relative to the prior year and also the 
current budget. Where deviations are 5% or greater, an explanation on the major drivers of 
such changes is included.

1
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General Fund

2
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The General Fund revenues are up approximately $55,504 (1.1%) in FYTD. 

3
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The General Fund expenditures are down $14,967 (0.4%) FYTD. 

4
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The Legislative & Executive Department expenditures are down $46 (0%) FYTD.

5
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The Administrative Services Department expenditures are up $744 (0.1%) FYTD. 

6
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The Legal Department expenditures are up $31,966 (51%) FYTD. This increase is largely due 
to the timing of the contract billing with White Peterson relative to the prior year.

7
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The Planning & Building Department expenditures are up $20,360 (9.5%) FYTD. This 
increase is largely due to DBS billings that are offset by permit and plan check revenues.

8
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The Facilities Maintenance Department expenditures are up $49,175 (27.5%) FYTD. This 
increase is largely due to increased utilization of Professional Services including for holiday 
lighting and snow removal.

9
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The Police Department expenditures are down $50,380 (8.4%) FYTD.  This decrease is 
largely due to a partial vacancy in the Community Service function. 

10
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The Fire & Rescue Department expenditures are up $91,022 (13.2%) FYTD. This increase is 
due largely to the open position being filled.  

11
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The Streets Department expenditures are up $59,609 (11.2%) FYTD. This increase is due to 
salary and benefit expenditures as the department has filled previously vacant positions.

12

36



The Recreation Department expenditures are down $2,956 (2.1%) FYTD. 

13
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LOT Analysis

14
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Revenue to the Original LOT Fund is up approximately $58,979 (6.7%) FYTD due to greater 
tax receipts. 

15
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Revenues from Original LOT covered sales are up approximately 12.1% over the average of 
the prior three years.

16
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To date in FY 20 (4 months), Original LOT collections have been generated by each sector as 
follows:

1. Retail has generated 61.1% of the total.
2. Building Materials have generated 13.7%.
3. Liquor has generated 9.5%
4. Rooms have generated 8.8%.
5. Condominiums have generated 6.8%.

17
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Through the first 4 months of FY 20, collections compared to the prior three‐year average 
are as follows:

1. Retail is up 7.3%.
2. Rooms are up 35.1%.
3. Condominiums are up 48.3%
4. Liquor is up 7.7%.
5. Building Materials are up 22.9%.

18
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Enterprise Funds

19
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The Water Fund revenues are down $54,882 (9.6%) FYTD due to lower billed usage.  

20
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The Water Fund expenditures are up $5,432 (1.1%) FYTD.  

21
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The Wastewater Fund revenues are down $399,254 (30.5%) FYTD. This decrease is due to 
lower reimbursements from the Sun Valley Water and Sewer District for the now complete 
Headworks project. 
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The Wastewater Fund expenditures are down approximately $895,706 (57.7%) FYTD. The 
decrease is largely due to lower contracted expenditures in FY20.

23
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Off‐Street Parking Lots

24
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In the fiscal year to date, revenues at the Washington Avenue parking lot are down $302 
(16.4%) relative to the prior year. 

25
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In the fiscal year to date, the number of transactions registered at the Washington Avenue 
parking lot is up 2485 (93.7%) relative to the prior year. 
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In the fiscal year to date, revenues at the Leadville Avenue parking lot are up $355 (18.1%) 
relative to the prior year. 
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In the fiscal year to date, the number of transactions registered at the Leadville Avenue 
parking lot is up 197 (30.6%) relative to the prior year. 

28
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February 18, 2020 
 
 

Mayor Bradshaw and City Councilors 
City of Ketchum 
Ketchum, Idaho 

 

Mayor Bradshaw and City Councilors: 
 

Recommendation to Approve Contract 20448 with S&C Associates 
for Engineering and Project Management Services 

 
 

Recommendation and Summary 
Staff recommends the City Council approve the proposed contract 20448 with S&C Associates and adopt the 
following motion: 

I move to authorize the Mayor to enter into a contract 20448 with S&C Associates for Engineering and Project 

Management Services. The reasons for the recommendation are as follows: 

• City needs services of a licensed engineer and project manager 
 

Introduction and History 
For the last year the City has had a contract with Sherri Newland, a licensed engineer, for engineering 
services and project management for a variety of public works projects. The contract for services with 
Sherri Newland expired in January 2020. 

 
Analysis 
The continued need exists for the City to have engineering expertise, construction oversight, and project 
management services available for projects currently underway and to perform technical functions within 
the City. The sidewalk infill and repair projects, water and sewer projects such as Phase 3 of the Ketchum 
Springs Line replacement, design review, building review, right of way encroachment requests, drainage 
design, the Transportation Plan, and other public works projects require the assistance of a licensed engineer 
and project manager. 

Ms. Newland is a local engineer with over 19 years of experience (see attached bio). 

Financial Impact 

The proposed contract is on a time and materials basis and funding is set aside in the adopted budget. 
 
 
 

Attachment: 
Proposed Contract 
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INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR AGREEMENT 20448 

 

This Professional Services Agreement ("Agreement") is made by and between the City of 

Ketchum, Idaho, an Idaho municipal corporation, organized and existing under the laws of the 

State of Idaho ("City"), and S&C Associates ("Contractor") as represented by Sherri Newland, 

PE, CPESC. 

 

RECITALS 

 

Whereas, the City of Ketchum is working on several public works projects that require 

engineering oversight. 

 

Whereas, the City is in need of special expertise in engineering and project management. 

 

Whereas, the City is empowered by Idaho Code section 50-301 to enter into contracts as may be 

deemed necessary to promote the welfare of the City and its residents, and to implement 

projects approved within the adopted budget. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, on the basis of the foregoing recitals, and upon motion duly passed by 

the Ketchum City Council, and for the consideration set forth herein, the parties agree as 

follows: 

 

AGREEMENT 

 

Contractor agrees to provide professional services pursuant to the terms and conditions of this 

Agreement. 

 

1. SCOPE OF WORK: 

Contractor will coordinate with the City Administrator to provide engineering assistance and 

project management assistance on public works projects as directed by the City Administrator 

and the Mayor, Contractor's point of contact is the City Administrator or her designee. Such 

work will consist of: 

 

1. Providing engineering advice, analysis and expertise on city projects and private 

projects in the development review process. 

 

2. Reviewing plans, providing input to staff and applicants, answering questions, 

interfacing with the public related to right of way requests and permits, participating 

in developing recommendations on development projects and city public works 

projects. 

 

3. When requested, serving as the City Engineer. 

 

4. Providing project management assistance on public works projects consisting of 

scheduling, review, preparation of documents and studies, interfacing with 

contractors and staff to ensure the timely completion of assigned projects. 

 
 

2. AMOUNT AND METHOD OF PAYMENT: The City agrees to pay Contractor for 

services rendered under this Agreement on a time and materials basis in accordance with 

Attachment A, Professional Services Fee Schedule. Fees shall be based on the service provided 

by the Contractor. 
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Contractor shall maintain time and expense records and make them available to the City 

monthly and provide monthly invoices in a format acceptable to the City for work performed to 

the date of the invoice. Each invoice shall specify charges as they relate to specific tasks. Each 

invoice shall also specify current billing and previous payments, with a total of costs incurred 

and payments made to date. 

 

Reimbursable expenses (which shall cover general out-of-pocket expenses including 

Contractor's hourly fees, telephone charges, copying expenses, overnight or standard mailing 

expenses, travel-related expenses, and the like) shall be billed to the City at actual cost to 

Contractor with no mark-up. 

 

All invoices shall be paid by the City within forty-five (45) days of receipt of proper invoice 

unless no funds are available, then as soon as funds become available. Uncontested invoices 

paid after forty-five days may be subject to the statutory rate of interest pursuant to Idaho Code 

section 67-2302. 

 

(d) If the services subject to a specific invoice do not meet the requirements of 

this Agreement as the City may determine, the City shall notify Contractor in writing and 

provide specific deficiencies in the work that do not meet the requirements. Contractor shall 

have seven (7) working days to correct or modify the work to comply with the requirements of 

the Agreement as set forth in the City's written notice. If the City again determines the work 

fails to meet the requirements, the City may withhold payment until deficiencies have been 

corrected to the City's satisfaction or may terminate this Agreement for cause as set forth in 

Section 19 of this Agreement. 

 

3. RIGHT OF CONTROL: The City agrees that it will have no right to control or direct the 

details, manner, or means by which Contractor accomplishes the results of the services performed 

hereunder. Contractor has no obligation to work any particular hours or days or any particular 

number of hours or days. Contractor agrees, however, that its other contracts and services shall not 

interfere with its performance under this Agreement. Contractor agrees to coordinate project 

schedules and respective commencements and deadlines with the Mayor, City Administrator and 

other City employees or contractors as otherwise directed by the City. 

 

4. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR RELATIONSHIP: Contractor is not an employee, 

servant, agent, partner, or joint venture of the City. The City shall determine the work to be 

done by Contractor, but Contractor shall determine the legal means by which it accomplishes 

the work specified by the City. This Agreement shall not be construed to create any employer- 

employee relationship between the City and Contractor. 

 

5. RECORDS ACCESS AND AUDITS: Contractor shall maintain complete and accurate 

records with respect to costs incurred and manpower expended under this Agreement. All such 

records shall be maintained according to generally accepted accounting principles, shall be clearly 

identified, and shall be readily accessible. Such records shall be available for review by the City 

representatives for three (3) years after final payment. Copies shall be made available to the city 

upon request. 

 

6. FEDERAL, STATE, AND LOCAL PAYROLL TAXES: Neither federal, state, or local 

income taxes nor payroll taxes of any kind shall be withheld and paid by the City on behalf of 

Contractor or the employees of Contractor. Contractor shall not be treated as an employee with 

respect to the services performed hereunder for federal or state tax purposes. Contractor understands 

that Contractor is solely responsible to pay, according to law, Contractor's income tax. Contractor 

further understands that Contractor may be liable for self-employment (Social Security) tax to be 

paid by Contractor according to law. 
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7. LICENSES AND LAW: Contractor represents that it possesses the requisite skill, 

knowledge, and experience necessary, as well as all licenses required, if any, to perform the 

services under this Agreement. Contractor further agrees to comply with all applicable laws, 

ordinances, and codes of federal, state, and local governments in the performance of the services 

hereunder. 

 

8. FRINGE BENEFITS: Because Contractor is engaged in its own independently established 

business, Contractor is not eligible for and shall not participate in any employee pension, health, or 

other fringe benefit plans of the City. 

 

9. WORKER'S COMPENSATION: Contractor shall maintain in full force and effect 

worker's compensation and employer's liability insurance for Contractor and any agents, 

employees, and staff that Contractor may employ, and provide proof to the City of such 

coverage or that such worker 's compensation insurance is not required under the 

circumstances. 

 

10. EQUIPMENT, TOOLS, MATERIALS, OR SUPPLIES: Contractor shall supply, at 

its sole expense, all equipment, tools, materials, and/or supplies to accomplish the services to be 

provided herein. 

 

11. PROPRIETARY RIGHTS: All data, materials, reports, maps, graphics, tables, 

memoranda, and other documents or products developed under this Agreement  whether finished   

or not shall become the property of the City, shall be forwarded to the City at its request, and may be 

used by the City for any business or municipal purpose. The City agrees that if it uses products 

prepared by Contractor for purposes other than those intended in this Agreement, it does so at its 

sole risk. 

 

12. CONFIDENTIALITY: Contractor agrees to maintain confidentiality of all work product 

produced under this Agreement, including both interim and draft, materials, reports, maps, 

graphics, tables, memoranda, and other documents unless and until the City signifies its written 

approval that such work product may be published as final work product subject to the public 

records laws of the state of  Idaho. The City reserves the right to distribute the final work product as 

it sees fit provided that Contractor may use final reports as approved and adopted by the Ketchum 

City Council in the marketing of its firm. 

 

13. TERM OF AGREEMENT: This Agreement shall commence as of the effective date 

specified in this Agreement and shall remain in effect for one (1) year unless terminated by 

either party as set forth in this Agreement. 

 

15. ENTIRE AGREEMENT: This Agreement, along with any and all exhibits and appendix 

attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference, contains the entire agreement of the parties and 

supersedes any and all other agreements or understandings, oral or written, whether previous to the 

execution hereof or contemporaneous herewith. 

 

16. GENERAL ADMINISTRATION AND MANAGEMENT: The Mayor and the City 

Administrator or his/her designee shall be the City's representative and shall oversee and approve all 

services to be performed, coordinate all communications,  review and approve all invoices, and 

carry out any and all tasks as may be required under this Agreement. 

 

17. CHANGES: The City reserves the right to makes changes from time to time in the 

scope of services to be performed hereunder. Such changes, including any increase or decrease 

in Contractor's compensation, which are mutually agreed upon by and between the City and 

Contractor, shall be incorporated in written amendments to this Agreement. 
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18. AMENDMENTS: This Agreement may be amended only in writing upon mutual 

agreement of both the City and Contractor. 

 

19. ASSIGNMENT: It is expressly agreed and understood by the parties hereto that 

Contractor shall not have the right to assign, transfer, hypothecate, or sell any of its rights under 

this Agreement except upon the prior express written consent of the City. 

 

20.   TERMINATION OF AGREEMENT: FOR CAUSE DUE TO BREACH: If  

Contractor shall fail to fulfill its obligations in compliance with the scope of work or if 

Contractor shall violate any of the covenants, agreements, or stipulations of this Agreement, 

the City shall thereupon have the right to terminate this Agreement by giving written notice to 

the Contractor and specifying the effective date thereof at least fifteen (15) days before the 

effective date of such termination. If this Agreement is terminated for cause, Contractor shall 

be entitled to receive just and equitable compensation for any work satisfactorily completed 

hereunder. 

 

Notwithstanding the above, Contractor shall not be relieved of liability to the City by virtue of any 

breach of this Agreement by Contractor, and the City may withhold any payments to Contractor for 

the purpose of setoff until such time as the exact amount of damages due the City from Contractor is 

determined. Contractor shall also provide the City all products or works of consulting generated to 

date of termination. 

 

1. TERMINATION BY THE CITY: The City reserves the right to terminate this 

Agreement at any time, for any reason, by giving at least fifteen (15) days' notice in writing to 

Contractor. If this Agreement is terminated by the City as provided herein, Contractor shall be 

paid for the work performed prior to termination, less payment or compensation previously 

made. Contractor shall also provide the City all products or works related to this Project 

generated to date of termination. 

 

2. TERMINATION: The obligation to provide further services under this 

Agreement may be terminated by Contractor upon thirty (30) days' written notice. Such 

termination shall be based upon substantial lack of performance by the City under the terms and 

conditions of this Agreement when said substantial lack of performance is through no fault of 

Contractor. If this Agreement is terminated by Contractor, Contractor shall be paid for services 

rendered and for reimbursable expenses incurred to the date of such termination. 

 

21. NOTICES: Any and all notices required to be given by either of the parties hereto, unless 

otherwise stated in this Agreement , shall be in writing and  be  deemed communicated when 

mailed in the United States mail, certified, return receipt requested, addressed as follows: 

 
 

To CITY: City of Ketchum 

Attn: City Administrator PO Box 2315 

Ketchum, ID 83340 

 

To CONTRACTOR: S&C Associates 

Attn: Sherri Newland 

P.O. Box 2647 

Ketchum ID, 83340 
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22. DISCRIMINATION PROHIBITED: In performing the services required herein, 

Contractor agrees not to discriminate against any person on the basis of race, color, religion, sex, 

national origin or ancestry, age, or handicap. Violation of this section shall constitute a material 

breach of this Agreement and deemed grounds for cancellation, termination, or suspension of the 

Agreement by the City, in whole or in part, and may result in ineligibility for further work for the 

City. 

 

23. STANDARD OF SERVICE: Contractor shall provide services as described in this 

Agreement. These services will be performed in accordance with generally accepted 

professional practices for the scope of this project. Contractor makes no other warranty either 

expressed or implied. 

 

24. INDEMNIFICATION: Contractor agrees to indemnify, defend, and hold harmless the 

City and its officers, agents, employees and City Council from and against all claims, losses, 

actions, or judgments for damages or injury to persons or property arising out of or resulting from 

the negligent performances or activities of Contractor, Contractor's agents, employees, or 

representatives under this Agreement. 

 

25. INSURANCE: Contractor agrees to obtain and keep in force during its acts under this 

Agreement a professional liability insurance policy with coverage limits over $1,000,000.00 per 

occurrence. Certificate of proof of insurance will be provided to the City. Contractor shall provide 

proof of coverage as set forth above to the City before commencing its performance as herein 

provided and shall require insurer to notify the City ten (10) days prior to cancellation of said 

policy. Deliver certificates of insurance and endorsements required by this Article to: 

 

City of Ketchum 

Attn: City Administrator PO Box 2315 

Ketchum, ID 83340 

 

26. NONWAIVER: Failure of either party to exercise any of the rights under this Agreement or 

breach thereof shall not be deemed to be a waiver of such right or a waiver of any subsequent 

breach. 

 

27. APPLICABLE LAW: Any dispute under this Agreement or related to this Agreement 

shall be decided in accordance with the laws of the state of Idaho. 

 

28. SEVERABILITY: If any part of this Agreement is held unenforceable, the remaining 

portions of the Agreement will nevertheless remain in full force and effect. 

 

29. ATTORNEY FEES: Should any litigation be commenced between the parties hereto 

concerning this Agreement, the prevailing party shall be entitled, in addition to any other relief as 

may be granted, to costs and reasonable attorney fees as determined by a court of competent 

jurisdiction. This provision shall be deemed to be a separate contract between the parties and shall 

survive any default, termination, or forfeiture of this Agreement. 

 

30. EFFECTIVE DATE: The effective date of this Agreement shall be the day this Agreement 

is signed by the City. 

 

31. DISPUTES: In the event that a dispute arises between the City and Contractor regarding 

application or interpretation of any provision of this Agreement, the aggrieved party shall promptly 

notify the other party to this Agreement of the dispute within ten (10) days after such dispute arises. 

If the parties shall have failed to resolve the dispute within thirty (30) days after delivery of such 
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notice, the parties agree to first endeavor to settle the dispute in an amicable manner by non-binding 

mediation before resorting to litigation. Should the parties be unable to resolve the dispute to their 

mutual satisfaction within thirty (30) days after such completion of mediation, each party shall have 

the right to pursue any rights or remedies it may have at law or in equity. 

 

32. SUCCESSORS IN INTEREST: The provisions of this Agreement shall be binding upon 

and shall inure to the benefit of the parties hereby and their respective successors and assigns. 

 

33. MISCELLANEOUS: Contractor has not been retained to supervise, direct, or have control 

over any contractor's work. Contractor specifically does not have authority over or responsibility for 

the means, methods, techniques, sequences, or procedures of construction selected by contractor(s) 

for safety precautions and programs to the work of contractor(s) or for any failure of contractor(s) to 

comply with laws, rules, regulations, ordinances, codes, or orders applicable to contractor(s) 

furnishing and performing their work. Accordingly, Contractor can neither guarantee the 

performance of the construction contracts by contractor(s) nor assume responsibility for the failure 

of contractor(s) to furnish and perform their work in accordance with the contract documents. 

 

34. CONFLICT OF INTEREST: Contractor shall disclose any conflict of interest to the City 

that may arise or exists with any of Contractors current or former employers, clients, contractors or 

the like of or regarding any work,  information,  data, that may relate  to the  subject matter 

whether it is within the Contractor's scope of work or not. In the event a conflict of interest is 

identified, Contractor shall immediately disclose the conflict and the City may, in its sole 

discretion  determine  that  this Agreement  will  terminate,  or  agree  to  measures   to   address 

the conflict and  limit Contractor's scope of work to avoid the conflict. Failure to promptly disclose 

a conflict of interest constitutes Contractor's breach of this Agreement. 

 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, THE CITY and Contractor have executed this Agreement as of the 

effective date specified above. 

 

CITY OF KETCHUM CONTRACTOR 

 
 

By:    By:   

Neil Bradshaw   Sherri Newland, PE 

Mayor Owner 
 

DATE:   DATE:    
 
 

ATTEST: 

 
 

By:   

Robin Crotty 
City Clerk 

 

DATE:     
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ATTACHMENT A 

 

 

 

 

 

 

2020 Professional Services Fee Schedule 
 
 
 
 

Professional Staff Rate 

Specialist/Principal $ 155.00/Hr. 

Senior Project Manager PE 
Senior Construction Engineer PE 
Senior Design Manager PE 

$ 145.00/Hr. 

Professional Engineer PE 
Construction Engineer PE 
Senior Engineer PE 

$ 135.00/Hr. 

Project Manager 
City Engineer 

$ 115.00/Hr. 

Project Engineer EIT $ 95.00/Hr. 

Engineering Technician 
Construction Inspector 

$ 85.00/Hr. 

Civil CADD Drafter/Designer $75.00/Hr. 

Administrative Assistant $ 55.00/Hr. 

 

 
Reimbursable and Other Direct Costs 

 
Personal Vehicle Mileage $ 0.575/mile 
Travel - Airfare, hotel, rental vehicles, meals Cost plus 0% 
Third Party and outside expenses (i.e.: printing, deliveries, FedEx, etc.) Cost plus 0% 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

S&C Associates LLC PO Box 2647 Ketchum Idaho  83340 Phone: 208.861.7593 sandcassociates.com 60



Sherri Newland, PE, CPESC 

S&C Associates LLC – Owner, Principal Engineer 
 

Education 

B.S., Geological Engineering -Michigan Technological University, 

Houghton, Michigan, May 2000 

 

Professional Registrations and Certifications 

2006 Professional Engineer/Idaho #12512 

2007 Certified Professional in Erosion and Sediment Control #4176 

2015 California Qualified SWPPP Practitioner (QSP) 

2015 California Qualified SWPPP Developer (QSD) 

2016 Boise City Plan Designer 

2016 ITD Water Pollution Control Manager (WPCM) 

 

Professional Affiliations/Activities 

City of Sun Valley Planning and Zoning Commissioner 

National Ski Patrol Volunteer 

ARCH Community Housing Trust Board Member 

ACEC Member 

ASCE Member 

 

Qualifications: Mrs. Newland brings over 19 years of expertise in erosion control, project 

management, civil engineering, materials testing, and construction 

engineering/inspection for both private and public-sector clients. Her 

industry experience includes solid waste, aviation, commercial and 

residential development, and transportation. She has been extensively 

involved with project permitting, drainage design and stormwater pollution 

prevention plan development for projects in Idaho, Utah, and Colorado. She 

obtained her international certification in erosion and sediment control in 

2007 and offers experience in Microsoft Projects, ProCore, Flowmaster, 

HY-8, RUSLE, Microsoft Excel, Microsoft Word, ArcGIS, AutoCAD, and 

Bentley MicroStation. 

 

Experience: Owner Representation Services - City of Sun Valley, Idaho -. The 

iconic ski town of Sun Valley located in Blaine County; Idaho passed a 

$17.5 million bond in 2017 for rehabilitating roadways throughout the 

city. Mrs. Newland serves as an advisor and representative to the city by 

providing on-call professional engineering services, design review, project 

management, and construction management services for the bond 

program. 

 

City Engineering and Project Management Services - City of 

Ketchum, Idaho -. The City of Ketchum located in Blaine County, Idaho 

is a diverse mountain resort community with a 2018-19 fiscal budget of 

approximately $24.3 million. Mrs. Newland serves as an advisor and 

representative to the city by providing on-call professional engineering 

services, design review, project management, and construction 

management services for public works and development projects. 
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CSDC Procedures Manual Update - Ada County Highway District, 

Idaho. The Ada County Highway Districts owns and operates a portion of 

the MS4 system in Idaho. As an owner and operator ACHD was 

mandated by the EPA to control and monitor contaminants that enter this 

system. The EPA views construction related sediment as a pollutant. 

Mrs. Newland developed, managed, reviewed, and inspected contractor 

submitted designed erosion and sediment control plans and Best 

Management Practices, designed to reduce sediment and erosion, on 

behalf of the Ada County Highway District. Daily Mrs. Newland 

contacted and coordinated with the client in order to continually develop 

and improve the program process. 

 

Waste Management Painted Desert Landfill - Tempe, Arizona 

Painted Desert Landfill is a Municipal Solid Waste Landfill operated by 

Waste Management of Arizona which provides a safe and convenient 

disposal options for Northern Arizona communities, businesses, and 

industries. S&C was hired to provide engineering services for the design 

of a new access drive and drainage improvements. 

 

Waste Management Altamont Landfill – Wheel Wash and Medium 

Voltage Electrical Line Extension. In conjunction with the expansion of 

Fill Area 2 at Waste Management’s award-winning landfill located in 

Livermore, California, Mrs. Newland was the Design Manager of a $2.1- 

million industrial wheel wash and medium voltage electrical line 

installation. Sherri held weekly design meetings with both the design team 

and client to ensure the success of this project. Her responsibilities 

included: design team selection, entitlement and building permit 

procurement, budget tracking and forecasting, preparation of construction 

plans, and project close out. 

 

Waste Management of North County – Compressed Natural Gas 

(CNG) Fueling Facility – Oceanside, California. This six year 

$2.7 million CNG fueling and vehicle maintenance facility upgrade 

project was located in an environmentally sensitive area along the Loma 

Alta Creek in Oceanside, California. As the Design Manager, Mrs. 

Newland navigated the design team through the rigorous FEMA 

CLOMR/LOMR and CEQA approval process. Her responsibilities 

included: client coordination, design team selection, entitlement and 

building permit procurement, CEQA (MND) approval, FEMA approval, 

budget tracking and forecasting, preparation of construction plans, and 

project close out. 

 

Waste Management Compressed Natural Gas (CNG) Program. As a 

Design Manager Mrs. Newland was directly responsible for managing 

over 20 fast track compressed natural gas (CNG) fueling and vehicle 

maintenance facility upgrades throughout the United States. In addition to 

being the lead point of contact for local jurisdictions, her duties included: 

leading and selecting design teams, contract negotiations, project and man 

hour estimating, RFI coordination, preparing construction plans, SWPPP 

development, utility coordination, and project close-out. 
 
 

Page 2 2019 

62



North Air Carrier Apron - Boise City Airport, Boise, Idaho. 

Deteriorating asphalt pavement required demolition and reconstruction of 

approximately 22,000 square yards of asphalt pavement, installation of 

underdrains, storm drainage improvements and application of pavement 

markings on the north and east sides of the Carrier Apron. Mrs. Newland 

was the Resident Engineer responsible for onsite construction observation 

and oversight. 

 

Taxiway and Taxilane “K” Reconstruction - Boise City Airport, 

Boise, Idaho. As the Resident Engineer Mrs. Newland was responsible 

for the onsite construction observation and oversight for the full depth 

reconstruction and relocation of Taxiway K. The $2. million project 

required coordination with an existing heliport pad and an existing FAA 

facility in the vicinity, connection to existing taxiway pavements at the 

east and west ends of the new construction, edge lighting, relocation of 

airfield signage, storm drainage improvements, and pavement markings. 

 

Taxiway “F” Rehabilitation and Taxiway “K” Seal Coat- Boise City 

Airport, Boise, Idaho. This project included a bituminous overlay of 

approximately 2,000 liner feet of taxiway. As the Resident Engineer Mrs. 

Newland was responsible for the onsite construction observation and 

oversight for the mill and overlay adjusting cross slope deficiencies to 

meet FAA grade criteria and accommodate A300-600 aircraft. In 

conjunction, Taxiway K was crack sealed, and seal coated to prolong 

pavement life and reduce FOD. 

 

WCS Waste Disposal, Andrews, Texas. AECOM (URS) was awarded a 

three-year $80 million contract to lead the design and construction of a 

new LLRW disposal facility with associated improvements in Andrews, 

Texas. The facility was designed to capture all storm water that fell on 

site and divert into holding ponds. During construction, Mrs. Newland 

was the Project Engineer responsible for overseeing construction of the 

Byproduct Waste Disposal Cell as well as the drainage design and erosion 

and sediment control. 

 

GARVEE Program/Connecting Idaho Partners – Erosion and 

Sediment Control Review Lead- Boise, Idaho. In 2005 the Governor 

proposed and won approval from the Legislature to improve 13 segments 

of the state-wide transportation network in Idaho, to Connect Idaho, using 

GARVEE Bonds to fund the program. AECOM (URS) was the managing 

partner of a Joint Venture with CH2MHILL to complete this aggressive 

program which would expand and improve Idaho’s transportation 

infrastructure throughout the state. On behalf of Connecting Idaho 

Partners Mrs. Newland was the SWPPP discipline lead and reviewed all 

project submitted SWPPP and Erosion and Sediment Control plans to 

verify the documents met the requirements of the EPA and the ITD 

Consent Decree. 

 

US-95, Garwood to Sagle – Athol Section, Idaho Transportation 

Department, Connecting Idaho Partners; Kootenai County. Sherri 

served as the drainage task lead for the design of approximately 6.3 miles 

of roadway in northern Idaho. Her duties include coordinating, 
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developing, and designing of the roadway drainage system. Mrs. Newland 

utilized GIS data in ArcMap and developed the initial calculations for the 

Athol Cross Drain Design Hydraulic Report. In addition, Sherri designed 

and submitted the Athol Roadway drainage report. She also developed the 

Storm Water Pollution Prevention Plan recommendations for preliminary 

design. 

 
Erosion and Sediment Control Services - Ada County Highway 

District, Idaho. The Ada County Highway Districts owns and operates a 

portion of the MS4 system in Idaho. As an owner and operator ACHD 

was mandated by the EPA to control and monitor contaminants that enter 

this system. The EPA views construction related sediment as a pollutant. 

Mrs. Newland developed, managed, reviewed, and inspected contractor 

submitted designed erosion and sediment control plans and Best 

Management Practices, designed to reduce sediment and erosion, on 

behalf of the Ada County Highway District. Daily Mrs. Newland 

contacted and coordinated with the client in order to continually develop 

and improve the program process. 

 

US-95 Sandpoint North and South (Sandpoint Byway) - Sandpoint, 

Idaho. This controversial project involved the relocation of US-95 from 

downtown Sandpoint. As a design engineer she prepared the Cultural 

Resource’s Investigation Stormwater Pollution Prevention Plans and 

drawings. She also reviewed water quality standards, water samples, and 

revised/updated the project Stormwater Pollution Prevention Plans and 

narrative to meet requirements. In addition, she compiled and gathered 

project information for the Resident Engineer file. 

 

SH-162, Four Corners to Kamiah - Idaho County, Idaho – Mrs. 

Newland served as lead SWPPP designer and environmental contact for a 

shoulder widening and complete overlay project, her responsibilities 

included development of the project Stormwater Pollution Prevention Plan 

and Narrative. Additional she coordinated and prepared the US Army 

Corp 404 Joint Application for Permit on behalf of the Idaho 

Transportation Department. 

 
Aria Boulevard Interchange I-80 Access – Utah Department of 

Transportation / Private Party; Wendover, UT. Mrs. Newland served 

as the lead SWPPP designer for the interchange and associated 

improvements to Aria Boulevard. The SWPPP was designed to meet the 

requirements set forth by the Utah Department of Environmental Quality 

which manages the NPDES program in Utah. She was responsible for 

researching, coordinating, and designing the Stormwater Pollution 

Prevention Plans and Narrative for the final roadway plan package. 

Idaho Transportation Department – U.S. 95 Over Calf Creek - Nez 

Perce and Latah Counties, Idaho. As a Staff Geotechnical Engineer, 

Sherri performed the field drilling and soils investigation, materials 

analysis, and engineering analysis for Phase IV – Foundation Investigation 

Report 
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Mountain Home Municipal Airport - Mountain Home, Idaho. The 

Municipal Airport in Mountain home required the upgrade and paving of 

the taxi ways and airplane hangars. Sherri performed the field 

coordination and soils investigation, pavement design, and prepared a 

report documenting our findings and recommendations for Entranco and 

the City of Mountain Home. 

Employment History 
 
 

S&C Associates LLC 

2016 - Present Owner 

City of Sun Valley 

2016 – Present Planning and Zoning Commissioner 

ET Environmental LLC 

2010 – 2016 Design Manager 

AECOM (Formally URS) 

2005 – 2010 Design Engineer 

American Geotechnics, Inc., Boise, Idaho 

2004 - 2005 Geotechnical Engineer 

Terracon, Inc., Boise, Idaho 

2000 - 2004 Staff Engineer 
 

Additional 

Education: APEX Program 

University of Sonora, Sonora, Mexico, September 1999 

Certificate of Spanish 

Autonomous University of Guadalajara, 

Guadalajara, Mexico, June 1997 

CE 332-Hydrology through Boise State University 

 

Training and 

Seminars: Technical Writing Workshop for Engineers, June 19, 2015 

NEC Essentials (NFPA 70 2014 Edition) 3-day Seminar, October 20, 2014 

IMW Operators Training, July 13, 2012 

NGVI CNG Fueling Station Design Training, September 2012 

Current Issues in Stormwater Regulation, August 27, 2008 

Bentley Microstation “V8” Training Course, December 14, 2006 

Introduction to ArcGIS I, October 19, 2007 

Applying InRoads, July 18-21, 2006 

Erosion Control Training: Practical Erosion Controls and How to Install 

Them On Your Site, June 6, 2006 

Wetlands Regulation and Enforcement, March 31, 2006 

CPESC Exam Review Course, February 20, 2006 

Innovative Restoration: Applied Process and Technologies for Stabilizing 

Streambanks and Restoring Rivers, February 20, 2005 

Effective Inspection Programs for Construction Site Runoff Control, 

February 21, 2005 

Inspection Ground Rules: How to Evaluate a SWPPP and Inspect a 

Construction Site, February 21, 2005 
 

 

 

 

 

Page 5 2019 

65



  

 

 

 
 
 

February 18, 2020 

 

Mayor Bradshaw and City Councilors 

City of Ketchum 

Ketchum, Idaho 

 

Mayor Bradshaw and City Councilors: 

 
Recommendation to Hold a Public Hearing and Approve the Crossbuck Townhomes Lot 3A and 4A Final Plat  

 
Recommendation and Summary  

Staff is recommending the council adopt the following motion: 

 

Move to Approve the Crossbuck Townhomes Lot 3A and 4A Final Plat subject to City issuance of a 

Certificate of Occupancy for the Unit on Lot 3A and the Unit on Lot 4A  

 

The reasons for the recommendation are as follows: 

 

• The Crossbuck Townhomes Preliminary Plat has been approved by the City. 

• Sundali/Mace have proceeded with site improvements consistent with the Construction Phasing 

Agreement #20233 entered into with the City.  

• Subject units are nearing completion and no issues with certificate of occupancy for Townhome Lot 3A 

and 4A have been identified. 

• The city holds a security bond to assure all identified improvements are completed for the project. 

 

Analysis 

The Project has proceeded consistent with a host of City approvals, including townhome design review, 

rezone, preliminary plat, building permit, construction phasing, and a grant of license/alley maintenance 

agreement. Preliminary plat approval and subsequent final plat approval / plat recordation for each phase of 

the project are defined next steps for each of the sublots. The applicant plans three phases in its final plat 

recordation process, as allowed by city code. Thus far, a Phase 1 and Phase 2 approval for Lots 4B and 3B, 

respectively, have been approved by Council. The third and final phase, as referenced here, is the recordation 

of the final plat for Lots 3A and 4A. Staff has no existing concerns with Sundali/Mace complying with the 

various subdivision, construction phasing, alley maintenance, and other provisions of code. Finalization of the 

Lot 3A and 4A plat is conditioned on a certificate of occupancy being issued for subject units. 

  

Financial Impact 

A surety bond is in place to secure the improvements associated with public right of way improvements 

referenced in the Construction Phasing Agreement #20233, instrument #657659. 

 

Attachment 

Crossbuck Townhome Lots 3A and 4A Final Plat Map 

Draft Findings of Fact 

66



67



  

 

 

 

 
 
 

IN RE:                                                                                    )         

  )  

Crossbuck Townhomes: Phase 3, Lots 3A and 4A       )        KETCHUM CITY COUNCIL 

Final Plat                                                                              )        FINDINGS OF FACT, CONCLUSIONS OF LAW, AND 

Date: February 3, 2020                            )        DECISION 

  ) 

File Number: 20-__  )      

 

Findings Regarding Application Filed  

 

PROJECT: Final Plat for Crossbuck Townhomes: Phase 3, Lots 3A and 4A  

FILE NUMBER:  P19-140 
 
OWNERS:  William Sundali and Shane & Shannon Mace 
 
REPRESENTATIVE: Alpine Enterprises  

REQUEST: Crossbuck Townhomes: Phase 3, Lots 3A and 4A Final Plat 
 

LOCATION:  Not Yet Assigned 
 
NOTICE:  Legal notice with the city’s newspaper of record and for adjoining landowners within 

300’ was in compliance with the 15 day and 10 day notice requirements. Notice to 
neighbors and publication in the Idaho Mountain Express for the February 18, 2020 
hearing occurred on January 29, 2020.   

 
ZONING: GR-L  
 

OVERLAY:  None 
 

Findings Regarding Associated Development Applications 

1. In 2018 Sundali and Mace received preliminary plat approval for the creation of 4 sublots, which are 
referenced as Sublots 4A, 4B, 3A, and 3B of Crossbuck Townhomes. 

2. Subject sublots were the result of design review approval and related platting of Lots 3A and 4A of 
Block 67 (within Ketchum Townsite within S13, T4N, R17E, Boise Meridian, City of Ketchum, Blaine 
County, Idaho) consistent with Townhouse §16.04.080 provisions of the Ketchum Municipal Code 
(KMC). 

3. Sundali/Mace entered into a construction phasing agreement #20233 with the city (instrument 
#657659) consistent with §16.04.110 of the KMC for Phased Development Projects.  

4. The majority of infrastructure improvements referenced in subject construction phasing agreement 
have been made by the applicant. However, there are sidewalk and other related ROW improvements 
that are still outstanding that the applicant has secured with a construction performance bond. 

68



Crossbuck Townhomes Phase 3: Lots 3A and 4A Final Plat  
Findings of Fact, Conclusions of Law, and Decision 
Ketchum City Council Meeting of February 3rd, 2020 
City of Ketchum Planning & Building Department       Page 2 of 9  

5. In 2019 a certificate of occupancy and related final plat for Phase 1 of the three phased Crossbuck 
Townhome plat was issued for Lot 4B. 

6. In 2020 a certificate of occupancy and related final plat for Phase 2 of the three phased Crossbuck 
Townhome plat was issued for Lot 3B. 

7. This application is for Phase 3 and proposes a final plat for Sublots 3A and 4A of Crossbuck 
Townhomes. 

8. Sublots 3A and 4A are each 4,120 square feet in size and accessed from a shared driveway onto 2nd 
Avenue. 

9. The application has been submitted by Alpine Enterprises Inc and the map associated with the project 
is dated December 2019 and includes 6 plat notes, including reference to the project CC&Rs 
(instrument #665602) and the previously referenced construction phasing agreement.  

10. As set forth in Ketchum Municipal Code (KMC) §16.04.030.G, Final Plat Procedures, compliance with 
the requirements of the Subdivision Ordinance, including the Development and Design Standards set 
forth in KMC §16.04.040 is required. 

 
Table 1: Findings Regarding Final Plat Requirements  

Final Plat Requirements 

Compliant 
Standards and Staff Comments 

� � � 16.04.040.A Required Improvements: The improvements set forth in this section shall be shown on the 

preliminary plat and installed prior to approval of the final plat. Construction design plans shall 

be submitted and approved by the city engineer. All such improvements shall be in accordance 

with the comprehensive plan and constructed in compliance with construction standard 

specifications adopted by the city. 
  Improvements set forth in phased construction agreement, including a shared driveway approach 

across the bike path onto 2nd Avenue, have been constructed to plan. Sidewalk along 6th Street to 
be re-poured in Spring 2020. Surety bond and other pending phases assures completion. 

� � � 16.04.040.B Improvement Plans: Prior to approval of final plat by the Council, the subdivider shall file two 

(2) copies with the city engineer, and the city engineer shall approve construction plans for all 

improvements required in the proposed subdivision. Such plans shall be prepared by a civil 

engineer licensed in the state. 
 Subject project improvement drawings have been submitted and approved by the city and, in the 

majority of instances, all the required improvement plans have been constructed and accepted by 
the city (e.g., water and sewer infrastructure, alleyway). 

� � � 16.04.040.C Performance Bond: Prior to final plat approval, the subdivider shall have previously constructed 

all required improvements and secured a certificate of completion from the city engineer. 

However, in cases where the required improvements cannot be constructed due to weather,  

factors beyond the control of the subdivider, or other conditions as determined acceptable at 

the sole discretion of the city, the city council may accept, in lieu of any or all of the required 

improvements, a performance bond filed with the city clerk to ensure actual construction of the 

required improvements as submitted and approved. Such performance bond shall be issued in 

an amount not less than one hundred fifty percent (150%) of the estimated costs of 

improvements as determined by the city engineer. In the event the improvements are not 

constructed within the time allowed by the city council (which shall be two years or less, 

depending upon the individual circumstances), the council may order the improvements 

installed at the expense of the subdivider and the surety. In the event the cost of installing the 

required improvements exceeds the amount of the bond, the subdivider shall be liable to the 

city for additional costs. The amount that the cost of installing the required improvements 

exceeds the amount of the performance bond shall automatically become a lien upon any and 

all property within the subdivision owned by the owner and/or subdivider. 
 Yes. City has a performance bond for the unfinished work. 

� � � 16.04.040.D As Built Drawing: Prior to acceptance by the city council of any improvements installed by the 

subdivider, two (2) sets of as built plans and specifications, certified by the subdivider's 

engineer, shall be filed with the city engineer. Within ten (10) days after completion of 

improvements and submission of as built drawings, the city engineer shall certify the 

completion of the improvements and the acceptance of the improvements, and shall submit a 

copy of such certification to the administrator and the subdivider. If a performance bond has 
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been filed, the administrator shall forward a copy of the certification to the city clerk. 

Thereafter, the city clerk shall release the performance bond upon application by the 

subdivider. 

 Done.  
� � � 16.04.040.E Monumentation: Following completion of construction of the required improvements and prior 

to certification of completion by the city engineer, certain land survey monuments shall be 

reset or verified by the subdivider's engineer or surveyor to still be in place. These monuments 

shall have the size, shape, and type of material as shown on the subdivision plat. The 

monuments shall be located as follows: 

1. All angle points in the exterior boundary of the plat. 

2. All street intersections, points within and adjacent to the final plat. 

3. All street corner lines ending at boundary line of final plat. 

4. All angle points and points of curves on all streets. 

5. The point of beginning of the subdivision plat description. 

 The applicant shall meet the required monumentation standards prior to recordation of the Final 
Plat.  

� � � 16.04.040.F Lot Requirements: 

1. Lot size, width, depth, shape and orientation and minimum building setback lines shall be in 

compliance with the zoning district in which the property is located and compatible with the 

location of the subdivision and the type of development, and preserve solar access to adjacent 

properties and buildings. 

2. Whenever a proposed subdivision contains lot(s), in whole or in part, within the floodplain, 

or which contains land with a slope in excess of twenty five percent (25%), based upon natural 

contours, or creates corner lots at the intersection of two (2) or more streets, building 

envelopes shall be shown for the lot(s) so affected on the preliminary and final plats. The 

building envelopes shall be located in a manner designed to promote harmonious development 

of structures, minimize congestion of structures, and provide open space and solar access for 

each lot and structure. Also, building envelopes shall be located to promote access to the lots 

and maintenance of public utilities, to minimize cut and fill for roads and building foundations, 

and minimize adverse impact upon environment, watercourses and topographical features. 

Structures may only be built on buildable lots. Lots shall only be created that meet the 

definition of "lot, buildable" in section 16.04.020 of this chapter. Building envelopes shall be 

established outside of hillsides of twenty five percent (25%) and greater and outside of the 

floodway. A waiver to this standard may only be considered for the following: 

a. For lot line shifts of parcels that are entirely within slopes of twenty five percent 

(25%) or greater to create a reasonable building envelope, and mountain overlay 

design review standards and all other city requirements are met. 

b. For small, isolated pockets of twenty five percent (25%) or greater that are found to 

be in compliance with the purposes and standards of the mountain overlay district 

and this section. 

3. Corner lots outside of the original Ketchum Townsite shall have a property line curve or 

corner of a minimum radius of twenty five feet (25') unless a longer radius is required to serve 

an existing or future use. 

4. Side lot lines shall be within twenty degrees (20°) to a right angle or radial line to the street 

line. 

5. Double frontage lots shall not be created. A planting strip shall be provided along the 

boundary line of lots adjacent to arterial streets or incompatible zoning districts. 

6. Every lot in a subdivision shall have a minimum of twenty feet (20') of frontage on a 

dedicated public street or legal access via an easement of twenty feet (20') or greater in width. 

Easement shall be recorded in the office of the Blaine County recorder prior to or in conjunction 

with recordation of the final plat. Minimum lot sizes in all cases shall be reversed frontage 

lot(s). 

 Each of the lots comply with 1-6 (above).  
� � � 16.04.040.G G. Block Requirements: The length, width and shape of blocks within a proposed subdivision 

shall conform to the following requirements: 

1. No block shall be longer than one thousand two hundred feet (1,200'), nor less than 

four hundred feet (400') between the street intersections, and shall have sufficient 

depth to provide for two (2) tiers of lots. 

2. Blocks shall be laid out in such a manner as to comply with the lot requirements. 

3. The layout of blocks shall take into consideration the natural topography of the 

land to promote access within the subdivision and minimize cuts and fills for roads 
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and minimize adverse impact on environment, watercourses and topographical 

features. 

4. Except in the original Ketchum Townsite, corner lots shall contain a building 

envelope outside of a seventy five foot (75') radius from the intersection of the 

streets. 

 This application does not create a new block. This requirement is not applicable. 
� � � 16.04.040.H Street Improvement Requirements: 

1. The arrangement, character, extent, width, grade and location of all streets put in the 

proposed subdivision shall conform to the comprehensive plan and shall be considered in their 

relation to existing and planned streets, topography, public convenience and safety, and the 

proposed uses of the land; 

2. All streets shall be constructed to meet or exceed the criteria and standards set forth 

in chapter 12.04 of this code, and all other applicable ordinances, resolutions or regulations of 

the city or any other governmental entity having jurisdiction, now existing or adopted, 

amended or codified; 

3. Where a subdivision abuts or contains an existing or proposed arterial street, railroad or 

limited access highway right of way, the council may require a frontage street, planting strip, or 

similar design features; 

4. Streets may be required to provide access to adjoining lands and provide proper traffic 

circulation through existing or future neighborhoods; 

5. Street grades shall not be less than three-tenths percent (0.3%) and not more than seven 

percent (7%) so as to provide safe movement of traffic and emergency vehicles in all weather 

and to provide for adequate drainage and snow plowing; 

6. In general, partial dedications shall not be permitted, however, the council may accept a 

partial street dedication when such a street forms a boundary of the proposed subdivision and 

is deemed necessary for the orderly development of the neighborhood, and provided the 

council finds it practical to require the dedication of the remainder of the right of way when the 

adjoining property is subdivided. When a partial street exists adjoining the proposed 

subdivision, the remainder of the right of way shall be dedicated; 

7. Dead end streets may be permitted only when such street terminates at the boundary of a 

subdivision and is necessary for the development of the subdivision or the future development 

of the adjacent property. When such a dead end street serves more than two (2) lots, a 

temporary turnaround easement shall be provided, which easement shall revert to the 

adjacent lots when the street is extended; 

8. A cul-de-sac, court or similar type street shall be permitted only when necessary to the 

development of the subdivision, and provided, that no such street shall have a maximum length 

greater than four hundred feet (400') from entrance to center of turnaround, and all cul-de-sacs 

shall have a minimum turnaround radius of sixty feet (60') at the property line and not less than 

forty five feet (45') at the curb line; 

9. Streets shall be planned to intersect as nearly as possible at right angles, but in no event at 

less than seventy degrees (70°); 

10. Where any street deflects an angle of ten degrees (10°) or more, a connecting curve shall be 

required having a minimum centerline radius of three hundred feet (300') for arterial and 

collector streets, and one hundred twenty five feet (125') for minor streets; 

11. Streets with centerline offsets of less than one hundred twenty five feet (125') shall be 

prohibited; 

12. A tangent of at least one hundred feet (100') long shall be introduced between reverse 

curves on arterial and collector streets; 

13. Proposed streets which are a continuation of an existing street shall be given the same 

names as the existing street. All new street names shall not duplicate or be confused with the 

names of existing streets within Blaine County, Idaho. The subdivider shall obtain approval of 

all street names within the proposed subdivision from the County Assessor’s office before 

submitting same to council for preliminary plat approval; 

14. Street alignment design shall follow natural terrain contours to result in safe streets, usable 

lots, and minimum cuts and fills; 

15. Street patterns of residential areas shall be designed to create areas free of through traffic, 

but readily accessible to adjacent collector and arterial streets; 

16. Reserve planting strips controlling access to public streets shall be permitted under 

conditions specified and shown on the final plat, and all landscaping and irrigation systems 

shall be installed as required improvements by the subdivider; 
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17. In general, the centerline of a street shall coincide with the centerline of the street right of 

way, and all crosswalk markings shall be installed by the subdivider as a required improvement; 

18. Street lighting shall be required consistent with adopted city standards and where 

designated shall be installed by the subdivider as a requirement improvement; 

19. Private streets may be allowed upon recommendation by the commission and approval by 

the Council. Private streets shall be constructed to meet the design standards specified in 

subsection H2 of this section and chapter 12.04 of this code; 

20. Street signs shall be installed by the subdivider as a required improvement of a type and 

design approved by the Administrator and shall be consistent with the type and design of 

existing street signs elsewhere in the City; 

21. Whenever a proposed subdivision requires construction of a new bridge, or will create 

substantial additional traffic which will require construction of a new bridge or improvement of 

an existing bridge, such construction or improvement shall be a required improvement by the 

subdivider. Such construction or improvement shall be in accordance with adopted standard 

specifications; 

22. Sidewalks, curbs and gutters shall be required consistent with adopted city standards and 

where designated shall be a required improvement installed by the subdivider; 

23. Gates are prohibited on private roads and parking access/entranceways, private driveways 

accessing more than one single-family dwelling unit and one accessory dwelling unit, and public 

rights-of-way unless approved by the City Council; and 

24. No new public or private streets or flag lots associated with a proposed subdivision (land, 

planned unit development, townhouse, condominium) are permitted to be developed on 

parcels within the Avalanche Zone. 

    This proposal does not create new street. These standards are not applicable. 
� � � 16.04.040.I Alley Improvement Requirements: Alleys shall be provided in, commercial and light industrial 

zoning districts. The width of an alley shall be not less than twenty feet (20'). Alley intersections 

and sharp changes in alignment shall be avoided, but where necessary, corners shall be 

provided to permit safe vehicular movement. Dead end alleys shall be permitted only within 

the original Ketchum Townsite and only after due consideration of the interests of the owners 

of property adjacent to the dead-end alley including, but not limited to, the provision of fire 

protection, snow removal and trash collection services to such properties. Improvement of 

alleys shall be done by the subdivider as required improvement and in conformance with 

design standards specified in subsection H2 of this section. 

 The alley has been improved and an alley maintenance agreement entered into with the 
applicant.  

� � � 16.04.040.J Required Easements: Easements, as set forth in this subsection, shall be required for location of 

utilities and other public services, to provide adequate pedestrian circulation and access to 

public waterways and lands. 

 

1. A public utility easement at least ten feet (10') in width shall be required within the street 

right-of-way boundaries of all private streets. A public utility easement at least five feet (5') in 

width shall be required within property boundaries adjacent to Warm Springs Road and within 

any other property boundary as determined by the City Engineer to be necessary for the 

provision of adequate public utilities. 

 

2. Where a subdivision contains or borders on a watercourse, drainageway, channel or stream, 

an easement shall be required of sufficient width to contain such watercourse and provide 

access for private maintenance and/or reconstruction of such watercourse. 

 

3. All subdivisions which border the Big Wood River, Trail Creek and Warm Springs Creek shall 

dedicate a ten foot (10') fish and nature study easement along the riverbank. Furthermore, the 

Council shall require, in appropriate areas, an easement providing access through the 

subdivision to the bank as a sportsman's access. These easement requirements are minimum 

standards, and in appropriate cases where a subdivision abuts a portion of the river adjacent to 

an existing pedestrian easement, the Council may require an extension of that easement along 

the portion of the riverbank which runs through the proposed subdivision. 

 

4. All subdivisions which border on the Big Wood River, Trail Creek and Warm Springs Creek 

shall dedicate a twenty five foot (25') scenic easement upon which no permanent structure 

shall be built in order to protect the natural vegetation and wildlife along the riverbank and to 

protect structures from damage or loss due to riverbank erosion. 
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5. No ditch, pipe or structure for irrigation water or irrigation wastewater shall be constructed, 

rerouted or changed in the course of planning for or constructing required improvements 

within a proposed subdivision unless same has first been approved in writing by the ditch 

company or property owner holding the water rights. A written copy of such approval shall be 

filed as part of required improvement construction plans. 

 

6. Nonvehicular transportation system easements including pedestrian walkways, bike paths, 

equestrian paths, and similar easements shall be dedicated by the subdivider to provide an 

adequate nonvehicular transportation system throughout the City. 

 The project borders both 6th Street, 7th Street, 2nd Avenue and a city alley. Subject public rights of 
way provide the necessary utility and other easements needed for the project.  

� � � 16.04.040.K Sanitary Sewage Disposal Improvements: Central sanitary sewer systems shall be installed in all 

subdivisions and connected to the Ketchum sewage treatment system as a required 

improvement by the subdivider. Construction plans and specifications for central sanitary 

sewer extension shall be prepared by the subdivider and approved by the City Engineer, Council 

and Idaho Health Department prior to final plat approval. In the event that the sanitary sewage 

system of a subdivision cannot connect to the existing public sewage system, alternative 

provisions for sewage disposal in accordance with the requirements of the Idaho Department 

of Health and the Council may be constructed on a temporary basis until such time as 

connection to the public sewage system is possible. In considering such alternative provisions, 

the Council may require an increase in the minimum lot size and may impose any other 

reasonable requirements which it deems necessary to protect public health, safety and welfare. 

 The new residences are connected to the municipal sewer system.  
� � � 16.04.040.L Water System Improvements: A central domestic water distribution system shall be installed in 

all subdivisions by the subdivider as a required improvement. The subdivider shall also be 

required to locate and install an adequate number of fire hydrants within the proposed 

subdivision according to specifications and requirements of the City under the supervision of 

the Ketchum Fire Department and other regulatory agencies having jurisdiction. Furthermore, 

the central water system shall have sufficient flow for domestic use and adequate fire flow. All 

such water systems installed shall be looped extensions, and no dead end systems shall be 

permitted. All water systems shall be connected to the Municipal water system and shall meet 

the standards of the following agencies: Idaho Department of Public Health, Idaho Survey and 

Rating Bureau, District Sanitarian, Idaho State Public Utilities Commission, Idaho Department of 

Reclamation, and all requirements of the City. 

 The new residences are connected to the city water system.  
� � � 16.04.040.M Planting Strip Improvements: Planting strips shall be required improvements. When a 

predominantly residential subdivision is proposed for land adjoining incompatible uses or 

features such as highways, railroads, commercial or light industrial districts or off street parking 

areas, the subdivider shall provide planting strips to screen the view of such incompatible 

features. The subdivider shall submit a landscaping plan for such planting strip with the 

preliminary plat application, and the landscaping shall be a required improvement. 

 This standard is not applicable. 
� � � 16.04.040.N Cuts, Fills, And Grading Improvements: Proposed subdivisions shall be carefully planned to be 

compatible with natural topography, soil conditions, geology and hydrology of the site, as well 

as to minimize cuts, fills, alterations of topography, streams, drainage channels, and disruption 

of soils and vegetation. The design criteria shall include the following: 

1. A preliminary soil report prepared by a qualified engineer may be required by the 

commission and/or Council as part of the preliminary plat application. 

2.   Preliminary grading plan prepared by a civil engineer shall be submitted as part of all 

preliminary plat applications. Such plan shall contain the following information: 

a. Proposed contours at a maximum of five foot (5') contour intervals. 

b. Cut and fill banks in pad elevations. 

c. Drainage patterns. 

d. Areas where trees and/or natural vegetation will be preserved. 

e. Location of all street and utility improvements including driveways to building 

envelopes. 

f. Any other information which may reasonably be required by the Administrator, 

commission or Council to adequately review the affect of the proposed 

improvements. 
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3. Grading shall be designed to blend with natural landforms and to minimize the necessity of 

padding or terracing of building sites, excavation for foundations, and minimize the necessity of 

cuts and fills for streets and driveways. 

4. Areas within a subdivision which are not well suited for development because of existing soil 

conditions, steepness of slope, geology or hydrology shall be allocated for open space for the 

benefit of future property owners within the subdivision. 

5. Where existing soils and vegetation are disrupted by subdivision development, provision 

shall be made by the subdivider for revegetation of disturbed areas with perennial vegetation 

sufficient to stabilize the soil upon completion of the construction. Until such times as such 

revegetation has been installed and established, the subdivider shall maintain and protect all 

disturbed surfaces from erosion. 

6. Where cuts, fills, or other excavations are necessary, the following development standards 

shall apply: 

a. Fill areas shall be prepared by removing all organic material detrimental to proper 

compaction for soil stability. 

b. Fills shall be compacted to at least ninety five percent (95%) of maximum density as 

determined by AASHO T99 (American Association of State Highway Officials) and 

ASTM D698 (American Standard Testing Methods). 

c. Cut slopes shall be no steeper than two horizontal to one vertical (2:1). Subsurface 

drainage shall be provided as necessary for stability. 

d. Fill slopes shall be no steeper than three horizontal to one vertical (3:1). Neither cut 

nor fill slopes shall be located on natural slopes of three to one (3:1) or steeper, or 

where fill slope toes out within twelve feet (12') horizontally of the top and existing or 

planned cut slope. 

e. Toes of cut and fill slopes shall be set back from property boundaries a distance of 

three feet (3'), plus one-fifth (1/5) of the height of the cut or the fill, but may not 

exceed a horizontal distance of ten feet (10'); tops and toes of cut and fill slopes shall 

be set back from structures at a distance of at least six feet (6'), plus one-fifth (1/5) of 

the height of the cut or the fill. Additional setback distances shall be provided as 

necessary to accommodate drainage features and drainage structures. 

 These standards are not applicable. 
� � � 16.04.040.O Drainage Improvements: The subdivider shall submit with the preliminary plat application such 

maps, profiles, and other data prepared by an engineer to indicate the proper drainage of the 

surface water to natural drainage courses or storm drains, existing or proposed. The location 

and width of the natural drainage courses shall be shown as an easement common to all 

owners within the subdivision and the City on the preliminary and final plat. All natural 

drainage courses shall be left undisturbed or be improved in a manner that will increase the 

operating efficiency of the channel without overloading its capacity. An adequate storm and 

surface drainage system shall be a required improvement in all subdivisions and shall be 

installed by the subdivider. Culverts shall be required where all water or drainage courses 

intersect with streets, driveways or improved public easements and shall extend across and 

under the entire improved width including shoulders. 

 Drainage improvements have been made on-site as well as along 6th Street consistent with streets 
and city engineer requrements.  

� � � 16.04.040.P Utilities: In addition to the terms mentioned in this section, all utilities including, but not 

limited to, electricity, natural gas, telephone and cable services shall be installed underground 

as a required improvement by the subdivider. Adequate provision for expansion of such 

services within the subdivision or to adjacent lands including installation of conduit pipe across 

and underneath streets shall be installed by the subdivider prior to construction of street 

improvements. 

 Utility corridor for project completed. Water and sewer services approved and installed per code. 
Natural gas, telephone, cable, and electricity serve the new residences.   

� � � 16.04.040.Q Off Site Improvements: Where the off site impact of a proposed subdivision is found by the 

commission or Council to create substantial additional traffic, improvements to alleviate that 

impact may be required of the subdivider prior to final plat approval, including, but not limited 

to, bridges, intersections, roads, traffic control devices, water mains and facilities, and sewer 

mains and facilities. 
 Off-site improvements along 6th Street and the alleyway have been made by the applicant 

consistent with construction phasing agreement between the applicant and the city. 
� � � 16.04.040.R Avalanche And Mountain Overlay: All improvements and plats (land, planned unit 

development, townhouse, condominium) created pursuant to this chapter shall comply with 
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City of Ketchum Avalanche Zone District and Mountain Overlay Zoning District requirements as 

set forth in Title 17 of this Code. 
 N/A 

� � � 16.04.040.S Existing natural features which enhance the attractiveness of the subdivision and community, 

such as mature trees, watercourses, rock outcroppings, established shrub masses and historic 

areas, shall be preserved through design of the subdivision. 
 N/A 

 

 

CONCLUSIONS OF LAW 

1. The City of Ketchum is a municipal corporation established in accordance with Article XII of the 
Constitution of the State of Idaho and Title 50 Idaho Code and is required and has exercised its authority 
pursuant to the Local Land Use Planning Act codified at Chapter 65 of Title 67 Idaho Code and pursuant 
to Chapters 3, 9 and 13 of Title 50 Idaho Code to enact the Ordinances and regulations, which Ordinances 
are codified in the Ketchum City Code (“KMC”) and are identified in the Findings of Fact and which are 
herein restated as Conclusions of Law by this reference and which City Ordinances govern the 
Applicant’s Condominium Subdivision Final Plat application for the development and use of the project 
site. 
 

2. The Council has authority to hear the applicant’s Townhome Subdivision application pursuant to Chapter 
16.04 of Ketchum Code Title 16.  
 

3. The City of Ketchum Planning Department provided adequate notice for the review of this application. 
 

4. The proposed Final Plat meets the standards for Final Plat under Title 16 of Ketchum Municipal Code 
subject to conditions of approval.   

 

DECISION 

THEREFORE, the Ketchum City Council approves this Condominium Subdivision Final Plat application this 
Monday, February 3rd, 2020 subject to the following conditions: 

 

CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL  

 

1. The recorded plat shall show a minimum of two Blaine County Survey Control Monuments with ties 
to the property and an inverse between the two monuments. The Survey Control Monuments shall 
be clearly identified on the face of the map. 

2. An electronic CAD file shall be submitted to the City of Ketchum prior to final plat signature by the 
City Clerk. The electronic CAD file shall be submitted to the Blaine County Recorder’s office 
concurrent with the recording of the Plat containing the following minimum data: 
a. Line work delineating all parcels and roadways on a CAD layer/level designated as “parcel”; 
b. Line work delineating all roadway centerlines on a CAD layer/level designated as “road”; and, 
c. Line work that reflects the ties and inverses for the Survey Control Monuments shown on the 

face of the Plat shall be shown on a CAD layer/level designated as “control”; and,  
3. All information within the electronic file shall be oriented and scaled to Grid per the Idaho State 

Plane Coordinate System, Central Zone, NAD1983 (1992), U.S. Survey Feet, using the Blaine County 
Survey Control Network.  Electronic CAD files shall be submitted in a “.dwg”, “.dgn” or “.shp” format 
and shall be submitted digitally to the City on a compact disc.  When the endpoints of the lines 
submitted are indicated as coincidental with another line, the CAD line endpoints shall be separated 
by no greater than 0.0001 drawing units.    

4. The Final Plat mylar shall contain all items required under Title 50, Chapter 13, Idaho Code as well 
as all items required pursuant to KMC §16.04.030J including certificates and signatures.  
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5. All governing ordinances and department conditions pertinent to the Fire Department, Building 
Department, Planning Department, Street Department and Ketchum City Engineer shall be met. 

 
Findings of Fact adopted this 18th day of February, 2020. 
 
 
 

 
________________________________________ 

                                                                 Neil Bradshaw, Mayor                                         
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

__________________________________________ 
Robin Crotty, City Clerk 
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February 18, 2020 
 
Mayor Bradshaw and City Councilors 
City of Ketchum 
Ketchum, Idaho 
 
Mayor Bradshaw and City Councilors: 
 

Recommendation to Hold a Public Hearing and Approve the Readjustment of Lot Lines Application for the 
West Ketchum Residences Project 

  
Recommendation and Summary  
Staff recommends the Ketchum City Council hold a public hearing and approve the West Ketchum Residences 
Readjustment of Lot Lines application to remove the property lines separating Lots 5A, 6A, 7A, and 8A to form 
Lot 5AA of Bavarian Village Subdivision.  
 

Recommended Motion: “I move to approve the West Ketchum Residences Readjustment of Lot Lines 
application.”  
 

The reasons for the recommendation are as follows: 
• The request to change the lot configuration within the Bavarian Village Subdivision meets all applicable 

standards for Readjustment of Lot Lines contained in Ketchum Municipal Code’s (KMC) Subdivision 
(Title 16) regulations.  

• The application meets the standards required for the Readjustment of Lot Lines procedure because: 
(1) Lot 5AA complies with the dimensional standards required for properties located within the 
General Residential High Density (GR-H) Zoning District, and (2) the proposal does not create 
additional lots or dwelling units.  

• The application will combine 4 vacant lots to form the 1.09 acre project site for the West Ketchum 
Residences, a new 10-unit townhome development 
within 5 duplexes.  

Analysis 
Each townhome unit will have its own garage accessed from a 
snow-melted, private driveway. This application removes a 
recorded access easement that will be replaced by the shared 
private driveway. This proposed access includes a fire truck 
turnaround, which has been reviewed and approved by the Fire 
Department, Streets Department, and City Engineer. The 
townhome project received Design Review approval from the 
Planning & Zoning Commission on February 10th, 2020. The 
developer has submitted a Townhouse Subdivision Preliminary 
Plat application to subdivide Lot 5AA into 10 townhouse sublots. 
 
Financial Impact 
No financial impact as the application proposes a minor change to an existing plat of record.  
 
Attachments 
Draft Findings of Fact, Conclusions of Law, and Decision  
Bavarian Village Subdivision: Block 1: Lot 5AA 
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IN RE:                                                                                    )         
  )  
West Ketchum Residences                                               )        KETCHUM CITY COUNCIL 
Readjustment of Lot Lines Procedure                            )        FINDINGS OF FACT, CONCLUSIONS OF LAW, AND 
Date: February 18, 2020                            )        DECISION 
  ) 
File Number: P19-142  )      
 

 
PROJECT: West Ketchum Residences Readjustment of Lot Lines  
 
APPLICATION TYPE: Readjustment of Lot Lines  
 
FILE NUMBER: P19-142 

ASSOCIATED PERMITS: Design Review P19-143 
 
OWNERS:  West Ketchum Residences, LLC 
 
REPRESENTATIVE: Robert Parker & Galena Engineering  

REQUEST: Readjustment of Lot Lines procedure to vacate the common boundary lines between 
Lots 5A, 6A, 7A, & 8A as well as the associated private access and public utility easement 
within Bavarian Village Subdivision to form amended Lot 5AA. 

 
LOCATION: Bavarian Village Subdivision Lots 5A, 6A, 7A, & 8A (156 Wick Strasse & 150, 152, and 

154 Bird Drive) 
 
NOTICE:  A public hearing notice was mailed to all property owners within 300 ft of the 

development site and political subdivisions on January 29, 2020. The public hearing 
notice was published in the Idaho Mountain Express on January 29, 2020.  

 
ZONING: General Residential High Density (GR-H) Zoning District 
 
OVERLAY:  None 
 

FINDINGS OF FACT 
 

1. The Readjustment of Lot Lines procedure will vacate the common boundary lines between Lots 5A, 6A, 
7A, & 8A as well as the associated private access and public utility easement within Bavarian Village 
Subdivision to form amended Lot 5AA. 
 

2. The application will combine 4 vacant lots to form the 1.09 acre project site for the West Ketchum 
Residences, a new 10-unit townhome development within 5 duplexes. 
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3. Each townhome unit will have its own garage accessed from a snow-melted, private driveway. This 
application removes a recorded access easement that will be replaced by the shared private driveway. 
This proposed access includes a fire truck turnaround, which has been reviewed and approved by the 
Fire Department, Streets Department, and City Engineer. 
 

4. Consistent with KMC §16.04.020, the proposal meets the definition of Readjustment of Lot Lines 
because: (1) Lot 5AA complies with the dimensional standards required for properties located within 
the General Residential High Density (GR-H) Zoning District, and (2) the proposal does not create 
additional lots or dwelling units.  

 
READJUSTMENT OF LOT LINES: A change or modification of the boundary lines between 
existing lots or parcels of land or between dwelling units which does not reduce the area, 
frontage, width, depth or building setback lines of each lot below the minimum zoning 
requirements and which does not create additional lots or dwelling units. "Readjustment of lot 
lines" includes other minor changes to a subdivision, condominium, or townhouse plat such as, 
but not limited to, notation changes, boundary shifts and removal of lot line(s), each of which 
do not reduce the area, frontage, width, depth or building setback lines of each lot below the 
minimum zoning requirements nor create additional lots or dwelling units (KMC §16.04.020). 

 
5. Consistent with KMC §16.04.060.B, the Readjustment of Lot Lines application was transmitted to City 

Departments including the City Engineer, Fire, Building, Utilities, and Streets departments for review. 
The City Departments had no comments or concerns regarding the proposal. 
 

6. All land, condominium, and townhouse subdivisions in the City of Ketchum are subject to the 
standards contained in Ketchum Municipal Code, Title 16, Subdivision. Many standards are related to 
the design and construction of multiple new lots that will form new blocks and infrastructure, such as 
streets that will be dedicated to and maintained by the City. The standards for certain improvements 
(KMC §16.04.040) including street, sanitary sewage disposal, planting strip improvements are not 
applicable to the subject project as the application proposes to designate existing common area as 
limited common area. The proposed Fisher Condominiums: Units A & 2A Subdivision Plat meets the 
standards for Readjustment of Lot Lines under Title 16 of Ketchum Municipal Code subject to 
conditions of approval. The Readjustment of Lot Lines does not change the existing residential use or 
alter the existing development. 

 
CONCLUSIONS OF LAW 

1. The City of Ketchum is a municipal corporation established in accordance with Article XII of the 
Constitution of the State of Idaho and Title 50 Idaho Code and is required and has exercised its authority 
pursuant to the Local Land Use Planning Act codified at Chapter 65 of Title 67 Idaho Code and pursuant 
to Chapters 3, 9 and 13 of Title 50 Idaho Code to enact the Ordinances and regulations, which Ordinances 
are codified in the Ketchum City Code (“KMC”) and are identified in the Findings of Fact and which are 
herein restated as Conclusions of Law by this reference and which City Ordinances govern the applicant’s 
Readjustment of Lot Line application for the development and use of the project site. 
 

2. The Council has authority to hear the applicant’s Condominium Subdivision application pursuant to 
Chapter 16.04 of Ketchum Code Title 16.  
 

3. The City of Ketchum Planning Department provided adequate notice for the review of this application. 
 
4. The Readjustment of Lot Lines application is governed under Sections 16.04.010, 16.04.020, 16.04.30, 

16.04.060, and 16.04.070 of Ketchum Municipal Code Chapter 16.04.  
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5. The proposed Bavarian Village Subdivision: Block 1: Lot 5AA Subdivision Plat meets the standards for 

approval under Title 16 of Ketchum Municipal Code subject to conditions of approval.   
 

DECISION 
THEREFORE, the Ketchum City Council approves this Condominium Subdivision Final Plat application this 
Tuesday, February 18th, 2020 subject to the following conditions: 

 
CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL  

 
1. The recorded plat shall show a minimum of two Blaine County Survey Control Monuments with ties 

to the property and an inverse between the two monuments. The Survey Control Monuments shall 
be clearly identified on the face of the map. 

2. An electronic CAD file shall be submitted to the City of Ketchum prior to final plat signature by the 
City Clerk. The electronic CAD file shall be submitted to the Blaine County Recorder’s office 
concurrent with the recording of the Plat containing the following minimum data: 
a. Line work delineating all parcels and roadways on a CAD layer/level designated as “parcel”; 
b. Line work delineating all roadway centerlines on a CAD layer/level designated as “road”; and, 
c. Line work that reflects the ties and inverses for the Survey Control Monuments shown on the 

face of the Plat shall be shown on a CAD layer/level designated as “control”; and,  
d. All information within the electronic file shall be oriented and scaled to Grid per the Idaho State 

Plane Coordinate System, Central Zone, NAD1983 (1992), U.S. Survey Feet, using the Blaine 
County Survey Control Network.  Electronic CAD files shall be submitted in a “.dwg”, “.dgn” or 
“.shp” format and shall be submitted digitally to the City on a compact disc.  When the endpoints 
of the lines submitted are indicated as coincidental with another line, the CAD line endpoints 
shall be separated by no greater than 0.0001 drawing units.   

5. The applicant shall provide a copy of the recorded Final Plat and the associated condominium owners’ 
documents to the Planning and Building Department for the official file on the application. 

6. The Final Plat mylar shall contain all items required under Title 50, Chapter 13, Idaho Code as well as all 
items required pursuant to KMC §16.04.030J including certificates and signatures. 

7. All governing ordinances and department conditions pertinent to the Fire Department, Building 
Department, Utilities Department, Street Department and Ketchum City Engineer shall be met. 

 
Findings of Fact adopted this 18th day of February, 2020 
 
 
 

 
________________________________________ 

                                                                 Neil Bradshaw, Mayor                                         
 

 
 
 

 
 

__________________________________________ 
Robin Crotty, City Clerk 
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[   ] Record Bearing & Distance, Bavarian

Village Subdivision: Lots 3A, 4A, 5A, 6A,

7A, & 8A, Instrument Number 631181

1. The purpose of this survey is to vacate the common lot lines to lots 5A, 6A, 7A, & 8A, Block 1, Bavarian

Village Subdivision, creating Lot 5AA, Block 1, Bavarian Village Subdivision, as shown, vacate the

Private Access & Public Utility Easement to benefit Lots 5A, 6A, 7A, & 8A, vacate Utility Easements per

instrument Numbers 660803 & 661188, records of Blaine County, Idaho, and show the monuments found

during the boundary retracement of the lots listed above.  The boundary shown is based on found

monuments and the recorded plat of Bavarian Village Subdivision: Lots 3A, 4A, 5A, 6A, 7A & 8A,

Instrument Number 631181, records of Blaine County, Idaho.  All found monuments have been accepted.

Additional Documents used in the course of this survey include; Bavarian Village Subdivision, Instrument

Number 139821, records of Blaine County, Idaho.

2. Except as specifically stated or depicted on this map, this survey does not purport to reflect any of the

following which may be applicable to subject real property: natural  hazards, encroachments, wetlands,

easements, building setbacks,  restrictive covenants, subdivision restrictions, zoning or any other

land-use regulations. An independent title search has not been performed by the surveyor for this project.

3. An ALTA Commitment for Title Insurance for Lots 5A, 6A, 7A, & 8A, Bavarian Village Subdivision, has

been issued by Stewart Title Guaranty Company, File Number 1921742, with a Commitment Date of

August 1, 2019.  Certain information contained in said title policy may not appear on this map or may

affect items shown hereon.  It is the responsibility of the owner or agent to review said title policy.  Some

of the encumbrances and easements listed in the title report are NOT plotted hereon.  Review of specific

documents is required, if further information is desired.

4. A Proposed 10' Public Utility Easement, extending from the Northeast Corner of the subject property,

along Bird Drive, to the Southeast Corner of the subject property will encompass Utility Easements per

Instrument Numbers 660648, 660804, 661177, & 661178, records of Blaine County, Idaho.  The Vacation

of Utility Easements per Instrument Numbers 660803 & 661188, records of Blaine County, Idaho, will

need to be done with a separate document recorded after coordination with Idaho Power Company, since

said easements were not created on a plat.

5. The owner/subdivider is West Ketchum Residences, LLC c/o Robert Parker, PO Box 284, Sun Valley, ID

83353.  The surveyor/representative is Mark Phillips, Galena Engineering Inc., 317 N River Street,

Hailey, ID 83333.

6. The Current Zoning is GR-H.  Refer to the City of Ketchum Zoning Code for more information about this

zone.

7. Refer to the Engineering Base Drawing, prepared by Galena Engineering, Inc., for existing conditions

and proposed improvements.
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February 18, 2020 
 
Mayor Bradshaw and City Councilors 
City of Ketchum 
Ketchum, Idaho 
 
Mayor Bradshaw and City Councilors: 
 

Recommendation to Conduct A Public Hearing to Adopt 
Ordinance 1206 Authorizing the Issuance and Sale of Bonds 

To Support the Voter-approved Fire Station Project  
 
Recommendation and Summary  
Staff is recommending the council conduct a public hearing and subsequently adopt Ordinance 1206 authorizing 
the issuance and sale of bonds for the fire station project by adopting the following two motions: 
 
“I move to waive the second and third readings of Ordinance 1206.” 
 
“I move to approve Ordinance 1206 authorizing the issuance and sale of bonds.” 
 
The reasons for the recommendation are as follows: 

• On November 5, 2019, voters in the City of Ketchum approved a ballot question concerning the 
construction of a fire station. 

• The City requires the proceeds of the bond sale in order to fund the full design and construction of the 
fire station. 

 
Introduction and History 
On November 5, 2019, voters in the City of Ketchum approved a ballot question concerning the construction of 
a fire station using the proceeds from a $11.5 million bond sale. The City Council has previously entered into 
various contracts for the design and management of the project and is incurring expense related to the project. 
Construction is anticipated to begin in the summer of 2020 and funds are required to enable that work.  
 
Analysis 
Pursuant to Chapter 2 of Title 57 of the Idaho Code, the issuance and sale of bonds requires approval of the City 
Council. The City intends to hold a competitive sale of the bonds on March 4, 2020, in cooperation with the City’s 
municipal advisor, Zions Bank. As detailed in Section 9 of the attached, to the extent that the City receives bids 
within certain parameters, the Mayor and Director of Finance will execute the sale. 
 
Financial Impact 
The bond sale will provide funds for the fire station construction project. To the extent that the bonds are sold, 
the City will incur annual interest not to exceed 4% for a period not to exceed 25 years. Payment of principal and 
interest will occur semi-annually utilizing levy funds collected by the County Treasurer. 
 
Attachments 

• Attachment A: Ordinance 1206 and attachments 
• Attachment B: Preliminary Official Statement 
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 ORDINANCE NO. 1206 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF KETCHUM, BLAINE COUNTY, STATE 
OF IDAHO, AUTHORIZING THE ISSUANCE AND SALE OF UP TO 
$11,500,000 PRINCIPAL AMOUNT OF GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS, 
SERIES 2020; PROVIDING FOR THE DATE, FORM, MATURITY, AND 
DESIGNATION OF SAID BONDS; AUTHORIZING A REQUEST FOR 
PURCHASE PROPOSALS FOR SAID BONDS BY A NOTICE OF SALE AND 
OFFICIAL STATEMENT FOR THE BONDS; PROVIDING FOR 
LIMITATION FOR THE RATE OF INTEREST ON, PRINCIPAL AMOUNT 
OF AND MATURITIES OF SAID BONDS; PROVIDING FOR THE 
PAYMENT OF PRINCIPAL OF AND INTEREST ON SAID BONDS; 
PROVIDING FOR THE REGISTRATION AND AUTHENTICATION OF 
SAID BONDS; SETTING THE TIME, DATE, AND PLACE OF SALE OF 
SAID BONDS; PROVIDING FOR THE PURCHASE OF THE BONDS AND 
PROVIDING FOR CONDITIONS OF ACCEPTANCE OF A PURCHASE 
PROPOSAL FOR THE BONDS; PROVIDING FOR THE PAYMENT OF 
PRINCIPAL OF AND INTEREST ON SAID BONDS BY ANNUAL LEVIES 
OF TAXES; CREATING CERTAIN FUNDS AND ACCOUNTS; PROVIDING 
FOR OTHER MATTERS PROPERLY RELATING THERETO; PROVIDING 
FOR A SEVERANCE CLAUSE; AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE 
AND WAIVING ANY REQUIREMENT FOR THREE SEPARATE 
READINGS OF THE ORDINANCE. 

 
CITY OF KETCHUM, BLAINE COUNTY, STATE OF IDAHO 

GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS, SERIES 2020 
 
 BE IT ORDAINED by the Mayor and Council of the City of Ketchum, Blaine County, 
State of Idaho, as follows: 
 
 WHEREAS, the City of Ketchum, Blaine County, State of Idaho (the “City”), is a 
municipal corporation duly organized and operating under Chapters 1 and 2, Title 50, Idaho 
Code, as amended; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council of the City (the “Council”), by its Ordinance No. 1201, 
adopted on September 3, 2019, ordered a special election to be held within said City on 
November 5, 2019, for the submission to the voters of the City the question of whether or not the 
City should issue up to $11,500,000 in general obligation bonds to provide funds for the 
construction and equipping of a new fire station, the acquisition of certain firefighting equipment 
and apparatus, and all other related costs, items and appurtenances necessary, useful and 
convenient for the betterment of the City’s fire safety facilities, as set forth in said Ordinance No. 
1201; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, on November 7, 2019, the Blaine County Commissioners canvassed the 
returns of said special bond election and determined that the requisite two-thirds (2/3) majority 
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of the qualified electors of said City had cast votes in the affirmative and that said proposition for 
the issuance of general obligation bonds in the amount of up to $11,500,000 had passed; and 
 
 WHEREAS, after the County Clerk had certified the above special bond election results 
to the City Clerk, on November 18, 2019, the City took action to have the results of said special 
bond election entered in the minutes of the Council and proclaimed as final; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City now desires to further authorize the issuance and sale of its General 
Obligation Bonds, Series 2020 (the “Bonds”). 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, be it further ordained by the Council, as follows: 
 
Section 1.  Bonds Authorized; Purpose. General obligation bonds of the City, in fully 
registered form, designated “City of Ketchum, Blaine County, State of Idaho, General Obligation 
Bonds, Series 2020” (the “Bonds”), in the aggregate principal amount of up to $11,500,000 are 
hereby authorized to be issued, sold, and delivered pursuant to the laws of the State of Idaho, 
particularly Title 50, Chapter 10, Idaho Code, as amended, and the Municipal Bond Law, Title 
57, Chapter 2, Idaho Code, as amended. 
 
 The Bonds shall be and shall have all the qualities and incidents of negotiable instruments 
under the laws of the State of Idaho, and each such successive holder, in accepting any of the 
Bonds or registered coupons, shall be conclusively deemed to have agreed that the Bonds shall 
be and have all of the qualities and incidents of negotiable instruments under the laws of the 
State of Idaho. 
 
 The Bonds are being issued for the purpose of providing funds to pay the cost of the 
construction and equipping of a new fire station, the acquisition of certain firefighting equipment 
and apparatus, and all other related costs, items and appurtenances necessary, useful and 
convenient for the betterment of the City’s fire safety facilities, as otherwise determined by the 
City. 
 
Section 2. Definitions. 
 

As used in this Ordinance, the following words shall have the following meanings:   
 
Bonds means the “City of Ketchum, Blaine County, State of Idaho, General Obligation 

Bonds, Series 2020,” herein authorized to be issued, sold, and delivered in the form of fully 
registered, general obligation bonds in the aggregate principal amount not to exceed 
$11,500,000.  

 
Bond Fund means the “City of Ketchum, Blaine County, State of Idaho, General 

Obligation Bonds, Series 2020, Bond Fund” referred to in Section 15 of this Ordinance. 
 
Bond Purchase Proposal means the proposal for the purchase of the Bonds from the City 

by the winning bidder for the Bonds. 
 

Bond Register means the registration books on which are maintained the names and 
addresses of the owners or nominees of the owners of the Bonds.   
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Bond Registrar means the bond registrar, transfer agent, and authenticating and paying 
agent appointed and designated in Section 7 of this Ordinance. 

 
Book Entry-Only System means the system of recordation of ownership of the Bonds on 

the books of the Depository pursuant to Section 3 of this Ordinance.  
 
Business Day means a day, other than a Saturday or Sunday, on which banks located in 

the State of Idaho are open for the purpose of conducting commercial banking business.  
 

City means the City of Ketchum, Blaine County, State of Idaho.  
 

City Clerk means the Clerk of the City, or other officer of the City who is the custodian 
of the seal of the City and of the records of the proceedings of the City, or his/her successor in 
functions, if any.   
 
 Continuing Disclosure Agreement means the Continuing Disclosure Agreement between 
the City and the Bond Registrar, Zions Bancorporation, National Association, as dissemination 
agent, dated the date of delivery of the Bonds, as originally executed and as may be amended 
from time to time in accordance with the terms thereof. 
 

Council means the City Council of the City.   
 

Mayor means the Mayor of the City, or his/her successor in functions, if any.   
 

Ordinance or Bond Ordinance means this Ordinance No. 1206, adopted on February 18, 
2020. 

 
Outstanding, when used with reference to the Bonds, as of any particular date, means 

Bonds, the principal of and interest on which have not been paid pursuant to this Ordinance or 
which have not been replaced pursuant to Section 7 of this Ordinance. 

 
 Project Construction Fund means the “City of Ketchum, Blaine County, State of Idaho, 
General Obligation Bonds, Series 2020, Project Construction Fund” referred to in Section 13 of 
this Ordinance.  
 

Registered Owner means the purchaser of the Bonds and any subsequent transferee or 
purchaser of the Bonds.   
 

Treasurer means the Treasurer of the City, or his/her successor in functions, if any.   
 
Section 3.  Description of Bonds; Book Entry.   
 
 A.   The Bonds shall be issued and sold in accordance with this Ordinance and a 

Notice of Sale and Official Statement hereinafter described and certain parameters and 
limitations as to principal amount, rate of interest, and maturity as set forth in Sections 9 
and 10 below.  Bonds shall be issued in an aggregate principal amount of up to 
$11,500,000 as serial bonds and, if the final successful Bond Purchase Proposal for the 
Bonds so indicates, as one or more maturities of term bonds.  The Bonds shall be in 
denominations of $5,000 each, or integral multiples thereof, shall be dated the date of 
delivery of the Bonds, shall be issued only in fully registered form, and shall be 
substantially in the form set forth in Exhibit “A” attached hereto and by this reference 
incorporated herein. The Bonds shall also include any such additional statements, 
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provisions, or requirements as may be necessary or appropriate as a consequence of 
obtaining bond insurance coverage, if any, for the Bonds.  The Bonds shall be numbered 
separately in a consecutive series, in the manner and with any additional designation as 
the Bond Registrar (hereinafter defined) deems necessary for the purposes of 
identification.  The Bonds shall mature or be subject to mandatory sinking fund 
redemption installments in the total amounts per year, on September 15, of each year with 
an initial maturity of September 15, 2021, and a final maturity not later than September 
15, 2044, as to be set forth in the Terms Certificate described in Section 9 hereof, and to 
conform with the final successful Bond Purchase Proposal for the Bonds with respect to 
any maturity of potential term bonds. 

  
 B. The Bonds shall be issued in Book-Entry-Only form in accordance with the 

Book-Entry-Only System and practices of the Depository Trust Company, New York, 
New York (the “Depository”), in the form of a single Bond for each maturity of the 
Bonds aggregating the entire proposed amount of the Bonds, substantially in the form of 
Exhibit “A” which is annexed hereto and by reference made a part hereof.  A single Bond 
for each maturity of Bonds shall be executed by the manual or facsimile signature of the 
Mayor, countersigned by the manual or facsimile signature of the City Treasurer, and 
attested by the manual or facsimile signature of the City Clerk, and authenticated by the 
Bond Registrar appointed in Section 7 hereof, and the Official Seal of the City or a 
facsimile thereof shall be impressed or reproduced thereon. The Bonds shall be registered 
in the name of Cede & Co., as nominee of the Depository, and shall be lodged with the 
Depository until maturity of the Bonds.  The City shall recognize the Depository, or its 
nominee, as the owner of the Bonds for all purposes.  Beneficial ownership interests in 
the principal amount of $5,000 or integral multiples thereof will be available through 
entries on the books of banks and broker-dealer participants (the “Participants”) which 
are related to the Book-Entry-Only System. 

 
 C. The City shall have no responsibility or obligation to any Participant or beneficial 

owner of any interest in the Bonds with respect to (i) the accuracy of the records of the 
Depository or its nominee with respect to any ownership interest in the Bonds, (ii) the 
delivery to any Participant or other person, other than the Depository or its nominee, of 
any notice with respect to the Bonds, or (iii) the payment to any Participant or other 
person, other than the Depository or its nominee, of any amount with respect to principal 
of or interest on the Bonds.  Payments by the City to the Depository or its nominee of the 
principal of and interest on the Bonds when due shall be valid and effective to fully 
satisfy and discharge the City’s obligations with respect to payment of the principal of 
and interest on the Bonds to the extent of the sums so paid.  No person other than the 
Depository or its nominee shall receive a Bond certificate evidencing the obligation of 
the City to make payments of principal and interest pursuant to this Ordinance. 

 
 D. To the extent an initial or any further Representation Letter may be necessary or 

appropriate, the standard Representation Letter of the Depository is hereby authorized, 
and the Mayor, City Treasurer, Director of Finance or other officer of the City shall 
execute and deliver such Representation Letter on behalf of the City as necessary.  The 
City’s execution and delivery of such Representation Letter shall not in any way limit the 
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provisions of Paragraph B of this Section 3 or in any other way impose upon the City any 
obligation whatsoever with respect to persons having interests in the Bonds other than the 
Depository or its nominee. 

 
 E. (i) The Depository may determine to discontinue providing its services with 

respect to the Bonds at any time by giving notice to the City and discharging its 
responsibilities with respect thereto under applicable law. 

 
  (ii) Zions Bancorporation, National Association, acting as the Bond Registrar 

(the “Bond Registrar”) in its sole discretion and without the consent of any other 
person, may terminate the services of the Depository with respect to the Bonds if 
it determines that: 

 
   (a) The Depository is unable to discharge its responsibilities with 

respect to the Bonds, or 
 
   (b) A continuation of the requirement that all of the outstanding Bonds 

be registered in the registration books kept by the Bond Registrar in the 
name of Cede & Co., or any other nominee of the Depository, is not in the 
best interest of the beneficial owners of the Bonds. 

 
  (iii) Upon the termination of the services of the Depository with respect to the 

Bonds pursuant to subsection E.(ii)(b) hereof, or upon the discontinuance or 
termination of the services of the Depository with respect to the Bonds pursuant 
to subsection E.(i) or subsection E.(ii)(a) hereof after which no substitute 
securities depository willing to undertake the functions of the Depository 
hereunder can be found which, in the opinion of the Bond Registrar, is willing and 
able to undertake such functions upon reasonable and customary terms, the Bond 
Registrar is obligated to deliver Bonds at the expense of the beneficial owners of 
the Bonds, as described in this Ordinance and the Bonds shall no longer be 
restricted to being registered in the registration books kept by the Bond Registrar 
in the name of Cede & Co. as nominee of the Depository, but may be required in 
whatever name or names the owner transferring or exchanging Bonds shall 
designate, in accordance with the provisions of this Ordinance. 

 
 F. Notwithstanding any other provision of this Ordinance to the contrary, so long as 

any Bond is registered in the name of Cede & Co., as nominee of the Depository, all 
payments with respect to principal or, premium, if any, and interest on such Bond and all 
notices with respect to such Bond shall be made and given, respectively, in the manner 
provided in the Representations Letter. 

 
Section 4.  Interest on Bonds.  The Bonds shall bear interest at a rate or rates as set forth in the 
bond purchase contract, or final acceptable bid form or purchase proposal, for the Bonds, which 
interest shall be payable commencing March 15, 2021, and semiannually thereafter on each 
March 15 and September 15 of each year after the first interest payment date, until the respective 
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maturity dates thereof.  Interest on the Bonds shall be calculated on the basis of a 360-day year 
consisting of twelve 30-day months. 
 
Section 5.  Payment of Bonds; Pledge of Full Faith and Credit.  The principal of the Bonds is 
payable in lawful money of the United States of America to the Registered Owners thereof, 
whose names and addresses shall appear on the registration records of the City (the “Bond 
Register”) maintained by the Bond Registrar designated in Section 7 hereof, upon presentation 
and surrender of the Bonds at the principal office of the Bond Registrar. 
 
 Payment of each installment of interest shall be made on the due date to the Registered 
Owner of each Bond, at his or her address appearing on the Bond Register on the first day of the 
calendar month of the interest payment date, or at such other address as may be furnished in 
writing by such Registered Owner to the Bond Registrar, and shall be paid by check or draft of 
the Bond Registrar mailed to such Registered Owner. 
 
 At least three (3) days prior to each interest or principal payment date for the Bonds, the 
City shall transfer to the Bond Registrar as Paying Agent an amount sufficient to pay the 
principal of and interest on the Bonds then due and payable, and the Paying Agent is hereby 
authorized and directed to apply such funds to said payment. 
 
 The full faith, credit and taxing power of the City are hereby irrevocably pledged to the 
payment of the principal of, redemption premium, if any, and interest on the Bonds when and as 
the same become due. A default on the Bonds shall not constitute a general obligation of Blaine 
County or the State of Idaho or any subdivision thereof other than the City. 
 
Section 6.  Execution of Bonds.  Without unreasonable delay following acceptance of the Bond 
Purchase Proposal, the City shall cause definitive bonds to be prepared, executed, and delivered, 
which Bonds shall be typewritten or printed without engraved or lithographed borders.  The 
Bonds shall be signed by the Mayor of the City, countersigned by the City Treasurer, and 
attested by the City Clerk (all of which signatures may be by facsimile), and the facsimile seal of 
the City may be imprinted or reproduced thereon.  The Bonds shall then be delivered to the Bond 
Registrar for authentication by the manual signature of an authorized officer thereof. 
 
 Until the definitive bonds are prepared, the City may, if deemed necessary by the Mayor, 
utilize a temporary Bond which shall be typewritten, and which shall be delivered to the 
purchaser of the Bonds in lieu of definitive bonds, subject to the same provisions, limitations, 
and conditions as the definitive bonds.  The temporary Bond shall be dated as of the date of the 
Bonds, shall be in the denomination of the aggregate amount of the Bonds, shall be numbered 
T-1, shall be substantially of the tenor of such definitive bonds, but with such omissions, 
insertions, and variations as may be appropriate to temporary Bonds, and shall be manually 
signed by the Mayor of the City, the City Treasurer and the City Clerk, and authenticated by the 
Bond Registrar, and shall have the seal of the City impressed thereon. 
 
 In case any of the officers who shall have signed, or countersigned, any of the Bonds 
shall cease to be such officer or officers of the City before the Bonds so signed or countersigned 
shall have been authenticated or delivered by the Bond Registrar, or issued by the City, such 
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Bonds may nevertheless be authenticated, delivered, and issued and, upon such authentication, 
delivery, and issue, shall be as binding upon the City as though those who signed and 
countersigned the same had continued to be such officers of the City.  Any Bond may also be 
signed and countersigned on behalf of the City by such persons as at the actual date of execution 
of such Bonds shall be the proper officers of the City although at the original date of such Bond 
any such person shall not have been such officer of the City. 
 
 Only such of the Bonds as shall bear thereon a certificate of authentication in the form set 
forth in Exhibit “A,” manually executed by the Bond Registrar, shall be valid or obligatory for 
any purpose or entitled to the benefits of this Ordinance, and such certificate of authentication 
shall be conclusive evidence that the Bonds so authenticated have been duly executed, 
authenticated, and delivered hereunder and are entitled to the benefits of this Ordinance. 
 
Section 7.  Bond Registrar and Paying Agent.  Zions Bancorporation, National Association, 
Boise, Idaho, is hereby appointed as bond registrar, transfer agent, and authenticating and paying 
agent, and is herein referred to as the “Bond Registrar.”  The Bond Registrar shall keep, or cause 
to be kept, at its corporate trust office sufficient books for the registration and transfer of the 
Bonds which shall, at all times, be open to inspection by the City.  The Bond Registrar shall do 
all things authorized by the Idaho Registered Public Obligations Act, Chapter 9, Title 57, Idaho 
Code, as amended.  The Bond Registrar is authorized, on behalf of the City, to authenticate and 
deliver the Bonds transferred or exchanged in accordance with the provisions of such Bonds and 
this Ordinance and to carry out all of the Bond Registrar’s powers and duties under this 
Ordinance. For purposes of said Registered Public Obligations Act, this Ordinance shall 
constitute a “system of registration” within the meaning, and for all purposes, of said Act. 
 
 The Bond Registrar shall be responsible for its representations contained in the 
Certificate of Authentication on the Bonds.  The Bond Registrar may become the owner of the 
Bonds with the same rights as it would have if it were not the Bond Registrar. 
 
 The Bonds may be transferred only upon the books for the registration and transfer of 
Bonds, upon the surrender thereof at the principal office of the Bond Registrar, together with a 
form of transfer duly executed by the Registered Owner or his attorney duly authorized in 
writing, substantially in the form set forth in the form of Bond referred to in Section 6 hereof.  
Upon the transfer of any Bond, there shall be issued in the name of the transferee or transferees a 
new fully registered Bond or Bonds of the same aggregate principal amount as the surrendered 
Bond.  The new Bond or Bonds shall bear the same date as the date of the surrendered Bond, but 
shall bear interest from the immediately preceding interest payment date to which interest has 
been paid or duly provided for.  The Bond Registrar shall require the payment by the Registered 
Owner requesting such transfer of any tax or other governmental charge required to be paid with 
respect to such transfer. 
 
 The Bond Registrar shall not be required to exchange or transfer any Bond within fifteen 
(15) days of an interest payment date or, in the case of any redemption of Bonds, during the 
period from the record date specified by the Bond Registrar in the notice of redemption to the 
date of redemption. 
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Section 8.  Redemption; Notice of Redemption.  Bonds maturing by their terms on or before 
September 15, 2029, shall not be subject to call and redemption prior to their fixed maturity date. 
 The City reserves the right to redeem any or all of the Bonds maturing by their terms on or after 
September 15, 2030, in advance of maturity on March 15, 2030, or on any date thereafter, in 
whole or in part, at the redemption price of par plus accrued interest to the date of redemption, 
from such maturities or parts thereof as shall be directed by the City and by lot within each 
maturity.   
 
 To the extent that and if any of the Bonds are issued as one or more maturities of term 
Bonds, said term Bonds will mature and be subject to mandatory sinking fund redemption in 
such installment amounts and on such dates as described on the final principal payment schedule 
for the Bonds and as will conform and correspond with the final successful Bond Purchase 
Proposal for the Bonds, and as or will be set forth in any further resolution or ordinance of the 
City awarding and accepting the final successful Bond Purchase Proposal. 

 
For so long as the Bonds are in book-entry only form, if fewer than all of the Bonds of a 

maturity are called for redemption, the selection of Bonds within a maturity to be redeemed shall 
be made by the Depository in accordance with its operational procedures then in effect.  If the 
Bonds are no longer held in book-entry only form, then the City shall select Bonds for 
redemption by lot in multiples of $5,000 within each maturity. 

 
Notice of redemption shall be given by the Bond Registrar by first class mail, postage 

prepaid, not less than (30) nor more than sixty (60) days prior to the redemption date, to the 
Depository, and to the owner, as of the 15th day prior to mailing the notice of redemption (the 
“Record Date”), of each Bond which is subject to redemption, at the address of such Registered 
Owner as it appears in the registration books of the City kept by the Bond Registrar, or at such 
other address as is furnished the Bond Registrar, in writing by such registered owner on or prior 
to the Record Date.  Notice shall also be given by first-class mail to the fiscal agent of the City, if 
any, and to the Paying Agent, if other than the Bond Registrar, and to each nationally recognized 
municipal securities information repository (NRMSIR), in accordance with the Continuing 
Disclosure Agreement referenced in Section 19 hereof.  Each notice of redemption shall state the 
name of the Bonds, the Record Date, the redemption date, the place of the redemption, the 
principal amount and, if less than all, the distinctive numbers of the Bonds or portions of the 
Bonds to be redeemed, and shall also state that the interest on the Bonds designated for 
redemption in such notice shall cease to accrue from and after such redemption date and that on 
said date there will become due and payable on each of said Bonds the principal thereof, interest 
accrued thereon to the redemption date, and premium, if any. 

 
Each notice of redemption may further state that such redemption shall be conditional 

upon the Bond Registrar receiving for deposit into the Bond Fund created below, on or prior to 
the date fixed for redemption, moneys authorized by the City to be deposited in the Bond Fund 
that are sufficient to pay the principal of and interest and redemption premium, if any, on the 
Bonds to be redeemed and that if such moneys shall not have been so received the notice shall be 
of no force or effect and the City shall not be required to redeem such Bonds.  If such a condition 
is included in the notice of redemption, then a notice stating sufficient moneys were not 
deposited and that no redemption occurred on that date shall be sent within a reasonable time 
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thereafter, in like manner, to the registered owner of each Bond which was sent the notice of 
redemption. 

 
If notice of redemption shall have been given as described above and the foregoing 

conditions, if any, shall have been met, the Bonds or portions thereof specified in said notice 
shall become due and payable at the applicable redemption price on the redemption date therein 
designated, and if, on the redemption date, moneys for the payment of the redemption price of all 
the Bonds to be redeemed, together with interest to the redemption date, shall be available for 
such payment on said date, then from and after the redemption date interest on such Bonds shall 
cease to accrue and become payable.  

 
Any notice mailed as described above shall be conclusively presumed to have been duly 

given, whether or not the Registered Owner received such notice.  Failure to give such notice or 
any defect therein with respect to any Bonds shall not affect the validity of proceedings for 
redemption with respect to any other Bonds for which notice has been properly given. 

 
If less than all of the Bonds of any maturity are to be so redeemed, and if under the 

provisions of this Ordinance the City is to select and determine the Bonds for redemption by lot, 
then the City hereby authorizes and directs that the particular Bonds or portion of Bonds to be 
redeemed shall be selected at random by the Bond Registrar in such manner as the Bond 
Registrar in its discretion may deem fair and appropriate.  The portion of any registered Bond of 
a denomination of more than $5,000 to be redeemed will be in the principal amount of $5,000 or 
a natural multiple thereof, and in selecting portions of such Bonds for redemption the Bond 
Registrar will treat each such Bond as representing that number of Bonds of $5,000 
denomination which is obtained by dividing the principal amount of such Bond by $5,000. 

 
No defect in such further notice nor any failure to give all or any portion of such notice 

shall in any manner affect the validity of a call for redemption if the notice referenced in the 
preceding paragraphs is given as described above.  
 
Section 9.  Sale of Bonds.   The Bonds shall be sold at public sale on March 4, 2020.  
Competitive purchase proposals may be submitted not later than 9:30 a.m. Mountain Standard 
Time (M.S.T.) on date of sale, to the City through the City’s Municipal Advisor, Zions Public 
Finance, Inc. (the “Municipal Advisor”), in accordance with and all as more fully set forth in the 
Notice of Sale described below in Section 10.  All proposals will then be acted upon by the City 
through its Mayor and/or Director of Finance as soon as possible on such date, and by no later 
than 9:30 a.m. M.S.T. on the next date, March 5, 2020, as provided in the Notice of Sale.  

Pursuant to Section 57-235, Idaho Code, as amended, the Council hereby delegates to the 
Mayor and the Director of Finance, each with the authority to act alone (hereinafter each referred 
to as the “Delegated Officer”), the power to make the following determinations on the date of 
sale of the Bonds, without any requirement that the Council meet to approve such 
determinations, but subject to the limitations provided: 

i. The price at which the Bonds will be sold, which shall not be less than par.  
 
ii. The true interest cost for the Bonds, which shall not exceed 4.00% per annum. 
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iii. The par amount of the Bonds, which shall not exceed $11,500,000. 

iv. The final maturity date of the Bond, which shall not exceed twenty-five (25) years 
from the date of its issuance. 

v. The amount of principal of the Bonds maturing in any particular year, and the rate 
of interest accruing thereon.  

 
vi. The amount of proceeds of the Bonds to be deposited into the Costs of Issuance 
Fund. 
 
vii. The amount of proceeds of the Bonds to be deposited into the Project 
Construction Fund.  
 
Upon acceptance of the winning bond purchase proposal (the “Bond Purchase Proposal”), 

on or before the issuance of the Bonds the Delegated Officer shall execute a Terms Certificate 
substantially in the form attached hereto as Exhibit “D” reflecting the final terms and provisions 
of the Bonds and certifying that the final terms and provisions of the Bonds are consistent with, 
not in excess of and no less favorable than the terms set forth above, and the Mayor and the 
Director of Finance and other officers at the City may execute and deliver any and all documents 
needed to carry out the accepted Bond Purchase Proposal.  
 
Section 10.  Notice of Sale and Official Statement.  The Notice of Sale, in substantially the 
form as set forth in the preliminary form of the Official Statement (“Preliminary Official 
Statement”) submitted to the City and substantially as attached hereto as Exhibit “B” and by this 
reference incorporated herein,  is hereby approved.  The Director of Finance or any other officer 
of the City is hereby directed to execute the Notice of Sale on behalf of the City, and to call for 
proposals or bids for the sale and purchase of the Bonds, all in the manner more particularly set 
forth in the Notice of Sale.  The Council, in the exercise of its sound discretion, hereby 
determines that the system of electronic bidding set forth in the Notice of Sale and the good faith 
deposit requirements therein, if any, are fair to all potential bidders and may produce the lowest 
effective interest rate for the sale and purchase of the Bonds.  The abbreviated summary version 
of the complete Notice of Sale published in the Idaho Mountain Express, the official newspaper 
of the City, on February 12, 2020, is hereby ratified and approved and such summarized Notice 
of Sale shall be published at least once each week for three (3) consecutive weeks, with the first 
such publication being at least twenty-one (21) full days prior to the date of sale.  In addition, the 
Notice of Sale shall be posted electronically through i-Deal LLC and shall be distributed to 
potential bidders by the Municipal Advisor as further described below. 
 

The Preliminary Official Statement has been prepared by the City’s Municipal Advisor 
and submitted to the City.  The Municipal Advisor is authorized and directed to cause the Notice 
of Sale and the Preliminary Official Statement pertaining to the sale of the Bonds, to be 
distributed to such municipal bond broker-dealers, such banking institutions, and to such other 
persons, as may be interested in purchasing the Bonds herein offered for sale.  The Director of 
Finance is authorized to certify on behalf of the City that the Preliminary Official Statement is 
deemed final as of its date, within the meaning of Rule 15c2-12 promulgated under the Securities 
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Exchange Act of 1934 (except for the omission of certain pricing, rating and related information 
as permitted by the Rule). 
 
Section 11.  Delivery of Bonds; Application of Proceeds.  The Director of Finance, Mayor, and 
the Clerk of the City are hereby instructed to make delivery of the Bonds to the purchaser of the 
Bonds under the DTC Fast Automated Securities Transfer System and to receive payment 
therefor in accordance with the terms of the Bond Purchase Proposal and to deposit the proceeds 
of sale as follows:  

A. A portion of the proceeds of sale of the Bonds described in the Tax Certificate 
(hereinafter defined) shall be deposited in the Cost of Issuance Fund and utilized as 
provided in Section 12 hereof; and 
 
B. Proceeds of sale of the Bonds in the amount described in the Tax Certificate 
(hereinafter defined) shall be deposited into the Project Construction Fund and utilized as 
provided in Section 13 hereof.  

 
Section 12.  Cost of Issuance Fund.  There is hereby created a cost of issuance fund (the “Cost 
of Issuance Fund”) which is to be held by the Bond Registrar.  Pursuant to Section 11, a portion 
of the proceeds of the Bonds shall be deposited to the Cost of Issuance Fund with the Bond 
Registrar, and used to pay costs of issuance of the Bonds as directed upon a written certificate of 
the City.  Not later than August 1, 2020, any balance in the Cost of Issuance Fund shall be 
transferred to the Bond Fund held by the City, and the Cost of Issuance Fund shall thereafter be 
closed and terminated. 
 
Section 13.  Project Construction Fund.  There is hereby created and shall be maintained in the 
office of the Treasurer of the City, a fund and account separate and distinct from all other funds 
of the City, to be known as the “City of Ketchum, Blaine County, State of Idaho, General 
Obligation Bonds, Series 2020, Project Construction Fund” (the “Project Construction Fund”), or 
such other designation conforming to banking requirements and good accounting practices, into 
which shall be deposited all of the proceeds of the sale of the Bonds, except for any costs of 
issuing the Bonds deposited into the Cost of Issuance Fund or otherwise paid on the date of 
closing and except for accrued interest on the Bonds, if any, which accrued interest on the Bonds 
shall be deposited into the Bond Fund, hereinafter created. Investment earnings on moneys 
deposited and held in the Project Construction Fund and Bond Fund will remain in each such 
respective fund and be used as set forth in this Ordinance. The Bond proceeds in the Project 
Construction Fund may be used to pay for costs of issuing the Bonds and the costs of the capital 
improvements heretofore authorized. In the event there are funds remaining in said Project 
Construction Fund after all expenditures for improvements as set forth hereinabove, any surplus 
funds shall then be deposited into the Bond Fund and used for the payment of principal of and 
interest on the outstanding Bonds as the same shall accrue. 
 
Section 14.  Tax Levy.  The Bonds are general obligation bonds of the City, and as such the full 
faith and credit of the City are hereby pledged for their payment. The officers now or hereafter 
charged by law with the duty of levying taxes for the payment of said Bonds and interest thereon 
shall, in the manner provided by law, make annual levies unlimited as to rate or amount upon all 
of the taxable property within said City sufficient in amount to meet the annual payments of 
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Bond principal and the semi-annual payments of interest maturing and accruing as set forth in 
Sections 3 and 4 hereinabove. Such taxes when collected shall be placed in the Bond Fund 
(hereinafter defined) and shall be used for no other purpose than for the payment of the principal 
and interest on the Bonds, so long as any of the Bonds remain outstanding and unpaid, but 
nothing herein shall be construed to prevent the City from paying the interest on or principal of 
the Bonds from any other funds available for that purpose, or to prevent the City from levying 
any further or additional taxes which may be necessary fully to pay the interest on or principal of 
the Bonds.  Principal or interest falling due at any time when the proceeds of ad valorem tax 
levies may not be available shall be paid from other funds of the City and may be reimbursed 
from the proceeds of such taxes when collected. 
 
Section 15.  General Obligation Bonds Bond Fund.  The proceeds of taxes levied without 
limitation as to rate or amount to pay the principal of and interest on the Bonds, as set forth 
above, shall be kept by the Treasurer of the City in a special fund, which is hereby created, 
separate and apart from all other funds, and which is hereby designated “City of Ketchum, 
Blaine County, State of Idaho, General Obligation Bonds, Series 2020, Bond Fund” (the “Bond 
Fund”), or such other designation conforming to banking requirements and good accounting 
practices, which Bond Fund shall be used for no other purpose than the payment of the principal 
of and interest on the Bonds as the same fall due.  Said Bond Fund shall be maintained by said 
Treasurer until the principal of and interest on said Bonds have been paid in full.  Monies held in 
the Bond Fund and any other fund for the Bonds shall be invested only in securities permitted 
under Idaho Code Section 50-1013, as amended.  Any monies remaining in any fund for the 
Bonds after discharge or defeasance of the Bonds shall be applied as directed by the City.   
 
Section 16.  Non-Arbitrage.  The proceeds of the sale of Bonds shall not be used directly or 
indirectly to acquire any securities or obligations, the acquisition of which would cause any of 
the Bonds to be arbitrage bonds, within the meaning of Sections 103 or 148 of the Internal 
Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the “Code”), and a certificate stating that the Bonds are not 
arbitrage bonds within the meaning of said Sections 103 or 148 shall be provided to the 
purchaser at the time of delivery of the Bonds.  The City covenants to and for the benefit of the 
holders of the Bonds from time to time that no use will be made of the proceeds of the issue and 
sale of the Bonds or any other funds or accounts of the City which might be deemed to be 
available proceeds of the Bonds pursuant to the provisions of Section 148 of the Code, and the 
applicable regulations, which, if such use had been reasonably expected on the date of delivery 
of and payment for the Bonds, would cause the Bonds to be “arbitrage bonds” within the 
meaning of Section 148 of the Code.  Pursuant to such covenant, the City obligates itself to 
comply throughout the term of the issue of the Bonds with the requirements of Section 148 of the 
Code, and any regulations promulgated thereunder.  In addition, at closing and delivery of the 
Bonds the City shall execute a Tax Certificate stating that it will expend the proceeds of the 
Bonds in a manner that will comply with applicable Sections of the Code and that the Bonds will 
otherwise comply with the Code.  The City shall comply with all provisions of said Tax 
Certificate. 
 
Section 17.  Defeasance. In the event that money and/or government obligations, maturing or 
having guaranteed redemption prices at the option of the owner at such time or times and bearing 
interest to be earned thereon in such amounts as are sufficient (together with any resulting cash 

94



 

 
 
BOND ORDINANCE - PAGE 13 

balances) to redeem and retire part or all of the Bonds in accordance with their terms, are 
hereafter irrevocably set aside in a special account in accordance with Section 57-504, Idaho 
Code, as amended and pledged to effect such redemption and retirement, then no further 
payments need be made into the Bond Fund for the payment of the principal of and interest on 
such Bonds so provided for, and such Bonds and interest accrued thereon shall then cease to be 
entitled to any lien, benefit, or security of this Ordinance, except the right to receive the funds so 
set aside and pledged, and such Bonds and interest accrued thereon shall no longer be deemed to 
be outstanding hereunder. 
 
Section 18.  Post Issuance Tax Compliance Procedures.  The City hereby adopts and agrees to 
follow the Post Issuance Tax Compliance Procedures set forth in Exhibit “C” attached hereto.  
 
Section 19. Rule 15c2-12 and Continuing Disclosure Covenants.  The City hereby 
covenants to comply with any applicable requirements of Securities and Exchange Commission 
Rule 15c2-12 (the “Rule”) with respect to any official statement and/or continuing financial 
disclosure with respect to the Bonds including without limitation the execution of a Continuing 
Disclosure Agreement for the Bonds.  The City further approves the form of Continuing 
Disclosure Agreement between the City and the Bond Registrar (the “Continuing Disclosure 
Agreement”) in substantially the form presented to the Council at this meeting, and further 
authorizes the Mayor, City Clerk, City Treasurer, Director of Finance or other officer of the City 
to execute the Continuing Disclosure Agreement.  The City hereby authorizes the Director of 
Finance to “deem final” the Preliminary Official Statement, as presented to the Council, for 
purposes of Rule 15c2-12(b)(1) and agrees that a final Official Statement will be furnished to the 
Purchaser of the Bonds within seven (7) business days after the sale of the Bonds referenced in 
Section 9 above. 
 
Section 20.  Severability.  If any sentence, phrase, paragraph, section, or subsection of this 
Ordinance shall be declared by any court of competent jurisdiction to be contrary to law, then the 
same shall be deemed separable from the remainder of this Ordinance and shall in no way affect 
the validity of the other provisions of, or of any bonds issued pursuant to, this Ordinance. 
 
Section 21.  Effective Date.  This Ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after its 
passage, approval and the publication thereof in full or by summary, as provided by law, and the 
second and third readings hereof have been duly and properly waived by the City Council. 
 
Section 22.  Ordinance A Contract.  The provisions of this Ordinance shall constitute a 
contract between the City and the Registered Owner so long as the Bonds hereby authorized 
remains unpaid.  
 
Section 23.  Repealer.  All prior ordinances or parts thereof, to the extent inconsistent herewith, 
are hereby repealed and shall, to the extent of such inconsistency, have no further force or effect.   
 
Section 24.  Authorization.  The Mayor, Director of Finance, City Clerk, and City Treasurer, or 
any one of such officers, as may be appropriate to the circumstances, are hereby authorized to 
execute, on behalf of the City, the Bonds and all such additional documents as may be necessary 
to effect the sale and delivery of the Bonds. 
 
Section 25.  Publication.  This Ordinance, or a summary thereof in compliance with Section 50-
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901A, Idaho Code, shall be published once in the official newspaper of the City, and shall take 
effect immediately upon passage, approval, and publication.  
 

[Remainder of Page Intentionally Left Blank] 

96



 

 
 
BOND ORDINANCE - PAGE 15 

 
 PASSED by the City Council of the City of Ketchum, Blaine County, Idaho, this 18th 
day of February, 2020. 
 
 APPROVED by the Mayor of the City of Ketchum, Blaine County, Idaho, this 18th day 
of February, 2020. 
 

CITY OF KETCHUM, IDAHO 
 
 (SEAL)      
 
 
       By:       
        Mayor 
 
Attest:  
 
 
           
City Clerk 
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 I, the undersigned, the Clerk of the City of Ketchum, Blaine County, Idaho, hereby 
certify that the foregoing Ordinance is a full, true, and correct copy of an Ordinance duly passed 
and adopted at a meeting of the Council of the City, duly held at the meeting place thereof on 
February 18, 2020, of which meeting all members of said Council had due notice, and at which a 
majority thereof were present; and that at said meeting said Ordinance was adopted by the 
following vote: 
 

   AYES  
   NOES 
   ABSENT 
   ABSTAIN 

 
 I further certify that I have carefully compared the same with the original Ordinance on 
file, and of record in my office; that said Ordinance is a full, true, and correct copy of the original 
Ordinance adopted at said meeting, and that said Ordinance has not been amended, modified, or 
rescinded since the date of its adoption, and is now in full force and effect. 
 
 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have set my hand and affixed the official seal of said City 
on February 18, 2020. 
 
       
 
 ( S E A L )      
 
              
       Clerk 
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EXHIBIT “A” 
 
 UNITED STATES OF AMERICA 
 STATE OF IDAHO 
  
 
Registered No. R-___ $_____________ 
 
 
  Unless this certificate is presented by an authorized representative of The 

Depository Trust Company, a New York corporation (“DTC”), to the City 
(defined below) or its agent for registration of transfer, exchange, or payment, and 
any certificate issued is registered in the name of Cede & Co. or such other name 
as is requested by an authorized representative of DTC (and any payment is made 
to Cede & Co. or to such other entity as is requested by an authorized 
representative of DTC), ANY TRANSFER, PLEDGE OR OTHER USE 
HEREOF FOR VALUE OR OTHERWISE BY OR TO ANY PERSON IS 
WRONGFUL inasmuch as the registered owner hereof, Cede & Co., has an 
interest herein. 

 
 
 CITY OF KETCHUM 

BLAINE COUNTY, STATE OF IDAHO 
 GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS, SERIES 2020 
 

DATED DATE INTEREST RATE MATURITY DATE CUSIP 

March __, 2020  _____%  September 15, 
20____  

 ____ 

 
REGISTERED OWNER: * * * CEDE & CO.* * * 

 
PRINCIPAL AMOUNT: ***________________________*** 
 
 
 KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS: That the City of Ketchum, Blaine County, 
Idaho (the “City”), for value received, hereby acknowledges itself indebted and promises to pay 
pursuant to the provisions of Ordinance No. 1206 of the City adopted on February 18, 2020 (the 
“Bond Ordinance”) providing for the sale and issuance of the City’s General Obligation Bonds, 
Series 2020 (the “Bonds”), to the above specified Registered Owner or registered assigns, on the 
maturity date specified above (the “Maturity Date”), the principal amount set forth above and to 
pay interest thereon from the above Dated Date, or the most recent date to which interest has 
been paid or duly provided for, at the rate specified above, payable on March 15, 2021, and 
semi-annually thereafter on each March 15 and September 15 of each year until the Maturity 
Date or prior redemption of this Bond. 
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 Both principal of and interest on this Bond are payable in lawful money of the United 
States of America to the Registered Owner hereof whose name and address appear on the 
registration books of the City (the “Bond Register”) maintained by the Bond Registrar, which 
shall be Zions Bancorporation, National Association, Boise, Idaho.  Interest shall be paid by 
mailing a check or draft of the Bond Registrar on the due date to the Registered Owner at the 
address shown on the Bond Register on the first day of the calendar month of the interest 
payment date, or at such other address as may be furnished in writing by such registered owner 
to the Bond Registrar. Principal shall be paid to the Registered Owner upon presentation and 
surrender of this Bond on or after the Maturity Date or prior redemption at the principal office of 
the Bond Registrar. 
 
 The full faith and credit of the City are hereby pledged for the due and punctual payment 
of the principal hereof and interest hereon, and provision has been made in the statutory manner 
under the Bond Ordinance for the levy and collection of taxes sufficient to pay the interest on 
this Bond as the same becomes due and for the payment of the principal hereof at the Maturity 
Date of this Bond. 
 
 This Bond is one of a duly authorized issue of Bonds of like date, tenor, and effect, 
except for variations required to state numbers, denomination, rates of interest, and dates of 
maturity, aggregating $___________ in principal amount, and is issued pursuant to and in full 
compliance with the Constitution and statutes of the State of Idaho, particularly Title 50, Chapter 
10, and Title 57, Chapter 2, Idaho Code, as amended, and proceedings duly adopted and 
authorized by the City Council, more particularly the Bond Ordinance, and also pursuant to the 
legal authorization of a special bond election conducted within said City on November 5, 2019. 
 
 Bonds maturing by their terms on or before September 15, 2029, shall not be subject to 
call or redemption prior to their fixed maturity date.  The City hereby reserves the right to 
redeem any or all of the Bonds maturing by their terms on or after September 15, 2030, in 
advance of maturity, on March 15, 2030, or on any date thereafter, in whole or in part, in the 
order of maturity selected as provided in the Bond Ordinance, either by DTC, or by the City and 
by lot in multiples of $5,000 within any maturity, at the redemption price of par, plus accrued 
interest to the date of redemption; provided, however, that notice of any intended redemption 
shall be given not less than thirty (30) nor more than sixty (60) days prior to the redemption date 
by first class mail, postage prepaid, to DTC and to the registered owner of any Bond to be 
redeemed at the address appearing on the Bond Register, and by mailing a copy of the 
redemption notice to registered securities depositories and others as provided in the Bond 
Ordinance. The requirements of the Bond Ordinance shall be deemed to be complied with when 
notice is mailed as therein provided, regardless of whether or not it is actually received by the 
owner of such Bond. Interest on all of such Bonds so called for redemption shall cease to accrue 
on the date fixed for redemption unless such Bond or Bonds so called for redemption are not 
redeemed upon presentation made pursuant to such call. 
 
 This Bond and the Bonds of this issue are issued for the purpose of providing funds to 
pay the cost of the acquisition, construction, improvement and equipment of new animal shelter 
and related facilities for the City, together with other capital items and related improvements and 
costs, as more fully described in the Bond Ordinance. 
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 This Bond and the Bonds of this issue are general obligations of the City and the full faith 
and credit of the City have been pledged for the prompt payment of the principal of and interest 
on this Bond.  The City has covenanted in the Bond Ordinance to make annual levies of taxes on 
all taxable property in the City without limitation as to rate or amount to pay the principal of and 
interest on this Bond.  The proceeds of said taxes shall be kept by the Treasurer of the City in the 
City of Ketchum, Blaine County, State of Idaho, General Obligation Bonds, Series 2020, Bond 
Fund (the “Bond Fund”) separate and apart from all other funds of the City.  For a more 
particular description of said Bond Fund, the revenues to be deposited therein, and the nature and 
extent of the security afforded thereby, reference is made to the provisions of the Bond 
Ordinance pursuant to which this Bond is issued and such Bond Fund will be maintained. 
 
 Bonds are interchangeable for Bonds of any authorized denomination of equal aggregate 
principal amount and of the same interest rate and maturity, upon presentation and surrender to 
the Bond Registrar. 
 
 Reference is hereby made to the Bond Ordinance for the covenants and declarations of 
the City and other terms and conditions under which this and the Bonds of this issue have been 
issued. 
 
 THIS BOND SHALL NOT BE VALID OR BECOME OBLIGATORY FOR ANY 
PURPOSE OR BE ENTITLED TO ANY SECURITY OR BENEFIT UNDER THE BOND 
ORDINANCE UNTIL THE CERTIFICATE OF AUTHENTICATION HEREON SHALL 
HAVE BEEN MANUALLY SIGNED BY THE BOND REGISTRAR. 
 
 IT IS HEREBY CERTIFIED AND DECLARED that all acts, conditions, and things 
required by the Constitution and statutes of the State of Idaho to exist, to have happened, been 
done, and performed precedent to and in the issuance of this Bond have happened, been done, 
and performed, and that the issuance of this Bond and the Bonds of this issue does not violate 
any Constitutional, statutory, or other limitation upon the amount of bonded indebtedness that 
the City may incur.   
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 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the City by its duly constituted City Council has caused this 
Bond to be executed by the facsimile or manual signature of the Mayor, countersigned by the 
facsimile or manual signature of the City Treasurer and attested by the facsimile or manual 
signature of the City Clerk, and a facsimile of the seal of the City to be reproduced hereon, as of 
this ____ day of March, 2020. 
 

CITY OF KETCHUM, IDAHO 
 
 
      By: (Facsimile or Manual Signature)  
       Mayor 
 
 
      By: (Facsimile or Manual Signature)  
       City Treasurer 
 
 
Attest: 
 
 
By: (Facsimile or Manual Signature)   ( FACSIMILE SEAL ) 
 City Clerk 
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CERTIFICATE OF AUTHENTICATION 
 
 
 This Bond is one of the City of Ketchum, Blaine County, State of Idaho, General 
Obligation Bonds, Series 2020, dated as of March __, 2020, described in the within-mentioned 
Bond Ordinance. 
 
Date of Authentication:  March ___, 2020. 
 

ZIONS BANCORPORATION, NATIONAL 
ASSOCIATION, as Bond Registrar 

 
       
      By:  (Manual Signature)    
       Authorized Officer, Zions Bank Division 
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 LEGAL OPINION 
 
 
 IT IS HEREBY CERTIFIED that a true and complete copy of the legal opinion of 
Skinner Fawcett LLP, of Boise, Idaho, which opinion was dated the date of delivery of and 
payment for the Bonds described therein, was delivered to me on said date, and is a part of the 
permanent records of the City. 
 

CITY OF KETCHUM, IDAHO 
 
       
      By: (Facsimile or Manual Signature)  
       City Clerk 
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* * * * * * * * * * * * * 

 
 
The following abbreviations, when used in the inscription on the face of this Bond, shall 

be construed as though they were written out in full according to applicable laws or regulations: 
 
 TEN COM - - as tenants in common 
 
 TEN ENT - - as tenants by the entireties 
 
 JT TEN  - -  as joint tenants with right of survivorship and not as tenants in 

common 
 
 UNIF TRFS MIN ACT . . . . .  . . Custodian . . . . . . . . .  
    (Cust)   (Minor) 
 
 under Uniform Transfer to Minors Act . . . . . . . . .  
       (State) 
 
 Additional abbreviations may also be used although not in the above list. 
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 ASSIGNMENT 
 
 
 FOR VALUE RECEIVED, the undersigned hereby sells, assigns and transfers unto 
 
Name of Transferee:            
 
Address:             
 
              
 
              
 
Tax Identification No.       
 
the within Bond and hereby irrevocably constitutes and appoints 
              
              
 
to transfer said Bond on the books kept for registration thereof, with full power of substitution in 
the premises. 
 
Dated:     . 
 
 
              
      Registered Owner 
 

     NOTE: The signature on this Assignment must correspond 
with the name of the registered owner as it appears 
upon the face of the within Bond in every 
particular, without alteration or enlargement or any 
change whatever. 

 
SIGNATURE GUARANTEED: 
 
 
_____________________________________ 
NOTICE: The signature(s) should be 
guaranteed by an eligible guarantor 
institution, (banks, stockbrokers, savings and 
loan associations and credit unions with 
membership in an approved signature 
medallion program), pursuant to S.E.C. Rule 
17Ad-15. 
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 EXHIBIT “B” 
 

FORM OF NOTICE OF SALE  
 

(attached) 
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 EXHIBIT “C” 
 

FORM OF POST ISSUANCE TAX COMPLIANCE PROCEDURES 
 

City of Ketchum 
Post-Issuance Tax Compliance Procedures 

For Tax-Exempt Bonds 
 

February 18, 2020 
 
The purpose of these Post-Issuance Tax Compliance Procedures is to establish policies and 
procedures in connection with tax-exempt bonds (“Bonds”) issued by the City of Ketchum (the 
“City”) so as to ensure that the City complies with all applicable post-issuance requirements of 
federal income tax law needed to preserve the tax-exempt status of the Bonds. 
 
General 
  
Ultimate responsibility for all matters relating to City financings and refinancings rests with the 
Director of Finance (the “Director of Finance”). 
 
Post-Issuance Compliance Requirements 
 
 External Advisors / Documentation 
 
The Director of Finance and other appropriate City personnel shall consult with bond counsel 
and other legal counsel and advisors, as needed, throughout the Bond issuance process to identify 
requirements and to establish procedures necessary or appropriate so that the Bonds will 
continue to qualify for the appropriate tax status.  Those requirements and procedures shall be 
documented in a City ordinance(s), resolution(s), Tax Certificate(s) and / or other documents 
finalized at or before issuance of the Bonds. Those requirements and procedures shall include 
future compliance with applicable arbitrage rebate requirements and all other applicable post-
issuance requirements of federal tax law throughout (and in some cases beyond) the term of the 
Bonds. 
 
The Director of Finance and other appropriate City personnel also shall consult with bond 
counsel and other legal counsel and advisors, as needed, following issuance of the Bonds to 
ensure that all applicable post-issuance requirements in fact are met.  This shall include, without 
limitation, consultation in connection with future contracts with respect to the use of Bond-
financed assets and future contracts with respect to the use of output or throughput of Bond-
financed assets. 
 
Whenever necessary or appropriate, the City shall engage expert advisors (each a “Rebate 
Service Provider”) to assist in the calculation of arbitrage rebate payable in respect of the 
investment of Bond proceeds. 
  
 Role of the City as Bond Issuer 
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Unless otherwise provided by City ordinances or resolutions, unexpended Bond proceeds shall 
be held by the City, and the investment of Bond proceeds shall be managed by the Director of 
Finance.  The Director of Finance shall maintain records and shall prepare regular, periodic 
statements to the City regarding the investments and transactions involving Bond proceeds. 
 
If a City ordinance or resolution provides for Bond proceeds to be administered by a trustee, the 
trustee shall provide regular, periodic (monthly) statements regarding the investments and 
transactions involving Bond proceeds. 
 
 Arbitrage Rebate and Yield 
 
Unless a Tax Certificate documents that bond counsel has advised that arbitrage rebate will not 
be applicable to an issue of Bonds: 
 
• the City shall engage the services of a Rebate Service Provider, and the City or the Bond 
trustee shall deliver periodic statements concerning the investment of Bond proceeds to the 
Rebate Service Provider on a prompt basis; 
 
• upon request, the Director of Finance and other appropriate City personnel shall provide 
to the Rebate Service Provider additional documents and information reasonably requested by 
the Rebate Service Provider; 
 
• the Director of Finance and other appropriate City personnel shall monitor efforts of the 
Rebate Service Provider and assure payment of required rebate amounts, if any, no later than 60 
days after each 5-year anniversary of the issue date of the Bonds, and no later than 60 days after 
the last Bond of each issue is redeemed; and 
 
• during the construction period of each capital project financed in whole or in part by 
Bonds, the Director of Finance and other appropriate City personnel shall monitor the investment 
and expenditure of Bond proceeds and shall consult with the Rebate Service Provider to 
determine compliance with any applicable exceptions from the arbitrage rebate requirements 
during each 6-month spending period up to 6 months, 18 months or 24 months, as applicable, 
following the issue date of the Bonds. 
 
For working capital financings, the City shall follow procedures set forth in the applicable Tax 
Certificate and/or instructions delivered at bond or note closing. 
 
The City shall retain copies of all arbitrage reports and trustee statements as described below 
under “Record Keeping Requirements”. 
 
 Use of Bond Proceeds 
 
The Director of Finance and other appropriate City personnel shall: 
 
• monitor the use of Bond proceeds, the use of Bond-financed assets (e.g., facilities, 
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furnishings or equipment) and the use of output or throughput of Bond-financed assets 
throughout the term of the Bonds (and in some cases beyond the term of the Bonds) to ensure 
compliance with covenants and restrictions set forth in applicable City ordinances or resolutions 
and Tax Certificates; 
 
• maintain records identifying the assets or portion of assets that are financed or refinanced 
with proceeds of each issue of Bonds; 
 
• consult with Bond Counsel and other professional expert advisers in the review of any 
contracts or arrangements involving use of Bond-financed facilities to ensure compliance with all 
covenants and restrictions set forth in applicable City ordinances or resolutions and Tax 
Certificates; 
 
• maintain records for any contracts or arrangements involving the use of Bond-financed 
facilities as might be necessary or appropriate to document compliance with all covenants and 
restrictions set forth in applicable City ordinances or resolutions and Tax Certificates; 
 
• meet at least annually with personnel responsible for Bond-financed assets to identify and 
discuss any existing or planned use of Bond-financed, assets or output or throughput of Bond-
financed assets, to ensure that those uses are consistent with all covenants and restrictions set 
forth in applicable City ordinances or resolutions and Tax Certificates. 
 
•          take timely remedial actions under section 1.141-12 of the Treasury Regulations (or other 
remedial actions authorized by the Commissioner of the IRS under Section 1.141-12(h) of the 
Regulations) to prevent from being considered “deliberate actions” any actions of the City which 
cause the conditions of the private business tests or the private loan financing test to be met 
resulting in private activity bonds. 
 
All relevant records and contracts shall be maintained as described below and in the applicable 
Tax Certificate. 
 
Investment of Bond proceeds in compliance with the arbitrage bond rules and rebate of arbitrage 
will be supervised by the Director of Finance. 

• Guaranteed investment contracts (“GIC”) will be purchased only using the three-
bid “safe harbor” of applicable Treasury regulations, in compliance with fee 
limitations on GIC brokers in the regulations.  

• Other investments will be purchased only in market transactions. 

• Calculations of rebate liability will be performed annually by outside consultants. 

• Rebate payments will be made with Form 8038-T no later than 60 days after (a) 
each fifth anniversary of the date of issuance and (b) the final retirement of the 
issue. Compliance with rebate requirements will be reported to the bond trustee 
and the issuer.  
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• Identification of the date for first rebate payment will be determined at time of 
issuance and entered in records for the issue. 

Record Keeping Requirements 
 
Unless otherwise specified in applicable City ordinances or resolutions or Tax Certificates, the 
City shall maintain the following documents for the term of each issue of Bonds (including 
refunding Bonds, if any) plus at least three years: 
 
• a copy of the Bond closing transcript(s) and other relevant documentation delivered to the 
City at or in connection with closing of the issue of Bonds; 
 
• a copy of all material documents relating to capital expenditures financed or refinanced 
by Bond proceeds, including (without limitation) construction contracts, purchase orders, 
invoices, trustee requisitions and payment records, as well as documents relating to costs 
reimbursed with Bond proceeds and records identifying the assets or portion of assets that are 
financed or refinanced with Bond proceeds; 
 
• a copy of all contracts and arrangements involving private use of Bond-financed assets or 
for the private use of output or throughput of Bond-financed assets; and 
 
• copies of all records of investments, investment agreements, arbitrage reports and 
underlying documents, including trustee statements. 
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EXHIBIT “D” 
 

FORM TERMS CERTIFICATE 

CITY OF KETCHUM, BLAINE COUNTY, STATE OF IDAHO 
GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS, SERIES 2020 

 

The undersigned official of the City of Ketchum, Blaine County, Idaho (the “City”), as a 
Delegated Officer, does hereby certify as follows (capitalized terms used herein and not defined 
have the meanings assigned to such terms in the Ordinance, hereinafter defined): 
 

1. The undersigned is familiar with Ordinance No. 1206 of the City adopted on 
February 18, 2020 (the “Ordinance”), authorizing the issuance of the City’s General Obligation 
Bonds, Series 2020 (the “Bonds”) and related documents, which Bonds are sold this date to 
[UNDERWRITER], as purchaser of the Bonds (the “Underwriter”). 

 
2. Section 9 of the Ordinance delegated to the undersigned, as a Delegated Officer, 

the power to make certain determinations on the date of sale of the Bonds. 
 
3. Pursuant to such delegation, the undersigned Delegated Officer hereby determines 

as follows: 

a. Details of the terms of the Bonds including payment schedules are reflected in the 
final bond sale number schedules provided by the Underwriter this date, which 
schedules are attached as Exhibit A hereto. 

 
b. The rate of interest to be borne by the Bonds is ____% per annum and the true 

interest cost on the Bonds does not exceed ____% 
 

c. The par amount of the Bonds is $__________. 
 

d. The principal payment dates and the amount of principal of the Bonds maturing in 
any particular year, and the rates of interest accruing thereon are reflected on the 
attached Exhibit A. 
 

e. The final maturity of the Bonds is __________, 20__ and does not exceed a final 
maturity of twenty-five years from the date of the issuance of the Bond.  

 
f. The Bonds are sold at the purchase price of $__________, representing the 

principal amount thereof. 
 

g. The amount of proceeds of the Bonds to be deposited to the Cost of Issuance 
Fund is $______. 
 

h. The amount of proceeds of the Bonds to be deposited to the Project Construction 
Fund is $_______ 
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4. The undersigned Delegated Officer hereby certifies that the final terms and 
provisions of the Bonds, as described above and in the attached Exhibit A, are consistent with, 
not in excess of, and no less favorable than, the terms set forth in Section 9 of the Ordinance. 

 
5. The undersigned Delegated Officer has therefore caused to be executed and 

delivered the Bond Purchase Agreement and the Bonds this date. 

DATED:  March__, 2020. 
CITY OF KETCHUM, BLAINE COUNTY, 
IDAHO 
 
By:         
Title:         
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Official Notice of Bond Sale 
(Bond Sale to be Conducted Electronically) 

 
 

City of Ketchum, Blaine County, State of Idaho 
 

$11,500,000* General Obligation Bonds, Series 2020  
 
 

Bids will be received electronically (as described under “Procedures Regarding Electronic Bidding” 
below) by the City of Ketchum, Blaine County, State of Idaho (the “City”) via the PARITY® electronic 
bid submission system (“PARITY®”) until up to 9:30 a.m., Mountain Time (“MT”), for the purchase, all 
or none (“AON”), of the City’s $11,500,000* General Obligation Bonds, Series 2020 (the “2020 Bonds”) 
on  Wednesday, March 4, 2020. The bids will be reviewed and considered by authorized officers of the 
City and representatives from Zions Public Finance, Inc., acting as municipal advisor to the City (the 
“Municipal Advisor”), in accordance with certain parameters established by the City Council of the City 
(the “Council”) pursuant to Ordinance No. 1206 adopted by the Council on February 18, 2020 (the 
“Ordinance”). 

Description of the 2020 Bonds 

The 2020 Bonds will be dated as of the date of issuance and delivery1, will be issuable only as fully-
registered bonds in book-entry form, will be issued in denominations of $5,000 or any whole multiple 
thereof, not exceeding the amount of each maturity, and will mature on September 15 of each of the years 
and in the principal amounts as follows: 

Maturity 
(September 15) Principal Amount2 

 Maturity 
(September 15) Principal Amount2 

2021 $                          2033 $                        
2022   2034  
2023   2035  
2024   2036  
2025   2037  
2026   2038  
2027   2039  
2028   2040  
2029   2041  
2030   2042  
2031   2043  
2032   2044  

   Total $11,500,000* 
 

 
 

1   The anticipated date of delivery of the 2020 Bonds is Wednesday, March 18, 2020. 
2   Preliminary; subject to change.  See “Adjustment Of Principal Amount Of The 2020 Bonds” herein. 
 
*   Preliminary; subject to change.  
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The 2020 Bonds will be issued in registered form and, when issued, will be registered in the name of 
The Depository Trust Company, New York, New York, or its nominee (“DTC”). DTC will act as 
securities depository for the 2020 Bonds. The 2020 Bonds are more fully described in the City’s 
Preliminary Official Statement with respect to the 2020 Bonds dated Friday, February 21, 2020 (the 
“Preliminary Official Statement”).    
 
Term Bonds and Mandatory Sinking Fund Redemption at Bidder’s Option 

The 2020 Bonds scheduled to mature on two or more of the above–designated maturity dates may be 
rescheduled, at bidder’s option, to mature as term bonds on one or more dates within that period, in which 
event the 2020 Bonds will mature and be subject to mandatory sinking fund redemption in such amounts 
and on such dates as will correspond to the above–designated maturity dates and principal amounts ma-
turing on those dates, as adjusted. 

Adjustment of Principal Amount of the 2020 Bonds 
 

The City reserves the right, following determination of the best bid(s), to reduce or increase the 
principal amount of each maturity of the 2020 Bonds and to increase or reduce the overall principal 
amount of the 2020 Bonds to be issued, as described in this section. The City may adjust the aggregate 
principal amount of the 2020 Bonds maturing in any year as described in this paragraph, provided the 
aggregate principal amount of the 2020 Bonds shall not exceed $11,500,000. The adjustment of maturities 
may be made in such amounts as are necessary to provide the City with desired debt service payments 
during the life of the 2020 Bonds. Any such adjustment will be in an amount of $5,000 or a whole 
multiple thereof. The dollar amount of the price bid by the successful bidder may be changed as described 
below, but the interest rates specified by the successful bidder for all maturities will not change. A 
successful bidder may not withdraw its bid as a result of any changes made within these limits, and the 
City will consider the bid as having been made for the adjusted amount of the 2020 Bonds. The dollar 
amount of the price bid will be changed so that the percentage net compensation to the successful bidder 
(i.e., the percentage resulting from dividing (a) the aggregate difference between the offering price of the 
2020 Bonds to the public and the price to be paid to the City, by (b) the principal amount of the 2020 
Bonds) does not increase or decrease from what it would have been if no adjustment was made to the 
principal amounts shown above. The City expects to advise the successful bidder as soon as possible, but 
expects no later than 2:00 p.m., MT, on the date of sale, of the amount, if any, by which the aggregate 
principal amount of the 2020 Bonds will be adjusted and the corresponding changes to the principal 
amount of 2020 Bonds maturing on one or more of the above–designated maturity dates for the 2020 
Bonds. 

To facilitate any adjustment in the principal amounts, the successful bidder is required to indicate by 
electronic means or to the Municipal Advisor at christian.anderson@zionsbancorp.com within one–half 
hour of the time of bid opening, the amount of any original issue discount or premium on each maturity of 
the 2020 Bonds and the amount received from the sale of the 2020 Bonds to the public that will be 
retained by the successful bidder as its compensation. 

Ratings 

The City will, at its own expense, pay fees of Moody’s Investors Service (“Moody’s”) for rating the 
2020 Bonds. Any additional ratings shall be at the option and expense of the bidder. 

Purchase Price 

The purchase price bid for the 2020 Bonds shall not be less than _____% of the principal amount of 
the 2020 Bonds ($__________). 
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Interest Rates 

The 2020 Bonds will bear interest at any number of different rates, any of which may be repeated, 
which rates shall be expressed in multiples of one–eighth or one–twentieth of one percent (1/8 or 1/20 of 
1%) per annum. In addition: 

1. the highest interest rate bid for any of the 2020 Bonds shall not exceed ______ percent 
(____%) per annum; 

2. no Bond shall have more than one rate of interest; 

3. interest shall be computed from the dated date of a 2020 Bond to its stated maturity date at 
the single interest rate specified in the bid for the 2020 Bonds of such maturity; 

4. the purchase price must be paid in immediately available funds and no bid will be accepted 
that contemplates the cancellation of any interest or the waiver of interest or other concession 
by the bidder as a substitute for immediately available federal funds; 

5. any premium must be paid in the funds specified for the payment of the 2020 Bonds as part 
of the purchase price; 

6. there shall be no supplemental interest coupons;  

7. a zero percent (0%) interest rate may not be used; and 

8. interest shall be computed on the basis of a 360–day year of Twelve, 30–day months. 

Interest for the 2020 Bonds will be payable semiannually on March 15 and September 15 beginning 
March 15, 2021, at the rate or rates to be fixed at the time the 2020 Bonds are sold.   

Payment of Principal and Interest 

Zions Bancorporation, National Association, Boise, Idaho, will be the paying agent and bond registrar 
for the 2020 Bonds.  The City may remove any paying agent and any bond registrar, and any successor 
thereto, and appoint a successor or successors thereto. So long as the 2020 Bonds are outstanding in book-
entry form, the principal of and interest on the 2020 Bonds will be paid under the standard procedures of 
DTC. 

Redemption Provisions 

2020 Bonds maturing by their terms on or before September 15, 2029, shall not be subject to call and 
redemption prior to their fixed maturity date.  The City reserves the right to redeem any or all of the 
Bonds maturing by their terms on or after September 15, 2030, in advance of maturity on March 15, 
2030, or on any date thereafter, in whole or in part, at the redemption price of par plus accrued interest to 
the date of redemption, from such maturities or parts thereof as shall be directed by the City and by lot 
within each maturity.   

Security and Sources of Payment 

The 2020 Bonds will be full general obligations of the City, payable from the proceeds of ad valorem 
taxes to be levied without limitation as to rate or amount on all of the taxable property in the City, fully 
sufficient to pay the same as to both principal and interest.  
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Award 

Award or rejection of bids will be made on Wednesday, March 4, 2020, by certain delegated officers 
of the City, and in no event later than 24 hours after the expiration of the time herein pre-scribed for the 
receipt of bids, unless such time of award is waived by the successful bidder. The 2020 Bonds will be 
awarded to the responsible bidder offering to pay the lowest effective interest rate to the City computed 
from the date of the 2020 Bonds to maturity and taking into consideration the premium, if any, in the 
purchase price of the 2020 Bonds. The effective interest rate to the City shall be the interest rate per 
annum determined on a per annum true interest cost (“TIC”) basis by discounting the scheduled 
semiannual debt service payments of the City on the 2020 Bonds (based on such rate or rates of interest 
so bid) to the dated date of the 2020 Bonds (based on a 360–day year consisting of Twelve, 30-day 
months), compounded semiannually and to the bid price.   

Notification 

The Municipal Advisor, on behalf of the City, will notify the apparent successful bidder 
(electronically via PARITY®) as soon as possible after the City’s receipt of bids, that such bidder’s bid 
appears to be the lowest and best bid received which conforms to the requirements of this Official Notice 
of Bond Sale, subject to verification and to official action to be taken by the City as described in the next 
succeeding paragraph. 

Procedures Regarding Electronic Bidding  

The bidding will be made and awarded for the 2020 Bonds on an AON basis.   

No bid will be accepted unless the City has determined that such bidder has provided the requested 
Deposit described under “Good Faith Deposit” below. 

Bids will be received by means of the PARITY® electronic bid submission system. A prospective 
bidder must communicate its bid electronically through PARITY® on or before 9:30 MT on Wednesday, 
March 4, 2020. No bid will be received after the time for receiving bids specified above. To the extent 
any instructions or directions set forth in PARITY® conflict with this Official Notice of Bond Sale, the 
terms of this Official Notice of Bond Sale shall control. For further information about PARITY®, potential 
bidders may contact the Municipal Advisor or i–Deal LLC at 1359 Broadway, New York, New York 
10018; 212.849.5021. The time as maintained by PARITY® shall constitute the official time. 

Each qualified prospective bidder shall be solely responsible to make necessary arrangements 
to access PARITY® for purposes of submitting its bid in a timely manner and in compliance with the 
requirements of this Official Notice of Bond Sale. Neither the Municipal Advisor, the City nor i–
Deal LLC shall have any duty or obligation to provide or assure such access to any qualified 
prospective bidder, and neither the Municipal Advisor, the City nor i–Deal LLC shall be 
responsible for proper operation of, or have any liability for any delays or interruptions of, or any 
damages caused by, PARITY®. The City is using PARITY® as a communication mechanism, and not 
as the City’s agent, to conduct the electronic bidding for the 2020 Bonds. 

Form of Bid 

Each bidder for the 2020 Bonds is required to transmit electronically via PARITY® an unconditional 
bid specifying the lowest rate or rates of interest and confirm the purchase price (as described under 
“Purchase Price” above) at which the bidder will purchase the 2020 Bonds. Each bid must be for all the 
2020 Bonds herein offered for sale. 

117



 5 

For information purposes only, bidders are requested to state in their bids the effective interest rate for 
the 2020 Bonds represented on a “true interest cost” (“TIC”) basis, as described under “Award” herein, 
represented by the rate or rates of interest and the bid price specified in their respective bids. 

No bids will be accepted in written form, by electronic mail or in any other medium or on any system 
other than by means of PARITY®; provided however, that in the event a prospective bidder cannot access 
PARITY®, through no fault of its own, it may so notify the office of the Municipal Advisor by telephone at 
208.501.7533. Thereafter, it may submit its bid by telephone to the Municipal Advisor at 208.501.7533, 
who shall transcribe such bid into written form, or by electronic mail to the Municipal Advisor at 
christian.anderson@zionsbancorp.com, in either case before the time bids are due as stated above, on 
Tuesday, November 5, 2019. For purposes of bids submitted telephonically to the Municipal Advisor (as 
described above) or by electronic mail, the time as maintained by PARITY®, shall constitute the official 
time. Each bid submitted as provided in the preceding sentence must specify the interest rate or rates for 
the 2020 Bonds and the total purchase price of all of the 2020 Bonds. The Municipal Advisor will seal 
transcribed telephonic bids and electronic mail bids for submission. Neither the City nor the Municipal 
Advisor assumes any responsibility or liability from the failure of any such transcribed telephonic bid or 
electronic mail (whether such failure arises from equipment failure, unavailability of phone lines or 
otherwise). No bid will be received after the time for receiving such bids specified above. 

If requested by the Municipal Advisor, the apparent successful bidder will provide written 
confirmation of its bid (by electronic mail) to the Municipal Advisor prior to 2:00 p.m., MT, on 
Wednesday, March 4, 2020. 

Right of Cancellation 

The successful bidder shall have the right, at its option, to cancel its obligation to purchase the 2020 
Bonds if the City shall fail to execute the 2020 Bonds and tender the same for delivery within 60 days 
from the date of sale thereof, and in such event the successful bidder shall be entitled to the return of the 
deposit accompanying its bid. 

Good Faith Deposit 

A good faith deposit (the “Deposit”) in the amount of $_____________is required only from the 
successful bidder. The Deposit shall be payable to the order of the City in the form of a wire transfer in 
federal funds as instructed by the Municipal Advisor no later than 12:00 noon, MT, on Wednesday, 
March 4, 2020. As an alternative to wiring funds, a bidder may deliver a cashier’s or certified check, 
payable to the order of the City. If a check is used, it must precede each bid. Such check shall be promptly 
returned to its respective bidder whose bid is not accepted. 

The City shall, as security for the faithful performance by the successful bidder of its obligation to 
take up and pay for the Bonds when tendered, cash the Deposit check, if applicable, of the successful 
bidder and hold the proceeds of the Deposit of the successful bidder, or invest the same (at the City’s risk) 
in obligations which mature at or before the delivery of the 2020 Bonds as described under the caption 
“Manner and Time of Delivery” below, until disposed of as follows: (a) at such delivery of the 2020 
Bonds and upon compliance with the successful bidder’s obligation to take up and pay for the 2020 
Bonds, the full amount of the Deposit held by the City, without adjustment for interest, shall be applied 
toward the purchase price of the Bonds at that time and the full amount of any interest earnings thereon 
shall be retained by the City; and (b) if the successful bidder fails to take up and pay for the Bonds when 
tendered, the full amount of the Deposit plus any interest earnings thereon will be forfeited to the City as 
liquidated damages. 
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Sale Reservations 

The City reserves the right: (i) to waive any irregularity or informality in any bid or in the bidding 
process; (ii) to reject any and all bids for the 2020 Bonds; and (iii) to resell the 2020 Bonds as provided 
by law. 

Prompt Award 

The City will take action awarding the 2020 Bonds or rejecting all bids not later than twenty-four (24) 
hours after the expiration of the time herein prescribed for the receipt of bids, unless such time of award is 
waived by the successful bidder 

Reoffering Prices; Purchaser’s Certificate Relating to Issue Price 

The successful bidder or bidders (or manager of the purchasing account or accounts) shall notify the 
chief financial officer of the City and the City’s Municipal Advisor by electronic mail to Christian Ander-
son (christian.anderson@zionsbancorp.com) within 24 hours of the bid opening, of the initial offering 
prices of such Bonds to the public. The notification must be confirmed in writing in form and substance 
satisfactory to Bond Counsel (defined hereunder) prior to the delivery of the 2020 Bonds.  The confirma-
tion will be part of the “Purchaser’s Certificate” which will be in substantially the same form as Exhibit A 
in the event the City receives three (3) or more bids that fit the requirements of the Official Notice of 
Bond Sale for the Bonds; and in substantially the same form as Exhibit B in the event the City does not 
receive three (3) or more such bids for the Bonds. 

 
Each bidder, by submitting its bid, agrees to complete, execute and deliver the applicable certificate, 

in form and substance satisfactory to Bond Counsel, by the date of delivery of the 2020 Bonds, if its bid is 
accepted by the City. It will be the responsibility of the successful bidder to institute such syndicate 
reporting requirements, to make such investigation or otherwise to ascertain the facts necessary to make 
such certification. Any questions regarding the certificate should be directed to John R. McDevitt of 
Skinner Fawcett LLP, Bond Counsel, 250 W. Bobwhite Court, Suite 240, Boise, Idaho 83712; 
208.345.2663; jmcdevitt@skinnerfawcett.com.  

Manner and Time of Delivery 

The successful bidder will be given at least seven (7) business days’ advance notice of the proposed 
date of the delivery of the 2020 Bonds when that date has been tentatively determined. It is now estimated 
that the 2020 Bonds will be delivered in book–entry form on or about March 18, 2020. The 2020 Bonds 
will be delivered as a single bond certificate for each maturity of the 2020 Bonds, registered in the name 
of DTC or its nominee. Delivery of the 2020 Bonds will be made in Boise, Idaho, pursuant to DTC’s 
FAST system. The successful bidder must also agree to pay for the Bonds in federal funds which will be 
immediately available to the City on the day of delivery.   

CUSIP Numbers 

It is anticipated that CUSIP numbers will be printed on the 2020 Bonds, at the expense of the City, 
but neither the failure to print such numbers on any Bond nor any error with respect thereof shall 
constitute cause for a failure or refusal by the successful bidder thereof to accept delivery of and pay for 
the 2020 Bonds in accordance with terms of this Official Notice of Bond Sale. 
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Tax-Exempt Status 

In the opinion of  Skinner Fawcett LLP, Boise, Idaho (“Bond Counsel”), subject to the condition that 
the City comply with certain covenants made to satisfy pertinent requirements of the Internal Revenue 
Code of 1986, as amended (the “Code”), under present law, interest on the 2020 Bonds is not included in 
gross income under the present federal income tax laws pursuant to Section 103 of the Code.  The 2020 
Bonds are not private activity bonds. Interest on the 2020 Bonds will not be treated as an item of tax 
preference for purposes of determining the alternative minimum taxable income for individuals or 
corporations under Section 55 of the Code. Failure to comply with certain of such City covenants could 
cause interest on the 2020 Bonds to be included in gross income retroactive to the date of issuance of the 
2020 Bonds.  Ownership of the 2020 Bonds may result in other federal tax consequences to certain 
taxpayers, and Bond Counsel expresses no opinion regarding any such collateral consequences with 
respect to the 2020 Bonds.  Reference is hereby made to the discussion of the Code set forth in the 
Preliminary Official Statement under the caption “TAX MATTERS.”  

Legal Opinion and Closing Documents 

The unqualified approving opinion of Skinner Fawcett LLP covering the legality of the 2020 Bonds 
will be furnished to the successful bidder. A supplemental opinion shall be furnished to the successful 
bidder by Skinner Fawcett LLP with respect to the disclosure of certain information in the final Official 
Statement.  Closing certificates will also be furnished, dated as of the date of delivery of and payment for 
the 2020 Bonds, including a statement that there is no litigation pending or, to the knowledge of the 
signer thereof, threatened affecting the validity of the 2020 Bonds. 

Disclosure Certificate 

The City will deliver to the successful bidder a certificate of an authorized officer(s) of the City, dated 
the date of the delivery of the 2020 Bonds, stating that as of the date thereof, to the best of the knowledge 
and belief of said authorized officer(s), and after reasonable investigation: (a) the descriptions and 
statements contained in the Preliminary Official Statement circulated with respect to the 2020 Bonds were 
at the time of the acceptance of the bid true and correct in all material respects and did not at the time of 
the acceptance of the bid contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact 
necessary to make the statements therein, in light of the circumstances under which they were made, not 
misleading; and (b) the descriptions and statements contained in the final Official Statement are at the 
time of the delivery of the 2020 Bonds true and correct in all material respects and do not at the time of 
the delivery of the 2020 Bonds contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material 
fact required to be stated therein or necessary to make the statements therein, in light of the circumstances 
under which they were made, not misleading; provided, should the final Official Statement be 
supplemented or amended subsequent to the date thereof, the foregoing confirmation as to the final 
Official Statement shall relate to the final Official Statement as so supplemented or amended. 

Continuing Disclosure Agreement (Disclosure Undertaking) 

The City covenants and agrees to enter into a written agreement or contract, constituting an 
undertaking (the “Undertaking”) to provide ongoing disclosure about the City for the benefit of the 
beneficial owners of the 2020 Bonds on or before the date of delivery of the 2020 Bonds as required 
under paragraph (b)(5) of Rule 15c2-12 (the “Rule”) adopted by the Securities and Exchange 
Commission under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934.  The Undertaking shall be as described in the 
Preliminary Official Statement, with such changes as may be agreed upon in writing by the successful 
bidder. 
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For a detailed discussion of the Continuing Disclosure Agreement, previous disclosure agreements 
and timing of submissions see the section titled “CONTINUING DISCLOSURE AGREEMENT” in the 
Preliminary Official Statement. 

The successful bidder’s obligation to purchase the 2020 Bonds shall be conditioned upon the City 
delivering the Undertaking on or before the date of delivery of the 2020 Bonds. 

Delivery of Copies of Final Official Statement 

The City shall deliver to the successful bidder on such business day as directed in writing by the 
successful bidder, which is not earlier than the second business day or later than the seventh business day 
after the award of the 2020 Bonds as described under the caption “Award” above, copies of the final 
Official Statement in sufficient quantity, as directed in writing by the successful bidder, to comply with 
paragraph (b)(4) of the Rule and the Rules of the Municipal Securities Rulemaking Council. 

Additional Information 

For copies of this OFFICIAL NOTICE OF BOND SALE and the Preliminary Official Statement and 
information regarding the electronic bidding procedures and other related information with respect to the 
2020 Bonds, contact the Municipal Advisor to the City, Zions Public Finance, Inc. at 800 W. Main Street, 
Suite 700, Boise, Idaho 83702; 208.501.7533; Christian Anderson 
(christian.anderson@zionsbancorp.com) or Cara Bertot (cara.bertot@zionsbancorp.com). The 
Preliminary Official Statement is available at www.fmmunihub.com, www.i-dealprospectus.com, and 
www.munios.com.  

 
DATED this 21st day of February, 2020. 

CITY OF KETCHUM, BLAINE COUNTY, 
IDAHO 
 

 
By:    /s/Grant Gager                                              
      Director of Finance 
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EXHIBIT A 
 

Competitive Sale – Three Bids Received 
 

Purchaser’s Certificate: 
 
IT IS HEREBY CERTIFIED by the undersigned on behalf of____________________ 

(the “Purchaser”), as representative of the underwriters for the “_________________________________” (the 
“Bonds”): 

 
1.  We acknowledge receipt of the Bonds in the aggregate principal amount of 

$___________, bearing interest and maturing as provided in [Instrument providing principal amount and inter-
est rate] ____________of the_________________ (the “Issuer”) on ______________, and the instruments 
described therein, and such Bonds being in the denominations and registered in the name of Cede & Co., as 
nominee of The Depository Trust Company, as requested by us. 

 
2.  A bona fide public offering was made for all of the Bonds on the sale date at the 

prices shown on the inside cover page of the Official Statement for the Bonds.  Those prices are the reasonably 
expected initial offering prices of each maturity of the Bonds to the public which were used by the Purchaser 
in formulating its bid to purchase the Bonds.  For this purpose:  
 

“Public” means any person (including an individual, trust, estate, partnership, association, company, or 
corporation) other than an underwriter or a related party.  

 
“Sale date” means the date the Purchaser’s bid for the Bonds was accepted on behalf of the Issuer. 
 
“Underwriter” means (i) any person that agrees pursuant to a written contract with the Issuer (or with 

the lead underwriter to form an underwriting syndicate) to participate in the initial sale of the Bonds to the 
public, and (ii) any person that agrees pursuant to a written contract directly or indirectly with a person de-
scribed in clause (i) of this paragraph to participate in the initial sale of the Bonds to the public (including a 
member of a selling group or a party to a retail distribution agreement participating in the initial sale of the 
Bonds to the public).   

 
If a yield is shown on the [inside] cover page for any maturity, “price” herein means the dollar price 

that produces that yield.  
 

3.  The underwriter was not given the opportunity to review other bids prior to submit-
ting its bid. 

 
4.  The bid submitted by the underwriter constituted a firm bid to purchase the Bonds. 

 
5.  The Issuer and its counsel may rely on these certifications in concluding that the 

Bonds meet certain requirements of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986 as amended (the “Code”), relating to 
tax-exempt bonds; however, nothing herein represents our interpretation of any law and we are not providing 
any interpretations of law or regulations in executing and delivering this certificate. 
 

DATED as of ______, 2020. 
 
   _______________________, as Representative of the Underwriters 
 
   By:  ______________________________ 

Title: _____________________________ 
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Exhibit 1 
(Offering Prices of Bonds)  
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EXHIBIT B 
 

10% each maturity sold 
 

Purchaser’s Certificate: 
 
IT IS HEREBY CERTIFIED by the undersigned on behalf of____________________ 

(the “Purchaser”), as representative of the underwriters for the “_________________________________” (the 
“Bonds”): 

 
1.  We acknowledge receipt of the Bonds in the aggregate principal amount of 

$___________, bearing interest and maturing as provided in the __________ [Instrument providing principal 
amount and interest rate] of the_________________ (the “Issuer”) on ______________, and the instruments 
described therein, and such Bonds being in the denominations and registered in the name of Cede & Co., as 
nominee of The Depository Trust Company, as requested by us. 

 
2.  A bona fide public offering was made for all of the Bonds on the sale date at the 

prices shown on the inside cover page of the Official Statement for the Bonds. The first price at which a sub-
stantial amount of each maturity of the Bonds was sold to the public is the price shown on the inside cover 
page of the Official Statement for that maturity of the Bonds.    For this purpose: 

 
 “Public” means any person (including an individual, trust, estate, partnership, association, 
company, or corporation) other than an underwriter or a related party. 
 
 “Underwriter” means (i) any person that agrees pursuant to a written contract with the Issuer 
(or with the lead underwriter to form an underwriting syndicate) to participate in the initial sale of the Bonds to 
the public, and (ii) any person that agrees pursuant to a written contract directly or indirectly with a person 
described in clause (i) of this paragraph to participate in the initial sale of the Bonds to the public (including a 
member of a selling group or a party to a retail distribution agreement participating in the initial sale of the 
Bonds to the public). 
 
 “Substantial amount” is 10% or more of each maturity. 
 
 If a yield is shown on the inside cover page for any maturity, “price” herein means the dollar 
price that produces that yield. 

 
3.  The Issuer and its counsel may rely on these certifications in concluding that the 

Bonds meet certain requirements of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986 as amended (the “Code”), relating to 
tax-exempt bonds; however, nothing herein represents our interpretation of any law and we are not providing 
any interpretations of law or regulations in executing and delivering this certificate. 
 

DATED as of ______, 2020. 
 
   _______________________, as Representative of the Underwriters 
 
   By:  ______________________________ 

Title: _____________________________ 
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PRELIMINARY OFFICIAL STATEMENT 

 
 
 

$9,405,000∗ 
 

City of Ketchum, Idaho 
 

General Obligation Bonds, Series 2020 
 
 

 

 
 
 
On Wednesday, March 4, 2020 up to 9:30:00 A.M., Mountain Standard Time (“M.S.T.”), electronic 

bids will be received by means of the PARITY® electronic bid submission system. See the “OFFICIAL 
NOTICE OF BOND SALE—Procedures Regarding Electronic Bidding.” 

 
The 2020 Bonds (as defined herein) will be awarded to the successful bidder(s) and issued pursuant to 

an ordinance of the City of Ketchum, Idaho adopted on [February 18, 2020]. 
 
The City has deemed this PRELIMINARY OFFICIAL STATEMENT final as of the date hereof, for 

purposes of paragraph (b)(1) of Rule 15c2–12 of the Securities and Exchange Commission, subject to 
completion with certain information to be established at the time of sale of the 2020 Bonds as permitted 
by the Rule. 

 
For additional information with respect to the 2020 Bonds contact the Municipal Advisor: 
 
 

 
 

800 W Main St, Ste 700 
Boise ID 83702 

208.501.7533 | f 855.855.9702 
christian.anderson@zionsbancorp.com 

 
 
This PRELIMINARY OFFICIAL STATEMENT is dated [February 20, 2020], and the information 

contained herein speaks only as of that date. 

 
∗ Preliminary; subject to change. 
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PRELIMINARY OFFICIAL STATEMENT DATED FEBRUARY 20, 2020 [February 12, 2020] 
 

NEW ISSUE––BOOK–ENTRY ONLY Rating: Moody’s “__” 
 See “MISCELLANEOUS—Bond Rating” herein. 

 
In the opinion of Skinner Fawcett LLP, Bond Counsel, assuming continuous compliance with certain covenants described below: 

(i) interest on the 2020 Bonds is excluded from gross income pursuant to Section 103 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as 
amended (the “Code”), (ii) interest on the 2020 Bonds is excluded from alternative minimum taxable income as defined in Section 
55(b)(2) of the Code; and (iii) interest on the 2020 Bonds is excluded from gross income for purposes of income taxation by the 
State of Idaho. See “TAX MATTERS” herein.  

 
The 2020 Bonds are not “qualified tax–exempt obligations.” 
 

$9,405,000∗ 
 

City of Ketchum, Idaho 
 

General Obligation Bonds, Series 2020 
 
 
The $9,405,000* General Obligation Bonds, Series 2020 (the “2020 Bonds”) are issued by the City of Ketchum, Idaho (the 

“City”), as fully–registered bonds and, when initially issued, will be in book–entry form, registered in the name of Cede & Co., as 
nominee for The Depository Trust Company, New York, New York. DTC will act as securities depository for the 2020 Bonds. 

 
Principal of and interest on the 2020 Bonds (interest payable March 15 and September 15 of each year, commencing 

March 15, 2021) are payable Zions Bancorporation, National Association, Boise, Idaho, as Paying Agent (the “Paying Agent”), to 
the registered owners thereof, initially DTC. See “THE 2020 BONDS—Book–Entry System” herein. 

 
The 2020 Bonds are subject to optional redemption prior to maturity and may be subject to mandatory sinking fund redemption 

at the option of the successful bidder(s). See “THE 2020 BONDS—Redemption Provisions” and “—Mandatory Sinking Fund Re-
demption at Bidder’s Option” herein. 

 
The 2020 Bonds will be general obligations of the City payable from the proceeds of ad valorem taxes to be levied without 

limitation as to rate or amount on all of the taxable property in the City, fully sufficient to pay the 2020 Bonds as to both principal 
and interest. 

 
 
Dated: Date of Delivery1 Due: September 15, as shown on inside cover 

See the inside front cover for the maturity schedule of the 2020 Bonds. 
 

 

The 2020 Bonds will be awarded pursuant to competitive bidding received by means of the PARITY® elec-
tronic bid submission system on Wednesday, March 4, 2020 as set forth in the OFFICIAL NOTICE OF 
BOND SALE dated as of the date of this PRELIMINARY OFFICIAL STATEMENT. 

 
Zions Public Finance, Inc., Boise, Idaho, is acting as Municipal Advisor. 

 
This cover page contains certain information for quick reference only. It is not a summary of this issue. Investors must read 

the entire OFFICIAL STATEMENT to obtain information essential to the making of an informed investment decision. 
 
This OFFICIAL STATEMENT is dated March _, 2020, and the information contained herein speaks only as of that date. 

 
∗ Preliminary; subject to change. 
1 The anticipated date of delivery is Wednesday, March 18, 2020. 
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City of Ketchum, Idaho 
 

$9,405,000* 
 

General Obligation Bonds, Series 2020 
 

Dated: Date of Delivery1 Due: September 15, as shown below 
 

Due  CUSIP®  Principal  Interest  Yield/ 
September 15  [______]  Amount∗  Rate  Price 
         2021…….    $  20,000  %  % 
2022…….    240,000     
2023…….    250,000     
2024…….    260,000     
2025…….    275,000     
2026…….    285,000     
2027…….    295,000     
2028…….    305,000     
2029…….    320,000     
2030…….    330,000     
2031…….    350,000     
2032…….    365,000     
2033…….    385,000     
2034…….    405,000     
2035…….    425,000     
2036…….    445,000     
2037…….    465,000     
2038…….    490,000     
2039…….    515,000     
2040…….    540,000     
2041…….    565,000     
2042…….    595,000     
2043…….    625,000     
2044…….    655,000     

 
$_______ Term Bond due September 15, 20__—Yield of ____% (CUSIP [_______] ___) 

 
 

1 The anticipated date of delivery is Wednesday, March 18, 2020. 
® CUSIP is a registered trademark of the American Bankers Association. CUSIP Global Services is managed on behalf of the 
American Bankers Association by S&P Capital IQ. 
∗ Preliminary; subject to change. 
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This OFFICIAL STATEMENT does not constitute an offer to sell, or the solicitation of an offer to buy, 
nor shall there be any sale of, the 2020 Bonds (as defined herein), by any person in any jurisdiction in which 
it is unlawful for such person to make such offer, solicitation or sale. No dealer, broker, salesman or other 
person has been authorized to give any information or to make any representations other than those con-
tained herein, and if given or made, such other informational representations must not be relied upon as 
having been authorized by either the City of Ketchum, Idaho (the “City”); Zions Public Finance, Inc., Boise, 
Idaho, as Municipal Advisor; Zions Bancorporation, National Association, Boise, Idaho, as Paying Agent; 
the successful bidder; or any other entity. All other information contained herein has been obtained from 
the City, The Depository Trust Company, New York, New York and from other sources which are believed 
to be reliable. The information and expressions of opinion herein are subject to change without notice and 
neither the delivery of this OFFICIAL STATEMENT nor the issuance, sale, delivery or exchange of the 
2020 Bonds, shall under any circumstance create any implication that there has been no change in the affairs 
of the City since the date hereof. 

 
The 2020 Bonds have not been registered under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, or any state 

securities laws in reliance upon exemptions contained in such act and laws. Neither the Securities and Ex-
change Commission nor any state securities commission has passed upon the accuracy or adequacy of this 
OFFICIAL STATEMENT. Any representation to the contrary is unlawful. 

 
The yields/prices at which the 2020 Bonds are offered to the public may vary from the initial reoff-

ering yields on the inside front cover page of this OFFICIAL STATEMENT. In addition, the successful 
bidder may allow concessions or discounts from the initial offering prices of the 2020 Bonds to dealers 
and others. In connection with the offering of the 2020 Bonds, the successful bidder may engage in 
transactions that stabilize, maintain, or otherwise affect the price of the 2020 Bonds. Such transactions 
may include overallotments in connection with the purchase of 2020 Bonds, the purchase of 2020 Bonds 
to stabilize their market price and the purchase of 2020 Bonds to cover the successful bidder’s short 
positions. Such transactions, if commenced, may be discontinued at any time.  

Forward–Looking Statements. Certain statements included or incorporated by reference in this OFFI-
CIAL STATEMENT constitute “forward–looking statements” within the meaning of the United States Pri-
vate Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995, Section 21E of the United States Securities Exchange Act 
of 1934, as amended, and Section 27A of the United States Securities Act of 1933, as amended. Such state-
ments are generally identifiable by the terminology used, such as “plan,” “project,” “forecast,” “expect,” 
“estimate,” “budget” or other similar words. The achievement of certain results or other expectations 
contained in such forward–looking statements involve known and unknown risks, uncertainties and 
other factors which may cause actual results, performance or achievements described to be materially 
different from any future results, performance or achievements expressed or implied by such forward–
looking statements. The City does not plan to issue any updates or revisions to those forward–looking 
statements if or when its expectations, or events, conditions or circumstances on which such statements 
are based occur. 

 
The CUSIP (the Committee on Uniform Securities Identification Procedures) identification numbers 

are provided on the inside cover page of this OFFICIAL STATEMENT and are being provided solely for 
the convenience of bondholders only, and the City makes no representation with respect to such numbers 
or undertakes any responsibility for their accuracy. The CUSIP numbers are subject to being changed after 
the issuance of the 2020 Bonds as a result of various subsequent actions including, but not limited to, a 
refunding in whole or in part of the 2020 Bonds. 

 
The content from websites referenced in this OFFICIAL STATEMENT has not been reviewed for 

accuracy and completeness. Such information has not been provided in connection with the offering of the 
2020 Bonds and is not a part of this OFFICIAL STATEMENT. 
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OFFICIAL STATEMENT RELATED TO 
 
 

$9,405,000∗ 
 

City of Ketchum, Idaho 
 

General Obligation Bonds, Series 2020 
 
 

INTRODUCTION 
 
This introduction is only a brief description of the 2020 Bonds, as hereinafter defined, the security and 

source of payment for the 2020 Bonds and certain information regarding City of Ketchum, Blaine County, 
Idaho (the “City”). The information contained herein is expressly qualified by reference to the entire OF-
FICIAL STATEMENT. Investors are urged to make a full review of the entire OFFICIAL STATEMENT, 
as well as of the documents summarized or described herein. 

 
See the following appendices that are attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference: 

“APPENDIX A—FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF CITY OF KETCHUM, IDAHO FOR FISCAL 
YEAR 2019”; “APPENDIX B—PROPOSED FORM OF OPINION OF BOND COUNSEL”; “APPEN-
DIX C—PROPOSED FORM OF CONTINUING DISCLOSURE AGREEMENT”; and “APPENDIX D—
BOOK–ENTRY SYSTEM.” 

 
When used herein the terms “Fiscal Year[s] 20YY” or “Fiscal Year[s] End[ed][ing] Septem-

ber 30, 20YY” shall refer to the year ended or ending on September 30 of the year indicated and beginning 
on October 1 of the preceding calendar year. Capitalized terms used but not otherwise defined herein have 
the same meaning as given to them in the Bond Ordinance (as defined herein). 

 
Public Sale/Electronic Bid 

 
The 2020 Bonds will be awarded pursuant to competitive bidding received by means of the PARITY® 

electronic bid submission system on Wednesday, March 4, 2020, pursuant to the OFFICIAL NOTICE OF 
BOND SALE (dated as of the date of this PRELIMINARY OFFICIAL STATEMENT). 

 
The 2020 Bonds may be offered and sold to certain dealers (including dealers depositing the 

2020 Bonds into investment trusts) at prices lower than the initial public offering prices set forth on the 
inside cover page of the OFFICIAL STATEMENT and that such public offering prices may be changed 
from time to time. 

 
City of Ketchum, Idaho 

 
The City, incorporated in 1961, covers an area of approximately 3.1 square miles. Located in Blaine 

County, Idaho (the “County”), the City is situated in central Idaho at the northern end of the Wood River 
Valley. The City lies adjacent to the City of Sun Valley, known for its world–class mountain resort. The 
City had approximately 2,827 residents according to the 2018 Census estimate. See “CITY OF KETCHUM, 
IDAHO” below. 

 
∗ Preliminary; subject to change. 

134



 

2 

The 2020 Bonds 
 
This OFFICIAL STATEMENT, including the cover page, introduction and Appendices (the “OFFI-

CIAL STATEMENT”), provides information in connection with the issuance and sale of $9,405,000∗ ag-
gregate principal amount of General Obligation Bonds, Series 2020 (the “2020 Bonds” or “2020 Bond”), 
initially issued in book–entry form only. 

 
Authorization for and Purpose of the 2020 Bonds 

 
Authority. The 2020 Bonds are being issued pursuant to the applicable provisions of (i) Title 50, Chap-

ter 10, Idaho Code, as amended (the “Idaho Code”) and the Public Obligations Registration Act, Title 57, 
Chapter 9, Idaho Code, as amended, and the Municipal Bond Law, Title 57, Chapter 2, Idaho Code (col-
lectively, the “Act”), (ii) Ordinance No. 1206 adopted by the City Council of the City (the “City Council”) 
and approved by the Mayor on [February 18, 2020] (the “Bond Ordinance”), which provides for the sale 
and issuance of the 2020 Bonds, and (iii) other applicable provisions of law.  

 
The 2020 Bonds were authorized at a bond election held for that purpose on November 5, 2019 (the 

“2019 Bond Election”). The proposition submitted to the voters of the City was as follows: 
 

Shall the City of Ketchum, Blaine County, Idaho, be authorized to incur an indebtedness and issue and sell 
its general obligation bonds, in one or more series of bonds, in an aggregate principal amount for all such bonds 
of not more than $11,500,000, or so much thereof as may be necessary, for the purpose of providing funds with 
which to construct and equip a new fire station and acquire certain firefighting equipment, with each of said series 
of bonds to be payable annually or at such lessor intervals as determined by future resolutions or ordinances of 
the City, and to mature serially with the final installment to fall due within twenty–five (25) years from the date 
of each of said series of bonds, and to bear interest at a rate or rates to be determined by future resolutions or 
ordinances of the City, all as provided in the ordinance of the City adopted on September 3, 2019? 
 
At the 2019 Bond Election there were 697 votes cast in favor of the issuance of bonds and 338 votes 

cast against the issuance of bonds, for a total vote count of 1,035, with approximately 67.3% in favor of the 
issuance of bonds, exceeding the required two–thirds majority approval for election passage. 

 
The 2020 Bonds are the first and only block of bonds to be issued from the 2019 Bond Election. After 

the sale and delivery of the 2020 Bonds, the City will have exhausted its 2019 Bond Election authorization. 
 

Security 
 
The 2020 Bonds will be general obligations of the City, payable from the proceeds of ad valorem taxes 

to be levied, without limitation as to rate or amount, on all of the taxable property in the City, fully sufficient 
to pay the 2020 Bonds as to both principal and interest. See “SECURITY AND SOURCES OF PAY-
MENT” and “FINANCIAL INFORMATION REGARDING THE CITY OF KETCHUM, IDAHO—Prop-
erty Tax Matters” below. 

 
Redemption Provisions 

 
The 2020 Bonds are subject to optional redemption prior to maturity and may be subject to mandatory 

sinking fund redemption at the option of the successful bidder(s). See “THE 2020 BONDS—Redemption 
Provisions” and “—Mandatory Sinking Fund Redemption at Bidder’s Option” below. 

 
  

 
∗ Preliminary; subject to change. 
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Registration, Denominations, Manner of Payment 
 
The 2020 Bonds are issuable only as fully registered bonds and, when initially issued, will be registered 

in the name of Cede & Co., as nominee for The Depository Trust Company, New York, New York, 
(“DTC”). DTC will act as securities depository of the 2020 Bonds. Purchases of 2020 Bonds will be made 
in book–entry form only, in the principal amount of $5,000 or any whole multiple thereof, through brokers 
and dealers who are, or who act through, DTC’s Participants (as defined herein). Beneficial Owners (as 
defined herein) of the 2020 Bonds will not be entitled to receive physical delivery of bond certificates so 
long as DTC or a successor securities depository acts as the securities depository with respect to the 
2020 Bonds. “Direct Participants,” “Indirect Participants” and “Beneficial Owners” are defined under “AP-
PENDIX D—BOOK–ENTRY SYSTEM.” 

 
Principal of and interest on the 2020 Bonds (interest payable March 15 and September 15 of each year, 

commencing March 15, 2021) are payable by Zions Bancorporation, National Association, Boise, Idaho 
(“Zions Bancorporation”), as paying agent (the “Paying Agent”) for the 2020 Bonds, to the registered own-
ers of the 2020 Bonds. So long as Cede & Co. is the registered owner of the 2020 Bonds, DTC will, in turn, 
remit such principal and interest to its Direct Participants, for subsequent disbursements to the Beneficial 
Owners of the 2020 Bonds, as described under “APPENDIX D—BOOK–ENTRY SYSTEM” below. 

 
So long as DTC or its nominee is the sole registered owner of the 2020 Bonds, neither the City, the 

successful bidder(s), nor the Paying Agent will have any responsibility or obligation to any Direct or Indi-
rect Participants of DTC, or the persons for whom they act as nominees, with respect to the payments to or 
the providing of notice for the Direct Participants, Indirect Participants or the Beneficial Owners of the 
2020 Bonds. Under these same circumstances, references herein and in the Bond Ordinance to the 
“Bondowners” or “Registered Owners” of the 2020 Bonds shall mean Cede & Co. and shall not mean the 
Beneficial Owners of the 2020 Bonds. 

 
Tax–Exempt Status of the 2020 Bonds 

 
In the opinion of Skinner Fawcett LLP, Bond Counsel, assuming continuous compliance with certain 

covenants described below: (i) interest on the 2020 Bonds is excluded from gross income pursuant to Sec-
tion 103 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the “Code”), (ii) interest on the 2020 Bonds is 
excluded from alternative minimum taxable income as defined in Section 55(b)(2) of the Code; and (iii) 
interest on the 2020 Bonds is excluded from gross income for purposes of income taxation by the State of 
Idaho. See “TAX MATTERS” herein for a description of this designation. 

 
The 2020 Bonds are not “qualified tax–exempt obligations.” 

 
Professional Services 

 
In connection with the issuance of the 2020 Bonds, the following have served the City in the capacity 

indicated. 
 
Bond Counsel Attorney for the City 
Skinner Fawcett LLP White Peterson 
250 Bobwhite Court, Ste 240 5700 E Franklin Rd, Ste 200 
Boise ID 83706 Nampa ID 83687–7901 
208.345.2663 | f 208.345.2668 208.466.9272 | f 208.466.4405 
rskinner@skinnerfawcett.com mjohnson@whitepeterson.com 
jmcdevitt@skinnerfawcett.com  
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Paying Agent and Bond Registrar Municipal Advisor 
Zions Bancorporation, National Association Zions Public Finance, Inc. 
800 W Main St Ste 700 800 W Main St, Ste 700 
Boise ID 83702 Boise ID 83702 
208.501.7493 208.501.7533 
mark.henson@zionsbancorp.com christian.anderson@zionsbancorp.com 
 

Conditions of Delivery, Anticipated Date, Manner and Place of Delivery 
 
The 2020 Bonds are offered, subject to prior sale, when, as and if issued and received by the successful 

bidder(s) subject to the approval of legality by Skinner Fawcett LLP, Boise, Idaho, Bond Counsel to the 
City, and certain other conditions. Certain legal matters will be passed upon for the City by White Peterson, 
Nampa, Idaho. It is expected that the 2020 Bonds, in book–entry form, will be available for delivery to 
DTC or its agent on or about Wednesday, March 18, 2020. 

 
Continuing Disclosure Agreement 

 
The City will enter into a Continuing Disclosure Agreement (the “Disclosure Undertaking”) for the 

benefit of the Owners of the 2020 Bonds. For a detailed discussion of this disclosure undertaking, previous 
undertakings and timing of submissions see “CONTINUING DISCLOSURE AGREEMENT” below and 
“APPENDIX C—FORM OF CONTINUING DISCLOSURE AGREEMENT.” 

 
Basic Documentation 

 
This OFFICIAL STATEMENT speaks only as of its date and the information contained herein is sub-

ject to change. Brief descriptions of the City, the 2020 Bonds, and the Bond Ordinance are included in this 
OFFICIAL STATEMENT. Such descriptions do not purport to be comprehensive or definitive. All refer-
ences herein to the Bond Ordinance are qualified in their entirety by reference to such document and refer-
ences herein to the 2020 Bonds are qualified in their entirety by reference to the form thereof included in 
the Bond Ordinance. The “basic documentation” which includes the Bond Ordinance, the closing docu-
ments and other documentation, authorizing the issuance of the 2020 Bonds and establishing the rights and 
responsibilities of the City and other parties to the transaction may be obtained from the “contact persons” 
as indicated below. 

 
Contact Persons 

 
As of the date of this OFFICIAL STATEMENT, additional requests for information may be directed 

to Zions Public Finance, Inc., Boise, Idaho, as municipal advisor to the City (the “Municipal Advisor”): 
 

Christian Anderson, Vice President, christian.anderson@zionsbancorp.com 
Zions Public Finance, Inc. 

800 W Main St Ste 700 
Boise ID 83702 
208.501.7533  

 
As of the date of this OFFICIAL STATEMENT, the chief contact persons for the City concerning the 

2020 Bonds are: 
 

Mayor Neil Bradshaw, nbradshaw@ketchumidaho.org  
Grant Gager, Director of Finance & Internal Services, ggager@ketchumcity.org  

City of Ketchum 
480 East Ave. N. (P.O. Box 2315) 

Ketchum ID 83340 
208.726.3841 | f 208.726.8234  

137



 

5 

CONTINUING DISCLOSURE AGREEMENT 
 

Disclosure Undertaking  
 
The City will enter into a Disclosure Undertaking for the benefit of the Owners of the 2020 Bonds to 

send certain information annually and to provide notice of certain events to the Municipal Securities Rule-
making Board (“MSRB”) through its Electronic Municipal Market Access (“EMMA”) pursuant to the re-
quirements of paragraph (b)(5) of Rule 15c2–12 (the “Rule”) adopted by the Securities and Exchange Com-
mission under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended. No person, other than the City, has un-
dertaken, or is otherwise expected, to provide continuing disclosure with respect to the 2020 Bonds. The 
information to be provided on an annual basis, the events which will be noticed on an occurrence basis and 
other terms of the Disclosure Undertaking, including termination, amendment and remedies, are set forth 
in the proposed form of Disclosure Undertaking in “APPENDIX C—PROPOSED FORM OF CONTINU-
ING DISCLOSURE AGREEMENT.” 

 
The Disclosure Undertaking requires the City to submit its annual financial report (Fiscal Year Ending 

September 30) and other operating and financial information on or before March 29 (180 days from the end 
of the Fiscal Year). The City will submit the Fiscal Year 2020 financial report and other operating and 
financial information for the 2020 Bonds on or before March 29, 2021, and annually thereafter on or before 
each March 29. 

 
During the five years prior to the date of this OFFICIAL STATEMENT, the City has not been sub-

ject to the Rule’s requirements for undertakings or disclosure thereunder. 
 
A failure by the City to comply with the Disclosure Undertaking will not constitute a default under the 

Bond Ordinance and the Beneficial Owners of the 2020 Bonds are limited to the remedies described in the 
Undertaking. A failure by the City to comply with the annual disclosure requirements of the Disclosure 
Undertaking must be reported in accordance with the Rule and must be considered by any broker, dealer or 
municipal securities dealer before recommending the purchase or sale of the 2020 Bonds in the secondary 
market. Consequently, such a failure may adversely affect the marketability and liquidity of the 2020 Bonds 
and their market price.  

 
Bond Counsel expresses no opinion as to whether the Undertaking complies with the requirements of 

the Rule. 
 
 

THE 2020 BONDS 
 

General 
 
The 2020 Bonds will be dated the date of their original issuance and delivery 1 (the “Dated Date”) and 

will mature on September 15 of the years and in the amounts and pay interest on the dates and at the rates 
shown on the inside front cover page. 

 
The 2020 Bonds will bear interest from their Dated Date at the rates set forth on the inside cover page 

of this OFFICIAL STATEMENT. Interest on the 2020 Bonds is payable semiannually on each March 15 
and September 15, commencing March 15, 2021. Interest on the 2020 Bonds will be computed on the basis 
of a 360–day year comprised of 12, 30–day months. Zions Bancorporation is the initial Registrar (the “Reg-
istrar”) and Paying Agent for the 2020 Bonds under the Bond Ordinance. If any date for the payment of 
principal or interest on the 2020 Bonds is not a business day, then the payment will be due on the first day 
thereafter that is a business day and no interest will accrue during such period. 

 
1 The anticipated date of delivery is Wednesday, March 18, 2020. 
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The 2020 Bonds will be issued as fully–registered bonds, initially in book–entry form, in the denomi-
nation of $5,000 or any whole multiple thereof, not exceeding the amount of each maturity. 

 
The 2020 Bonds are being issued within the constitutional debt limit imposed on cities in the State of 

Idaho. See “DEBT STRUCTURE OF CITY OF KETCHUM, IDAHO—General Obligation Legal Debt 
Limit and Additional Debt Incurring Capacity” below. 

 
Sources and Uses of Funds 

 
The proceeds from the sale of the 2020 Bonds are estimated to be applied as set forth below: 
 
Sources: 

 Par amount of 2020 Bonds ........................................................................  $ 
 Original issue premium .............................................................................    

 Total ...................................................................................................  $ 

Uses: 

 Deposit to Project Construction Fund .......................................................   $ 
 Underwriter’s discount..............................................................................    
 Costs of Issuance (1) .................................................................................   

 Total ...................................................................................................  $ 
  

(1) Includes legal fees, Municipal Advisor fees, rating agency fees, Bond Registrar and Paying Agent fees, 
rounding amounts and other miscellaneous costs of issuance. 
 

Redemption Provisions 
 
Optional Redemption for the 2020 Bonds. The 2020 Bonds maturing on and after September 15, 2030 

are subject to redemption prior to maturity in whole or in part at the option of the City on March 15, 2030 
(the “First Redemption Date”) or on any date thereafter, from such maturities or parts thereof as shall be 
selected by the City, at the redemption price of 100% of the principal amount to be redeemed plus accrued 
interest thereon to the redemption date, upon not less than 30 days’ prior written notice. Any 2020 Bond 
maturing on or prior to the First Redemption Date are not subject to optional redemption.  

 
Selection for Redemption. If less than all 2020 Bonds of any maturity are to be redeemed, the particular 

2020 Bonds or portion of 2020 Bonds of such maturity to be redeemed will be selected at random by the 
Bond Registrar in such manner as the Bond Registrar in its discretion may deem fair and appropriate. The 
portion of any registered 2020 Bond of a denomination of more than $5,000 to be redeemed will be in the 
principal amount of $5,000 or a whole multiple thereof, and in selecting portions of such 2020 Bonds for 
redemption, the Bond Registrar will treat each such 2020 Bond as representing that number of 2020 Bonds 
of $5,000 denomination that is obtained by dividing the principal amount of such 2020 Bond by $5,000. 

 
Notice of Redemption. Notice of redemption will be given by the Bond Registrar by first class mail, 

postage prepaid, not less than 30 nor more than 60 days prior to the redemption date, to the owner, as of the 
Record Date, as defined under “THE BONDS—Registration and Transfer” below, of each 2020 Bond that 
is subject to redemption, at the address of such owner as it appears on the registration books of the City 
kept by the Bond Registrar, or at such other address as is furnished to the Bond Registrar in writing by such 
owner on or prior to the Record Date. Each notice of redemption will state the Record Date, the principal 
amount, the redemption date, the place of redemption, the redemption price and, if less than all of the 
2020 Bonds are to be redeemed, the distinctive numbers of the 2020 Bonds or portions of 2020 Bonds to 
be redeemed, and will also state that the interest on the 2020 Bonds in such notice designated for redemption 
will cease to accrue from and after such redemption date and that on the redemption date there will become 
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due and payable on each of the 2020 Bonds to be redeemed the principal thereof and interest accrued 
thereon to the redemption date. 

 
Each notice of optional redemption may further state that such redemption will be conditioned upon 

the receipt by the Paying Agent, on or prior to the date fixed for redemption, of moneys sufficient to pay 
the principal of and premium, if any, and interest on such 2020 Bonds to be redeemed and that if such 
moneys have not been so received the notice will be of no force or effect and the City will not be required 
to redeem such 2020 Bonds. In the event that such notice of redemption contains such a condition and such 
moneys are not so received, the redemption will not be made, and the Bond Registrar will within a reason-
able time thereafter give notice, in the manner in which the notice of redemption was given, that such 
moneys were not so received. Any such notice mailed will be conclusively presumed to have been duly 
given, whether or not the Bondowner receives such notice. Failure to give such notice or any defect therein 
with respect to any 2020 Bond will not affect the validity of the proceedings for redemption with respect to 
any other 2020 Bond. 

 
In addition to the foregoing notice, further notice of such redemption will be given by the Bond Regis-

trar to DTC and certain registered securities depositories and national information services as provided in 
the Bond Ordinance, but no defect in such further notice nor any failure to give all or any portion of such 
notice will in any manner affect the validity of a call for redemption if notice thereof is given as prescribed 
above and in the Bond Ordinance. 

 
For so long as a book–entry system is in effect with respect to the Bonds, the Bond Registrar will mail 

notices of redemption to DTC or its successor. Any failure of DTC to convey such notice to any Direct 
Participants or any failure of the Direct Participants or Indirect Participants to convey such notice to any 
Beneficial Owner will not affect the sufficiency of the notice or the validity of the redemption of Bonds. See 
“THE 2020 BONDS—Book–Entry System” below. 

 
Mandatory Sinking Fund Redemption at Bidder’s Option 

 
The 2020 Bonds may be subject to mandatory sinking fund redemption at the option of the successful 

bidder(s). See “OFFICIAL NOTICE OF BOND SALE—Term Bonds and Mandatory Sinking Fund Re-
demption at Bidder’s Option.” 

 
Registration and Transfer; Record Date 

 
In the event the book–entry system is discontinued, any 2020 Bond may, in accordance with its terms, 

be transferred, upon the registration books kept by the Bond Registrar, by the person in whose name it is 
registered, in person or by such owner’s duly authorized attorney, upon surrender of such 2020 Bond for 
cancellation, accompanied by delivery of a duly executed written instrument of transfer in a form approved 
by the Bond Registrar. No transfer will be effective until entered on the registration books kept by the Bond 
Registrar. Whenever any 2020 Bond is surrendered for transfer, the Bond Registrar will authenticate and 
deliver a new fully registered 2020 Bond or 2020 Bonds of the same series, designation, maturity and in-
terest rate and of authorized denominations duly executed by the City, for a like aggregate principal amount. 

 
The 2020 Bonds may be exchanged at the principal corporate office of the Bond Registrar for a like 

aggregate principal amount of fully registered 2020 Bonds of the same series, designation, maturity and 
interest rate of other authorized denominations. 

 
For every such exchange or transfer of the 2020 Bonds, the Bond Registrar must make a charge suffi-

cient to reimburse it for any tax or other governmental charge required to be paid with respect to such 
exchange or transfer of the 2020 Bonds. 
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The Bond Registrar will not be required to transfer or exchange any 2020 Bond (a) after the Record 
Date with respect to any interest payment date to and including such interest payment date, or (b) after the 
Record Date with respect to any redemption of such 2020 Bond. The term “Record Date” means (i) with 
respect to each interest payment date, the day that is 15 days preceding such interest payment date, or if 
such day is not a business day for the Bond Registrar, the next preceding day that is a business day for the 
Bond Registrar, and (ii) with respect to any redemption of any 2020 Bond such Record Date as is specified 
by the Bond Registrar in the notice of redemption, provided that such Record Date will be not less than 
15 calendar days before the mailing of such notice of redemption. 

 
The City, the Bond Registrar and the Paying Agent may treat and consider the person in whose name 

each 2020 Bond is registered in the registration books kept by the Bond Registrar as the holder and absolute 
owner thereof for the purpose of receiving payment of, or on account of, the principal or redemption price 
thereof (on the 2020 Bonds) and interest due thereon and for all other purposes whatsoever. 

 
Book–Entry System 

 
DTC will act as securities depository for the 2020 Bonds. The 2020 Bonds will be issued as fully reg-

istered securities registered in the name of Cede & Co. (DTC’s partnership nominee) or such other name 
as may be requested by an authorized representative of DTC. One fully registered 2020 Bond certificate 
will be issued for each maturity of the 2020 Bonds, each in the aggregate principal amount of such maturity, 
and will be deposited with DTC or a “fast agent” of DTC. See “APPENDIX D—BOOK–ENTRY SYS-
TEM” for a more detailed discussion of the book–entry system and DTC. 

 
Debt Service on the 2020 Bonds 

 

  The 2020 Bonds  
 Payment Date   Principal*   Interest   Period Total   Fiscal Total  

March 15, 2021 .................  $ 0.00    
September 15, 2021 ..........  20,000.00   
March 15, 2022 .................  0.00    
September 15, 2022 ..........  240,000.00   
March 15, 2023 .................  0.00    
September 15, 2023 ..........  250,000.00   
March 15, 2024 .................  0.00    
September 15, 2024 ..........  260,000.00   
March 15, 2025 .................  0.00    
September 15, 2025 ..........  275,000.00   
March 15, 2026 .................  0.00    
September 15, 2026 ..........  285,000.00   
March 15, 2027 .................  0.00    
September 15, 2027 ..........  295,000.00   
March 15, 2028 .................  0.00    
September 15, 2028 ..........  305,000.00   
March 15, 2029 .................  0.00    
September 15, 2029 ..........  320,000.00   
March 15, 2030 .................  0.00    
September 15, 2030 ..........  330,000.00   
March 15, 2031 .................  0.00    
September 15, 2031 ..........  350,000.00   
March 15, 2032 .................  0.00    
September 15, 2032 ..........  365,000.00   
March 15, 2033 .................  0.00    
  
* Preliminary; subject to change. 
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Debt Service on the 2020 Bonds—continued 
 

  The 2020 Bonds  
 Payment Date   Principal*   Interest   Period Total   Fiscal Total  
September 15, 2033 ..........  $ 385,000.00   
March 15, 2034 .................  0.00    
September 15, 2034 ..........  405,000.00   
March 15, 2035 .................  0.00    
September 15, 2035 ..........  425,000.00   
March 15, 2036 .................  0.00    
September 15, 2036 ..........  445,000.00   
March 15, 2037 .................  0.00    
September 15, 2037 ..........  465,000.00     
March 15, 2038 .................  0.00    
September 15, 2038 ..........  490,000.00     
March 15, 2039 .................  0.00    
September 15, 2039 ..........  515,000.00     
March 15, 2040 .................  0.00    
September 15, 2040 ..........  540,000.00     
March 15, 2041 .................  0.00    
September 15, 2041 ..........  565,000.00     
March 15, 2042 .................  0.00    
September 15, 2042 ..........  595,000.00     
March 15, 2043 .................  0.00    
September 15, 2043 ..........  625,000.00     
March 15, 2044 .................  0.00    
September 15, 2044 ..........   655,000.00      
 Totals .........................  $9,405,000.00 $ $ 
  

* Preliminary; subject to change. 
 
 

SECURITY AND SOURCES OF PAYMENT 
 
The 2020 Bonds are general obligations of the City and the full faith, credit and resources of the City 

are pledged for the punctual payment of the principal of and interest on the 2020 Bonds. The 2020 Bonds 
are secured by ad valorem taxes to be levied against all taxable property within the City. More specifically, 
for the purpose of paying the principal of and interest on the 2020 Bonds as the same will become due, the 
City will levy on all taxable property located within the City, in addition to all other taxes, direct annual 
taxes sufficient in amount to provide for the payment of principal of and interest on the 2020 Bonds. The 
taxes, when collected, are required to be applied solely for the purpose of payment of principal and interest 
on the 2020 Bonds and for no other purpose. 

 
The City may, subject to applicable laws, apply other funds available to make payments with respect 

to the 2020 Bonds and thereby reduce the amount of future tax levies for such purpose.  
 
See “FINANCIAL INFORMATION REGARDING THE CITY OF KETCHUM, IDAHO—Property 

Tax Matters” below 
 

Bond Fund for the 2020 Bonds 
 
The Ordinance creates a bond fund for the deposit of revenues and disbursement of payments of debt 

service on the 2020 Bonds (the “Bond Fund”). In the Ordinance, the City covenants to levy and collect 
property taxes sufficient, together with other funds, to pay debt service on the 2020 Bonds, to deposit such 
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revenues into the Bond Fund and to use the funds on deposit in the Bond Fund for no other purpose than 
for payment of principal and interest on the 2020 Bonds as they become due.  

 
The Idaho system of ad valorem tax collection and disbursement does not require counties to segregate 

tax collections dedicated to pay principal and interest on bonded indebtedness of political subdivisions from 
the other revenues the county collects on behalf of the political subdivision. The City maintains certain 
policies and internal controls to ensure that monies received from the County are properly allocated to their 
intended purposes, and that monies received from the bond levy are promptly deposited into the Bond Fund. 
The City also has policies and internal controls in place to prevent withdrawals from the Bond Fund for any 
purpose other than payment of principal and interest on the 2020 Bonds. 

 
The Ordinance pledges the revenues from the bond levy and all funds on deposit in the Bond Fund for 

the payment of principal and interest on the 2020 Bonds.  
 
 

CITY OF KETCHUM, IDAHO 
 

General 
 
The City, incorporated in 1961, covers an area of approximately 3.1 square miles. Located in Blaine 

County, Idaho, the City is situated in central Idaho at the northern end of the Wood River Valley and the 
edge of the Sawtooth National Forest with the Big Wood River running through town. The City lies adjacent 
to the City of Sun Valley, known for its world–class mountain resort. The City had approximately 2,827 
residents according to the 2018 Census estimate.  

 
The primary functions performed by the City include public safety, community development, public 

improvements, planning and zoning, and general administrative services to its residents. 
 

Form of Government 
 
Financial and administrative responsibility for management of the City is vested in a Council–Mayor 

form of government. The Mayor is elected to a four–year term. The City Council consists of four members 
elected by the voters of the City to serve four–year terms. The City Council acts through the passage of 
ordinances, resolutions, and motions. Specific regulatory and ordinance powers are granted by State statute. 
Public hearings are held as required for matters such as land use planning and budgets. 

 
Current members of the City Council and other officers of the City and their respective terms in office 

are as follows: 
 
 Years 
 Office   Person  of Service Expiration of Term 
Mayor .....................................  Neil Bradshaw 2 January 1, 2022 
Council President .................... Michael David 8 January 1, 2024 
Council Member ..................... Amanda Breen 2 January 1, 2022 
Council Member ..................... Courtney Hamilton 2 January 1, 2022 
Council Member ..................... Jim Slanetz 8 January 1, 2024  
City Administrator .................. Suzanne Frick 5 Appointed 
Director of Finance/Internal  
 Services ............................ Grant Gager 3 Appointed 
City Clerk ................................ Robin Crotty 4 Appointed 
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Employee Workforce; No Post–Employment Benefits; Pension System 
 
Employee Workforce. The City employs approximately 61 full–time equivalent employees.  
 
No Post–Employment Benefits. As of the date of this OFFICIAL STATEMENT, the City does not have 

any other post–employment benefits.  
 
Pension System. The City is a member of the Idaho State Public Employees’ Retirement System 

(“PERSI”). PERSI is the administrator of a multiple employer cost–sharing defined benefit public employee 
retirement system. A retirement board (the “PERSI Board”), appointed by the governor and confirmed by 
the legislature, manages the system which includes selecting investment managers to direct the investment, 
exchange and liquidation of assets in the managed accounts and to establish policy for asset allocation and 
other investment guidelines. The PERSI Board is charged with the fiduciary responsibility of administering 
the plan. 

 
PERSI is the administrator of seven fiduciary funds, including three defined benefit retirement plans, 

the Public Employee Retirement Fund Base Plan (“PERSI Base Plan”), the Firefighters’ Retirement Fund, 
and the Judge’s Retirement Fund; two defined contribution plans, the Public Employee Retirement Fund 
Choice Plans 401(k) and 414(k); and two Sick Leave Insurance Reserve Trust Funds, one for State employ-
ers and one for school district employers. 

 
PERSI membership is mandatory for eligible employees of participating employers. Employees must 

be: (i) working 20 hours per week or more; (ii) teachers working a half–time contract or greater; or (iii) per-
sons who are elected or appointed officials. Membership is mandatory for State agency and local school 
district employees, and membership by contract is permitted for participating political subdivisions such as 
cities and counties. On July 1, 2019, PERSI had 72,502 active members, 39,867 inactive members (of whom 
13,536 are entitled to vested benefits), and 48,120 annuitants. As of July 1, 2019, there were 808 public 
employers participating in the PERSI Base Plan. Total membership in PERSI was 160,489. 

 
As of July 1, 2019, PERSI’s actuarial value of assets total $17,239.5 million and the actuarial liabilities 

funded by PERSI total $18,661 million. This means that as of July 1, 2019 PERSI is 92.5% funded. Gov-
ernmental Accounting Standards Board (“GASB”) Statement 25 (Reporting Standards for defined benefit 
pension plans) has replaced Projected Benefits Obligations as the measure of pension plan funding status. 
As required by GASB Statement 25, the PERSI Schedule of Funding Progress shows a Funded Ratio of 
92.5% and an amortization period of 10.6 years for the PERSI Base Plan, based on contribution rates and 
scheduled increases established as of the valuation date. The Schedule of Employer Contributions shows 
that PERSI employers have contributed at least 100% of the Actuarially Required Contributions. 

 
Annual actuarial valuations for PERSI are provided by the private actuarial firm of Milliman, which 

has provided the actuarial valuations for PERSI since PERSI’s inception. Because of the statutory require-
ment that the amortization period for the unfunded actuarial liability be 25 years or less, the PERSI Board, 
at its October 2017 meeting, approved a total contribution rate increase of 1% scheduled to take effect 
July 1, 2019. The current contribution rates are shown below: 
 

 Member  Employer 
 General/ 

Teacher 
Fire/ 
Police 

 General/ 
Teacher 

Fire/ 
Police 

Contribution Rates (1)….…… 7.16% 8.81%  11.94% 12.28% 
  
(1) Rate as of June 30, 2019.  
(Source: PERSI 2019 CAFR for Fiscal Year 2019.) 
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The City reported a liability for its proportionate share of the net pension liability. The net pension 
liability is measured as of July 1 annually, and the total pension liability used to calculate the net pension 
liability is determined by an actuarial valuation as of that date. The City’s proportion of the net pension 
liability is based on the City’s share of contributions in the Base Plan pension plan relative to the total 
contributions of all participating PERSI Base Plan employers. According to the Public Employees Retire-
ment System of Idaho Base Plan Report, on June 30, 2019, the City’s proportion was 0.08652 percent or 
$1,126,984.  

 
PERSI issues a publicly available financial report that includes financial statements and required sup-

plementary information and may be found at http://www.persi.idaho.gov. For a detailed discussion of 
PERSI and the City’s contributions see “APPENDIX A—FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF CITY OF 
KETCHUM, IDAHO FOR FISCAL YEAR 2019–Notes to the Financial Statements–Note 12. EM-
PLOYEE RETIREMENT PLAN” (page A–31). 

 
Risk Management And Cybersecurity 

 
Risk Management. The City manages its risks through the purchase of a general insurance coverage 

policy for public entities through the Idaho Counties Risk Management Program (ICRMP), a program that 
is the primary source of property and casualty loss protection for Idaho local governments including coun-
ties, cities, and special purpose districts. As of the date of this OFFICIAL STATEMENT, all policies are 
current and in force. The City believes its risk management policies and coverages are normal and within 
acceptable coverage limits for the type of services the City provides. See “APPENDIX A—FINANCIAL 
STATEMENTS OF CITY OF KETCHUM, IDAHO FOR FISCAL YEAR 2019–Notes to the Financial 
Statements–Note 10. RISK MANAGEMENT” (page A–30). 

 
Cybersecurity. The City’s insurance through ICRMP covers cybersecurity. The City has implemented 

policy measures to help offset any financial risks that may result from a cybersecurity breach. As with all 
risks to which the City is exposed, loss or breach can result in legal and/or regulatory claims. The City’s 
comprehensive insurance policies are in place to protect the City in those circumstances. 

 
Investment of Funds 

 
The City has a formal investment policy, approved on January 20, 1998, as Resolution No. 681. Addi-

tionally, the City’s investment policy is governed by Idaho Code, Chapter 12 of Title 67, which provides 
authorization for the investment of funds as well as specific direction as to what constitutes an allowable 
investment. City procedures are consistent with the Idaho Code. The Code limits investments to the follow-
ing general types: (i) certain revenue bonds, general obligation bonds, local improvement district bonds and 
registered warrants of State and local governmental entities; (ii) time deposits accounts and tax anticipation 
and interest–bearing notes; (iii) bonds, treasury bills, debentures or other similar obligations issued or guar-
anteed by agencies or instrumentalities of the government of the State of Idaho or the United States; and 
(iv) repurchase agreements. 

 
Local governments, including the City, are also authorized to invest in the Local Government Invest-

ment Pool (“LGIP”), which is managed by the Idaho State Treasurer’s Office. Information on the LGIP 
investments is available from the Idaho State Treasurer. The City does invest in the LGIP. 

 
Investments are stated at cost, except for investments in the deferred compensation agency fund, which 

are reported at market value. Interest income on such investments is recorded as earned in the General Fund 
of the City unless otherwise specified by law. For additional detail regarding the City’s investment policy, 
see also “APPENDIX A—FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF CITY OF KETCHUM, IDAHO FOR FIS-
CAL YEAR 2019–Note 2. CASH AND CASH DEPOSITS” (page A–24). 
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DEMOGRAPHIC INFORMATION 
 

Population 
 

 % % 
 Change from Change from 
  City   Prior Period   County   Prior Period  
2018 Estimate...................................  2,827  5.1% 22,601  5.7% 
2010 Census .....................................  2,689 (10.5) 21,376 12.6 
2000 Census .....................................  3,003 19.0 18,991 40.1 
1990 Census .....................................  2,523 14.7 13,552 37.7 
1980 Census .....................................  2,200 51.3 9,841 71.2 
1970 Census .....................................  1,454 94.9 5,749 25.0 
  
(Source: U.S. Department of Commerce, Bureau of the Census.) 

 
Economic Indicators of the County 

 
Per Capita, Total Personal Income and Median Income 

 

  2018   2017   2016   2015   2014  
Per Capita Income (1) 
 Blaine County ....................................................  $113,780 $107,468 $92,495 $92,402 $86,255 
 % change from prior year ...............................  5.9 9.3 2.5 9.5 8.2 
 State of Idaho .....................................................  43,901 42,094 39,470 38,848 37,186 
 % change from prior year ...............................  4.3 6.6 1.6 4.5 4.1  
Total Personal Income (1) 
 Blaine County ($ in thousands) ..........................  $2,571,549 $2,394,060 $2,161,559 $2,076,031 $1,880,615 
 % change from prior year ...............................  7.4 10.8 4.1 10.4 8.9 
 State of Idaho ($ in millions) .............................  77,012 72,355 68,445 65,825 61,827 
 % change from prior year ...............................  6.4 5.7 4.0 6.5 5.5 
Median Income (2) 
 Blaine County ....................................................  $76,113 $68,101 $66,210 $65,272 $63,490 
 % change from prior year ...............................  11.8 2.9 1.4 2.8 (6.5) 
 State of Idaho .....................................................  55,524 52,280 51,647 48,311 47,572 
 % change from prior year ...............................  6.2 1.2 6.9 1.6 2.0 
  
(1) Source: Bureau of Economic Analysis, U.S. Department of Commerce. 
(2) Source: U.S. Census Bureau. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

(The remainder of this page has been intentionally left blank.)  
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Largest Employers  
 
The following is a list of the largest employers in the County: 
 

 Firm/Location   Business   Employees  

Sun Valley Resort ..............................................  Mountain resort facilities 1,000–2,000 
Blaine County School District ...........................  Education 500–750 
Atkinsons Market ...............................................  Supermarkets and other grocery 250–500 
Power Engineers ................................................  Engineering services 250–500 
St. Luke’s Wood River Medical Center .............  General medicinal and surgical hospital 250–500 
Albertson’s Grocery ...........................................  Supermarkets and other grocery 100–250 
Blaine County ....................................................  Local government 100–250 
Community School ............................................  Educational services 100–250 
IEG Zenergy LLC ..............................................  Fitness and recreational sports center 100–250 
Ketchum, City of ................................................  Local Government 100–250 
Webb Landscaping .............................................  Administrative support and waste mgmt. 100–250 
Aspen Skiing Company aka Four Mtn. Sports ..  Leisure and hospitality 50–100 
Rocky Mountain Hardware ................................  Hardware merchant wholesaler 50–100 
The Valley Club .................................................  Leisure and hospitality 50–100 
Wood River Community YMCA .......................  Leisure and hospitality 50–100 
  
(Source: Q1 2018-Q3 2019 average; Quarterly Census of Employment & Wages, Idaho Department of Labor.)  

 
Labor Market Data of the County and Employment by Industry 

 
   2018   2017   2016   2015   2014  
Total civilian work force ..............................................  12,323 12,277 11,825 11,816 11,456 
Unemployed .................................................................  291 311 317 424 515 
Percent of labor force unemployed ..............................  2.4 2.5 3.1 3.6 4.5 
Total employment ........................................................  12,032 11,966 11,454 11,391 10,941 

Total covered wages ....................................................  13,027 12,946 12,449 12,388 11,912 

Agriculture ...................................................................  118 127 117 115 127 
Mining ..........................................................................  30 26 – – – 
Construction .................................................................  1,775 1,685 1,500 1,563 1,293 
Manufacturing ..............................................................  385 417 417 438 428 
Trade, Utilities, and Transportation .............................  1,930 1,935 1,923 1,892 1,859 
Information ..................................................................  192 158 160 161 146 
Financial activities .......................................................  636 644 574 550 563 
Professional and Business Services .............................  1,582 1,615 1,587 1,572 1,481 
Educational and Health Services..................................  1,190 1,132 1,091 1,042 1,069 
Leisure and Hospitality ................................................  3,330 3,327 3,211 3,117 3,031 
Other Services ..............................................................  536 468 440 451 454 
Government..................................................................  1,322 1,411 1,420 1,449 1,461 
  
(Source: Idaho Department of Labor.)  
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Construction Value of the City  
 

Year 
Permits 
Issued 

New  
Residential 

Value 

New Non-
Residential 

Value 

Repairs/  
Additions/ 
Remodel 

Total  
Construction 

Value 
2019…………… 128 $34,662,565 $ 3,800,000 $18,223,558 $56,686,123 
2018………………. 108 9,090,137 20,262,879 17,079,008 46,432,024 
2017………………. 129 7,563,690 8,386,750 15,188,343 31,138,783 
2016………………. 107 41,146,296 31,600,000 9,956,867 83,850,719 
2015………………. 103 12,372,766 31,750,000 7,853,241 51,976,007 

  
(Source: The City of Ketchum Construction Activity Report.) 

 
Rate of Unemployment—Annual Average 

 
  The  State United 
  Year   County (1)  of Idaho (1)  States  

 2019 (2) ............................  2.6% 2.9% 3.5% 
 2018 .................................  2.4 2.8 3.9 
 2017 .................................  2.5 3.2 4.4 
 2016 .................................  3.1 3.8 4.9 
 2015 .................................  3.6 4.2 5.3 
 2014 .................................  4.5 4.9 6.2 

  
(1) Source: State of Idaho Department of Labor. 
(2) Preliminary; subject to change. As of November 2019 only; seasonally adjusted. 
 

(Source: U.S Bureau of Labor Statistics.) 
 
 

DEBT STRUCTURE OF THE CITY OF KETCHUM, IDAHO 
 

Outstanding Municipal Debt 
 

Outstanding General Obligation Bonded Indebtedness 

 
   Original  Current 

   Principal Final Principal 
 Series   Purpose   Amount   Maturity Date   Outstanding  

2020 (a)  ........................  Fire station $9,405,000* September 15, 2044 $9,405,000* 
2007 (1) .........................  Equipment 1,555,000 August 1, 2021  280,000 
 Total outstanding general obligation debt .....................................................................  $9,685,000 
  

* Preliminary; subject to change. 
(a) For purposes of this OFFICIAL STATEMENT, the 2020 Bonds will be considered issued and outstanding. Rated 

“___” by Moody’s Investors Service (“Moody’s”) as of the date of this OFFICIAL STATEMENT. 
(1) Not rated; no rating applied for. These bonds were privately purchased. 

 
 
 
 

148



 

16 

Outstanding Water Revenue Bonded Indebtedness 

 
   Original  Current 

   Principal Final Principal 
 Series   Purpose   Amount   Maturity Date   Outstanding  

2016 ..............................  Refunding $1,697,000  September 15, 2027 $1,268,000 
2015B (2) ......................  Refunding 2,310,000 September 15, 2034  2,230,000 
 Total outstanding water revenue debt ............................................................................  $3,498,000 
  

(1) Not rated. No rating applied for. These bonds were privately placed.  
(2) These bonds were issued through Idaho Bond Bank Authority and are payable from the net revenues pledge of 

the City’s water system and sales tax intercept. The Idaho Bond Bank Authority is rated “Aa1” by Moody’s as of 
the date of this OFFICIAL STATEMENT. 
 

Outstanding Wastewater Revenue Bonded Indebtedness 

 
   Original  Current 

   Principal Final Principal 
 Series   Purpose   Amount   Maturity Date   Outstanding  

2014 (1) .........................  Refunding 1,950,000 September 15, 2025 $1,315,000 
  

(1) These bonds were issued through Idaho Bond Bank Authority and are payable from the net revenues pledge of 
the City’s sewer system and sales tax intercept. The Idaho Bond Bank Authority is rated “Aa1” by Moody’s as 
of the date of this OFFICIAL STATEMENT. 
 

Future Issuance of Debt; Other Financial Considerations 
 
Future issuance of debt. Other than the issuance of the 2020 Bonds (and any refunding opportunities) 

the City does not anticipate the issuance of any other general obligation debt within the next three years; 
however, the City reserves the right to issue any bonds or other obligations as its capital needs may require. 

 
Other Financial Considerations. The City has also entered into a capital lease agreement for financing 

its capital equipment needs. As of Fiscal Year 2019, the present value of the minimum lease payments of 
the City’s capital leases totals $709,069, with annual payments, subject to appropriation, scheduled through 
Fiscal Year 2034. See “APPENDIX A—FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF CITY OF KETCHUM, IDAHO 
FOR FISCAL YEAR 2019–Notes to the Financial Statements–Note 5. Capital Leases” (page A–28). 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

(The remainder of this page has been intentionally left blank.) 
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Debt Service Schedule of Outstanding General Obligation Bonds By Fiscal Year

$9,405,000* $1,550,000 Totals*
Series 2020 Series 2007 Total Total Total

Principal* Interest (a) Principal Interest Principal Interest Debt Service

2019.............  0$                 0$                     131,000$   18,007$    131,000$      18,007$         149,007$        

2020.............  0 0  137,000 12,336 137,000 12,336 149,336
2021.............  20,000 667,894  143,000 6,335 163,000 674,229 837,229
2022.............  240,000  446,950  – – 240,000 446,950 686,950
2023.............  250,000 437,350  – – 250,000 437,350 687,350
2024.............  260,000 427,350  – – 260,000 427,350 687,350

  
2025.............  275,000 416,950  – – 275,000 416,950 691,950
2026.............  285,000 405,950  – – 285,000 405,950 690,950
2027.............  295,000 394,550  – – 295,000 394,550 689,550
2028.............  305,000 382,750  – – 305,000 382,750 687,750
2029.............  320,000 370,550 – – 320,000 370,550 690,550

   
2030.............  330,000 357,750 – – 330,000 357,750 687,750
2031….........  350,000 341,250 – – 350,000 341,250 691,250
2032.............  365,000 323,750 – – 365,000 323,750 688,750
2033.............  385,000 305,500 – – 385,000 305,500 690,500
2034.............  405,000 286,250 – – 405,000 286,250 691,250

    
2035.............  425,000 266,000 – – 425,000 266,000 691,000
2036….........  445,000 244,750 – – 445,000 244,750 689,750
2037.............  465,000 222,500 – – 465,000 222,500 687,500
2038.............  490,000 199,250 – – 490,000 199,250 689,250
2039.............  515,000 174,750 – – 515,000 174,750 689,750

    
2040.............  540,000 149,000 – – 540,000 149,000 689,000
2041.............  565,000 122,000 – – 565,000 122,000 687,000
2042.............  595,000 93,750 – – 595,000 93,750 688,750
2043.............  625,000 64,000 – – 625,000 64,000 689,000
2044.............  655,000 32,750 – – 655,000 32,750 687,750

Totals...........  9,405,000$   7,133,544$       411,000$   36,678$    9,816,000$   7,170,222$    16,986,222$   

* Preliminary; subject to change.
(a) Preliminary; subject to change. Interest has been estimated at an average interest rate of 4.9% per annum.

(Source: the Municipal Advisor.)

Fiscal Year
Ending
June 30
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Debt Service Schedule of Outstanding Water Revenue Bonds By Fiscal Year

Totals
Total Total Total

Principal Interest Principal Interest Principal Interest Debt Service

2019...............  143,000$     24,551$    30,000$       110,075$      173,000$     134,626$    307,626$     

2020...............  145,000 22,064 30,000 109,475  175,000 131,539 306,539
2021...............  151,000 19,540 30,000 108,575  181,000 128,115 309,115
2022...............  152,000  16,912 30,000  107,675  182,000 124,587 306,587
2023...............  157,000 14,269 30,000 106,475  187,000 120,744 307,744
2024...............  162,000 11,537 30,000 105,500  192,000 117,037 309,037

  
2025...............  162,000 8,717 35,000 104,000  197,000 112,717 309,717
2026...............  166,000 5,899 35,000 102,250  201,000 108,149 309,149
2027...............  173,000 3,010 30,000 100,500  203,000 103,510 306,510
2028...............  – – 255,000 99,000  255,000 99,000 354,000
2029...............  – – 270,000 86,250 270,000 86,250 356,250

   
2030...............  – – 285,000 72,750 285,000 72,750 357,750
2031...............  – – 295,000 58,500 295,000 58,500 353,500
2032...............  – – 310,000 43,750 310,000 43,750 353,750
2033...............  – – 330,000 28,250 330,000 28,250 358,250
2034...............  – – 235,000 11,750 235,000 11,750 246,750

Totals.............  1,411,000$  126,499$  2,260,000$  1,354,775$   3,671,000$  1,481,274$ 5,152,274$  

Total
Debt 

Principal Interest Service

 185,000$     71,300$    256,300$     
 

 195,000 65,750 260,750
 205,000 56,000 261,000
 215,000  45,750 260,750
 220,000 35,000 255,000
 230,000 24,000 254,000

 
 250,000 12,500 262,500
 1,500,000$  310,300$  1,810,300$  

(Source: the Municipal Advisor.)

2023................
2024................

2025................
Totals..............

June 30

2019................

2020................
2021................
2022................

Debt Service Schedule of Outstanding Wastewater Revenue Bonds By Fiscal Year

Fiscal Year
Ending

$1,950,000
Series 2014

$2,310,000
Series 2015B

Fiscal Year
Ending
June 30

$1,697,000
Series 2016
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Overlapping and Underlying General Obligation Debt 
 

     Entity’s  
 2019 City’s City’s General City’s 
  Taxable Portion of Tax- Per- Obligation Portion of 
 Taxing Entity   Value (1)   able Value   centage   Debt (1)   G.O. Debt  

Overlapping: 

Blaine County ..........  $10,625,527,428 $3,142,872,142 29.6% $5,090,000 $1,506,640 

Underlying: 

 Total underlying .............................................................................................................   0 

Total overlapping and underlying general obligation debt ...................................................  $ 1,506,640 
Total direct general obligation bonded indebtedness* ..........................................................   9,685,000 

Total direct and overlapping general obligation debt* .........................................................  $11,311,640 
  

This table excludes any additional principal amounts attributable to unamortized original issue bond premium and 
deferred amount on refunding. 

 
* Preliminary; subject to change. 
(1) Taxing entity’s general obligation debt includes all bonds backed by a general obligation pledge including self-

supporting general obligation bonds and limited tax debt. 
 

Debt Ratios 
 
The following table sets forth the ratios of general obligation debt (excluding any additional principal 

amounts attributable to unamortized original issue bond premium and deferred amount on refunding) that 
is expected to be paid from taxes levied specifically for such debt and not from other revenues over the 
taxable value of property within the City, the estimated market value of such property and the population 
of the City. The State’s general obligation debt is not included in the debt ratios because the State currently 
levies no property tax for payment of general obligation debt. 

 
   To 2018 
 To 2019 To 2019 Population 
 Taxable Market Estimate Per 
  Value (1)   Value (2)   Capita (3)  
Direct General Obligation Debt* ....................................  0.31% 0.30% $3,426 
Direct and Overlapping General Obligation Debt* ........  0.36 0.35 3,959 
  

* Preliminary; subject to change. 
(1) Based on a 2019 Taxable Value of $3,142,872,142, which excludes Urban Renewal value. 
(2) Based on a 2019 Market Value of $3,229,727,655, which excludes Urban Renewal. 
(3) Based on 2018 Census of 2,827 by the U.S. Census Bureau. 

 
See “FINANCIAL INFORMATION REGARDING THE CITY OF KETCHUM, IDAHO—Taxable 

Value of Property” below. 
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General Obligation Legal Debt Limit and Additional Debt Incurring Capacity 
 
Section 50–1019, Idaho Code, establishes limits on voter–approved general obligation debt for Idaho 

cities to an amount not to exceed 2% of the taxable value for assessment purposes, less the aggregate out-
standing voter–approved general obligation bond indebtedness. The legal debt limit and additional debt 
incurring capacity of the City are based on the taxable value for 2019, and are calculated as follows: 

 
2019 Taxable Value (1) ............................................................................................  $3,437,767,748 

“Taxable Value” times 2% equals the “Debt Limit” ................................................  $68,755,355 
Less: current outstanding general obligation debt* ..................................................   (9,685,000) 

Estimated additional debt incurring capacity* .........................................................  $58,070,355 
  
(1) Includes Urban Renewal value.  
* Preliminary; subject to change. 

 
No Defaulted Obligations 

 
The City has never failed to pay principal of and interest on any of its financial obligations when due. 
 
 

FINANCIAL INFORMATION REGARDING THE CITY OF KETCHUM, IDAHO 
 

Fund Structure; Accounting Basis 
 
The government–wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement 

focus and the accrual basis of accounting, as are the proprietary fund and fiduciary fund financial state-
ments. Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred, regard-
less of the timing of related cash flows. Property taxes are recognized as revenues in the year for which 
they are levied. Grants and similar items are recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements 
imposed by the provider have been met. 

 
Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources management 

focus and modified accrual basis of accounting. With this measurement focus, only current assets and cur-
rent liabilities generally are included on the balance sheet. Under the modified accrual basis of accounting, 
revenues are recognized when susceptible to accrual (when they become both measurable and available). 
“Measurable” means the amount of the transaction can be determined and “available” means collectible 
within the current period or soon enough thereafter to be used to pay liabilities of the current period. The 
City considers property taxes available if they are collected within 30 days after year end. A 90–day avail-
ability period is used for revenue recognition for all other governmental fund revenues. Expenditures are 
recorded when the related fund liability is incurred. Principal and interest on general long-term debt are 
recorded as fund liabilities when due. 

 
Property taxes, franchise taxes, licenses, and interest associated with the current fiscal period are all 

considered to be susceptible to accrual and so have been recognized as revenues of the current fiscal period. 
Only the portion of special assessments receivable due within the current fiscal period is considered to be 
susceptible to accrual as revenue of the current period. All other revenue items are considered to be meas-
urable and available only when cash is received by the government. 
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Budget and Budgetary Process 
 
As required by Idaho Code Section 50–1002, the City Council shall, prior to passing the annual appro-

priation ordinance, prepare a budget estimating the revenues and expenditures for the ensuing fiscal year. 
After proper publication, a public hearing is held for any interested person to appear and show cause why 
such proposed budget should or should not be adopted. 

 
City Council may amend the budget during the fiscal year by following the same procedure as used in 

adopting the original appropriation ordinance. However, in order to amend the budget to a greater amount 
than originally adopted, additional revenue must accrue to the City equal to the proposed expenditures. 

 
Sources of General Fund Revenues 

 
Set forth below are brief descriptions of the various sources of revenues available to the City’s general 

fund. The percentage of total general fund revenues represented by each source is based on the City’s Fiscal 
Year 2019 period (total general fund revenues were $10,158,694). 

 
Property Taxes—Approximately 42% (or $4,292,095) of general fund revenues are from property 

taxes, including interest on delinquent taxes. 
 
Fees and Charges for Services—Approximately 32% (or $3,291,704) of general fund revenues are 

from fees and charges for services. 
 
State of Idaho Shared Revenue—Approximately 16% (or $1,584,669) of general fund revenues are 

from State shared revenues, including general revenue, liquor receipts, highway user collections, and State 
sales tax. 

 
Franchises, Licenses, and Permits—Approximately 7% (or $702,952) of general fund revenues are 

from franchises, licenses, and permits. 
 
County Court and Parking Fines—Approximately 1% (or $99,080) of general fund revenues are col-

lected from county court and parking fines. 
 
Earnings on Investments—Approximately 1% (or $81,545) of general fund revenues are collected from 

earnings on investments. 
 
Miscellaneous and Reimbursements—Approximately 1% (or $81,096) of general fund revenues are 

miscellaneous and reimbursement revenue. 
 
Penalties/Interest on Property Taxes; Proceeds from Sales of Assets—Less than 1% (or $25,553) of 

general fund revenues are collected penalties/interest on property taxes and from proceeds from sales of 
assets. 

 
Financial Summaries 

 
The summaries contained herein were extracted from the City’s audited financial reports. The summar-

ies themselves have not been unaudited.  
 

The administration of the City prepared a narrative discussion, overview, and analysis of the financial 
activities of the City for Fiscal Year 2019. See “APPENDIX A—FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF CITY 
OF KETCHUM, IDAHO FOR FISCAL YEAR 2019–Management’s Discussion and Analysis” (after the 
Independent Auditor’s Report). 
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2019 2018 2017 2016 2015
Assets and deferred outflows of resources

Assets
Cash and deposits………………………………………… 10,247,322$  9,704,570$    10,211,611$  8,840,199$    4,545,528$    
Accounts receivables & prepaid expenses………………… 51,762 54,498 56,937 13,594 30,180
Taxes receivable…………………………………………… 270,771 237,022 236,717 220,307 294,987
Due from other governments……………………………… 455,901 430,376 424,162 401,351 427,098
Restricted cash…....………………………………………  502,506 475,755 362,242 568,564 657,110
Other assets…....................................................................  2,026 2,217 ─   ─   ─  

Totals…...………………………………………… 11,530,288 10,904,438 11,291,669 10,044,015 5,954,903
Capital assets
Land ………………………….…………………………… 8,824,418 8,824,418 4,363,269 4,363,269 4,363,269
Construction in progress…………………………………… 240,196 524,626 122,216 36,043 36,043
Infrastructure……………………………………………… 2,839,118 2,349,090 1,384,809 1,384,809 1,322,932
Buildings and improvements……………………………… 35,556,115 34,124,116 30,776,517 30,653,702 30,626,306
Vehicles and equipment…………………………………… 9,126,786 8,108,298 7,590,383 8,110,116 7,965,924
Accumulated depreciation………………………………… (23,586,417) (21,481,828) (20,535,543) (20,936,454) (20,098,221)

Total capital assets………………………………… 33,000,216 32,448,720 23,701,651 23,611,485 24,216,253

Total assets………………………………………… 44,530,504 43,353,158 34,993,320 33,655,500 30,171,156
Deferred outflows of resources

Pension activity…………………………………………… 146,717 206,161 230,585 885,173 589,232

Total assets and deferred outflows of resources…… 44,677,221$  43,559,319$  35,223,905$  34,540,673$  30,760,388$  
Liabilities, deferred inflows of resources and net position  

Liabilities
Accounts and interest payable……………………………  125,516 129,752 74,576 191,219 140,374
Long─term liabilities  

Portion due or payable within on year ………………… 546,955 489,000 473,000 435,000 441,000
Portion due or payable after one year:  

Bonds payable………………………………………… 5,255,114 5,093,000 5,587,000 6,085,000 6,688,000
Unamortized bond discount…………………………  (28,650) (31,881) (35,202) (38,343) ─  

Unamortized bond premium………………………… 281,358 301,978 320,821 339,190 347,729
Net pension liability………………………………… 987,602 1,179,132 1,361,816 1,739,214 1,171,806
Compensated absences……………………………… 379,594 234,495 163,786 176,883 186,805

Total liabilities……………………………………  7,547,489 7,395,476 7,945,797 8,928,163 8,975,714
Deferred inflows of resources

From pension activities…………………………………… 452,841 185,709 204,281 568,830 755,831
Total deferred inflows of resources………………  452,841 185,709 204,281 568,830 755,831

Net position  
Net investment in capital assets.……………………………… 26,945,439 26,596,623 17,356,032 16,790,638 16,739,524
Restricted for:

Debt service…....................................................................  212,000 212,000 212,000 388,274 557,948
Other purposes…................................................................  290,506 263,755 150,242 180,290 99,162

Unrestricted…………..……………………………………… 9,228,946 8,905,756 9,355,553 7,684,478 3,632,209
Total net position……………………..…………… 36,676,891 35,978,134 27,073,827 25,043,680 21,028,843
Total liabilities, deferred inflows of resources and
net position………………………………………… 44,677,221$  43,559,319$  35,223,905$  34,540,673$  30,760,388$  

 

(Source: Information taken from the City’s audited financial statements, compiled by the Municipal Advisor.)

City of Ketchum, Idaho

Statement of Net Position

(This summary has not been audited)

As of September 30

Primary Government
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2019 2018 2017 2016 2015
Governmental activities

General government…………………………  (1,978,964)$  3,288,709$    (1,750,877) (1,172,819)$  (1,107,875)$  
Public Protection:      

Public safety…………………….…………  (4,709,404) (3,521,555) (2,410,771) (2,598,824) (3,068,823)
Streets………………………………………… (2,123,215) (1,509,475) (1,857,211) (1,315,945) (1,391,749)
Parks and recreation…………………………… (473,134) (330,173) (474,917) (382,447) (852,861)
Transportation………….……………………… (3,172,440) (3,083,953) (2,772,833) (2,823,892) (2,266,522)
Affordable housing…......................................  109,760 (70,000) (70,000) (70,000) (12,000)
Interest on long-term debt…………………… (18,008) (23,400) (28,898) (33,631) (37,644)
Unallocated depreciation expense…………… ─   ─   (390,035) (317,029) (324,425)

Total governmental activities………… (12,365,405) (5,249,847) (9,755,542) (8,714,587) (9,061,899)
Business type activities

Water…............................................................ 538,229 426,571 667,401 233,375 154,222
Wastewater…................................................... 693,749 437,203 116,093 306,266 445,725
Interest on long-term debt…………………… (200,176) (212,042) (219,043) (283,125) (260,445)

Total business type activities…………  1,031,802 651,732 564,451 256,516 339,502

Total city…...........................................  (11,333,603) (4,598,115) (9,191,091) (8,458,071) (8,722,397)
Changes in net position

General revenues
Property taxes……………………………… 4,292,095 4,135,397 3,961,077 3,839,087 3,700,563
Local option sales tax……………………… 4,973,422 4,643,332 4,401,347 4,041,716 3,893,798
Franchise, licenses, permits………………… 971,701 1,239,003 1,055,252 2,973,012 1,034,170
State of Idaho revenue sharing……………… 966,466 954,367 908,254 857,994 830,033
State of Idaho sales tax……………………… 102,535 96,317 90,168 87,447 83,776
State of Idaho liquor receipts……………… 381,349 369,662 343,611 311,194 282,132
State of Idaho highway user collections…… 134,319 128,457 127,271 126,579 94,738
Penalty and interest on property taxes……… 13,801 12,694 10,657 22,976 12,442
County court fines…………………………  99,080 25,998 26,908 42,248 34,501
Gain (loss) on sale of assets….……………  (96,630) 1,352,614 ─   ─   ─  

Earnings on investments…………………… 230,484 177,421 89,056 44,978 20,235
Miscellaneous.……………………………… 81,396 174,806 105,048 201,603 19,415
Amortization of bond premium…………… 20,619 18,843 18,369 8,539 474
Amortization of bond discount……………  (3,231) (3,321) 3,140 ─   ─  

Gain (loss) on pension activities…………… (135,046) 176,831 87,360 (84,466) 66,669
Total general revenues and transfers…… 12,032,360 13,502,421 11,221,238 12,472,907 10,072,946

Change in net position…………………………… 698,757 8,904,306 2,030,147 4,014,836 1,350,549
Net position–beginning………………...………  35,978,134 27,073,828 25,043,680 21,028,844 21,254,558

Prior period adjustment……………………… ─   ─   ─   ─   (1,576,264)

Net position–ending……………………..……… 36,676,891$  35,978,134$  27,073,827$  25,043,680$  21,028,843$  
  

(1)

(Source: Information taken from the City’s audited financial statements, compiled by the Municipal Advisor.)

This report is presented is summary format concerning the single item of “Net (Expense) Revenue and Changes in Net Assets”
and is not intended to be complete.

Net (Expense) Revenue and Changes in Net Assets (1)
Fiscal Year Ended September 30

City of Ketchum,  Idaho

Statement of Activities

Total Primary Government

(This summary has not been audited)
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City of Ketchum, Idaho

Balance Sheet—Governmental Fund Types

General Fund

(This summary has not been audited)

Fiscal Year Ended September 30
2019 2018 2017 2016 2015

Assets
Cash and deposits…………………..……………… 3,041,390$  2,699,843$  2,887,659$  3,093,746$  2,635,190
Taxes receivable…………………………………… 26,473 28,255 24,384 24,786 60,786
Accounts receivable…...........................................  2,026 2,217
Due from other governments……………………… 395,668 391,212 379,727 362,245 328,599

Total assets…………………………………… 3,465,557$  3,121,527$  3,291,770$  3,480,777$  3,024,575$  

Liabilities
Accounts payable…………………..……………… 

Total liabilities…............................................. 60,723 77,883 5,088 ─   ─  

Fund balances  
Unassigned─general fund……………..………… 3,404,834 2,952,292 3,196,751 3,391,582 1,684,302
Assigned………………………………………… ─   91,352 89,931 89,195 1,340,273

Total fund balance…………………………… 3,404,834 3,043,644 3,286,682 3,480,777 3,024,575
Total liabilities and fund balance……………  3,465,557$  3,121,527$  3,291,770$  3,480,777$  3,024,575$  

(Source: Information taken from the City’s audited financial statements, compiled by the Municipal Advisor.)
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City of Ketchum, Idaho

    Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance

Governmental Fund Types—General Fund

(This summary has not been audited)

Fiscal Year Ended September 30
2019 2018 2017 2016 2015

Revenues
Property taxes………………………………… 4,292,095$  4,135,397$  3,961,077$  3,839,087$  3,700,563$  
Franchise fees……….………………………… 702,952 960,223 989,228 932,492 778,383
State of Idaho revenue sharing………………… 966,466 954,367 908,254 857,994 830,033
State of Idaho sales tax………………………… 102,535 96,317 90,168 87,447 83,776
State of Idaho liquor receipts…………………  381,349 369,662 343,611 311,194 282,132
State of Idaho highway user collections………  134,319 128,457 127,271 126,579 94,738
Penalty and interest on property taxes………… 13,801 12,694 10,657 22,976 12,442
County court fines……………………………  99,080 25,998 26,908 42,248 34,501
Fees and charges for services……….………… 3,291,704 3,327,107 3,123,119 2,073,073 2,120,703
Proceeds from the sale of assets…...................  11,752 ─   ─   ─   ─  

Grants and contributions……………………… ─   6,271 57,500 3,605 3,000
Earnings on investments………………………  81,545 56,490 30,780 20,550 9,993
Miscellaneous…………………………………  81,096 72,930 29,348 122,003 19,407

Total revenues……………………………  10,158,694 10,145,913 9,697,921 8,439,248 7,969,671
Expenditures  

General government…………………………… 4,167,474 3,859,516 3,545,582 2,585,456 1,901,376
Public safety…………………………………… 3,925,212 3,727,835 3,355,526 3,322,996 3,424,325
Streets…………………………………………  1,987,424 1,470,612 1,792,080 1,413,715 1,402,882
Parks and recreation…………………………… 467,643 485,810 539,788 556,392 1,023,440

Total expenditures………………………… 10,547,753 9,543,773 9,232,976 7,878,559 7,752,023
Excess of revenues over (under) expenditures…… (389,059) 602,140 464,945 560,689 217,648

Other financing sources (uses)  
Operating transfers from other funds………  1,164,256 1,341,110 1,141,892 1,061,556 595,359
Operating transfers to other funds…………… (414,007) (2,186,288) (1,800,932) (523,889) (203,145)

Total other financing sources (uses)……… 750,249 (845,178) (659,040) 537,667 392,214
Net change in fund balance……………………… 361,190 (243,038) (194,095) 1,098,356 609,862
Fund balance at beginning of year………………  3,043,644 3,286,682 3,480,777 2,382,421 2,414,713

Fund balance at end of year……………………… 3,404,834$  3,043,644$  3,286,682$  3,480,777$  3,024,575$  

(Source: Information taken from the City’s audited financial statements, compiled by the Municipal Advisor.)
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Property Tax Matters 
 
Tax Levy Procedure. The City’s tax levy is certified to the board of county commissioners in September 

and taxes are due and payable one–half on December 20th and one–half on June 20th of the following 
calendar year. The County Treasurer disburses tax receipts to the City approximately one month after the 
statutory payable dates. 

 
Ad Valorem Tax Limitation. Idaho Code Section 63–802 provides that no taxing district may certify a 

budget request for an amount of ad valorem tax revenues (excluding revenue from levies that are voter-
approved for bonds, override levies, or supplemental levies) to finance an annual budget that exceeds the 
greater of (i) the dollar amount of ad valorem taxes certified for its annual budget for any one of the pre-
ceding three years, increased by a growth factor of not to exceed three (3) percent plus the amount of 
revenue that would have been generated by applying the levy of the previous year to any increase in market 
value subject to taxation resulting from new construction; or (ii) the dollar amount of ad valorem taxes 
certified for its annual budget during the last year in which a levy was made; or (iii) the dollar amount of 
the actual budget request, if the taxing district is newly created; or (iv) in the case of school districts, the 
restriction imposed in Section 33–802, Idaho Code. The statute further provides that a board of county 
commissioners may set a levy that exceeds the limitation above if it has been approved by a majority of the 
taxing district’s electors voting on the question at an election called for that purpose. The State Tax Com-
mission must receive the resolution that has been adopted formally by the taxing district requesting the 
estimated ad valorem tax increase resulting from the budget request as certified in dollars to the board of 
county commissioners or in the case of county budgets, to the State Tax Commission, in accordance with 
specific procedures.  

 
The limitation on the amount of property tax revenues to finance an annual budget does not include 

revenue from levies that are voter approved for bonds, override levies or supplemental levies.  
 
Ad valorem taxes, including delinquent taxes and penalties, are collected by the Treasurer of the County 

and are remitted to the City during the month following collection. 
 

Direct and Overlapping Tax Rates of the City 
 

  Tax Rate (Fiscal Year) (1)  
  2019   2018   2017   2016   2015  
Direct Tax Rates:  
 The City ....................................  .001409946 .001421020 .001417901 .001408837 .001411947 

Overlapping Rates:  
 The County ...............................  .001116632 .001142941 .001160382 .001145283 .001157151 
 Ambulance ................................  .000212437 .000216912 .000219701 .000216114 .000216587 
 Recreation .................................  .000136563 .000139446 .000141238 .000138935 .000139246 
 School District No. 61 ..............  .003562482 .003803070 .004010731 .004090400 .004242661 
 Ketchum Cemetery District ......  .000011691 .000011854 .000011885 .000011642 .000011644 
 Big Wood Flood Control #9 .....  .000010832 .000011053 .000011206 .000011446 .000012036 

Total Direct and Overlapping 
Tax Rate (2) ............................  .006460581 .006746296 .006973044 .007022657 .007191272 

  
(1) These tax rates represent a taxing district within the City with the highest combined total tax rates of all over-

lapping taxing districts. 
(2) Includes total City tax rate. 
 
(Source: The Office of the County Treasurer; compiled by the Municipal Advisor.) 
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Taxable Value of Property 
 

The County Assessor annually assign “valuation of market value for assessment purposes” to all taxable 
real and personal property within the County. The following table shows the history of the values for the 
City during the last five years:  

 

Tax Year 
Full Market 
Value (1) (2) 

% 
Change 

Homeowner’s 
Exemption 

Taxable  
Assessed 

Value (2) (3) 
% 

Change 
Urban Renewal 

Value (4) 
2019……. $3,524,623,261 5.7 $86,855,513 $3,437,767,748 5.8 $294,895,606 
2018……. 3,333,308,298 5.0 83,019,466 3,250,288,832 5.0 260,102,598 
2017……. 3,176,049,851 3.7 80,590,886 3,095,458,965 3.6 210,952,668 
2016……. 3,061,590,401 4.7 74,839,145 2,986,751,256 4.6 182,889,652 
2015……. 2,925,307,060 7.3 69,331,348 2,855,975,712 7.3 153,676,520 

  
(1) Each year all taxable property must be assessed at 100% of the current market value. 
(2) Includes Urban Renewal value.  
(3) “Taxable Assessed Value” is the full market value less statutory exemptions and incremental changes to the base 

value in any urban renewal area that overlaps the City pursuant to Title 50 of the Code. Statutory exemptions 
include a homeowner’s exemption, and property tax reductions. The Taxable Assessed Value is the value against 
which tax levies are applied.  

(4) Incremental value assessed to that portion of the URA that lie within the City.  
 

(Source: Reports from the Idaho State Tax Commission.) 
 

Property Tax Exemptions 
 
Homeowner’s Property Tax Exemption. The homeowner’s property tax exemption provides a perma-

nent exemption from ad valorem taxation for 50% of the market value for assessment purposes of a home-
owner’s primary residence including up to one acre of the land value, up to a maximum of $100,000 (the 
“Homeowner’s Exemption”) for Tax Year 2018. In 2016, the State Legislature amended Idaho Code Sec-
tion 63-602G to fix the maximum amount of the Homeowner’s Exemption at $100,000. 

 
Business Investment Property Tax Exemption: Under Idaho Code 63-602NN local county commission-

ers can declare that all or a portion of the market value of the improvements of a defined project with 
investments that meet certain tax incentive criteria can be exempt from property tax for a specified period. 
The exemption can be up to 100% per year for up to five years for each project. The investment must be in 
new manufacturing facilities valued at a minimum of $3 million (which was lowered to $500,000 on 
July 1, 2017) and land is not eligible for the exemption. Any existing buildings are not eligible for the 
exemption and approval of the exemption is at the discretion of the local county commissioners.  

 
Use of the business investment property tax exemption (“Business Exemption”) only exempts the col-

lection of property taxes on new business investment and does not impact the District’s ability to repay the 
2017 Bonds. Following the expiration of the Business Exemption the value of the new investment of prop-
erty will be included in the District’s Taxable Assessed Value for future tax levy certifications.  

 
Personal Property Tax Exemption: The 2020 Bonds are secured by an unlimited tax on taxable property 

in the City. Taxable property includes real property and personal property.  Idaho currently has a $3,000 
exemption on a de minimus item of taxable property and a $100,000 exemption on business personal prop-
erty. 
 
 

(The remainder of this page has been intentionally left blank.) 
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Tax Collection Record 
 

     Tax Levy    Amount    %  
 Year (1)   In Dollars    Collected (2)   Collected  

2018 ...........................................  $4,273,814 $4,271,877 100.0% 
2017 ...........................................  4,100,115 4,115,481 100.4 
2016 ...........................................  3,946,637 3,970,689 100.6 
2015 ...........................................  3,815,955 3,838,221 100.6 
2014 ...........................................  3,676,087 3,701,495 100.7 

__________________________ 
(1) The tax year runs from January 1 to December 31. Ad valorem taxes, including delinquent taxes, penalties and 

amounts canceled, are collected by the Treasurer of Blaine County and are remitted to the City during the month 
following collection. 

(2) Includes property tax collections from Blaine County as of December 2019. 

(Source: The Office of the County Treasurer; compiled by the Municipal Advisor.) 
 

The Largest Taxpayers of the City 
 

 % of the 
  City’s 
 2019 2019 
 Taxpayer   Type of Business  Taxable Value  Tax Value 
Legacy Residential LLC. .................  Private residence $ 15,439,645 0.5% 
Individual .........................................  Private residence 13,452,077 0.4 
Sun Valley Resorts ...........................  Resort, hotels and motels 13,345,392 0.4 
Individual .........................................  Private residence 11,520,308 0.4 
Helios Development LLC ................  Resort, hotels and motels 10,346,700 0.3 
Hemingway’s Condominium Assn. .  Condominium association 9,354,988 0.3 
Peed FLP1 LTD LLP .......................  Real estate/developer 8,689,916 0.3 
Individual .........................................  Private residence  8,185,153 0.3 
Individual .........................................  Private residence  7,977,143 0.3 
Individual .........................................  Private residence  7,815,789 0.2 
 Totals .................................................................................................  $106,127,111 3.4% 
  
(Source: The Office of the County Treasurer; compiled by the Municipal Advisor.) 

 
 

TAX MATTERS 
 
In the opinion of Skinner Fawcett LLP, Bond Counsel, assuming continuous compliance with certain 

covenants described below: (i) interest on the 2020 Bonds is excluded from gross income pursuant to the 
Code, (ii) interest on the 2020 Bonds is excluded from alternative minimum taxable income as defined in 
Section 55(b)(2) of the Code; and (iii) interest on the 2020 Bonds is excluded from gross income for pur-
poses of income taxation by the State of Idaho.  

 
The Code imposes several requirements which must be met with respect to the 2020 Bonds in order for 

the interest thereon to be excluded from gross income and alternative minimum taxable income. Certain of 
these requirements must be met on a continuous basis throughout the term of the 2020 Bonds. These re-
quirements include: (a) limitations as to the use of proceeds of the 2020 Bonds; (b) limitations on the extent 
to which proceeds of the 2020 Bonds may be invested in higher yielding investments; and (c) a provision, 
subject to certain limited exceptions, that requires all investment earnings on the proceeds of the 
2020 Bonds above the yield on the 2020 Bonds to be paid to the United States Treasury. The exclusion of 
interest on the 2020 Bonds from gross income for Idaho income tax purposes is dependent on the interest 
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on the 2020 Bonds being excluded from gross income for federal income tax purposes. The City will cov-
enant and represent in the 2020 Bond Ordinance that it will take all steps to comply with the requirements 
of the Code to the extent necessary to maintain the exclusion of interest on the 2020 Bonds from gross 
income and alternative minimum taxable income under federal income tax laws in effect when the 
2020 Bonds are delivered. Bond Counsel’s opinion as to the exclusion of interest on the 2020 Bonds from 
gross income and alternative minimum taxable income is rendered in reliance on these covenants and as-
sumes continuous compliance therewith. The failure or inability of the City to comply with these require-
ments could cause the interest on the 2020 Bonds to be included in gross income, alternative minimum 
taxable income or both from the date of issuance. Bond Counsel’s opinion also is rendered in reliance upon 
certifications of the City and other certifications furnished to Bond Counsel. Bond Counsel has not under-
taken to verify such certifications by independent investigation.  

 
Bond Premium 
 

Beneficial Owners who purchase the 2020 Bonds in the initial offering at a price in excess of the par 
amount of such Bonds or at a price other than the original offering price shown on the inside cover page of 
this Official Statement and owners who purchase the 2020 Bonds after the initial offering should consult 
their own tax advisors with respect to the tax consequences of the ownership of the 2020 Bonds. Owners 
of the 2020 Bonds also should consult their own tax advisors with respect to the state and local tax conse-
quences of owning the 2020 Bonds. It is possible that, under the applicable provisions governing determi-
nation of state and local taxes, accrued original issue premium on the 2020 Bonds may be deemed to be 
received in the year of accrual even though there will not be a corresponding cash payment.] 

 
Original Issue Discount  

 
Beneficial Owners who purchase Bonds in the initial offering at a price less than the original offering 

price shown on the inside cover page hereof (“Discount Bonds”) and owners who purchase Discount Bonds 
after the initial offering should consult their own tax advisors with respect to the tax consequences of the 
ownership of the Discount Bonds. Beneficial Owners who are subject to state or local income taxation 
(other than Idaho state income taxation) should consult their tax advisor with respect to the state and local 
income tax consequences of ownership of the Discount Bonds. It is possible that, under the applicable 
provisions governing determination of state and local taxes, accrued original issue discount on the Discount 
Bonds may be deemed to be received in the year of accrual even though there will not be a corresponding 
cash payment.] 

 
The Code contains numerous provisions which may affect an investor’s decision to purchase the 

2020 Bonds. Owners of the 2020 Bonds should be aware that the ownership of tax-exempt obligations by 
particular persons and entities, including, without limitation, financial institutions, insurance companies, 
recipients of Social Security or Railroad Retirement benefits, taxpayers who may be deemed to have in-
curred or continued indebtedness to purchase or carry tax-exempt obligations, foreign corporations doing 
business in the United States and certain “subchapter S” corporations may result in adverse federal and state 
tax consequences. Under Section 3406 of the Code, backup withholding may be imposed on payments on 
the 2020 Bonds made to any owner who fails to provide certain required information, including an accurate 
taxpayer identification number, to certain persons required to collect such information pursuant to the Code. 
Backup withholding may also be applied if the owner underreports “reportable payments” (including inter-
est and dividends) as defined in Section 3406, or fails to provide a certificate that the owner is not subject 
to backup withholding in circumstances where such a certificate is required by the Code. With respect to 
any of the 2020 Bonds sold at a premium, representing a difference between the original offering price of 
those Bonds and the principal amount thereof payable at maturity, under certain circumstances, an initial 
owner of such bonds (if any) may realize a taxable gain upon their disposition, even though such bonds are 
sold or redeemed for an amount equal to the owner’s acquisition cost. Bond Counsel’s opinion relates only 
to the exclusion of interest on the 2020 Bonds from gross income (for federal and Idaho income tax pur-
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poses) and alternative minimum taxable income as described above and will state that no opinion is ex-
pressed regarding other federal or state tax consequences arising from the receipt or accrual of interest on 
or ownership of the 2020 Bonds. Owners of the 2020 Bonds should consult their own tax advisors as to the 
applicability of these consequences. 

 
The opinions expressed by Bond Counsel are based on existing law as of the delivery date of the 

2020 Bonds. No opinion is expressed as of any subsequent date nor is any opinion expressed with respect 
to pending or proposed legislation. Amendments to the federal or state tax laws may be pending now or 
could be proposed in the future that, if enacted into law, could adversely affect the value of the 2020 Bonds, 
the exclusion of interest on the 2020 Bonds from gross income (for federal and Idaho income tax purposes) 
or alternative minimum taxable income or both from the date of issuance of the 2020 Bonds or any other 
date, the tax value of that exclusion for different classes of taxpayers from time to time, or that could result 
in other adverse tax consequences. In addition, future court actions or regulatory decisions could affect the 
tax treatment or market value of the 2020 Bonds. Owners of the 2020 Bonds are advised to consult with 
their own tax advisors with respect to such matters. 

 
The Internal Revenue Service (the “Service”) has an ongoing program of auditing tax-exempt obliga-

tions to determine whether, in the view of the Service, interest on such tax-exempt obligations is includable 
in the gross income of the owners thereof for federal income tax purposes. No assurances can be given as 
to whether or not the Service will commence an audit of the 2020 Bonds. If an audit is commenced, the 
market value of the 2020 Bonds may be adversely affected. Under current audit procedures the Service will 
treat the City as the taxpayer and the 2020 Bond owners may have no right to participate in such procedures. 
The City has covenanted not to take any action that would cause the interest on the 2020 Bonds to lose its 
exclusion from gross income for federal income tax purposes or lose its exclusion from alternative mini-
mum taxable income except to the extent described above for the owners thereof for federal income tax 
purposes. None of the City, the Underwriter, or Bond Counsel is responsible for paying or reimbursing any 
Bond holder with respect to any audit or litigation costs relating to the 2020 Bonds. 

 
Prospective purchasers of the 2020 Bonds should consult their tax advisors as to the federal, state, 

local, and foreign tax consequences of their acquisition, ownership, and disposition of the 2020 Bonds.  
 
Circular 230. The foregoing discussion of TAX MATTERS regarding the 2020 Bonds was not in-

tendent or written by Bond Counsel to be used, and it cannot be used, for the purpose of avoiding pen-
alties that may be imposed on a Beneficial Owner of the 2020 Bonds. The foregoing discussion of TAX 
MATTERS was written to support the promotion or marketing of the 2020 Bonds Each prospective pur-
chaser of the 2020 Bonds should seek advice based on the prospective purchaser’s particular circum-
stances from an independent tax advisor. 

 
 

LEGAL MATTERS 
 

Absence of Litigation Concerning the 2020 Bonds 
 
The attorney for the City, Matthew Johnson of White Peterson, Nampa, Idaho, has officially advised 

that, to his knowledge, there is no pending or threatened litigation that would legally stop, enjoin, or prohibit 
the issuance, sale or delivery of the 2020 Bonds or the levy or collection of taxes for the payment of the 
2020 Bonds. See “APPENDIX A—FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF CITY OF KETCHUM, IDAHO 
FOR FISCAL YEAR 2019–Notes to the Financial Statements–Note 8. Litigation” (page A–29). 
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Opinions of Bond Counsel 
 
Legal matters incident to the authorization, issuance and sale of the 2020 Bonds by the City are subject 

to the approving legal opinion of Bond Counsel, substantially in the form attached hereto as Appen-
dix B. Bond Counsel has reviewed this document only to confirm that the portions of it describing the 
2020 Bonds and the authority to issue the 2020 Bonds, the security for the Bonds and tax matters relative 
to the 2020 Bonds present a fair summary of such matters. 

 
Tax Legislative Changes 

 
Current law may change so as to directly or indirectly reduce or eliminate the benefit of the exclusion 

of interest on the 2020 Bonds from the gross income for federal income tax purposes. Any proposed legis-
lation, whether or not enacted, could also affect the value and liquidity of the 2020 Bonds. Prospective 
purchasers of the 2020 Bonds should consult with their own tax advisors with respect to the effects of any 
proposed or future legislation. 

 
Legislative Referrals 

 
Referrals are proposed laws that originate from the State Legislature to be voted on by the people. In 

Idaho, both houses of the State Legislature must vote and must pass by two–thirds of its members to refer 
a statute or constitutional amendment for a popular vote. Such referrals cannot be vetoed by the governor. 
According to the Elections Division of the Idaho Secretary of State, there are no current proposed Legisla-
tive referrals. 

 
The Initiative Process 

 
Article I, Section 3 of the Idaho Constitution provides that the people of the State have reserved to 

themselves the power of initiative and referendum, pursuant to which measures to enact, or repeal laws can 
be placed on the statewide general election ballot for consideration by the voters. The initiative and refer-
endum powers relate only to laws; the Idaho Supreme Court has ruled that the Idaho Constitution cannot 
be amended by initiative or referendum. 

 
In 1997, the State Legislature enacted significant procedural prerequisites including signature distribu-

tion requirements, to qualify an initiative or referendum measure for submittal to the electors. Any person 
may file a proposed measure with the signatures of 20 qualified electors of the State with the Idaho Secre-
tary of State’s office. The Idaho Attorney General is required by law to review and make recommendations 
(if any) on the petition to the petitioner before issuing a certificate of review to the Secretary of State. The 
petitioner then, within 15 working days, files the measure with the Secretary of State for assignment of a 
ballot title and submittal to the Attorney General. The Attorney General, within 10 working days thereafter, 
shall provide a ballot title for the measure. Any elector that submitted written comments who is dissatisfied 
with the ballot title certified by the Attorney General may petition the Idaho Supreme Court seeking a 
revision of the certified ballot title. 

 
Once the ballot title has been certified and the form of the petition has been approved by the Secretary 

of State, the proponents of the measure shall print the petition and, during an 18-month circulation period 
or until April 30 in an election year, whichever occurs first, may start gathering the petition signatures 
necessary to place the proposed measure on the ballot. 

 
To be placed on a general election ballot, not less than four months prior to the election, the proponents 

must submit to the Secretary of State petitions signed by a number of qualified voters equal to at least 6% 
of the qualified electors, i.e., registered voters, at the immediately previous general election. The 2013 State 
Legislature adopted SB 1108 which increases the number of registered voters needed to place an initiative 
or referendum on the ballot by requiring signatures of 6% of the registered voters in at least a majority of 
the State’s 35 legislative districts, as well as 6% of the total registered voters of the State. 
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Proponents of measures are permitted to compensate persons obtaining signatures for the petition, but 
in such instances the petition must contain a notice of such payment to the elector whose signature is being 
sought. 

 
Historical Initiative Petitions 

 
According to the Elections Division of the Idaho Secretary of State, there have been four initiative 

petitions and three referendums that qualified for the ballot between 2006 and 2018. In 2018, an initiative 
related to Medicaid expansion was approved by the voters. The passing of this initiative has not affected 
the finances of the City or the ability of the City to levy and collect property taxes for the payment of the 
2020 Bonds. 

 
General 

 
Certain legal matters will be passed upon for the City by White Peterson, Nampa, Idaho, City Attorney. 

The expected form of the opinion of Bond Counsel is attached to this OFFICIAL STATEMENT as “AP-
PENDIX B—PROPOSED FORM OF OPINION OF BOND COUNSEL.” 

 
The various legal opinions to be delivered concurrently with the delivery of the 2020 Bonds express 

the professional judgment of the attorneys rendering the opinions as to the legal issues explicitly addressed 
therein. By rendering a legal opinion, the opinion giver does not become an insurer or guarantor of that 
expression of professional judgment, of the transaction opined upon, or of the future performance of parties 
to the transaction. Nor does the rendering of an opinion guarantee the outcome of any legal dispute that 
may arise out of the transaction. 

 
 

MISCELLANEOUS 
 

Bond Rating 
 
As of the date of this OFFICIAL STATEMENT, the 2020 Bonds have been rated “___” by Moody’s. 

An explanation of this rating may be obtained from Moody’s. The City has not applied to S&P Global 
Ratings or Fitch Ratings for a rating on the 2020 Bonds. 

 
Such rating does not constitute a recommendation by the rating agency to buy, sell or hold the 

2020 Bonds. Such rating reflects only the views of such organization and any desired explanation of the 
significance of such rating should be obtained from the rating agency furnishing the same. Generally, a 
rating agency bases its rating on the information and materials furnished to it and on investigations, studies 
and assumptions of its own. 

 
There is no assurance that the rating given the 2020 Bonds will continue for any given period of time 

or that the rating will not be revised downward or withdrawn entirely by the rating agency if, in their judg-
ment, circumstances so warrant. Any such downward revision or withdrawal of such rating may have an 
adverse effect on the market price of the 2020 Bonds. 

 
Municipal Advisor 

 
The City has entered into an agreement with the Municipal Advisor whereunder the Municipal Advisor 

provides financial recommendations and guidance to the City with respect to preparation for sale of the 
2020 Bonds, timing of sale, tax–exempt bond market conditions, costs of issuance and other factors related 
to the sale of the 2020 Bonds. The Municipal Advisor has read and participated in the drafting of certain 
portions of this OFFICIAL STATEMENT and has supervised the completion and editing thereof. The Mu-
nicipal Advisor has not audited, authenticated or otherwise verified the information set forth in the OFFI-
CIAL STATEMENT, or any other related information available to the City, with respect to accuracy and 

165



 

33 

completeness of disclosure of such information, and the Municipal Advisor makes no guaranty or warranty 
respecting the accuracy and completeness of the OFFICIAL STATEMENT or any other matter related to 
the OFFICIAL STATEMENT. 

 
Independent Auditors 

 
The basic financial statements of the City as of September 30, 2019 and for the year then ended, in-

cluded in this OFFICIAL STATEMENT, have been audited by Workman & Company, Office of Account-
ing, Twin Falls, Idaho (“Workman & Co.”), as stated in their report in “APPENDIX A—FINANCIAL 
STATEMENTS OF CITY OF KETCHUM, IDAHO FOR FISCAL YEAR 2019.”  

 
Workman & Co. have not participated in the preparation or review of this OFFICIAL STATEMENT. 

Based upon their non–participation, they have not consented to the use of their name in this OFFICIAL 
STATEMENT. 

 
From time to time, the City bids out auditor services. The City re-hired and contracted Workman & Co. 

to prepare its basic financial statements for the next four years. 
 

Additional Information 
 
The information set forth herein has been obtained from the City and other sources that are believed to 

be reliable, but is not guaranteed as to accuracy or completeness, and is not to be construed as a represen-
tation, warranty or guarantee by the Underwriters. So far as any statement herein includes matters of opin-
ion, or estimates of future expenses and income, whether or not expressly so stated, they are intended merely 
as such and not as representations of fact 

 
The information contained herein should not be construed as representing all conditions affecting the 

City or the 2020 Bonds. Additional information may be obtained from the City. The statements relating to 
the Bond Ordinance are in summarized form, and in all respects, are subject to and qualified in their entirety 
by express reference to the provisions of such document in its complete form. 

 
Any statements in this OFFICIAL STATEMENT involving matters of opinion, whether or not ex-

pressly so stated, are intended as such and not as a representation of fact. 
 
The appendices attached hereto are an integral part of this OFFICIAL STATEMENT and should be 

read in conjunction with the foregoing material. 
 
This PRELIMINARY OFFICIAL STATEMENT is in a form deemed final by the City for purposes of 

paragraph (b)(1) of Rule 15c2–12 of the Securities and Exchange Commission. 
 
This OFFICIAL STATEMENT and its distribution and use have been duly authorized by the City. 
 

 City of Ketchum, Idaho 

  

166



 

34 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

(This Page Has Been Intentionally Left Blank.) 

167



 

A–1 

APPENDIX A 
 

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CITY OF KETCHUM, IDAHO  
FOR FISCAL YEAR 2019 

 
The City’s Financial Statements and Supplementary Information for Fiscal Year 2019 is contained 

herein and such page numbers may not be in numerical order. Copies of current and prior financial reports 
are available upon request from the City’s contact person as indicated under “INTRODUCTION—Contact 
Persons” above. 
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INDEPENDEN AUDITOR'S REPOR.T 

November 9, 2019 

To the City Council 
City of Ketchum, Idaho 

Report on the Financial Statements 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type 
activities, the aggregate discretely presented component units, each major fund, and the aggregate 
remaining fund information of the City of Ketchum, Idaho, as of and for the year ended September 30, 
2019, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the City of Ketchum, 
Idaho's basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents. 

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the 
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal . control relevant to the preparation and fair 
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

Auditor's Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted 
our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the 
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the 
Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to 
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the 
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment 
of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making 
those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair 
presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal 
control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of 
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by 
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our 
audit opinions. 

Opinions 

In our opinion, tne flnanc1aI statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the 
respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, the aggregate 
discretely presented component units, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of 
the City of Ketchum, Idaho, as of September 30, 2019, and the respective changes in financial position, 
and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles 
generally accepted in the United States of America. 
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Other Matters 

Required Supplementary Information 

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management's 
discussion and analysis and budgetary comparison information on pages 3-11 and 35-38 be presented to 
supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial 
statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an 
essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, 
economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary 
information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, 
which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing 
the information for consistency with management's responses to our inquiries, the basic financial 
statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not 
express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not 
provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance. 

Other Information 

My audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively 
comprise the City's basic financial statements. The supplementary information on pages 39-46 are 
presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements. 

The supplementary information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates 
directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. 
Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial 
statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly 
to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the 
basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing 
standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In my opinion, the supplementary 
information along with the schedule of expenditure of federal awards is fairly stated, in all material respects, 
in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole. 

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also Issuea our report dated November 9, 
2019, on our consideration of the City of Ketchum, Idaho's internal control over financial reporting and on 
our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and 
other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over 
financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal 
control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in 
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the City of Ketchum, Idaho's internal 
control over financial reporting and compliance. 
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C[TY OF KETCHUM, IDAHO 
Management's Discussion and Analysis 

December 16, 2019 

The City of Ketchum, Idaho's general purpose external financial statements are presented in 
this report. The components of the general purpose external financial statements include: 

► Management's Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) 
► Basic Financial Statements 
► Other Required Supplementary Information (RSI). 

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS 

► The total of all fund assets of the City of Ketchum exceeded liabilities at the close of 
the most recent fiscal year by$ 36,676,891. Of that amount, $ 9,228,946 (unrestricted 
net position) may be used to meet future obligations and programs. 

► The Local Option Tax (Lon receipts increased$ 330,090 from the previous year. 
This increase is due to the slightly increased economy in the Valley over the previous 
year. This Special Revenue Fund received an amount of, $4,973,422 in the current 
year. 

► Governmental Fund Revenues were$ 16,527,422 and expenditures were 
$15,856,444. . . 

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the City of Ketchum's 
basic financial statements. The City's basic financial statements comprise three components: 
1) government-wide financial statements, 2) fund financial statements, and 3) notes to the 
financial statements. This report also contains other supplementary information in addition to 
the basic financial statements themselves. 

Government'-wide Financial Statements 
Government-wide financial statements provide both long-term and short-term information 
about the City's overall financial condition. Changes in the City's financial position may be 
measured over time by increases and decreases in the Statement of Net Position. 
Information on how the City's net position changed during the fiscal year is presented in the 
Statement of Activities. 

Fund Financial Statements 
Fund financial statements focus on individual parts of the City, reporting the City's operations 
in more detail than the government-wide financial statements. Fund financial statements 
include the statements for governmental and proprietary funds. Financial statements for the 
City's component unit are also presented. 
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Scope 

Required financial 

statements 

Accounting basis and 

measurement focus 

Type of asset/liability 

information 

Type of inflow/outfiow 

information 

City of Ketchum, Idaho 
MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

Table 1: Major Features of the Basic Financial Statements 

Government-wide Fund Fln;malB<l 'Stll~n,~,nld 

Fmanc1gtSl11~mi; Ql'mmnil!l1tr111 F1J-ntl~ P!UDl"fr.'ral'\I r-,ma& 

Entire City government and Activities of the City that Activities of the City that are operated 

the City"s component unil are not proprietary. similar to private businesses 

• Statement of net position • Balance sheet • Statement of net position 

• Statement of activities • Statement of revenues, expenditures, • Statement of revenues, expenses, 

and changes in fund balances and changes in net position 

• Statement of cash flows 

Accrual accounting and Modified accrual aooounting and Accrual accounting and 

economic resources focus current financial resources focus economic resources focus 

AU assets and liabilities, both Only assets expected to be used up and All assets and liabilities, both 

financial and capital, and liabilities that come due during the year or financial and capital, and 

short-term and long-term soon thereafter; no capital assets short-term and long-term 

All revenues and expenses • Revenues for which cash is received All revenues and expenses 

during the year, regardless during or soon after the end of the year during the year, regardless 

of when cash is received or • Expenditures when goods or services of when cash is received or 

paid have been received and payment is paid 

due du ring the year or soon thereafter 

Notes to the Financial Statements 
Notes to the financial statements provide additional information that is essential to the full 
understanding of the data provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements. 

Refer to Note 1 of the financial statements for more detailed information on the elements of 
the financial statements. Table 1 above summarizes the major features of the basic financial 
statements. 

CONDENSED FINANCIAL INFORMATION 

Condensed Statement of Net Position 

The largest component ($ 26,945,439) of the City's net position (73.4%) reflects its 
investment in capital assets (e.g. land, infrastructure, buildings, equipment, and others), less 
any related debt outstanding that was needed to acquire or construct the assets. The City 
uses these capital assets to provide services to the citizens and businesses in the City; 
consequently, this net position amount is not eligible for future spending. Restricted net 
position totals $502,506. Restricted net position represents resources that are subject to 
external restrictions, constitutional provisions, debt service requirements, or enabling 
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City of Ketchum, Idaho 
MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

legislation on how they can be used. The remaining portion of net position is unrestricted, 
which can be used to finance government operations. 

Table 2 below presents the City's condensed statement of net position as of September 30, 
2019, derived from the government-wide Statement of Net Position. 

Table 2: Condensed Statement of Net Position 
As of September 30, 2019 

Component 
Business- Total Unit- Urban 

Governmental type Primary Renewal 
Activities Activities Government Agency 

Current and other 
assets $ 8,955,736 $ 2·,574,552 $ 11,530,288 $ 1,494,073 
Capital assets 19,947,048 13,053,168 33,000,216 4,903,405 

Total Assets 28,902,784 15,627,720 44,530,504 6,397,478 

Deferred Outflows 115,880 30,837 146,717 

Current Liabilities 294,558 377,913 672,471 315,234 
Long-term liabilities 1,896,944 4,978,074 6,875,018 5,276,993 

Total Liabilities 2,191,502 5,355,987 7,547,489 5,592,227 
Deferred Inflows 357,662 95,179 452,841 

Net assets: 
Invested in capital assets 
net of related debt 18,957,979 7,987,460 26,945,439 0 

Restricted 290,506 212,000 502,506 1,811,404 
Unrestricted 7,221,015 2,007,931 9,228,946 (1,006,153) 

Total Net Position $ 26,469,500 $ 10,207,391 $ 36,676,891 $ 805,251 

Condensed Statement of Activities 

Table 3 below presents the City's condensed statement of activities for the fiscal year ended 
September 30, 2019 as derived from the government-wide Statement of Activities. Over 
time, increases and decreases in net position measure whether the City's financial position is 
improving or deteriorating. During the fiscal year, the net position of the governmental 
activities decreased by$ 416,382 or -1.5% percent, the net position of the business-type 
activities increased by $ 1, 115, 139 or 12.3%, and the net position of the City's Component 
Unit (Urban Renewal Agency) increased$ 698,726 or 161%. 
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City of Ketchum, Idaho 
MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

Continued ... 

Table 3: Condensed Statement of Activities 
As of September 30, 2019 

Business- Total 
Governmental type Primary 

Activities Activities Government 
Revenue: 
Program revenues 
Charges for services $ 4,026,768 $ 4,660,376 $ 8,687,144 
Capital grants 

/contributions 288,512 288,512 
Total program revenues 4,315,280 4,660,376 8,975,656 

General revenues 
Taxes 9,265,517 9,265,517 
Franchise, licenses, 

permits 971,701 971,701 
State shared revenues 1,584,669 1,584,669 
Interest 184,227 46,257 230,484 
Gain (Loss) on sale of assets (96,630) (96,630) 
Other revenues (Losses) 39,539 37,080 76,619 

Total general revenues 11,949,023 83,337 12,032,360 
Total revenues 16,264,303 4,743,713 21,008,016 

Program expenses: 
General government 6,016,990 6,016,990 
Public safety 4,731,543 4,731 ,543 
Streets 2,157,246 2,157,246 
Parks and recreation 509,458 509,458 
Transportation 3,172,440 3,172,440 
Affordable Housing 75,000 75,000 
Wastewater 1,867,171 1,867,171 
Water 1,561,227 1,561,227 
Interest, long-term debt 18,008 200,176 218,184 
Total program expenses 16,680,685 3,628,574 20,309,259 

Change in net position (416,382) 1,115,139 698,757 
Beginning net position 26,885,882 9,092,252 35,978,134 
Ending net position $ 26,469,500 $ 10,207,391 $ 36,676,891 
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Component 
Unit Urban 
Renewal 
Agency 

$ 44,000 

44,000 

1,653,477 

15,864 

2,898 
1,672,239 
1,716,239 

921 ,774 

297,739 
1,219,513 

496,726 
308,525 

$ 805,251 
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Continued ... 

Program Expenses and Revenues for Governmental Activities 
Table 4 below presents program expenses and revenues for governmental activities. 
Overall, program revenues were not sufficient to cover program expenses for governmental 
activities. The net program expenses of these governmental activities were therefore 
supported by general revenues, mainly taxes. 

Table 4: Program Expenses and Revenues 
for Government Activities 

For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2019 

Program Program Net Expense 
Exp~nses Revenues. (Revenues) ~)_ 

General government $ 6,016,990 $ 4,038,026 $ (1,978,964) 
Public safety 4,731,543 22,139 (4,709,404) 
Streets 2,157,246 34,031 (2, 123,215) 
Parks and Recreation 509,458 36,324 (473,134) 
Transportation 3,172,440 (3,172,440) 
Affordable Housing 75,000 184,760 109,760 
Interest on long-term debt 18,00B {18,008) 

Totals $ 16,680,685 $ 4.315,280 $ ( 12,-3.65.4051 

(a) Net Program Expenses are mainly supported by taxes. 

Program Expenses and Revenues for Business-type Activities 
Table 5 below presents program expenses and revenues for business-type activities. 
Program revenues generated from business-type activities were sufficient to cover program 
expenses. 

Table 5: Program Expenses and Revenues 
for Business-type Activities 

For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2019 
Net Program 

Program Program Expenses 
C lty Programs Expenses Revenues (RevenuesJ 

Wastewater $ 1,867,171 $ 2,560,920 $ 693,749 
Water 1,561,227 2,099,456 538,229 
Interest on long-term debt 200,176 (200, 176\ 

Totals $ .3,628,574 $ 4,660,37'6 $ 1,031 "802 

178



Continued ... 

City of Ketchum, Idaho 
MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

The City of Ketchum, Idaho adopts an annual budget. A budgetary comparison statement of 
Governmental Funds is provided below. In total, any negative variances are insignificant. 

BUDGET VARIANCES IN THE GENERAL FUND 

The changes made to the budget format have moved the City into compliance with the 
budget standards developed by the Government Finance Officers of America (GFOA). An 
analysis of budget variances this year shows that more assets were budgeted for expenditure 
than were expended during the current operating cycle. 

Table 6: Analysis of Significant Budget Variances 
for Major Governmental Funds 

For the Fiscal Year Ended September 301 2019 

Final 
Budget Actual Vanan,ees 

Revenues: 
Taxes (including 

penalties/interest) $ 8,942,739 $ 9,265,517 $ 322,778 
Franchises, licenses, permits 832,608 702,952 (129,656) 
State of Idaho 1,516,456 1,584,669 68,213 
Fees, Charges for Services 3,135,181 3,476,464 341,283 
Other 3031386 222,721 {80.665) 

Totals 14,730,370 16.2,5.2 ,323 521 ,953 

Expenditures: 
General Government 4,320,813 4,250,561 70,252 
Public Safety 4,020,720 4,073,059 (52,339) 
Streets 2,133,273 1,987,424 145,849 
Capital Outlay 0 
Parks and Recreation 520,827 467,643 53,184 
Transportation 3,172,440 3,172,440 0 
Affordable Housing 75,000 75,000 0 
Debt Service 

Totals 14,243,073 14 ,026,1 27 216 946 

Excess (Deficiency) $ 487,297 $ 1,226,196 $ 738 899 
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Table 7: Comparison of Statement of Net Position 
As of September 30, 2019 and 2018 

2019 2018 

Current Assets $ 11,530,288 $ 10,904,438 
Capital Assets 33,000,216 32,448,720 

Total Assets 44,530,504 43,353,158 

Deferred Outflow of Resources 146,717 206,161 

Current Liabilities 672,471 618,752 
Long Term Liabilities · 6,875,018 _ 6,77§J24 

Total Liabilities 7,547,489 7,395,476 

Deferred Inflow of Resources 452,841 185,709 

Net Position: 
Invested in Capital Assets 

net of related debt 26,945,439 26,596,623 
Restricted 502,506 475,755 
Unrestricted 9,228,946 8,905,756 

Total Net Position $ 36,676,891 $ 35,978,134 

OVERALL ANALYSIS 

Percentage 
Change 

5.7394% 
1.6996% 

2.7157% 

-28.8338% 

8.6818% 
1.4505% 

2.0555% 

143.8444% 

1.3115% 
5.6229% 
3.6290% 

1.9422% 

Financial highlights for the City as a whole during the fiscal year ended September 30, 2019 
show the assets of the City exceeded its liabilities (net position) at the close to the fiscal year 
by $36,676,891 (for governmental activities $26,469,500, for the business-type activities 
$10,207,391). Additionally, the City's total net position increased during the year by 
$698,757. The net position of the governmental activities decreased by$ 416,382, while the 
net position of the business-type activities increased by $ 1, 115, 139. 
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Table 8: Changes in Fixed Assets 
for All Funds 

For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2019 

Beginning 
Balance Additions Deletions 

Land and Infrastructure $ 11,173,508 490,028 
Buildings and Improvements 34,124,116 1,641,999 (210,000) 
Vehicles and Equipment 8,108,298 1,227,731 (209,243) 
Construction in Progress 524,626 240,186 (524 ,626) 

Totals 53 j930,548 3,5'99,954 (9-43,,869) 

Accumulated Depreciation (21.48 1,,828) (2.415,450) 310,861 

Net Book Value $ 32,448,720 

CAPITAL ASSET AND LONG-TERM, ACTIVITY 
Capital Asset Activity 

Ending 
Balance 

$ 11,663,536 
35,556,115 

9,126,786 
2'40, 196 

56,-586 633 

(23,586,417 ) 

$ 33,000,216 

At September 30, 2019, the City reported $19,947,048 in capital assets for governmental activities 
and $13,053, 168 in capital assets for business-type activities. 

Long-term Debt Activity 
See Note 4 of the financial statements for information on the City's long-term debt. 

FUNDS ANALYSIS 
Funds that experienced significant changes during the year are as follows: 

Governmental funds 
As of the close of the fiscal year, the City's governmental funds reported a combined ending fund 
balance of $8,838, 133. The fund balance increased $ 670,978 during the fiscal year. The increase is 
the result of $16,527,422 of revenues reduced by$ 15,856,444 of expenditures. The increase in fund 
balance follows a fund balance decrease of $541,529 in FY2018, and results in large part from 
budgeted expenditures for capital improvements in the City's funds. The City's management and 
Council continue to expend resources under approved budgets and strive to strengthen the City's 
financial position during uncertain economic times. This ongoing accomplishment is due to the 
commitment and determination of the City Council and staff to make prudent financial decisions while 
also seeking to preserve levels of service to the community by continually pursuing and implementing 
cost savings and efficiencies in operations. 

Table 9 below presents an analysis of the fund balances in the Governmental Funds and Enterprise 
Funds. 
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City of Ketchum, Idaho 
MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

Table 9: Analysis of Fund Balances 
for All Funds 

For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2019 

Restricted 
Investment in or 
Ca ital Assets Assigned Una ssl · ne.d 

General Fund $ $ 
City Sales Tax Fund 653,491 
In-Lieu Housing Fund 2,587,592 
Capital Improvement Funds 1,881,336 
GO Bond Debt Fund 3,099 
Wagon Days Fund 17,275 
Police Trust Fund 99,851 
Community Development Trust Fund 0 
Park Trust Fund 190,655 
Water 1,339,697 0 
Wastewater 6,647,763 212,000 

REQUESTS FOR INFORMATION 

Requests for information regarding City finances should be directed to: 

Grant Gager City Finance Director 
City of Ketchum, Idaho 
P.O. Box 2315 
Ketchum, Idaho, 83340 
Telephone: (208) 726-3841 

ACKNOWLEDGMENTS 

3,404,834 

1,427,677 
580,254 

$ 

Total 
Ba~nce 

3,404,834 
653,491 

2,587,592 
1,881,336 

3,099 
17,275 
99,851 

0 
190,655 

2,767,374 
7,440,017 

A special thanks to the City Finance Director, City Clerk, and staff for working so hard to 
operate the financial department of the City. Also, appreciation is expressed to the Mayor, 
City Council and all the Department Directors for their cooperation and assistance throughout 
the year in matters pertaining to the financial affairs of the City. 

Respectfully submitted, 

Suzanne Frick 
CITY ADMINISTRATOR 
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CITY OF KETCHUM, IDAHO 
Statement of Net Position 

at September 30, 2019 

Total Component Unit 
Governmental Business-type Primary Urban Renewal 

Activities Activities Government Agency: 

ASSETS 

Cash and Deposits $ 7,996,765 $ 2,250,557 $ 10,247,322 $ 940,266 
Accounts Receivable & Prepaid Expenses 51,762 51,762 
Taxes Receivable 270,771 270,771 4,090 
Due From Other Governments 395,668 60,233 455,901 
Restricted Cash 290,506 212,000 502,506 549,717 
Other Assets 2,026 2,026 

Totals 8,955,736 2,574,552 11,530,288 1,494,073 
Capital Assets: 

Land 8,809,038 15,380 8,824,418 4,768,746 
Construction in Progress 240,196 240,196 
Infrastructure 2,839,118 2,839,118 146,369 
Buildings and Improvements 9,785,787 25,770,328 35,556,115 
Equipment and Vehicles 8,297,570 829,216 9,126,786 
Accumulated Deprecation {9,784,465) {13,801,952) {23,586,417) {11,710) 

Total Capital Assets 19,947,048 13,053,168 33,000,216 4,903,405 

Total Assets 28,902,784 15,627,720 44,530,504 6,397,478 

Deferred Outflows of Resources: 
Deferred Outflows from Pension Activity 115,880 30,837 146,717 0 

LIABILITIES 

Accounts and Interest Payable 117,603 7,913 125,516 135,234 
Due To Other Funds 
Long-term Liabilities: 

Portion due or payable within one year: 
Lease and Bonds Payable 176,955 370,000 546,955 180,000 

Portion due or payable after one year: 
Lease and Bonds Payable 812,114 4,443,000 5,255,114 5,440,000 
Unamortized Bond Discount (28,650) (28,650) (163,007) 
Unamortized Bond Premium 281,358 281,358 
Net Pension Liability 780,027 207,575 987,602 
Compensated Absences 304,803 74,791 379,594 

Total Liabilities 2,191,502 5,355,987 7,547,489 5,592,227 

Deferred Inflows of Resources: 
Deferred Inflows from Pension Activities 357,662 95,179 452,841 0 

NET POSITION 

Invested in Capital Assets - net of related debt 18,957,979 7,987,460 26,945,439 0 
Restricted For: 

Debt Service 212,000 212,000 549,717 
Other Purposes 290,506 290,506 1,261,687 

Unrestricted 7,221,015 2,007,931 9,228,946 {1,006,153) 

Total Net Position $ 26,469,500 $ 10,207,391 $ 36,676,891 $ 805,251 

The accompanying notes are a part of these financial statements. 
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Activities: 

Governmental: 
General Government $ 
Public Protection: 

Public Safety 
Streets 
Parks and Recreation 
Transportation 
Affordable Housing 
Interest - on long-term debt 

Total Governmental Activities 

Business Type: 
Water 
Wastewater 
Interest - on long-term debt 

Total Business-type Activities 

Total City of Ketchum, Idaho $ 

Component Units: 
Urban Renewal Agency $ 

Total 

Expenses 

CITY OF KETCHUM, IDAHO 
Statement of Activities 

For the Year Ended September 30, 2019 

Program Revenues Net (Expense) Revenues and 
Fees, Fines, Capital Changes in Net Assets 
and Charges Grants and Governmental Business Type 
for Services Contributions Activities Activities Total 

6,016,990 $ 3,776,657 $ 259,369 $ (1,976,964) $ (1,976,964) $ 

4,731,543 22,139 (4,709,404) 
2,157,246 34,026 5 (2, 123,215) 

509,458 7,166 29,138 (473,134) 
3,172,440 (3,172,440) 

75,000 184,760 109,760 
18,008 (18,008) 

16,680,685 4,026,768 288,512 (12,365,405) 

1,561,227 2,099,456 $ 
1,867,171 2,560,920 

200,176 
3,628,574 4,660,376 0 

20,309,259 $ 8,687,144 $ 288,512 (12,365,405) 

1,219,513 

General Revenues: 
Property taxes 4,292,095 
Local Option sales taxes 4,973,422 
Franchises, licenses, permits 971,701 
State of Idaho revenue sharing 966,466 
State of Idaho sales tax 102,535 
State of Idaho liquor receipts 381,349 
State highway user collections 134,319 
Penalty and interest on property taxes 13,801 
County court and parking fines 99,080 
Gain (Loss) from Sale of Assets (96,630) 
Earnings on investments 184,227 
Miscellaneous 81,396 
Amortization of Bond Premium 
Amortization of Bond Discount 
Gain (Loss) from Pension Activity (154,738) 

Total general revenues and transfers 11,949,023 

Changes in net position (416,382) 

Net Position - Beginning 26,885,882 

Net Position - Ending $ 26,469,500 $ 

The accompanying notes are a part of these financial statements. 
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(4,709,404) 
(2, 123,215) 

(473,134) 
(3, 172,440) 

109,760 
(18,008) 

(12,365,405) 

538,229 538,229 
693,749 693,749 

{200,176) (200,176) 
1,031,802 1,031,802 

1,031,802 (11,333,603) 

4,292,095 
4,973,422 

971,701 
966,466 
102,535 
381,349 
134,319 

13,801 
99,080 

(96,630) 
46,257 230,484 

81,396 
20,619 20,619 
(3,231) (3,231) 
19,692 (135,046) 
83,337 12,032,360 

1,115,139 698,757 

9,092,252 35,978,134 

10,207,391 $ 36,676,891 $ 

Component 
Unit- Urban 

Renewal 
Agenc~ 

44,000 

(1,219,513) 

(1,175,513) 

1,653,477 

2,898 

15,864 

1,672,239 

496,726 

308,525 

805,251 
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ASSETS: 

Cash and Cash Deposits $ 
Taxes Receivable 
Accounts Receivable 
Due From Other Governments 

Total Assets $ 

LIABILITIES: 

Accounts Payable $ 
Funds Held in Trust 
Due To Other Funds 

Total Liabilities 

FUND BALANCE: 

Non-spendable 
Restricted 
Committed 
Assigned 
Unassigned 

Total Fund Balance 

Total Liabilities and Fund Balance $ 

CITY OF KETCHUM, IDAHO 
Balance Sheet 

Governmental Funds 
at September 30, 2019 

City 
General Sales Tax 

Fund Fund 

3,041 ,390 $ 409,193 $ 
26,473 244,298 

2,026 
395,668 

3,465,557 $ 653,491 $ 

60,723 $ $ 

60,723 0 

653,491 
3,404,834 

3,404,834 653,491 

3,465,557 $ 653,491 $ 

In-Lieu 
Housing 

Fund 

2,587,592 $ 

2,587,592 $ 

$ 

0 

2,587,592 

2,587,592 

2,587,592 $ 

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Net Position (page 12) 
are different because: 

Other 
Governmental 

Funds 

2,249,096 $ 

2,249,096 $ 

$ 
56,880 

56,880 

290,506 

1,901 ,710 

2,192,216 $ 

2,249,096 

Governmental fund capital assets are not financial resources and therefore are not reported in the funds. 
The cost of assets is$ 29,731,513 and the accumulated depreciation is$ 9,784,465 .. . . . . . . . . 

long-term liabilities, including bonds, net pension liability, and compensated absences 
are not payable in the current period and therefore are not reported in the governmental funds 

Net Assets of Governmental Activities 

The accompanying notes are a part of these financial statements. 
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$ 

Total 
Governmental 

Funds 

8,287,271 
270,771 

2,026 
395,668 

8,955,736 

60,723 
56,880 

0 

117,603 

0 
290,506 

0 
5,142,793 
3,404,834 

8,838,133 

19,947,048 

(2,315,681} 

26,469,500 
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CITY OF KETCHUM, IDAHO 
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances 

Governmental Funds 
for the year ended September 30, 2019 

City In-Lieu Other 
General Sales Tax Housing Governmental 

Fund Fund Fund Funds 
REVENUE: 

Property taxes $ 4,292,095 $ $ $ $ 
Local Option sales taxes 4,973,422 
Franchises, licenses, permits 702,952 268,749 
State of Idaho shared revenue 966,466 
State of Idaho sales tax 102,535 
State of Idaho liquor receipts 381,349 
State highway user collections 134,319 
Penalty/Interest on property taxes 13,801 
County court and parking fines 99,080 
Proceeds from sale of assets 11,752 0 
Fees and charges for services 3,291,704 184,760 550,304 
Grants and contributions 0 288,512 
Earnings on investments 81,545 767 59,313 42,601 
Miscellaneous and Reimbursements 81,096 0 300 

Total Revenue 10,158,694 4,974,189 244,073 1,150,466 

EXPENDITURES: 

General Government 4,167,474 83,087 209,981 
Public Safety 3,925,212 147,847 
Streets 1,987,424 
Capital outlay 1,445,230 
Parks and Recreation 467,643 26,098 
Transportation 3,172,440 
Affordable Housing 75,000 
Debt Service 149,008 

Total Expenditures 10,547,753 3,403,374 75,000 1,830,317 

EXCESS REVENUE (EXPENDITURES) (389,059) 1,570,815 169,073 (679,851) 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES): 

Operating transfers from other funds 1,164,256 606,917 
Operating transfers (to) other funds (414,007) (1,296,506) (60,660) 

NET CHANGE JN FUND BALANCES 361 ,190 274,309 169,073 (133,594) 

FUND BALANCE - BEGINNING 3,043,644 379,182 2,418,519 2,325,810 

FUND BALANCE - ENDING $ 3,404,834 $ 653,491 $ 2,587,592 $ 2,192,216 $ 

The accompanying notes are a part of these financial statements. 
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Total 
Governmental 

Funds 

4,292,095 
4,973,422 

971,701 
966,466 
102,535 
381,349 
134,319 

13,801 
99,080 
11,752 

4,026,768 
288,512 
184,226 
81,396 

16,527,422 

4,460,542 
4,073,059 
1,987,424 
1,445,230 

493,741 
3,172,440 

75,000 
149,008 

15,856,444 

670,978 

1,771,173 
(1,771,173) 

670,978 

8,167,155 

8,838,133 
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CITY OF KETCHUM, IDAHO 
Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, 

Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances of Governmental Funds 
To the Statement of Activities 

for the year ended September 30, 2019 

Net Change in Fund Balance - Total Governmental Funds (Page 15) 

Governmental funds report capital outlays as current year expenditures. 
In the Statement of Activities the cost of these assets is allocated 
over their estimated useful lives as depreciation expense. This is 
the amount of current capital outlay for new fixed assets. 

This is the amount of current year depreciation. 

This is the amount of new Governmental Fund assets. 

This is the amount of disposed of Governmental Fund assets. 

Long term liabilities are not recorded in the Governmental funds. 

This is the amount of payments 'on General Obligation Bonds Payable 

This is the amount of changes in net pension·liabilities 

Liability for personal leave days are not recorded in Governmental funds. 

This is the increase in compensated leave during the year. 

Change in Net Assets of Governmental Activities (Page 13) 

The accompanying notes are a part of these financial statements. 
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$ 670,978 

(1,835,635) 

1,704,009 

(108,382) 

131,000 

(445,321) 

(114,545) 

$ 2,104 
======== 
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CITY OF KETCHUM, IDAHO 
Statement of Net Position 

Proprietary Funds 
at September 30, 2019 

Water Wastewater Totals 
Assets: 
Current Assets: 

Cash and Deposits $ 1,560,426 $ 690,131 $ 2,250,557 
Accts receivable - customers 30,789 20,973 51,762 
Accts receivable - other govts. 60,233 60,233 

1,591,215 771,337 2,362,552 
Restricted Current Assets: 

Cash and Deposits 212,000 212,000 
Total Current Assets 1,591,215 983,337 2,574,552 

Capital Assets: 
Plant and equipment 12,389,242 14,465,878 26,855,120 
Accumulated depreciation {7,422,647} {6,379,305} (13,801,952} 

Net Plant and equipment 4,966,595 8,086,573 13,053,168 

Total Assets 6,557,810 9,069,910 15,627,720 

Deferred Outflow of Resources: 
Deferred Outflows from Pension Activity 13,436 17,401 30,837 

Liabilities: 
Current Liabilities: 

Accounts and Interest Payable 5,173 2,740 7,913 
Current portion long-term debt 175,000 195,000 370,000 

Total current liabilities 180,173 197,740 377,913 

Noncurrent Liabilities: 
Bonds Payable 3,323,000 1,120,000 4,443,000 
Unamortized Bond Discount (28,650) (28,650) 
Unamortized Bond Premium 157,548 123,810 281,358 
Net Pension Liability 90,444 117,131 207,575 
Compensated Absences Payable 39,886 34,905 74,791 

Total noncurrent liabilities 3,582,228 1,395,846 4,978,074 

Total Liabilities 3,762,401 1,593,586 5,355,987 

Deferred Inflow of Resources: 
Deferred Inflows from Pension Activity 41,471 53,708 95,179 

Net Position: 
Investment in capital assets 

net of related debt 1,339,697 6,647,763 7,987,460 
Restricted 0 212,000 212,000 
Unrestricted 1,427,677 580,254 2,007,931 

Total Net Position $ 2,767,374 $ 7,440,017 $ 10,207,391 

The accompanying notes are a part of these financial statements. 
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CITY OF KETCHUM, IDAHO 
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Net Position 

Proprietary Funds 
for the year ended September 30, 2019 

Water Wastewater 
Operating Revenues: 

Charges for services $ 2,015,415 $ 2,531,014 
Hookups, connections, impact fees 65,987 24,485 
Reimbursements and Misc. 18,054 5,421 

Total Operating Revenue 2,099,456 2,560,920 

Operating Expenses: 

Salaries and benefits 418,626 637,325 
Administrative and supplies 887,084 905,548 
Depreciation , 11, 255·,517 324,298 

Total Operating Expenses 1,561,227 1,867,171 

Operating Income 538,229 693,749 

Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses}: 

Interest Income 22,606 23,651 
Interest Expense (129,146) (71,030} 
Gain (Loss) on pension activity (22,502} 42,194 
Amortization of bond discount (3,231) 
Amortization of bond premuim 2,119 18,500 

Total Nonoperating (130,154) 13,315 

Income before transfers 408,075 707,064 

Transfers in 400,000 
Transfers out (400,000) 

Net Income 808,075 307,064 

Total Net Position - Beginning 1,959,299 7,132,953 

T<~tal Net Position - Ending $ 2,767,374 $ 7,440,017 

The accompanying notes are a part of these financial statements. 
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Totals 

$ 4,546,429 
90,472 
23,475 

4,660,376 

1,055,951 
1,792,632 

579,815 

3,428,398 

1,231,978 

46,257 
(200,176) 

19,692 
(3,231) 
20,619 

(116,839) 

1,115,139 

1,115,139 

9,092,252 

$ 10,207,391 
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CITY OF KETCHUM, IDAHO 
Statement of Cash Flows 

Proprietary Funds 
for the year ended September 30, 2019 

Water Wastewater 
Fund Fund 

Cash Flows From Operating Activities: 
Receipts from customers $ 2,091,743 $ 2,551,912 
Payments to suppliers (887,084) (905,548) 
Payments to employees (418,626) (637,325) 
Other receipts 18,054 5,421 

Net cash provided (used) by operations 804,087 1,014,460 

Cash Flows From Capital and Related 
Financing Activities: 

Purchase and construction of capital assets (270,728) (1,100,593) 
Payments from (to) other funds 400,000 (400,000) 
Principal paid on capital debt (173,000) (185,000) 
Interest paid on capital debt (129,146) (71,299) 

Net cash provided {used) by capital and· 
related financing activities (172,874) (1,756,892) 

Cash Flows From Investing Activities: 
Interest Income 22,606 23,651 

Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Deposits 653,819 (718,781) 

Balances - Beginning of the year 906,607 1,620,912 

Balances - Ending of the year $ 1,560,426 $ 902,131 

Displayed as: 
Pooled Cash and Investments 1,560,426 690,131 
Restricted Assets 212,000 

Balances - Ending of the year $ 1,560,426 $ 902,131 

Reconciliation of Operating Income (Loss) to Net 
Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities: 

Operating Income (Loss) 538,229 693,749 
Adjustments to reconcile operating income to net 

cash provided {used) by operating activities: 
Depreciation expense 255,517 324,298 

Changes in assets and liabilities: 
Receivables, net 2,812 (76) 
Accounts and other payables 7,529 (3,511} 

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activites $ 804,087 $ 1,014,460 

The accompanying notes are a part of these financial statements. 
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Total 

$ 4,643,655 
(1,792,632) 
(1,055,951) 

23,475 
1,818,547 

(1,371,321) 
0 

{358,000) 
{200,445) 

(1,929,766) 

46,257 

(64,962) 

2,527,519 

$ 2,462,557 

2,250,557 
212,000 

$ 2,462,557 

1,231,978 

579,815 

2,736 
4,018 

$ 1,818,547 
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CITY OF KETCHUM, IDAHO 
Not~s to the Financial Statements 

September 30, 2019 

NOTE 1 SUMMARY ,QF SIGNIIFlCANT .ACCOUNTING PQUCIE.S 

The City of Ketchum, Idaho became an incorporated city under the laws of the State of Idaho on October 
16, 1961. The accounting policies of the City of Ketchum, Idaho conform to generally accepted 
accounting principles as applicable to governmental units. The financial statements of the City of 
Ketchum, Idaho have been prepared in conformity with the generally accepted accounting principles 
(GAAP) as applied to governmental units. The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is 
the accepted standard-setting body for establishing governmental accounting and financial reporting 
principles. The City also applies Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) statements and 
interpretations issued on or before November 30, 1989, to its governmental and business-type activities 
(enterprise funds) provided they do not conflict with or contradict GASB pronouncements. The following 
is a summary of the more significant policies: 

(A) Ba ·s of Presentation - Bas1 of Ac,counting 

Basis of Presentation: 

For this reporting period, the City has conformed its financial statement model to Governmental Auditing 
Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 34. This mod~I presents the financial statements as follows: 

Government-wide Statements: The statement of net assets and the statement of activities display 
information about the primary government (the City). These statements distinguish between the 
governmental and business-type activities of the City." Governmental activities generally are financed 
through taxes, intergovernmental revenues, and other nonexchange transactions. Business-type 
activities are financed in whole or in part by fees charged to external parties. 

The statement of activities presents a comparison between direct expenses and program revenues for 
the different business-type activities of the City and for each function of the City's governmental activities. 
Direct expenses are those that are specifically associated with a program or function and, therefore, are 
clearly identifiable to a particular function. Indirect expense allocations that have been made in the funds 
have been reversed for the statement of activities. Program revenues include (a) fees, fines, and 
charges paid by the recipients of goods or services offered by the programs and (b) grants and 
contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements of a particular 
program. Revenues that are not classified as program revenues, including all taxes, are presented as 
general revenues. 

Fund Financial Statements: The fund financial statements provide information about the City's funds. 
Separate statements for each fund category-governmental and proprietary-are presented. The 
emphasis of fund financial statements is on major governmental and enterprise funds, each displayed in 
a separate column. 

Proprietary fund operating revenues, such as charges for services, result from exchange transactions 
associated with the principal activity of the fund. Exchange transactions are those in which each party 
receives and gives up essentially equal values. , Nonoperating revenues, such as subsidies and 
investment earnings, result from nonexchange transactions or ancillary activities. 
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CITY OF KETCHUM, IDAHO 
Notes to the Financial Statements 

September 30, 2019 
-Continued 

The City reports the following governmental funds: 
General Fund. This is the City's operating fund. It accounts for all financial resources of the general 
government, except those required to be accounted for in another fund. 

The City reports the following enterprise funds: 
Water and Wastewater Fund. This fund accounts for the operation, maintenance, and development of 
the City's water and waste-water facilities. 

Discretely Presented Component Unit 

The Component unit column in the financial statements includes the financial data of the City's only 
discretely presented component unit, the Ketchum Urban Renewal Agency. It is reported in a separate 
column to emphasize that it is separate from the City's operations. Complete financial statements of the 
Ketchum Urban Renewal Agency can be requested. 

Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting 

' . 

Government-wide and Proprietary Fund Financial Statements. The government-wide and proprietary 
fund financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement focus and the 
accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded at the 
time liabilities are incurred, regardless of when the related cash flows take place. Nonexchange 
transactions, in which the City gives (or receives) value without directly receiving (or giving) equal value 
in exchange, include property taxes, grants, entitlements, and donations. On an accrual basis, revenue 
from property taxes is recognized in the fiscal year for which the taxes are levied. Revenue from grants, 
entitlements, and donations is recognized in the fiscal year in which all eligibility requirements have been 
satisfied. 

Governmental Fund Financial Statements. Governmental funds are reported using the current financial 
resources measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Under this method, 
revenues are recognized when measurable and available. The City considers all revenues reported in 
the governmental funds to be available if the revenues are collected within sixty days after year-end. 
Property taxes, sales taxes, franchise taxes, licenses, and interest are considered to be susceptible to 
accrual. Expenditures are recorded when the related fund liability is incurred, except for principal and 
interest on general long-term debt, claims and judgments, and compensated absences, which are 
recognized as expenditures to the extent they have matured. General capital asset acquisitions are 
reported as expenditures in governmental funds. Proceeds of general long-term debt and acquisitions 
under capital leases are reported as other financing sources. 

Budgets and Budgetary Accounting. The City adheres to City budget requirements in Title 50, Chapter 
10 of the Idaho Code. The provisions of this chapter include the following procedures to establish 
budgetary data which is reflected in these financial statements: 

A. Prior to certifying the tax levy to the County Commissioners, and prior to passing the annual 
appropriation ordinance, a public meeting shall be held to adopt a budget by a favorable vote 
of a majority of the members of the council. 

B Budgets for all funds are adopted on a basis consistent with generally accepted accounting 
principles. Uncommitted appropriations lapse at year end. 

C. There are no provisions in Title 50, Chapter 10 for budget augmentations. 
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CITY OF KETCHUM, IDAHO 
Notes to the Financial Statements 

September 30, 2019 

Entity Classifications. 

A. City-Wide Financial Statements - The City reports net position in three categories - invested 
in capital assets, restricted and unrestricted. 

B. Fund Financial Statements - The City has adopted GASB Statement No. 54 "Fund Balance 
Reporting and Governmental Fund Type Definitions" (GASB 54) which defines how fund 
balances of the governmental funds are presented in the financial statements. There are five 
classifications of fund balances as presented below: 

Non-spendable - These funds are not available for expenditures based on legal or 
contractual requirements. In this category, one would see inventory, long-term receivables, 
unless proceeds are restricted, committed, or assigned and legally or contractually required to 
be maintained intact (corpus or a permanent fund). 

Restricted - These funds are governed by externally enforceable restrictions. In this 
category, one would see restricted purpose grant funds, debt service or capital projects. 

Committed - Fund balances in this category are limited by the governments' highest level of 
decision making. Any changes of designation must be done in the same manner that it was 
implemented and should occur prior to end of the fiscal year, though the exact amount may 
be determined subsequently. 

Assigned - These funds are intended to be used for specific purposes, intent is expressed by 
governing body or an official delegated by the governing body. 

Unassigned - This classification is the default for all funds that do not fit into the other 
categories. This, however, should not be a negative number for the general fund. If it is, the 
assigned fund balance must be adjusted. 

Order of Use of Fund Balance - The City's policy is to apply expenditures against non­
spendable fund balance, · restricted fund balance, committed fund balance, assigned fund 
balance and unassigned fund balance at the end of the fiscal year. For all funds, non­
spendable fund balances are determined first and then restricted fund balances for specific 
purposes are determined. 

Allocation of Indirect Expenses. The City allocates indirect expense, primarily comprised of central 
governmental services, to operating functions and programs benefiting from those services. Central 
services include overall City management, centralized budgetary formulation and oversight, accounting, 
financial reporting, payroll, procurement contracting and oversight, investing and cash management, 
personnel services, and other central administrative services. Allocations are charged to programs 
based on use of central services determined by various allocation methodologies. As a matter of policy, 
certain functions that use significant central services are not charged for the use of these services. 
These functions or programs include police, fire, and certain divisions with public services and parks. 
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CITY OF KETCHUM IDAHO, 
N,otes to he Financial Stateme:nts 

September 310, 20 t 9 

(B) Assets, Liabilities, and Equity 

Deposits and Investments 

The cash balances of substantially all funds are pooled and invested by the State of Idaho Treasurer's 
Office for the purpose of increasing earnings through investment activities. The pool's investments are 
reported at fair value at September 30 of each year based on market prices. The individual funds' 
portions of the pool's fair value are presented as "Cash and Deposits". Earnings on the pooled funds are 
apportioned and paid or credited to the funds monthly based on the average daily balance of each 
participating fund. 

Cash and Deposits 

The City considers cash and deposits in proprietary funds to be cash on hand. In addition, because the 
State Treasury Pool is sufficiently liquid to permit withdrawal of cash at any time without prior notice or 
penalty, equity in the pool is also deemed to be a deposit. 

Receivables and Payable 

All trade and property tax receivables are shown net of an allowance for uncollectibles. 

Property Tax Calendar 

Property taxes are levied each November based on the assessed value of property as listed on the 
previous September tax rolls. Assessed values are an approximation of market value. The Blaine 
County Assessor establishes assessed values. Property tax payments are due in one-half installments 
in December and June. Property taxes become a lien on the property when it is levied. 

Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources 

In 2007, the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) released Concepts Statement No. 4 
Elements of Financial Statements which provides a framework for determining the nature of financial 
accounting or reporting issues. Since the release of the framework, GASB has been looking at the 
assets and liabilities on the balance sheet to determine if they should continue to be reflected as such. 
GASB has concluded that, in order to improve financial reporting, there are assets and liabilities that no 
longer should be reflected as assets and liabilities. These changes are included in the recently issued 
GASB Statement No. 65, Items Previously Reported as Asset and Liabilities. 

These chang_es include two new items that are reflected on the Statement of Net Position. 

• Deferred outflow of resources - the current consumption of net assets that is applicable to a 
future reporting period. 

• Deferred inflows of resources - the current acquisition of net assets that is applicable to a future 
reporting period. 

The City's financial statements may report a separate section for deferred inflows of resources which 
reflects an increase in resources that applies to a future period. 
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CITY OF KETCHUM, IDAHO 
Notes to the Financial Statements 

September 30, 2019 
-Continued 

Capital Assets 

Purchased or constructed capital assets used in operations with an initial useful life that extends beyond 
one year are capitalized. Infrastructure assets such as roads and bridges are also capitalized. They are 
reported net of accumulated depreciation on the Statement of Net Assets. The City capitalizes assets in 
excess of $5,000. 

Under the requirements of GASB Statement No. 34, the City is considered a Phase 3 government, as its 
total annual revenues are less than $10 million. Such governments are not required to report major 
general infrastructure assets retroactively. Accordingly, the City has determined not to retroactively 
report this type of capital asset. 

Capital assets are recorded at their historical cost and are depreciated using the straight-line method of 
depreciation over the following estimated useful lives: 

Asset Class 

Infrastructure 
Buildings 
Building Improvements 
Vehicles 
Office and Other Equipment 
Computer Equipment 

Compensated Absences 

Estlmat,ed 
Usefu I Lives 

30 
50 
20 
5-15 
3-15 
3-15 

The liability for compensated absences reported in the government-wide and proprietary fund statements 
consists of unpaid, accumulated annual vacation and sick leave balances. The liability has been 
calculated using the vesting method, in which leave amounts for both employees who currently are 
eligible to receive termination payments and other employees who are expected to become eligible in the 
future to receive such payments upon termination are included. 

Pensions 

For purposes of measuring the net pension liability and pension expense, information about the fiduciary 
net position of the Public Employee Retirement System of Idaho Base Plan (Base Plan) and additions 
to/deductions from Base Plan's fiduciary net position have been determined on the same basis as they 
are reported by the Base Plan. For this purpose, benefit payments {including refunds of employee 
contributions) are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms. Investments 
are reported at fair value. 

NOTE 2 - CASH A_ND DEPOSITS 

Deposits: Custodial credit risk, in the case of deposits, is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, the 
government's deposits may not be returned to it. The City has no deposit policy for custodial credit risk. 
At year end, $339,035 of the City's bank balances were exposed to custodial credit risk because of the$ 
250,000 limit insured by the FDIC. 
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CITY OF KETCHUM, IDAHO 
Notes to the Financial Statements 

September 30, 2019 
-Continued 

Investments: Custodial credit risk, in the case of investments, is the risk that in the event of the failure of 
the counterparty, the government will not be able to recover the value of its investments or collateral 
securities that are in the possession of an outside party. At year end, the City held the following 
investments: 

Investment Type 

Idaho State Local Government Investment Pool$ 9,970,079. (Combined with cash deposits) 

These investments are unrated external investment pools sponsored by the Idaho State Treasurer's 
Office. They are classified as "Investments in an External Investment Pool" and are exempt from 
custodial credit risk and concentration of credit risk reporting. Interest rate risk is summarized as follows: 
Asset-backed securities are reported using weighted average life to more accurately reflect the projected 
term of the security, considering interest rates and repayment factors. 

The elected Idaho State Treasurer, following Idaho Code, Section 67-2328, is authorized to sponsor an 
investment pool in which the City voluntarily participates. The Pool is not registered with the Securities 
and Exchange Commission or any other regulatory body - oversight is with the State Treasurer, and 
Idaho Code defines allowable investments. All investments are entirely insured or collateralized with 
securities held by the Pool qr by its agent in the Pool's name. And the fair value of the City's position in 
the external investment pool is the same as the value of the pool shares. 

Credit Risk: The City's policy is to comply with Idaho State statutes which authorize the City to invest in 
obligations of the United States, obligations of the State or any taxing district in the State, obligations 
issued by the Farm Credit System, obligations of public corporations of the State of Idaho, repurchase 
agreements, tax anticipation notes of the State or taxing district in the State, time deposits, savings 
deposits, revenue bonds of institutions of higher education, and the State Treasurer's Pool. 

Interest rate risk and concentration of credit risk: The City has no policy regarding these two investment 
risk categories. 

The City maintains a cash and investment pool that is available for use by all funds. Each fund type's 
portion of this pool is presented on the combined balance sheet as "Cash and Deposits" 

Cash and Deposits are comprised of the following at the financial statement date: 

Cash on Hand 

Deposits with financial institutions: 

Demand deposits 
State of Idaho Investment Pool 

Total 
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$ 320 

779,429 
9,970,079 

8 
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CITY OF KETCHUM, IDAHO 
Notes to the Financial Statements 

September 30, 2019 
-Continued 

NOTE 3 - CAPITAL ASSETS 

Capital asset activity for the current year ended was as follows: 

Beginning Ending 
Balances Increases Decreases Balances 

Governmental Activities: 
Capital Assets not being depreciated: 
Land $ 8,809,038 $ $ $ 8,809,038 
Construction in Progress 0 0 

Total 8,809,038 0 0 8,809,038 

Capital Assets being depreciated: 
Buildings & Improvements 9,995,787 210,000 9,785,787 
Infrastructure 2,349,090 '' 1 490,028 2,839,118 
Vehicles and Equipment 7,292,832 '12·13981 , ' 209,243 8,297,570 

Total 19,637,709 1,704,009 419,243 20,922,475 
Less: Accumulated Depreciation: 8,259,691 1,835,635 310,861 9,784,465 
Total Net Depreciated Assets 11,378,018 (131,626) 108,382 11,138,010 

Governmental capital assets, net $ 20,187,056 $ (131,626) $ 108,382 $ 19,947,048 

Business-type activities: 
Capital Assets not being depreciated: 
Land $ 15,380 $ $ $ 15,380 
Construction in Progress 524,626 240,196 524,626 240,196 

Total 540,006 240,196 524,626 255,576 

Capital Assets being depreciated: 
Buildings & Improvements 24,128,329 1,641,999 25,770,328 
Vehicles and Equipment 815,466 13,750 829,216 

Total 24,943,795 1,655,749 0 26,599,544 
Less: Accumulated Depreciation 13,222,137 579,815 13,801,952 
Total Net Depreciated Assets 11,721,658 1,075,934 0 12,797,592 

Business-type capital assets, net $ 12,261,664 $ 1,316,130 $ 524,626 $ 13,053,168 
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CITY OF KETCHUM, IDAHO 
Notes to the Financial Statements 

September 30, 2019 

NOTE 4 - BONDS PAYABLE 

In December of 2004, the City sold$ 1,990,000 of Sewer Revenue Bonds, Series 2004. The proceeds 
of this issue were used to make improvements to the City's wastewater system. The bonds were retired 
with funds from the 2014 Wastewater Refunding Bonds 2014. 

In May of 2006, the City sold $1,730,000 of Sewer Revenue Bonds, Series 2006A. The proceeds of this 
issue were used to make improvements to the City's wastewater system. The bonds were retired by the 
2014 bond issue. 

In November of 2014 the City sold$ 1,950,000 of Sewer Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2014. The 
proceeds from this bond issue retired the City's 2004 and 2006 bond series. This bond issue is to be 
retired by user fees generated by the City's enterprise fund. 

In 2006 outstanding bonds from the City's series ·1998 issue were defeased by placing proceeds of a 
new bond issue, Water Revenue Refunding Bonds Series 20068 for$ 3,030,000, in an irrevocable trust 
to provide for all future debt payments on the old bonds. These bonds were retired by the City's Water 
Revenue Refunding Bonds Series 2016. 

In September of 2016 the City sold$ 1,697,000 of Water Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2016. The 
proceeds from this bond issue retired the City's 20068 bond series. This bond issue is to be retired by 
user fees generated by the City's enterprise fund. 

In May of 2006, the City sold $ 2,780,000 of Water Revenue Bonds, Series 2006A. The proceeds of this 
issue were used to make improvements to the City's water system. These bonds were retired by the 
City's Water Revenue Refunding Bonds Series 2015. 

In September of 2015 the City sold$ 2,310,000 of Water Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2015. The 
proceeds from this bond issue retired the City's 2006A bond series. This bond issue is to be retired by 
user fees generated by the City's enterprise funq. 

In June of 2007, the City sold $1,550,000 of General Obligation Bonds, Series June 5, 2007. The 
proceeds of this issue were used for capital equipment acquisitions. 

The following is a list of the interest and principal payments through the end of the bond issues: 

Wastewater Refunding Bond Series 2014 

FY Interest Principal 
2020 $ 65,750 $ 195,000 

2021 

2022 

2023 

2024 

2025 

Totals $ 

56,000 

45,750 

35,000 

24,000 

12,500 

239,000 
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205,000 

215,000 

220,000 

230,000 

250,000 

$ 1,315,000 
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Bonds Payable - Continued 

FY 

2020 $ 

2022 

2023 

2024 

2025 

2026-2034 

Totals $ 

CITY OF KETCHUM, IDAHO 
Notes to the Financial Statements 

September 30, 2019 

Water Refunding Bonds 2015 Water Revenue Bonds 2016 

Interest Principal Interest Principal 

109,475 30,000 $ 22,064 $ 145,000 

108,575 30,000 19,540 151,000 

107,675 30,000 16,912 152,000 

106,475 30,000 14,269 157,000 

105,500 30,000 11,537 162,000 

707,000 2,080,000 17,626 501,000 

1,244,700 $ 2,230,000 $ 101,948 $ 1,268,000 

General Obligation Bonds Series June 5, 2007 

FY Interest Principal 

2020 $ 12,336 $ 137,000 

2021 6,335 143,000 

Totals $ 18,671 $ 280,000 

NOTE 5 - CAPITAL LEASES 

The City has entered into a municipal lease agreement for the purchase of a 2019 Hughes Aerial Fire 
Ladder Trust to be used by the General Fund of the City. The obligation is recorded in the respective 
fund. Annual lease payments are paid on July 1 of each year. Unless sooner terminated as set forth in 
the lease, ownership will transfer to the City upon expiration of the lease. Depreciation expense has 
been computed on assets acquired under municipal lease agreements. 

Detail of the Capital Leases follows: 
Financed 2020 2021 2022 2023-34 Total 

Governmental Activities 
2019 Hughes Aerial Fire Ladder Truck 
Zions Bancorporaton $ 709,069 $ 39,955 $ 39,695 $ 40,806 588,613 $ 709,069 

Computed Interest 2.8% 18,475 18,735 17,624 112,542 167,376 

709,069 58,430 58,430 58,430 701,155 876,445 

Total Capital Leases $ 709,069 $ 58,430 $ 58,430 $ 58,430 701,155 $ 876,445 
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NOTE 6 - OPERATING LEASES 

CITY OF KETCHUM, IDAHO 
Notes to the Financial Statements 

September 30, 2019 

The City is obligated under several operating leases for vehicles and equipment. Operating leases do 
not give rise to property rights or purchase obligations, and therefore the results of the lease agreements 
are not reflected in the City's capital assets. 

NOTE 7 - MISCELLANEOUS REVENUES, GOVERNMENTAL FUND TYPES 

The miscellaneous revenues section of the combined statement of revenues and expenditures includes 
the following amounts: 

Rents 
Miscellaneous 

Total 

NOTE 8 - LITIGATION 

Total 
Governmental 

$ 80,418 
978 

$ 81 396 

The City, at the financial statement date, Is involved in a few matters of litigation. Legal representation 
has not determined the resolution of these matters. The City contends that any liability in any of these 
issues would be immaterial to the financial statements. 

NOTE 9 - RESTRICTED NET ASSETS 

The ordinance authorizing the Enterprise Fund revenue bonds requires that the City establish certain 
restricted cash accounts to be used in the retirement of the bonds and improvements to the waste-water 
systems. In addition, certain cash amounts are restricted for use in law enforcement, zoning ordinance 
enforcement, and for other restrictions imposed by the City Council in the general fund ; and for debt 
retirement in the long-term debt group of accounts. The City's policy is to first apply unrestricted 
resources when an expense is incurred for purposes for which both restricted and unrestricted net assets 
are available. These restricted amounts are as follows: 

General Enterprise 
Fund Funds 

Various Trust Cash $ 290,506 
Wastewater Bonds Debt Service $ 212,000 

Totals $ 290,506 $ 212,0QQ 
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Notes to the Financial Statements 
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A City is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction of assets; 
errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters. During the fiscal year, the City is 
contracted with Idaho County Risk Management Program (ICRMP) for property, crime and fleet 
insurance and the State Insurance Fund for workman's compensation. Under the terms of the ICRMP 
policy, the City of Ketchum's liability is limited to the amount of annual financial membership 
contributions, including a per occurrence deductible. There has been no significant reduction in 
insurance coverage in the current year. Settlement amounts have not exceeded insurance coverage for 
the current year or the three prior years. 

NOTE 1 - KETCHUM URBAN RENEWAL A.GENCY 

The component unit column in the combined financial statements includes the financial data of the 
Ketchum Urban Renewal Agency, the City's only discretely presented component unit. It is reported in a 
separate column to emphasize that it is legally separate from the City in accordance with State Urban 
Renewal law. The Agency has authority to constructpublic improvements including the acquisition of 
public right-of-way within the blighted area legally desianated as the redevelopment district. The City 
appoints the governing board of the Agency. The Agency derives its funding from tax increment 
financing. Complete financial statements for the current year are available from the Agency. 

The City advanced $1,495,830 of cash held for affordable housing construction to the Agency to begin 
their operations. The Agency has determined to pay this amount back to the City over the next several 
years as funds become available. These amounts are not accrued in the City's records but will be 
recognized as revenue when received in the "In-Lieu Housing Fund". The balance remaining unpaid at 
the date of these financial statements is$ 1,261,687. 
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NOTE 12 - EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT PLAN 

Plan Description 

The City of Ketchum contributes to the Base Plan which is a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined 
benefit pension plan administered by Public Employee Retirement System of Idaho (PERS! or 
System) that covers substantially all employees of the State of Idaho, its agencies and various 
participating political subdivisions. The cost to administer the plan is financed through the 
contributions and investment earnings of the plan. PERSI issues a publicly available financial report 
that includes financial statements and the required supplementary information for PERSI. That report 
may be obtained on the PERSI website at www.persi.idaho.gov. 

Responsibility for administration of the Base Plan is assigned to the Board comprised of five members 
appointed by the Governor and confirmed by the Idaho Senate. State law requires that two members 
of the Board be active Base Plan members with at least ten years of service and three members who 
are Idaho citizens not members of the·Base Plan except by reason of having served on the Board. 

Pension Benefits 

The Base Plan provides retirement, disability, death and survivor benefits of eligible members or 
beneficiaries. Benefits are based on members' years of service, age and highest average salary. 
Members become fully vested in their retirement benefits with five years of credited services (5 
months for elected or appointed officials). Members are eligible for retirement benefits upon 
attainment of the ages specified for their employment classification. The annual service retirement 
allowance for each month of credited service is 2.0% (2.3% for police/firefighters) of the average 
monthly salary for the highest consecutive 42 months. 

The benefit payments for the Base Plan are calculated using a benefit formula adopted by the Idaho 
Legislature. The Base Plan is required to provide a 1 % minimurr:i cost of living increase per year 
provided the Consumer Price Index increases 1 % or more. The PERSI Board has the authority to 
provide higher cost of living increases to a maximum of the Consumer Price Index movement or 6%, 
whichever is less; however, any amount above the 1% minimum is subject to review by the Idaho 
Legislature. 

Member and Employer Contributions 

Member and employer contributions paid to the Base Plan are set by statute and are established as a 
percent of covered compensation. Contribution rates are determined by the PERSI Board within 
limitations, as defined by state law. The Board may make periodic changes to employer and 
employee contribution rates (expressed as percentages of annual covered payroll) that are adequate 
to accumulate sufficient assets to pay benefits when due. 

The contribution rates for employees are set by statute at 60% of employer rate for general 
employees and 72% for police and firefighters. As of June 30, 2019, it was 6.79% for general 
employees and 8.36% for police and firefighters. The employer contribution rate, ass percent of 
covered payroll, is set by the Retirement Board and was 11.32% for general employees and 11.66% 
for police and firefighters. The City's contributions were $441,262 for the year ended September 30, 
2019. 
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CITY OF KETCHUM, IDAHO 
Notes to the Financial Statements 

September 30, 2019 

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense (Revenue), and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred 
Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions. 

At September 30, 2019, the City reported a liability for its proportionate share of the net pension 
liability. The net pension liability was measured as of June 30, 2019, and the total pension liability 
used to calculate the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of that date. 
The City's proportion of the net pension liability was based on the City's share of contributions in the 
Base Plan pension plan relative to the total contributions of all participating PERSI Base Plan 
employers. At June 30, 2019, the City's proportion was 0.0865200 percent. 

For the year ended September 30, 2019, the City recognized pension expense (revenue) of $135,046. 
At September 30, 2019, the City reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of 
resources related to pensions from the following sources: 

Deferred Deferred 
Outflows of Inflows of 
Resources Resources 

Differences between expected and actual 
experience $ 91,782 $116,394 
Chanqes in assumotions or other inouts $ 54,936 

Net difference between projected and actual 
earnings on pension plan investments $ (85,317) $336,447 
Changes in the employer's proportion and 
differences between the employer's 
contributions and the employer's proportionate 
contributions 

City's contributions subsequent to the 
measurement date $ 85,316 

Total $146,717 $452,841 

$85,316 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions resulting from Employer 
contributions subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the net 
pension liability in the year ending September 30, 2020. 

The average of the expected remaining service lives of all employees that are provided with pensions 
through the System (active and inactive employees) determined at July 1, 2017 the beginning of the 
measurement period ended June 30, 2018 is 4.8 and 4.8 for the measurement period June 30, 2019. 

Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related 
to pensions will be recognized in pension expense (revenue) as follows: 
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CITY OF KETCHUM, IDAHO 
Notes to the Financial Statements 

September 30, 2-019 

Year ended September 30, 2019: 

2020 
2021 
2022 
2023 
Thereafter 

Actuarial Assumptions 

($ 35,562) 
($152,360) 
($ 74,217) 
($ 43,983) 
($306,123) 

Valuations are based on actuarial assumptions, the benefit formulas, and employee groups. Level 
percentages of payroll normal costs are determined using the Entry Age Normal Cost Method. Under 
the Entry Age Normal Cost Method, the actuarial present value of the projected benefits of each 
individual included in the actuarial valuation is allocated as a level percentage of each year's earnings 
of the individual between entry age and assumed exit age. The Base Plan amortizes any unfunded 
actuarial accrued liability based on a level percentage Qf payroll. The maximum amortization period 
for the Base Plan permitted under Section 59-1322, Idaho Code, is 25 years. 

The total pension liability in the June 30, 2019actuarial .val~ation was determined using the following 
actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods_ included in the measurement: 

Inflation 
Salary increases 
Salary inflation 
Investment rate of return 
Cost-of-living adjustments 

3.00% 
3.75 -10.00% 
3.75% 
7.05%, net of investment expenses 
1% 

Mortality rates were based on the RP - 2000 combined table for healthy males or females as 
appropriate with the following offsets: 

• Set back 3 years for teachers 

• No offset for male fire and police 

• Forward one year for female fire and police 

•· Set back one year for all general employees and all beneficiaries 

An experience study was performed for the period July 1, 2013 through June 30, 2017 which 
reviewed all economic and demographic ~ssumptions including mortality. The Total Pension Liability 
as of June 30, 2019 is based on the results of an actuarial valuation date of July 1, 2019. 

The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using the building 
block approach and a forward-looking model in which best estimate ranges of expected future real 
rates of return (expected returns, net of pension plan investm~nt expense and inflation) are developed 
for each major asset class. These ranges are combined to produce the long-term expected rate of 
return by weighing the expected future real rates of return by the target asset allocation percentage 
and by adding expected inflation. 
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CITY OF KETCHUM, IDAHO 
Notes to the Financial Statements 

September 30, 2019 
-Continued 

Even though history provides a valuable perspective for setting the investment return assumption, the 
System relies primarily on an approach which builds upon the latest capital market assumptions. 
Specifically, the System uses consultants, investment managers and trustees to develop capital market 
assumptions in analyzing the System's asset allocation. The assumptions and the System's formal policy 
for asset allocation are shown below. The formal asset allocation policy is somewhat more conservative 
than the current allocation of System's assets. The best-estimate range for the long-term expected rate of 
return is determined by adding expected inflation to expected long-term real returns and reflecting 
expected volatility and correlation. The capital market assumptions are as of January 1, 2017. 

Capital Market Assumptions 

Equities: 

Broad Domestic Equity 

International 

Fixed Income: 

Cash 

Total Fund 

Actuary 

Portfolio 

* Expected arithmetic return net of fees and expenses 

Actuarial Assumptions: 

Assumed Inflation - Standard 

Deviation 

Portfolio Arithmetic Mean 

Return 

Portfolio Long-Term Expected 

Geometric Rate of Return 

Assumed Investment Expenses 

Long-Term Expected 

Geometric Rate of Return 

Net of Investment Expenses 

Expected 

Return 

9.15% 

9.25% 

3.05% 

2.25% 

Expected 

Return 

7.00% 

6.58% 
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Expected 

Rfsk 

19.00% 

20.20% 

3.75% 

0.90% 

Expected 

Inf at on 

3.25% 

2.25% 

Strategic 

iNorma~ 

70% 

55% 

15% 

30% 

0% 

Expected 

Real 

Return 

3.75% 

4.33% 

Strategic 

Ran es 

66%-77% 

50%-65% 

10%-20% 

23%-33% 

0%-5% 

Expected 

Risk 

N/A 

12.67% 

3.25% 

2.00% 

8.42% 

7.50% 

045% 

7.05% 
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Discount Rate 

CITY OF KETCHUM, IDAHO 
Notes to the Financial Statements 

September 30, 2019 

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.05%. The projection of cash flows 
used to determine the discount rate assumed that contributions from plan members will be made at 
the current contribution rate. Based on these assumptions, the pension plans' net position was 
projected to be available to make all projected future benefit payments of current plan members. 
Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was applied to all 
periods of projected benefit payments to determine the total pension liability. The long-term expected 
rate of return was determined net of pension plan investment expense but without reduction for 
pension plan administrative expense. 

Sensitivity of the Employer's proportionate share of the net pension liability to changes in the discount 
rate. 

The following presents the Employer's proportionate share of the net pension liability calculated using 
the discount rate of 7.05%, as well as what the. Employer's proportionate share of the net pension 
liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage-point lower (6.05%) or 
1-percentage-point higher (8.05%) than the current rate: 

Current 1% 
1% Decrease Dlscount Rate Increase 
{6.05%1) (7.05%) (8.05%,l 

Employer's pmp{)rtiona~e share of t11e net 
pen,s,on Habi!ltt (a,sse1) $997,478 $ 987,6_02 $ 977,726 

Pension plan fiduciary net position 

Detailed information about the pension plan's fiduciary net position is available in the separately 
issued PERSI financial report. 

PERSI issues a publicly available financial report that includes financial statements and the required 
supplementary information for PERSI. That report may be obtained on the PERSI website at 
www.persi.idaho.gov 

Payables to the pension plan 

At September 30, 2019, the City reported payables to the defined benefit pension plan of$ 0 for 
legally required employer contributions and $ 0 for legally required employee contributions which had 
been withheld from employee wages but not yet remitted to PERSI. 

NOTE 13-SUBSEQUENT EVENTS 

Subsequent events were evaluated through the date of the auditor's report, which is the date the 
financial statements were available to be issued. 
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CITY OF KETCHUM, IDAHO 
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances 

Budget and Actual -- General Fund 
for the year ended September 30, 2019 

Variance with 
Original Final Final Budget 

Actual Budget Budget Positive 
Amounts Amounts Amounts (Negative) 

REVENUE: 

Property taxes $ 4,292,095 $ 4,224,752 $ 4,224,752 $ 67,343 
Franchises, licenses, permits 702,952 772,608 832,608 (129,656) 
State of Idaho shared revenue 966,466 911,880 911,880 54,586 
State of Idaho sales tax 102,535 96,661 96,661 5,874 
State of Idaho liquor receipts 381,349 378,825 378,825 2,524 
State highway user collections 134,319 129,090 129,090 5,229 
Penalty and interest on property taxes 13,801 10,000 10,000 3,801 
County court and parking fines 99,080 60,125 60,125 38,955 
Fees, fines and charges for services 3,291,704 2,965,181 3,135,181 156,523 
Grants and contributions 0 0 0 0 
Earnings on investments . 81,545'· , , 30,001 30,001 51,544 
Miscellaneous 92,848 78,260 78,260 14,588 

Total Revenue 10,158,694 I 9,657,383. 9,887,383 271,311 

EXPENDITURES: 

General Government 4,167,474 4,142,313 4,223,313 55,839 
Public Safety 3,925,213 3,758,179 3,877,179 (48,034) 
Streets 1,987,424 1,918,273 2,133,273 145,849 
Capital outlay 
Parks and Recreation 467,643 520,827 520,827 53,184 
Transportation 
Affordable Housing 
Debt Service 

Total Expenditures 10,547,754 10,339,592 10,754,592 206,838 

EXCESS REVENUE (EXPENDITURES) (389,060) (682,209) (867,209) 478,149 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES): 

Operating transfers from other funds 1,164,256 979,256 1,164,256 0 
Operating transfers (to) other funds (414,007) (206,007) (214,007) 200,000 

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES 361,189 91,040 83,040 678,149 

FUND BALANCE - BEGINNING 3,043,644 3,043,644 3,043,644 

FUND BALANCE - ENDING $ 3,404,833 3,134,684 $ 3,126,684 
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CITY OF KETCHUM, IDAHO 
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances 

Budget and Actual -- City Sales Tax Fund 
for the year ended September 30, 2019 

Variance with 
Original Final Final Budget 

Actual Budget Budget Positive 
Amounts Amounts Amounts (Negative) 

REVENUE: 

Property taxes $ $ $ $ 
Local Option sales taxes 4,973,422 4,532,987 4,717,987 255,435 
Franchises, licenses, permits 0 
State of Idaho shared revenue 
State of Idaho sales tax 
State of Idaho liquor receipts 
State highway user collections 
Penalty and interest on property taxes 
County court fines 
Fees, fines and charges for services 
Grants and contributions 
Earnings on investments 767 1,000 1,000 (233) 
Miscellaneous 

Total Revenue 4,974,188 4,533,987 4,718,987 255,201 

EXPENDITURES: 

General Government 83,087 97,500 97,500 14,413 
Public Safety 147,847 143,541 143,541 (4,306} 
Streets 
Capital outlay 
Parks and Recreation 
Transportation 3,172,440 3,172,440 3,172,440 0 
Affordable Housing 
Debt Service 

Total Expenditures 3,403,374 3,413,481 3,413,481 10,107 

EXCESS REVENUE (EXPENDITURES) 1,570,815 1,120,506 1,305,506 265,309 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES): 

Operating transfers from other funds 0 
Operating transfers (to} other funds (1,296,506} (1,111,506) (1,296,506) 0 

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES 274,309 9,000 9,000 265,309 

FUND BALANCE - BEGINNING 379,182 379,182 379,182 

FUND BALANCE - ENDING $ 653,491 $ 388,182 $ 388,182 
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CITY OF KETCHUM, IDAHO 
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances 

Budget and Actual -- In-Lieu Housing Fund 
for the year ended September 30, 2019 

Variance with 
Original Final Final Budget 

Actual Budget Budget Positive 
Amounts Amounts Amounts (Negative) 

REVENUE: 

Property taxes $ $ $ $ 
Local Option sales taxes 
Franchises, licenses, permits 
State of Idaho shared revenue 
State of Idaho sales tax 
State of Idaho liquor receipts 
State highway user collections 
Penalty and interest on property taxes 
County court fines 
Fees, fines and charges for services 184,760 184,760 
Grants and contributions 
Earnings on investments 59,313 34,000 34,000 25,313 
Miscellaneous 90,000 90,000 (90,000) 

Total Revenue 244,073 124,000 124,000 120,073 

EXPENDITURES: 

General Government 0 
Public Safety 
Streets 
Capital outlay 1,350,000 2,100,000 (2,100,000) 
Parks and Recreation 
Transportation 
Affordable Housing 75,000 75,000 75,000 0 
Debt Service 

Total Expenditures 75,000 1,425,000 2,175,000 (2,100,000) 

EXCESS REVENUE (EXPENDITURES) 169,073 (1,301,000) (2,051,000) (1,979,927) 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES): 

Operating transfers from other funds 
Operating transfers (to) other funds 

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES 169,073 (1,301,000) (2,051,000) (1,979,927) 

FUND BALANCE - BEGINNING 2,418,519 2,418,519 2,418,519 

FUND BALANCE - ENDING $ 2,587,592 $ 1,117,519 $ 367,519 
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Required Supplementary Information 

Employer's portion of the net pension liability 

CITY OF KETCHUM, IDAHO 

PUBLIC EMPLOYEE PENSION INFORMATION 

For the year ended September 30, 2019 

Schedule of Employer's Share of Net Pension Llablllty 

PERSI - Base Plan 
Last 10 - Fiscal Years• 

2019 2018 

.0865200% .0799402% 

Employer's proportionate share of the net pension liability $ 987,602 $ 1,179,132 $ 
Employer's covered-employee payroll $ 3,625,685 $ 3,742,286 $ 

Employer's proportional share of the net pension liability 

as a percentage of its covered-employee payroll 27.24% 

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the total 

pension liability 3713.73% 

• GASB Statement No. 68 required ten years of information to be presented in !his table. 

However, until a full 10-year trend is compiled, the City will present information for those 

years for which infomiation is available. 

Data reported is measured as of June 30, 2019 

31.51% 

3051.24% 

Schedule of Employer's Contributions 
PERSI - Base Plan 

Statutorily required contributions 

Contributions in relation to the statutorily required contribution 

Contribution (deficiency) excess 

Employer's covered-employee payroll 

Contributions as a percentage of covered~mployee payroll 

Last 10- Fiscal Years• 

2019 

$ 441,262 $ 

$ (441,262) $ 

$ 0 $ 

$ 3,625,685 $ 

12.17% 

-39-

2018 

455,247 $ 

(455,247) $ 

0 $ 

3,742,286 $ 

12.16% 

2017 2016 2015 

.0866389% .0857958% .0889864% 

1,361,816 $ 1,739,214 $ 1,171,806 

3,585,052 $ 3,435,203 $ 2,691,486 

37.99% 50.63% 43.54% 

1988.07% 1439.94% 1794.56% 

2017 2016 2015 

445,468 $ 425,702 $ 393,730 

445,468 $ (425,702) $ (393,730) 

0 Ii 0 $ 0 

3,585,052 $ 3,435,203 $ 2,691,486 

12.43% 12.39% 14.63% 
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CITY OF KETCHUM, IDAHO 
Combining Balance Sheets 

Combining Other Governmental Funds 
at September 30, 2019 

General Street Law Enforce 
Capital Capital Capital 

Improvement Improvement Improvement 
Fund Fund Fund 

ASSETS: 

Cash and Cash Deposits $ 1,234,522 $ 375,655 $ 19,181 $ 
Taxes Receivable 
Due From Other Governments 

Total Assets $ 1,234,522 $ 375,655 $ 19,181 $ 

LIABILITIES: 

Accounts Payable $ $ $ 
Funds Held in Trust 
Due To Other Funds 

Total Liabilities 0 0 0 

FUND BALANCE: ~• L l ' • I i 

Non-spendable 
Restricted 
Committed 
Assigned 1,234,522 375,655 19,181 
Unassigned 

Total Fund Balance 1,234,522 375,655 19,181 

Total Liabilities and Fund Balance $ 1,234,522 $ 375,655 $ 19,181 

The accompanying notes are a part of these financial statements. 
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$ 

$ 

Fire/Rescue 
Capital 

Improvement 
Fund 

244,761 

244,761 

0 

244,761 

244,761 

244,761 
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$ 

Parks 
Capital 

Improvement 
Fund 

7,217 $ 

$ 7,217 $ 
======= 

$ $ 

0 

7,217 

7,217 

$ 7,217 $ 

GO Bond 
Debt 
Fund 

3,099 $ 

3,099 $ 

$ 

0 

3,099 

3,099 

3,099 $ 

Wagon 
Days 
Fund 

17,275 $ 

17,275 $ 

$ 

0 

17,275 

17,275 

17,275 $ 

Police/Fire 
Trust 
Fund 

99,851 $ 

99,851 $ 

$ 

0 

99,851 

99,851 

99,851 $ 

Community 
Development 

Trust 
Fund 

Park 
Trust 
Fund 

56,880 $ 190,655 $ 

56,880 $ 190,655 

$ $ 
56,880 

56,880 0 

190,655 

0 190,655 

56,880 $ 190,655 

The accompanying notes are a part of these financial statements. 
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Total 
Governmental 

Funds 

2,249,096 
0 
0 

2,249,096 

0 
56,880 

0 

56,880 

0 
290,506 

0 
1,901,710 

0 

2,192,216 

2,249,096 
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CITY OF KETCHUM, IDAHO 
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances 

Combining Other Governmental Funds 
for the year ended September 30, 2019 

REVENUE: 

Property taxes $ 
Local Option sales taxes 
Franchises, licenses, permits 
State of Idaho shared revenue 
State of Idaho sales tax 
State of Idaho liquor receipts 
State highway user collections 
Penalty and interest on property taxes 
Proceeds from sale of assets 
Fees and charges for services 
Grants and contributions 
Earnings on investments 
Miscellaneous 

Total Revenue 

EXPENDITURES: 

General Government 
Public Safety 
Streets 
Capital outlay 
Parks and Recreation 
Transportation 
Affordable Housing 
Debt Service 

Total Expenditures 

EXCESS REVENUE (EXPENDITURES) 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES): 

Operating transfers from other funds 
Operating transfers (to} other funds 

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES 

FUND BALANCE - BEGINNING 

General 
Capital 

Improvement 
Fund 

268,749 

410,374 
251,000 

17,873 

947,996 ' 

1,026,590 

1,026,590 

(78,594) 

212,500 
(48,160} 

$ 

Street 
Capital 

Improvement 
Fund 

34,026 
5 

8,257 

·42,288 

113,728 

113,728 

(71,440) 

48,160 
0 

(23,280) 

398,935 

$ 

Law Enforce 
Capital 

Improvement 
Fund 

784 

372 

1,156 

0 

1,156 

1,156 

18,025 

$ 

Fire/Rescue 
Capital 

Improvement 
Fund 

21,355 

9,359 

30,714 

290,512 

290,512 

(259,798} 

32,000 

(227,798) 

472,559 

FUND BALANCE- ENDING $ 

85,746 

1,148,776 

1,234,522 $ 375,655 $ 19,181 $ 244,761 
======= 

The accompanying notes are a part of these financial statements. 
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Parks Community 
Capital GO Bond Wagon Police/Fire Development Park Total 

Improvement Debt Days Trust Trust Trust Governmental 
Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Funds 

$ $ $ $ $ $ $ 0 
0 

268,749 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 

7,186 8,479 68,100 550,304 
8,369 29,138 288,512 

447 655 307 2,397 20 2,914 42,601 
300 300 

7,633 655 17,155 2,697 68,120 32,052 1,150,466 

141 ,861 68,120 209,981 
0 
0 

14,400 1,445,230 
26,098 26,098 

0 
0 

149,008 149,008 

0 149,008 141,861 0 68,120 40,498 1,830,317 

7,633 (148,353) {124,706) 2,697 0 (8,446) (679,851) 

149,507 132,250 32,500 606,917 
(12,500) (60,660) 

(4,867} 1,154 7,544 2,697 0 24,054 (133,594) 

12,084 1,945 9,731 97,154 0 166,601 2,325,810 

$ 7,217 $ 3,099 $ 17,275 $ 99,851 $ 0 $ 190,655 $ 2,192,216 

The accompanying notes are a part of these financial statements. 
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General Obligation Bond: 

CITY OF KETCHUM IDAHO 
'Bond~Fubrre Pl'i ndpat and lnteres t Requirements 

at September J0 1 :2Di19 

·Annual Payment 

Interest Fisca.l P'nni;;rp;;;il 
Rate ¥ear Paiment 

$1 ,550,000 General Obligation Bonds 
Series June 5, 2007 
3. 72% - 4.43% 4.38% 2020 $ 137,000 

4.43% 2021 143,000 

280,000 

Toe :accompanying notes are a part of these 111anc1al sta emenhL 
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Interest 
Pelmeri 

$ 12,336 
6,335 

$ 18,671 
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CITY OF KETCHUM, IDAHO 
Bond-Future Principal and Interest Requirements 

at September 30, 2019 

Annual Payment 

Interest Fiscal Principal 
Water Rate Year Payment 
Revenue Bond: 

Water Refunding Bond 2016 
$ 1,697,000, September 8, 2016 

1.74% 
1.74% 2020 $ 145,000 
1.74% 2021 151,000 
1.74% 2022 152,000 
1.74% 2023 157,000 
1.74% 2024 162,000 
1.74% 2025 162,000 
1.74% 2026 166,000 
1.74% 2027 173,000 

$ 1,268,000 

The accompanying notes are a part of these financial statements. 
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Interest 
Payment 

$ 22,064 
19,540 
16,912 
14,269 
11,537 
8,717 
5,899 
3,010 

$ 101,948 
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Water 
Revenue Bond: 

CITY OF KETCHUM, IDAHO 
Bond-Future Principal and Interest Requirements 

at September 30, 2019 

Annual Payment 

Interest Fiscal Principal 
Rate Year Payment 

Water Revenue Refunding Bonds 2015 
$2,310,000, September 2, 2015 
2.00% - 5.00% 

3.00% 2020 $ 30,000 
3.00% 2021 30,000 
4.00% 2022 30,000 
3.25% 2023 30,000 
5.00% 2024 30,000 
5.00% 2025 35,000 
5.00% 2026 35,000 
5.00% 2027 30,000 
5.00% 2028 255,000 
5.00% 2029 270,000 
5.00% 2030 285,000 
5.00% 2031 295,000 
5.00% 2032 310,000 
5.00% 2033 330,000 
5.00% 2034 235,000 

$ 2,230,000 

The accompanying notes are a part of these financial statements. 
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Interest 
Payment 

$ 109,475 
108,575 
107,675 
106,475 
105,500 
104,000 
102,250 
100,500 
99,000 
86,250 
72,750 
58,500 
43,750 
28,250 
11,750 

$ 1,244,700 
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Wastewater 
Revenue Bond: 

CITY O KETCHUM. IDAHO 
Bond-Futuro Pr1nclpal and Interest Requirements­

at September 30, 20n, 

Ann aJ Pavment 

Interest Fiscal Principal 
Rate Year Pa~ment 

Wastewater Revenue Refunding Bonds 2014 
$1,950,000, November 18, 2014 
2.00% - 5.00% 5.00% 2020 $ 195,000 

5.00% 2021 205,000 
5.00% 2022 215,000 
5.00% 2023 220,000 
5.00% 2024 230,000 
5.00% 2025 250,000 

$ 1,31 5.000 

The- accon, r,ianyu,g notes are a part o· these financia l statements_ 

7-

Interest 
Pa~men 

$ 65,750 
56,000 
45,750 
35,000 
24,000 
12,500 

239.000 
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WORKMAN 
&COMPANY 

Office of 
Accounting 

2190 Village Park Avenue, Suite 300 • Twin Falls, ID 83301 • 208.733.1161 • Fax: 208.733.6100 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING 
AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL 

STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS 

To the City Council 
City of Ketchum, Idaho 

November 9, 2019 

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards 
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the governmental 
activities, the business-type activities, the aggregate discretely presented component units, each major 
fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Ketchum, Idaho, as of and for the year 
ended September 30, 2019, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise 
the City of Ketchum, Idaho's basic financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated 
November 9, 2019. 

Internal Control over Financial Reporting 

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the City of Ketchum, Idaho's 
internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, 
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the City of Ketchum, Idaho's internal 
control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the City of Ketchum, Idaho's 
internal control. · · 

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management 
or employees, in the normal course of performing their. assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, 
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in 
internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity's 
financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant 
deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a 
material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance. 

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this 
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material 
weaknesses or, significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any 
deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses 
may exist that have not been identified. 

Compliance and Other Matters 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the City of Ketchum, Idaho's financial statements 
are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, 
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material 
effect on the determination of financial statement amoun~. How~ver, providing an opinion on compliance 
with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and.accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. 
The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be 
reported under Government Auditing Standards. 
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Report Continued-

Purpose of this Report 

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance 
and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal 
control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with 
Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity's internal control and compliance. Accordingly, 
this communication is not suitable for any other purpose. 
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WORKMAN AND COMPANY 
Certified Public Accountants 
Twin Falls, Idaho 

222



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

(This page has been intentionally left blank.) 

223



 

B–1 

APPENDIX B 
 

PROPOSED FORM OF OPINION OF BOND COUNSEL 
 
Upon the delivery of the 2020 Bonds, Skinner Fawcett LLP, Bond Counsel to the City, propose to issue 

its final approving opinion in substantially the following form: 
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CONTINUING DISCLOSURE AGREEMENT 

 
CITY OF KETCHUM, BLAINE COUNTY, STATE OF IDAHO 

GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS, SERIES 2020 
 

(CUSIP Base Number ________) 
 

THIS CONTINUING DISCLOSURE AGREEMENT (the “Agreement”) is executed and 
delivered by the City of Ketchum, Blaine County, Idaho (the “Issuer”) and Zions 
Bancorporation, National Association (the “Dissemination Agent”), as of the date set forth below 
in order for the Issuer to authorize and direct the Dissemination Agent, as the agent of the Issuer, 
to make certain information available to the public in compliance with Section (b)(5)(i) of Rule 
15c2-12, as hereinafter defined.  
 

WITNESSETH: 
 

1. Background.  The Issuer has resolved to issue its General Obligation Bonds, Series 2020 
(the “Bonds”).  The Bonds are issued pursuant to Ordinance No. 1206, adopted by the City 
Council of the Issuer on February 18, 2020 (the “Ordinance”), which names Dissemination 
Agent as the as paying agent and registrar, all as further described in the Official Statement 
prepared in connection with the issuance of the Bonds.  The CUSIP number assigned to the final 
maturity of the Bonds is _______________. 
 
2. Appointment of Dissemination Agent.  The Issuer hereby appoints the Dissemination 
Agent and any successor Dissemination Agent acting as such under the Ordinance as its agent 
under this Agreement to disseminate the financial information and notices furnished by the 
Issuer hereunder in the manner and at the times as herein provided and to discharge the other 
duties assigned. 
 
3. Information to be Furnished by the Issuer.  The Issuer hereby covenants for the 
benefit of the registered and beneficial owners of the Bonds that, as long as any of the Bonds are 
outstanding under the Ordinance, the Issuer will deliver the following information to the 
Dissemination Agent: 
 

a. Within 180 days after the end of the Issuer’s fiscal year, beginning with fiscal 
year ended September 30, 2020, the audited financial statements of the Issuer prepared in 
accordance with generally-accepted accounting principles, together with the report thereon of the 
Issuer’s independent auditors. If audited financial statements are not available by the time 
specified herein, unaudited financial statements will be provided and audited financial statements 
will be provided when, and if, available. The Issuer shall include with each submission a written 
representation addressed to the Dissemination Agent to the effect that the financial statements 
are the financial statements required by this Agreement and that they comply with the applicable 
requirements of this Agreement.  For the purposes of determining whether information received 
from the Issuer is the required financial statements, the Dissemination Agent shall be entitled 
conclusively to rely on the Issuer’s written representation made pursuant to this Section. 
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b. Within 180 days after the end of the Issuer’s fiscal year, beginning with fiscal 
year ended September 30, 2020, the other financial, statistical and operating data for said fiscal 
year of the Issuer in the form and scope similar to the financial, statistical and operating data 
contained in the Issuer’s Official Statement, specifically the tables and/or information contained 
under the following tables and headings of the Official Statement:   
 
 

DEBT STRUCTURE OF THE CITY OF KETCHUM, IDAHO 
 

 Outstanding Municipal Debt: “Outstanding General Bonded Indebtedness”  
(pg.__); “Outstanding Water Revenue Bonded  Indebtedness” (pg. __); 
“Outstanding Wastewater Revenue Bonded Indebtedness” (pg. __) 
 

 Debt Service Schedule of Outstanding General Obligation Bonds By Fiscal Year 
(pg. __) 

 
 Debt Service Schedule of Outstanding Water Revenue Bonds By Fiscal Year (pg. 

__) 
 

 Debt Service Schedule of Outstanding Wastewater Revenue Bonds By Fiscal 
Year (pg. __) 

 
 Overlapping and Underlying General Obligation Debt (pg. __) 

 
 Debt Ratios (pg. __) 

 
 General Obligation Legal Debt Limit and Additional Debt Incurring Capacity (pg. 

__) 
 

FINANCIAL INFORMATION REGARDING THE CITY OF KETCHUM, IDAHO 
 

 Financial Summaries: “Statement of Net Position - Primary Government” (pg. 
__); “Statement of Activities – Total Primary Government” (pg.__); “Balance 
Sheet – Governmental Fund Types” (pg. __); “Statement of Revenues, 
Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance – Governmental Fund Types – 
General Fund” (pg. __) 
 

 Direct and Overlapping Tax Rates of the City (pg. __) 
 

 Taxable Value of Property (pg. __) 
 

 Tax Collection Record (pg. __) 
 

 The Largest Taxpayers of the City (pg. __) 
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c. The Dissemination Agent shall provide notice to the Issuer of its requirement to 
provide the information listed in Sections 3.a. and 3.b. at least thirty (30) days prior to the date 
such information is to be provided to the Dissemination Agent by the Issuer.  Any or all of the 
items listed above in Sections 3.a. or 3.b. may be incorporated by reference from other 
documents, including official statements of debt issues of the Issuer which have been previously 
submitted to the Repository or the SEC.  If the document incorporated by reference is a final 
official statement, it must be available from the MSRB. The Issuer shall clearly identify each 
such document incorporated by reference. In the event Issuer is unable or fails to provide the 
required annual financial information specified in Sections 3.a. and 3.b. above on or before the 
date specified therein, Issuer shall timely submit to the Repository notice of such failure in the 
form attached hereto as Exhibit A.  
 

d. Within ten (10) business days after the occurrence of the event, written notice of 
any of the following events with respect to the Bonds: 
 

(1) Principal and interest payment delinquencies; 
 
(2) Nonpayment-related defaults, if material;  
 
(3) Unscheduled draws on debt service reserves reflecting financial 
difficulties; 
 
(4) Unscheduled draws on credit enhancements reflecting financial 
difficulties; 
 
(5) Substitution of credit or liquidity providers, or their failure to perform; 
 
(6) Adverse tax opinions, the issuance by the Internal Revenue Service of 
proposed or final determinations of taxability, Notices of Proposed Issue (IRS 
Form 5701-TEB) or other material notices or determinations with respect to the 
tax status of the security, or other material events affecting the tax status of the 
security; 
 
(7) Modifications to rights of security holders, if material; 
 
(8) Bond calls, if material, and tender offers; 
 
(9) Defeasances; 
 
(10) Release, substitution or sale of property securing repayment of the 
securities, if material; 
 
(11) Rating changes;  
 
(12) Bankruptcy, insolvency, receivership or similar event of the obligated 
person;1  

 
1
  For the purposes of the event identified in paragraph (12) above, the event is considered to occur when any of the following 

occur:  The appointment of a receiver, fiscal agent or similar officer for an obligated person in a proceeding under the U.S. 
Bankruptcy Code or in any other proceeding under state or federal law in which a court or governmental authority has 230
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(13) The consummation of a merger, consolidation, or acquisition involving an 
obligated person or the sale of all or substantially all of the assets of the obligated 
person, other than in the ordinary course of business, the entry into a definitive 
agreement to undertake such an action or the termination of a definitive 
agreement relating to any such actions, other than pursuant to its terms, if 
material;  
 
(14) Appointment of a successor or additional trustee or the change of name of 
a trustee, if material;  
 
(15) Incurrence of a Financial Obligation of the obligated person, if material; or 
agreement to covenants, events of default, remedies, priority rights, or other 
similar terms of a Financial Obligation of the obligated person, any of which 
affect securities holders, if material; and 
 
(16) Default, event of acceleration, termination event, modification of terms or 
other similar events under the terms of a Financial Obligation of the obligated 
person, any of which reflect financial difficulties. 

 
e. The Dissemination Agent shall promptly advise the Issuer whenever, in the course 

of performing its duties under the Ordinance, the Dissemination Agent identifies an occurrence 
listed above which may require the Issuer to provide a notice of the occurrence of any of the 
events listed in Section 3.f. above; provided that the failure of the Dissemination Agent so to 
advise the Issuer of such occurrence shall not constitute a breach by the Dissemination Agent of 
any of its duties and responsibilities hereunder or under the Ordinance.  The Dissemination 
Agent shall only send notice of such event listed in Section 3.d. above to the Repository if such 
written notice is provided to it by the Issuer, and in no event shall the Dissemination Agent be 
required to determine the materiality of such event. 

 
4. Manner and Time by Which Information is to be Made Public by the Dissemination 
Agent. 
 

a. The information required to be delivered to the Dissemination Agent pursuant to 
Sections 3.a. and 3.b. hereof shall be referred to as the Continuous Disclosure Information (the 
“Continuous Disclosure Information”), and the notices required to be delivered to the 
Dissemination Agent pursuant to Section 3.d. hereof shall be referred to as the Event Information 
(the “Event Information”). 

 
b. After the receipt of any Continuous Disclosure Information or any Event 

Information, the Dissemination Agent will deliver the information as provided in the following 
Section 4.c. 

 
c. It shall be the Dissemination Agent's duty: 

 
assumed jurisdiction over substantially all of the assets or business of the obligated person, or if such jurisdiction has been 
assumed by leaving the existing governing body and officials or officers in possession but subject to the supervision and 
orders of a court or governmental authority, or the entry of an order confirming a plan of reorganization, arrangement or 
liquidation by a court or governmental authority having supervision or jurisdiction over substantially all of the assets or 
business of the obligated person. 231
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(1) to deliver the Continuous Disclosure Information to the Repository once it 
is received from the Issuer not later than five (5) days after receipt thereof;  
 
(2) to deliver the Event Information to the Repository immediately upon 
receipt from the Issuer, and in any event not more than two business days 
following receipt from Issuer; 
 
(3) to determine the identity and address of the then existing Repository to 
which Continuous Disclosure Information and Event Information must be sent 
under rules and regulations promulgated by the MSRB or by the SEC. 
 

d. The Dissemination Agent shall have no duty or obligation to disclose to the 
Repository any information other than (i) Continuous Disclosure Information that the 
Dissemination Agent actually has received from the Issuer and (ii) Event Information about 
which the Dissemination Agent has received written notice from the Issuer.  Any such 
disclosures shall be required to be made only as and when specified in this Agreement.  The 
Dissemination Agent's duties and obligations are only those specifically set forth in this 
Agreement, and the Dissemination Agent shall have no implied duties or obligations.  

 
e. All Continuous Disclosure Information and Event Information, or other financial 

information and notices pursuant to this Agreement are to be provided to the Repository in 
electronic PDF format (word-searchable) as prescribed by the MSRB.  All documents provided 
to the MSRB pursuant to this Agreement must be accompanied by identifying information as 
prescribed by the MSRB. 

 
5. Indemnification. 
 

a. The Dissemination Agent shall have no obligation to examine or review the 
Continuous Disclosure Information and shall have no liability or responsibility for the form of, 
or the accurateness or completeness of, the Continuous Disclosure Information or Event 
Information disseminated by the Dissemination Agent hereunder.  The Dissemination Agent’s 
duties under this Agreement are ministerial in nature.  The Continuous Disclosure Information 
shall contain a legend to such effect.  The Dissemination Agent shall have the same rights, 
protections, and immunities hereunder as provided to it as a trustee under the Ordinance.  

 
b. The Issuer hereby agrees to hold harmless and to indemnify the Dissemination 

Agent, its employees, officers, directors, agents and attorneys from and against any and all 
claims, damages, losses, liabilities, reasonable costs and expenses whatsoever (including 
attorneys' fees and expenses, whether incurred before trial, at trial, or on appeal, or in any 
bankruptcy or arbitration proceedings), which may be incurred by the Dissemination Agent by 
reason of or in connection with the disclosure of information in accordance with this Agreement, 
except to the extent such claims, damages, losses, liabilities, costs or expenses result directly 
from the willful or negligent conduct of the Dissemination Agent in the performance of its duties 
under this Agreement.  This Section 5.b shall survive the termination of the Agreement, payment 
of the Bonds, and the removal or resignation of the Dissemination Agent.   

 

232



 

C–6 
 

c. In no event shall Dissemination Agent be liable for special, indirect, or 
consequential losses or damages of any kind whatsoever (including but not limited to lost profits) 
even if Dissemination Agent has previously been advised of such losses and damages. 

 
6. Compensation.  The Issuer hereby agrees to compensate the Dissemination Agent for the 
services provided and the expenses (including legal fees and expenses) incurred pursuant to this 
Agreement in an amount to be agreed upon from time to time hereunder.  Such compensation 
shall be in addition to any fees previously agreed upon with respect to the services of Zions 
Bancorporation, National Association, in its capacity as Trustee under the Ordinance. 
 
7. Enforcement.  The obligations of the Issuer under this Agreement shall be for the benefit 
of the registered and beneficial holders of the Bonds.  Any holder of the Bonds then outstanding, 
including any Beneficial Owner of the Bonds (as defined in the Ordinance), may enforce specific 
performance of such obligations by any judicial proceeding available.  However, any failure by 
the Issuer to perform in accordance with this Agreement shall not constitute a default under the 
Ordinance. 
 

This Agreement shall inure solely to the benefit of the Issuer, the Dissemination Agent 
and the holders and beneficial owners from time to time of the Bonds and shall create no rights 
in any other person or entity. 

 
8. Definitions.  As used herein, the following terms shall have the following meanings: 

“Financial Obligation” means a (a) debt obligation; (b) derivative instrument entered into 
in connection with, or pledged as security or a source of payment for, an existing or planned debt 
obligation; or (c) guarantee of (a) or (b); provided that “financial obligation” shall not include 
municipal securities as to which a final official statement (as defined in Rule 15c2-12) has been 
provided to the MSRB consistent with Rule 15c2-12. 

 
“MSRB” shall mean the Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board. 
 
“obligated person” as defined in Rule 15c2-12 shall mean any person, including an issuer 

of municipal securities, who is either generally or through an enterprise, fund, or account of such 
person committed by contract or other arrangement to support payment of all, or part of the 
obligations on the municipal securities to be sold in the offering (other than providers of 
municipal bond insurance, letters of credit, or other liquidity facilities). 

 
“Official Statement” shall mean the final Official Statement of the Issuer dated March __, 

2020. 
 
“Ordinance” means Ordinance No. 1206 of the Issuer pursuant to which the Bonds have 

been authorized and issued. 
 
“Repository” shall mean MSRB through its Electronic Municipal Market Access system 

(“EMMA”) at http://emma.msrb.org, or such other nationally recognized municipal securities 
information repository recognized by the SEC from time to time pursuant to Rule 15c2-12. 

 
 “Rule 15c2-12” shall mean Rule 15c2-12, as amended, promulgated by the SEC under 

the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, and as amended from time to time. 
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“SEC” shall mean the Securities and Exchange Commission. 
 

9. Amendments and Termination; Resignation of Dissemination Agent.  This 
Agreement may be amended with the mutual agreement of the Issuer and the Dissemination 
Agent and without the consent of any registered or beneficial holders of the Bonds under the 
following conditions, as evidenced by receipt of an opinion of nationally recognized bond 
counsel delivered to the Dissemination Agent opining as to the following: 
 

a. the amendment is made in connection with a change in circumstances that arises 
from a change in legal requirements, change in law, or change in the identity, nature, or status of 
the obligated person or type of business conducted; 

 
b. this Agreement, as amended, would have complied with the requirements of Rule 

15c2-12 at the time of the primary offering, after taking into account any amendments or 
interpretations of Rule 15c2-12, as well as any change in circumstances; and 

 
c. the amendment does not materially impair the interests of holders of the Bonds, as 

determined by parties unaffiliated with the Issuer (such as the Dissemination Agent or nationally 
recognized bond counsel). 

 
Any party to this Agreement may terminate this Agreement by giving written notice of an 

intent to terminate to the other parties at least thirty (30) days prior to such termination, provided 
that no such termination shall relieve the obligation of the Issuer to comply with Rule 15c2-
12(b)(5) either through a successor agent or otherwise. 

 
The Dissemination Agent may resign as Dissemination Agent by giving written notice of 

intent to resign to the Issuer at least ninety (90) days prior to resignation. 
 
The undertaking contained in this Agreement shall be in effect from and after the 

issuance and delivery of the Bonds and shall extend to the earlier of (i) the date all principal and 
interest on the Bonds shall have been paid in full pursuant to the terms of the Ordinance; (ii) the 
date that the Issuer shall no longer constitute an "obligated person" within the meaning of Rule 
15c2-12; or (iii) the date on which those portions of Rule 15c2-12 that require this written 
undertaking (a) are held to be invalid by a court of competent jurisdiction in a nonappealable 
action, (b) have been repealed retroactively, or (c) in the opinion of counsel who is an expert in 
federal securities laws, acceptable to the Issuer or the Dissemination Agent, otherwise, do not 
apply to the Bonds.  The Issuer shall notify the Repository if this Agreement is terminated 
pursuant to (iii), above. 

 
10. Successor Dissemination Agent.  Upon the transfer of the duties created under the 
Ordinance from the current Dissemination Agent to a successor Dissemination Agent, such 
successor Dissemination Agent shall succeed to the duties under this Agreement without any 
further action on the part of any party, and the then current Dissemination Agent shall have no 
further duties or obligations upon the transfer to a successor Dissemination Agent.  Such 
Successor Dissemination Agent may terminate this Agreement or cause it to be amended as 
provided in paragraph 9. 
 
11. Additional Information.  Nothing in this Agreement shall be deemed to prevent the 
Issuer from disseminating (or from causing the Dissemination Agent to disseminate) any other 
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information, using the means of dissemination set forth in this Agreement or any other means of 
communication, or including any other information in any Continuous Disclosure Information or 
notice of the occurrence of any Event Information, in addition to that which is required by this 
Agreement.  If the Issuer chooses to include any information in any Continuous Disclosure 
Information or Event Information in addition to that which is specifically required by this 
Agreement, the Issuer shall have no obligation under this Agreement to update such information 
or include it in any future Continuous Disclosure Information or notice of occurrence of any 
Event Information. 
 

If the Issuer provides to the Dissemination Agent information relating to the Issuer or the 
Bonds, which information is not designated as Event Information, and directs the Dissemination 
Agent to provide such information to the Repository, the Dissemination Agent shall provide such 
information in a timely manner to the Repository 

 
12. Notices.  All notices and communications required hereunder shall be in writing and shall 
be given to the parties at their addresses set forth below under their signatures or at such places 
as the parties to this Agreement may designate from time to time.  Any notice or communication 
hereunder shall be deemed duly given if in writing and delivered either in person, by overnight 
mail, or by first class mail, postage prepaid. 
 
13. Counterparts.  This Agreement may be executed in one or more counterparts, and each 
such instrument shall constitute an original counterpart of this Agreement. 
 
14. Governing Law.  This Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the State of Idaho. 

 
[The following page is the signature page.] 
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Issuer and the Dissemination Agent have caused this 
Agreement to be executed and delivered by a duly authorized officer of each of them, all as of 
this March __, 2020. 
 

ISSUER: CITY OF KETCHUM, 
BLAINE COUNTY, IDAHO 
 

 

____________________________ 
Grant Gager, Director of Finance 

 

Notice Address: 

480 East Ave. N. 
Ketchum, Idaho 83350 
Attn: Director of Finance 

        
        

  

DISSEMINATION AGENT: 

 

ZIONS BANCORPORATION, NATIONAL 
ASSOCIATION  

 

       
Twyla D. Lehto, Senior Vice President 
Zions Bank Division 
 

Notice Address: 

800 W. Main Street, Ste 700 
Boise, Idaho 83702 
Attn: Corporate Trust 
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EXHIBIT A 

FORM OF NOTICE OF THE MUNICIPAL SECURITIES RULEMAKING BOARD OF 
FAILURE TO FILE ANNUAL REPORT 

 

Name of Issuer: City of Ketchum, Blaine County, Idaho 

Name of Bond Issue: General Obligation Bonds, Series 2020 
 

Date of Issuance: March __, 2020 

 

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the above referenced Issuer has not provided an Annual 
Report with respect to the above captioned Bonds as required by Section 3 of the Continuing 
Disclosure Agreement, between the Issuer and Zions Bancorporation, National Association, as 
Dissemination Agent, dated the Date of Issuance.  The Issuer has notified the Dissemination 
Agent that it anticipates the Annual Report will be filed on or about _____________________. 

Dated:        

 

 

 ZIONS BANCORPORATION, NATIONAL 
ASSOCIATION, as Dissemination Agent, on behalf of the 
Issuer 

  

 

By:       

Name:            

Title:          
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APPENDIX D 
 

BOOK–ENTRY SYSTEM 
 
DTC, the world’s largest securities depository, is a limited–purpose trust company organized under the 

New York Banking Law, a “banking organization” within the meaning of the New York Banking Law, a 
member of the Federal Reserve System, a “clearing corporation” within the meaning of the New York 
Uniform Commercial Code, and a “clearing agency” registered pursuant to the provisions of Section 17A 
of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934. DTC holds and provides asset servicing for over 3.6 million issues 
of U.S. and non–U.S. equity issues, corporate and municipal debt issues, and money market instruments 
(from over 100 countries) that DTC’s participants (“Direct Participants”) deposit with DTC. DTC also 
facilitates the post–trade settlement among Direct Participants of sales and other securities transactions in 
deposited securities, through electronic computerized book–entry transfers and pledges between Direct Par-
ticipants’ accounts. This eliminates the need for physical movement of securities certificates. Direct Partic-
ipants include both U.S. and non–U.S. securities brokers and dealers, banks, trust companies, clearing cor-
porations, and certain other organizations. DTC is a wholly owned subsidiary of The Depository Trust & 
Clearing Corporation (“DTCC”). DTCC is the holding company for DTC, National Securities Clearing 
Corporation and Fixed Income Clearing Corporation, all of which are registered clearing agencies. DTCC 
is owned by the users of its regulated subsidiaries. Access to the DTC system is also available to others 
such as both U.S. and non–U.S. securities brokers and dealers, banks, trust companies, and clearing corpo-
rations that clear through or maintain a custodial relationship with a Direct Participant, either directly or 
indirectly (“Indirect Participants”). DTC has an S&P rating of “AA+”. The DTC Rules applicable to its 
Participants are on file with the Securities and Exchange Commission. More information about DTC can 
be found at dtcc.com. 

 
Purchases of 2020 Bonds under the DTC system must be made by or through Direct Participants, which 

will receive a credit for the 2020 Bonds on DTC’s records. The ownership interest of each actual purchaser 
of each 2020 Bond (“Beneficial Owner”) is in turn to be recorded on the Direct and Indirect Participants’ 
records. Beneficial Owners will not receive written confirmation from DTC of their purchase. Beneficial 
Owners are, however, expected to receive written confirmations providing details of the transaction, as well 
as periodic statements of their holdings, from the Direct or Indirect Participant through which the Beneficial 
Owner entered into the transaction. Transfers of ownership interests in the 2020 Bonds are to be accom-
plished by entries made on the books of Direct and Indirect Participants acting on behalf of Beneficial 
Owners. Beneficial Owners will not receive certificates representing their ownership interests in 
2020 Bonds, except in the event that use of the book–entry system for the 2020 Bonds is discontinued. 

 
To facilitate subsequent transfers, all 2020 Bonds deposited by Direct Participants with DTC are regis-

tered in the name of DTC’s partnership nominee, Cede & Co., or such other name as may be requested by 
an authorized representative of DTC. The deposit of 2020 Bonds with DTC and their registration in the 
name of Cede & Co. or such other DTC nominee do not affect any change in beneficial ownership. DTC 
has no knowledge of the actual Beneficial Owners of the 2020 Bonds; DTC’s records reflect only the iden-
tity of the Direct Participants to whose accounts such 2020 Bonds are credited, which may or may not be 
the Beneficial Owners. The Direct and Indirect Participants will remain responsible for keeping account of 
their holdings on behalf of their customers. 

 
Conveyance of notices and other communications by DTC to Direct Participants, by Direct Participants 

to Indirect Participants, and by Direct Participants and Indirect Participants to Beneficial Owners will be 
governed by arrangements among them, subject to any statutory or regulatory requirements as may be in 
effect from time to time. Beneficial Owners of 2020 Bonds may wish to take certain steps to augment the 
transmission to them of notices of significant events with respect to the 2020 Bonds, such as redemptions, 
tenders, defaults, and proposed amendments to the bond documents. For example, Beneficial Owners of 
2020 Bonds may wish to ascertain that the nominee holding the 2020 Bonds for their benefit has agreed to 
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obtain and transmit notices to Beneficial Owners. In the alternative, Beneficial Owners may wish to provide 
their names and addresses to the registrar and request that copies of notices be provided directly to them. 

 
Redemption notices shall be sent to DTC. If less than all of the 2020 Bonds within an issue are being 

redeemed, DTC’s practice is to determine by lot the amount of the interest of each Direct Participant in 
such issue to be redeemed. 

 
Neither DTC nor Cede & Co. (nor any other DTC nominee) will consent or vote with respect to 

2020 Bonds unless authorized by a Direct Participant in accordance with DTC’s MMI Procedures. Under 
its usual procedures, DTC mails an Omnibus Proxy to the City as soon as possible after the record date. 
The Omnibus Proxy assigns Cede & Co.’s consenting or voting rights to those Direct Participants to whose 
accounts the 2020 Bonds are credited on the record date (identified in a listing attached to the Omnibus 
Proxy). 

 
Redemption proceeds, distributions and dividend payments on the 2020 Bonds will be made to Cede 

& Co., or such other nominee as may be requested by an authorized representative of DTC. DTC’s practice 
is to credit Direct Participants’ accounts upon DTC’s receipt of funds and corresponding detailed infor-
mation from the City or the Paying Agent, on payable date in accordance with their respective holdings 
shown on DTC’s records. Payments by Participants to Beneficial Owners will be governed by standing 
instructions and customary practices, as is the case with securities held for the accounts of customers in 
bearer form or registered in “street name,” and will be the responsibility of such Participant and not of DTC, 
the Paying Agent, or the City, subject to any statutory or regulatory requirements as may be in effect from 
time to time. Payment of redemption proceeds, distributions and dividend payments to Cede & Co. (or such 
other nominee as may be requested by an authorized representative of DTC) is the responsibility of the City 
or the Paying Agent, disbursement of such payments to Direct Participants will be the responsibility of 
DTC, and disbursement of such payments to the Beneficial Owners will be the responsibility of Direct and 
Indirect Participants. 

 
A Beneficial Owner shall give notice to elect to have its 2020 Bonds purchased or tendered, through its 

Participant, to the Remarketing Agent, and shall effect delivery of such 2020 Bonds by causing the Direct 
Participant to transfer the Participant’s interest in the 2020 Bonds, on DTC’s records, to the Remarketing 
Agent. The requirement for physical delivery of 2020 Bonds in connection with an optional tender or a 
mandatory purchase will be deemed satisfied when the ownership rights in the 2020 Bonds are transferred 
by Direct Participants on DTC’s records and followed by a book–entry credit of tendered 2020 Bonds to 
the Remarketing Agent’s DTC account. 

 
DTC may discontinue providing its services as depository with respect to the 2020 Bonds at any time 

by giving reasonable notice to the City or the Paying Agent. Under such circumstances, in the event that a 
successor depository is not obtained, 2020 Bond certificates are required to be printed and delivered. 

 
The City may decide to discontinue use of the system of book–entry–only transfers through DTC (or a 

successor securities depository). In that event, 2020 Bond certificates will be printed and delivered to DTC. 
 
The information in this section concerning DTC and DTC’s book–entry system has been obtained from 

sources that the City believes to be reliable, but the City takes no responsibility for the accuracy thereof. 
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